
If you need us to do anything differently (reasonable adjustments) to help you 
access our services, including providing this information in another language or 
format, please contact democraticsupport@northtyneside.gov.uk. 

 

 
 

 

Planning Committee 

 
Friday, 2 June 2023 
 
Tuesday, 13 June 2023 Room 0.02, Quadrant, The Silverlink North, Cobalt 
Business Park, NE27 0BY commencing at 6.00 pm. 
 
Agenda 

Item 
 

 Page 
 

 
1.   Apologies for absence 

 
To receive apologies for absence from the meeting. 
 

 

 
2.   Appointment of substitutes 

 
To be informed of the appointment of any substitute members 
for the meeting. 
 

 

 
3.   Declarations of Interest 

 
You are invited to declare any registerable and/or non-
registerable interests in matters appearing on the agenda, and 
the nature of that interest. 
  
You are also requested to complete the Declarations of 
Interests card available at the meeting and return it to the 
Democratic Services Officer before leaving the meeting. 
  
 
 
 
 

 

Public Document Pack



Agenda 
Item 

 

 Page 

 
 

 

You are also invited to disclose any dispensation from the 
requirement to declare any registerable and/or non-
registerable interests that have been granted to you in respect 
of any matters appearing on the agenda. 
  

4.   Minutes 
 
To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting held on 9 May 
2023 
 

5 - 10 

 
5.   Planning Officer Reports 

 
To receive the attached guidance to members in determining 
planning applications and to give consideration to the 
planning applications listed in the following agenda items. 
 

11 - 54 

 
6.   21/02546/FUL, Site of The Fusilier, Clydedale Avenue, Forest Hall 

 
To determine a full planning application from Karbon Homes 
for the erection of 20 affordable homes and associated 
landscaping. 
  
Speaking Rights Granted to: 
  

       Local Resident, Martin Swinney 
       Andrew Moss on behalf of the applicant 

 

55 - 112 

 
7.   21/01569/FUL, Land at former School House, Sandy Lane, North 

Gosforth 
 
To determine a full planning application on behalf of George F 
White for the erection of 4 detached dwellings. 
  
Speaking Rights Granted to: 
  

       Local Resident, Keith Dowd 
       Hannah Wafer on behalf of the applicant 

 

113 - 
162 

 



Agenda 
Item 

 

 Page 

 
 

 

8.   22/02231/FUL, Unit 8-10, Graphic House, Mylord Crescent, 
Camperdown Industrial Estate, Camperdown 
 
To determine a full planning application from FSNE Medical for 
a change of use from light industrial to operate as a base for 
emergency vehicles. 
  
Speaking Rights Granted to: 
  

       Local Resident, Andrew Marsay 
       Greg Douglas on behalf of the applicant 

 

163 - 
178 

 
9.   21/02496/FUL - Land adjacent to Hatfield House, Borough Road, 

North Shields 
 
To determine a full planning application from Low Town 
Developments for the erection of 5 three storey townhouse 
style terraced dwellings with communal parking and rear 
amenity space. 
 

179 - 
214 

 
10.   23/00217/FUL - Land east of Weetslade Depot, Great Lime Road, 

Dudley 
 
To determine a full planning application from Aldi Stores 
Limited for the erection of a foodstore (Class E) with associated 
car parking, vehicular, pedestrian and cycle access, drainage 
and landscaping. 
 

215 - 
264 

Circulation overleaf …



 

 
 

Members of the Planning Committee  
 

Councillor Sarah Burtenshaw Councillor Steve Cox 
Councillor Julie Cruddas (Deputy Chair) Councillor Tracy Hallway 
Councillor Chris Johnston Councillor Pam McIntyre 
Councillor Jim Montague Councillor John O'Shea 
Councillor Pat Oliver Councillor Willie Samuel (Chair) 
Councillor Matthew Thirlaway  

 



(Note: These minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting of the Committee 
scheduled to be held on Tuesday, 13 June 2023.) 

 
 

 
Planning Committee 

 
Tuesday, 9 May 2023 

 
Present:  Councillor W Samuel (Chair) 

  Councillors J Cruddas, M Hall, C Johnston, 
T Mulvenna, J O'Shea and J Shaw 

 
Apologies:  Councillors P McIntyre 

 
  
PQ87/23 Declarations of Interest 

 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations reported. 
 
  
PQ88/23 Minutes 

 
Resolved that the minutes of the meeting held on 11 April 2023 be confirmed and 
signed by the Chair. 
 
  
PQ89/23 Planning Officer Reports 

 
The Committee received guidance in relation to the principles of decision making 
when determining planning applications and then gave consideration to the 
planning applications listed in the following minutes. 
  
 
  
PQ90/23 21/01779/REM, Land West of Mackley Court, Wallsend 

 
The Committee considered a report from the planning officers, together with two 
addendums circulated prior to the meeting, in relation to a reserved matters 
application from VB Benton Ltd for the approval of the access, scale, layout, 
appearance and landscaping of planning approval 12/02025/FUL, construction of 
1no. retail / commercial unit falling within Use Class E. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



Planning Committee 
 

2 
Tuesday, 9 May 2023 

  
A planning officer presented details of the application with the aid of various 
maps, plans and photographs. 
  
In accordance with the Committee’s Speaking Rights Scheme, local residents, 
Ben Reeve and Elaine Armstrong had been granted permission to speak to the 
Committee. Elaine Armstrong was unable to attend the meeting. The agenda 
papers included the reasons for objection for the development and Mr Ben Reeve 
was in attendance and provided a summary, which included the loss of 
privacy/residential and visual amenity, nuisance caused through 
disturbance/dust/dirt and noise. Traffic congestion, unsuitable vehicular access 
and pedestrian safety.  
  
Fraser Tinsley of Bradley Hall on behalf of the applicants, VB Benton Limited 
addressed the Committee to respond to the speakers’ comments. In addressing 
the concerns of the objections Mr Tinsley paragraphs 9.9 – 9.16 in the papers. In 
relation to parking, it was stated that the retailer would be providing 16 parking 
places, which was higher than standard for a development of the size and would 
provide local employment.  
  
Members of the Committee asked questions of the speakers and officers and 
made comments. In doing so the Committee gave particular consideration to: 

a)      Delivery access and potential noise nuisance  
b)      Delivery hours of operation 
c)      Construction of boundary fencing  
d)      Traffic calming measures  
e)      Landscaping 

  
The Chair proposed acceptance of the planning officer’s recommendation.  
  
On being put to the vote, 7 members of the Committee voted for the 
recommendation and 0 members voted against the recommendation. 
  
Resolved that the application be permitted subject to the conditions set out in the 
planning officers report and addendum. 
  
(Reasons for decision: The Committee concluded that, having regard to the relevant policies 
contained in the Council’s Local Plan 2017 and National Planning Policy Framework  the 
revised matters relating to the layout, scale, appearance, landscaping and access for the 

Page 6



Planning Committee 
 

3 
Tuesday, 9 May 2023 

construction of one commercial/retail unit falling within Use Class E of the hybrid planning 
permission 12/02025/FUL were acceptable.) 
  
 
  
PQ91/23 22/02106/FUL, Land East of Backworth Lane, Backworth 

 
The Committee considered a report from the planning officers, together with an 
addendum circulated prior to the meeting, in relation to a full planning 
application from Northumberland Estates for change of use of land and 
construction of solar PV panels (up to 28 MW), associated electrical 
infrastructure, operational buildings, substations, lattice tower, security fencing, 
CCTV, access tracks, landscaping and other ancillary works..  
  
A planning officer presented details of the application with the aid of various 
maps, plans and photographs. 
  
In accordance with the Committee’s Speaking Rights Scheme Jowita Smolak and 
Max Seed had been granted permission to speak to the Committee. Mr Seed 
stated that the development would have impact on the landscape, cause 
continual disruption, cause visual impairment would raised that there was limited 
consultation for local people. A member questioned what consultation had been 
provided. Mr Seed stated one letter was received and no further information was 
displayed in the affected area. Officers provided information that 60 letters to 
affected residents had been sent, signs were displayed in the local area and 
notices were placed in the press.    
  
Barry Spall of Northumberland Estates addressed the Committee to respond to 
the speakers’ comments.  
  
Members of the Committee asked questions of the speakers and officers and 
made comments. In doing so the Committee considered: 

a)    Achieving the desired energy benefit from the site 
b)    Impact on landscape and biodiversity  
c)     Consultation 
d)    CCTV and security operations 
e)    Boundary and visual impact 
f)      Site identification for use and expansion 

  

Page 7



Planning Committee 
 

4 
Tuesday, 9 May 2023 

The Chair proposed acceptance of the planning officer’s recommendation.  
  
On being put to the vote, 4 members of the Committee voted for the 
recommendation and 3 members voted against the recommendation. 
  
Resolved that the application be permitted subject to the conditions set out in the 
planning officers report. 
  
(Reasons for decision: The Committee concluded that, having regard to the 
relevant policies contained in the Council’s Local Plan 2017 and National Planning 
Policy Framework, the proposed development was acceptable in terms of the 
principle of development and its impact on the character and appearance of the 
area, highway safety, the loss of agricultural land and biodiversity.) 
  
 
  
PQ92/23 21/02496/FUL, Land Adjacent to Hatfield House, Borough Road, North 

Shields 
 

This item was withdrawn. 
 
  
PQ93/23 Land to the Rear of 12, 14 and 16 Stoneycroft East, Killingworth Tree 

Preservation Order 2022 
 

The Committee gave consideration as to whether to confirm the making of the 
Land to the rear of 12, 14 and 16 Stoneycroft East, Killingworth Tree Preservation 
Order 2022.  
  
The Council had been notified of the intention to prune poplar trees on Council 
owned land to the rear of 12, 14 and 16 Stoneycroft East, Killingworth. In response 
the Council had decided to make a Tree Preservation Order (TPO) to protect the 
tree. The TPO had been served on those people with an interest in the land in 
December 2022. 
  
Two objections to the TPO had been received from the occupiers of 10 and 16 
Stoneycroft East, Killingworth. The objections were on the grounds that the trees 
were in a poor condition and had not been managed by the Council for a 

Page 8



Planning Committee 
 

5 
Tuesday, 9 May 2023 

number of years. The application was to cut back over hanging branches 
because they posed a danger to properties, overhanging habitable rooms. An 
earlier application had been  submitted due to the Council not seeing the works 
as a priority The Council had previously paid compensation when branches had 
caused damage to adjacent properties. The trees were now larger and more 
invasive than they have ever been. 
  
The Committee considered the objection together with the comments of the 
planning officers and the Council’s landscape architect before deciding whether 
to: 
a)         confirm the TPO without modification; 
b)         confirm the TPO with modifications; or 
c)         not to confirm the TPO. 
  
It was reported that the Council had agreed to undertake the pruning works first 
requested by the residents after they were initially told the works were not a 
priority. In view of this the Committee was recommended not to confirm the TPO 
as the management and maintenance of the trees would be undertaken by the 
Council and not by third parties, ensuring the amenity value and contribution to 
the conservation area of the trees is protected. 
  
Resolved that the Land to the rear of 12, 14 and 16 Stoneycroft East, Killingworth 
Tree Preservation Order 2022 is not confirmed. 
  
(Reason for decision: The Committee were satisfied it was not necessary to 
confirm the Order because the trees are owned by the Authority and within 
Killingworth Village conservation area. The trees are believed to have sufficient 
protection in place to ensure only appropriate works are undertaken as part of 
their ongoing management and the intention to undertake the works by third 
parties is no longer applicable.) 
  
 
  
PQ94/23 23/00470/TELGDO, Grass Verge Adjacent to Land East of Addington 

Drive, Wallsend, Tyne And Wear 
 

The Chair had agreed to this item of business being considered at the meeting as 
an urgent item in accordance with Section 100(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government 

Page 9



Planning Committee 
 

6 
Tuesday, 9 May 2023 

Act 1972 (as amended) because the Authority had received a petition and a 
request for speaking rights in relation to the application after publication of the 
agenda and the deadline for determining the matter was 31 May 2023. 
  
The Committee considered a report from the planning officers in relation to a 
telecommunication system notification from CK Hutchinson Networks (UK) Ltd for 
the installation of 15m high phase 9 street pole slim-line monopole, supporting 
4no. antennas, 3 no. equipment cabinets and ancillary development thereto 
including 1 no. GPS module. 
  
A planning officer presented details of the application with the aid of various 
maps, plans and photographs. 
  
In accordance with the Committee’s Speaking Rights Scheme a local resident Mr 
R Burdon had been granted permission to speak to the Committee. However, Mr 
Burdon did not attend the meeting.    
  
The Chair proposed acceptance of the planning officer’s recommendation.  
  
On being put to the vote, 6 members of the Committee voted for the 
recommendation and 1 member voted against the recommendation. 
  
Resolved that consent be granted and the Authority exercise control over the 
siting and appearance of the monopole.  
  
(Reasons for decision: The Committee concluded that, having regard to the 
relevant policies contained in the Council’s Local Plan 2017 and National Planning 
Policy Framework and the Town and Country (General Permitted Development) 
(England) Order 2015, the proposed development was acceptable in terms of its 
impact on the visual amenity of surrounding occupiers and the character of the 
area.) 
  
  
 
  

Page 10



Planning Agenda Content 
Planning Officer Covering Report 
01/06/23 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

Date:  13 June 2023 
 
 

PLANNING APPLICATION REPORTS 
 
 
Background Papers - Access to Information 
 
The background papers used in preparing this schedule are the relevant 
application files the numbers of which appear at the head of each report.  These 
files are available for inspection at the Council offices at Quadrant East, The 
Silverlink North, Cobalt Business Park, North Tyneside. 

 
Principles to guide members and officers in determining planning 
applications and making decisions 
 
Interests of the whole community 
 
Members of Planning Committee should determine planning matters in the 
interests of the whole community of North Tyneside. 
 
All applications should be determined on their respective planning merits. 
 
Members of Planning Committee should not predetermine planning 
applications nor do anything that may reasonably be taken as giving an 
indication of having a closed mind towards planning applications before reading 
the Officers Report and attending the meeting of the Planning Committee and 
listening to the presentation and debate at the meeting. However, councillors 
act as representatives of public opinion in their communities and lobbying of 
members has an important role in the democratic process. Where members of 
the Planning Committee consider it appropriate to publicly support or oppose a 
planning application they can do so. This does not necessarily prevent any 
such member from speaking or voting on the application provided they 
approach the decision making process with an open mind and ensure that they 
take account of all the relevant matters before reaching a decision. Any 
Member (including any substitute Member) who finds themselves in this 
position at the Planning Committee are advised to state, prior to consideration 
of the application, that they have taken a public view on the application. 
 
Where members publicly support or oppose an application they should ensure 
that the planning officers are informed , preferably in writing , so that their views 
can be properly recorded and included in the report to the Planning Committee. 
 
All other members should have regard to these principles when dealing with 
planning matters and must avoid giving an impression that the Council may 
have prejudged the matter. 
 
 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



Planning Agenda Content 
Planning Officer Covering Report 
01/06/23 

Planning Considerations 
 
Planning decisions should be made on planning considerations and should not 
be based on immaterial considerations. 
 
The Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as expanded by Government 
Guidance and decided cases define what matters are material to the 
determination of planning applications. 
 
It is the responsibility of officers in preparing reports and recommendations to 
members to identify the material planning considerations and warn members 
about those matters which are not material planning matters. 
 
Briefly, material planning considerations include:- 
 

• North Tyneside Local Plan (adopted July 2017);  
 

• National policies and advice contained in guidance issued by the Secretary 
of State, including the National Planning Policy Framework, Planning 
Practice Guidance, extant Circulars and Ministerial announcements; 

 

• non-statutory planning policies determined by the Council; 
 

• the statutory duty to pay special attention the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance of conservation areas; 

 

• the statutory duty to have special regard to the desirability of preserving a 
listed building or its setting or any features of special architectural or historic 
interest which it possesses; 

 

• representations made by statutory consultees and other persons making 
representations in response to the publicity given to applications, to the 
extent that they relate to planning matters. 

 
There is much case law on what are material planning considerations.  The 
consideration must relate to the use and development of land. 
 
Personal considerations and purely financial considerations are not on their 
own material; they can only be material in exceptional situations and only in so 
far as they relate to the use and development of land such as, the need to raise 
income to preserve a listed building which cannot otherwise be achieved. 
 
The planning system does not exist to protect private interests of one person 
against the activities of another or the commercial interests of one business 
against the activities of another. The basic question is not whether owners and 
occupiers or neighbouring properties or trade competitors would experience 
financial or other loss from a particular development, but whether the proposal 
would unacceptably affect amenities and the existing use of land and buildings, 
which ought to be protected in the public interest. 
 

Page 12



Planning Agenda Content 
Planning Officer Covering Report 
01/06/23 

Local opposition or support for the proposal is not in itself a ground for refusing 
or granting planning permission, unless that opposition or support is founded 
upon valid planning reasons which can be substantiated by clear evidence. 
 
It will be inevitable that all the considerations will not point either to grant or 
refusal.  Having identified all the material planning considerations and put to 
one side all the immaterial considerations, members must come to a carefully 
balanced decision which can be substantiated if challenged on appeal. 
 
Officers' Advice 
 
All members should pay particular attention to the professional advice and 
recommendations from officers. 
 
They should only resist such advice, if they have good reasons, based on land 
use planning grounds which can be substantiated by clear evidence. 
 
Where the Planning Committee resolves to make a decision contrary to a 
recommendation from officers, members must be aware of their legislative 
responsibilities under Article 35 of the Town & Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) to: 
 
When refusing permission:  

• state clearly and precisely the full reasons for any refusal including 
specifying all the policies and proposals in the development plan 
relevant to the decision; or 
 

When granting permission: 

• give a summary of the reasons for granting permission and of the 
policies and proposals in the development plan relevant to the decision; 
and 

• state clearly and precisely full reasons for each condition imposed, 
specifying all policies and proposals in the development plan which are 
relevant to the decision; and 

• in the case of each pre-commencement condition, state the reason for 
the condition being a pre-commencement condition.  

 
And in both cases to give a statement explaining how, in dealing with the 
application, the LPA has worked with the applicant in a proactive and positive 
manner based on seeking solutions to problems arising in relation to dealing 
with the application, having regard to advice in para.s 186-187 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Lobbying of Planning Committee Members 
 
While recognising that lobbying of members has an important role in the local 
democratic process, members of Planning Committee should ensure that their 
response is not such as to give reasonable grounds for their impartiality to be 
questioned or to indicate that the decision has already been made. If however, 
members of Committee express an opinion prior to the Planning Committee this 

Page 13



Planning Agenda Content 
Planning Officer Covering Report 
01/06/23 

does not necessarily prevent any such member from speaking or voting on the 
application provided they approach the decision making process with an open 
mind and ensure that they take account of all the relevant matters before 
reaching a decision. Any Member (including any substitute Member) who finds 
themselves in this position at the Planning Committee are advised to state, prior 
to consideration of the application, that they have taken a public view on the 
application. 
  
 
Lobbying of Other Members 
 
While recognising that lobbying of members has an important role in the local 
democratic process, all other members should ensure that their response is not 
such as to give reasonable grounds for suggesting that the decision has 
already been made by the Council. 
 
Lobbying  
 
Members of the Planning Committee should ensure that their response to any 
lobbying is not such as to give reasonable grounds for their impartiality to be 
questioned. However all members of the Council should ensure that any 
responses do not give reasonable grounds for suggesting that a decision has 
already been made by the Council. 
 
Members of the Planning Committee should not act as agents (represent or 
undertake any work) for people pursuing planning applications nor should they 
put pressure on officers for a particular recommendation. 

Page 14



Planning Agenda Content 
Planning Officer Covering Report 
01/06/23 

PLANNING APPLICATION REPORTS 
CONTENTS 

 
1 21/02546/FUL  Benton  
  

Site Of The Fusilier Clydedale Avenue Forest Hall NEWCASTLE UPON 
TYNE   

  
Speaking rights requested -Martin Swinney, 3 Victoria Avenue Longbenton 
 

 
2 21/01569/FUL  Weetslade  
  

Land At Former School House Sandy Lane North Gosforth NEWCASTLE 
UPON TYNE   

  
Speaking rights requested -Mr Keith Dowd, Roscobie Sandy Lane 
 
 

 
3 22/02231/FUL  Camperdown  
  

Unit 8-10 Graphic House Mylord Crescent Camperdown Industrial Estate 
Camperdown Newcastle Upon Tyne NE12 5UJ  

  
Speaking rights requested -Andrew Marsay, 34 Silverbirch Drive Camperdown 
 

 
4 21/02496/FUL  Riverside  
  

Land Adjacent To Hatfield House Borough Road North Shields Tyne And 
Wear 

  
 
5 23/00217/FUL  Weetslade  
  

Land East Of Weetslade Depot Great Lime Road Dudley Northumberland   
  
 
 

 

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Committee

21st January 2020

Planning Committee

13 June 2023

P
age 17



21/02546/FUL

• Location: Site Of The Fusilier, Clydedale Avenue, Forest Hall

• Proposal: Residential development of 20no. affordable homes and 

associated landscape

• Applicant: Karbon Homes

• Ward: BentonP
age 18



P
age 19



P
age 20



P
age 21



P
age 22



P
age 23



P
age 24



21/01569/FUL

• Location: Land At Former School House, Sandy Lane, Wideopen

• Proposal: Erection of 4no detached dwellings.  (Resubmission)

• Applicant: C/O George F White

• Ward: Weetslade

P
age 25



P
age 26



P
age 27



P
age 28



P
age 29



P
age 30



P
age 31



P
age 32



22/02231/FUL

• Location: Unit 8-10, Graphic House, Mylord Crescent, Camperdown

• Proposal: Change of use from light industrial to operate as a base for 

emergency vehicles (sui generis)

• Applicant: FSNE Medical

• Ward: Camperdown

P
age 33



P
age 34



P
age 35



P
age 36



P
age 37



21/02496/FUL

• Location: Land Adjacent To Hatfield House, Borough Road, North Shields

• Proposal: Erection of 5no. three storey townhouse style terraced dwellings, 

with communal parking and rear amenity space 

• Applicant: Low Town Developments

• Ward: RiversideP
age 38



P
age 39



P
age 40



P
age 41



P
age 42



P
age 43



P
age 44



P
age 45



Refused scheme

P
age 46



Refused scheme

P
age 47



23/00217/FUL 

• Location: Land East Of Weetslade Depot, Great Lime Road, Dudley

• Proposal: Erection of foodstore (Class E) with associated car parking; 

vehicular, pedestrian and cycle access; SuDs; and landscaping

• Applicant: Aldi Stores Ltd

• Ward: WeetsladeP
age 48



P
age 49



P
age 50



P
age 51



P
age 52



P
age 53



P
age 54



INIT 

 
 
 
Item No: 1   
Application 
No: 

21/02546/FUL Author: Maxine Ingram 

Date valid: 11 February 2022 : 0191 643 6322 
Target 
decision date: 

13 May 2022 Ward: Benton 

 
Application type: full planning application 
 
Location: Site Of The Fusilier, Clydedale Avenue, Forest Hall, NEWCASTLE 
UPON TYNE 
 
Proposal: Residential development of 20no. affordable homes and 
associated landscape (amended plans received 21.12.2022)  
 
Applicant: Karbon Homes 
 
 
Agent: BSBA Architects 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Minded to grant  legal agreement req. 
 
INFORMATION 
 
1.0  Summary Of Key Issues & Conclusions 
 
1.0 Main Issues 
1.1 The main issues for Members to consider in this case are: 
-Principle of the development, including the loss of open space,  
-Impact on the character and appearance of the area,  
-Impact upon the amenity of residents,  
-Impact on highway matters,  
-Impact on biodiversity, including the wildlife corridor; and,  
-Other issues.   
 
1.2 Planning law requires that application for planning permission must be 
determined in accordance with the development plan, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. Members need to consider whether this 
application accords with the development plan and also take into account any 
other materials considerations in reaching their decision. 
 
2.0 Description of the Site 
2.1 The application relates to the site of the former Fusilier Public House in 
Forest Hall. The total site area is approximately 0.44 hectares (ha). The most 
western part of the site is designated as open space in the Local Plan (LP) and 
measures approximately 0.21ha. The site is designated as a wildlife corridor.  
 

Page 55

Agenda Item 6



INIT 

2.2 The site is bounded to the north by the residential properties of Clydedale 
Avenue and Allandale Avenue. To the east it is bound by Connaught Gardens 
and Albany Avenue. Immediately to the south and west of the site is open space, 
including the Benton Village Green.  
 
2.3 Members are advised that vegetation has been cleared from the site. These 
works did not require planning permission.  
 
3.0 Description of the Proposed Development 
3.1 Planning permission is sought for the construction of 20 residential units 
consisting of 12no. 3 bed dwellings and 8no. 2 bed apartments with associated 
parking, landscaping and drainage.  
 
3.2 The proposed housing will be two storeys and it will be sited along the 
southern boundary overlooking the Village Green. To the north side of the 
housing are gardens and parking provision. The gardens will accommodate 
refuse and cycle storage. The proposed apartments will be accommodated in two 
blocks: one sited in the northeast corner of the site and one sited in the northwest 
corner of the site. The apartments will be two storeys. Parking and gardens 
accommodating refuse and cycle storage are proposed adjacent to the 
apartments.  
 
3.3 Vehicular access to the site will be from Victoria Avenue. It will be sited in the 
southeast corner of the site. No vehicular access will be provided from Clydedale 
Avenue. Pedestrian access is provided within the site.  
 
3.4 A drainage feature is sited adjacent to the northern boundary.  
 
4.0 Relevant Planning History 
18/01739/DEMGDO - Demolition of The Fusilier Public House – Permitted 
08.01.2019 
 
19/00108/FUL - Residential development offers a choice of 32 no. apartment 
homes for persons with cerebral palsy, communication impairments, sensory 
impairments and complex learning, social care and therapeutic needs. 
Accommodation is arranged across four separate, domestic-scale, group-living 
buildings of two-storeys, each with upper floor lift access and associated 
Landscape (amended plans received 20.05.2019) – Withdrawn 29.09.2021 
 
5.0 Development Plan 
5.1 North Tyneside Local Plan 2017 
 
6.0 Government Policy 
6.1 National Planning Policy Framework (July 2021) 
 
6.2 Planning Practice Guidance (As amended) 
 
6.3 Planning applications must be determined in accordance with the 
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The NPPF 
is a material consideration in the determination of all applications. It requires 
LPAs to apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development in determining 

Page 56



INIT 

development proposals. Due weight should still be attached to Development Plan 
policies according to the degree to which any policy is consistent with the NPPF. 
 
 
 
PLANNING OFFICERS REPORT 
 
7.0 Main Issues  
7.1 The main issues for Members to consider in this case are: 
-Principle of the development, including the loss of open space,  
-Impact on the character and appearance of the area,  
-Impact upon the amenity of residents,  
-Impact on highway matters,  
-Impact on biodiversity, including the wildlife corridor; and,  
-Other issues.   
 
7.2 Consultation responses and representations received as a result of the 
publicity given to this application are set out in the appendix of this report.  
 
8.0 Principle of the development 
8.1 The Local Plan (LP) was adopted in July 2017 to guide development in the 
period up to 2032. The council acknowledges that the policies contained within 
the LP predate the publication of the revised NPPF.  However, it is clear from 
paragraph 219 of the NPPF that, “… existing policies should not be considered 
out-of-date simply because they were adopted or made prior to the publication of 
this Framework. Due weight should be given to them, according to their degree of 
consistency with this Framework (the closer the policies in the plan to the policies 
in the Framework, the greater the weight that may be given)”.  Except for housing 
policies, the Council considers that the LP policies set out in this report are 
consistent with the NPPF and can be afforded significant weight. 
 
8.2 Paragraph 7 of NPPF states that the purpose of the planning system is to 
contribute to the achievement of sustainable development.  
 
8.3 Paragraph 8 of NPPF states that a social objective is one of the three 
overarching objectives of the planning system and that amongst other matters it 
should seek to support a sufficient number and range of homes to meet present 
and future needs which support communities’ health, social and cultural well-
being. 
 
8.4 Paragraph 11 of NPPF introduces a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development, which amongst other matters states that decision takers should 
approve development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan 
without delay; or where there are no relevant development plan policies or the 
policies which are most important are out-of-date grant planning permission, 
unless any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies in the Framework 
taken as a whole. In this case, development plan policies important to the 
determination of housing applications will be regarded as out of date because the 
Local Planning Authority (LPA) cannot currently demonstrate a five-year supply 
of deliverable housing sites. What is referred to as the ‘tilted balance’ principle 

Page 57



INIT 

means there is a presumption towards planning permission being granted unless 
there are adverse impacts which would significantly and demonstrably outweigh 
the benefits.  
 
8.5 Paragraph 12 of the NPPF makes it clear that the presumption in favour of 
sustainable development does not change the statutory status of the 
development plan as the starting point for decision-making.  
 
8.6 Paragraph 98 of NPPF states that access to a network of high-quality open 
spaces and opportunities for sport and physical activity is important for the health 
and well-being of communities and can deliver wider benefits for nature and 
support efforts to address climate change. 
 
8.7 Paragraph 99 of NPPF states that existing open space, sports and 
recreational buildings and land, including playing fields, should not be built on 
unless: 
a) an assessment has been undertaken which has clearly shown the open space, 
buildings or land to be surplus to requirements; or 
b) the loss resulting from the proposed development would be replaced by 
equivalent or better provision in terms of quantity and quality in a suitable 
location; or 
c) the development is for alternative sports and recreational provision, the 
benefits of which clearly outweigh the loss of the current or former use. 
 
8.8 Annex 2 of the NPPF defines open space as: “All open space of public value, 
including not just land, but also areas of water (such as rivers, canals, lakes and 
reservoirs) which offer important opportunities for sport and recreation and can 
act as a visual amenity.”. 
 
8.9 National Planning Policy Guidance states that open space, “can take many 
forms, from formal sports pitches to open areas within a development, linear 
corridors and country parks. It can provide health and recreation benefits to 
people living and working nearby; have an ecological value and contribute to 
green infrastructure (see National Planning Policy Framework paragraph 171, as 
well as being an important part of the landscape and setting of built 
development”.   
 
8.10 Paragraph 60 of NPPF states that to support the Government’s objective to 
significantly boost the supply of homes, it is important that sufficient amount and 
variety of land can come forwards where it is needed, that the needs of groups 
with specific housing requirements are addressed and that land with permission 
is developed without unnecessary delay. 
 
8.11 The purpose of the planning system is to contribute to the achievement of 
sustainable development. This purpose is key to the role of the planning system 
in the development process. The aims of how the Local Plan contributes towards 
achieving sustainable development for North Tyneside are set out under Policy 
S1.1 ‘Spatial Strategy for Sustainable Development’. This policy sets out the 
broad spatial strategy for the delivery of the objectives of the Plan.  
 

Page 58



INIT 

8.12 Strategic Policy S1.4 ‘General Development Principles’ states that proposals 
for development will be considered favourably where it can be demonstrated that 
they would accord with strategic, development management and other area 
specific policies in the Plan. Amongst other matters, this includes considering 
flood risk, impact on amenity, impact on existing infrastructure and making the 
most effective and efficient use of land.  
 
8.13 The overarching spatial strategy for housing is to protect and promote 
cohesive, mixed and thriving communities, offering the right kind of homes in the 
right locations. The scale of housing provision and its distribution is designed to 
meet the needs of the existing community and to support economic growth of 
North Tyneside. Strategic Policy S4.1 ‘Strategic Housing’ sets out the broad 
strategy for delivering housing.  
 
8.14 Strategic Policy S5.1 ‘Strategic Green Infrastructure’ states, ‘The Council 
will seek the protection, enhancement, extension and creation of green 
infrastructure in appropriate locations within and adjoining the Borough which 
supports the delivery of North Tyneside's Green Infrastructure Strategy. Where 
deficiencies in the quality of green infrastructure and in particular types of green 
infrastructure are identified in relevant up-to-date evidence, improvements will be 
targeted to those areas accordingly. 
 
8.15 LP Policy DM1.3 ‘Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development’ 
states: “The Council will work pro-actively with applicants to jointly find solutions 
that mean proposals can be approved wherever possible that improve the 
economic, social and environmental conditions in the area….” 
 
8.16 LP Policy DM4.5 ‘Criteria for New Housing Development’ states that 
proposals for residential development on sites not identified on the Policies Map 
will be considered positively where they can: 
a. Make a positive contribution to the identified housing needs of the Borough; 
and, 
b. Create a, or contribute to an existing, sustainable residential community; and 
c. Be accessible to a range of sustainable transport modes; and 
d. Make the best and most efficient use of available land, whilst incorporating 
appropriate green infrastructure provision within development; and 
e. Be accommodated by, and make best use of, existing infrastructure, and 
where 
further infrastructure requirements arise, make appropriate contribution to its 
provision; and 
f. Make a positive contribution towards creating healthy, safe, attractive and 
diverse 
communities; and, 
g. Demonstrate that they accord with the policies within this Local Plan. 
 
8.17 LP Policy DM5.2 ‘Protection of Green Infrastructure’ states that the loss of 
any part of the green infrastructure network will only be considered in the 
following exceptional circumstances:  
a. Where it has been demonstrated that the site no longer has any value to the 
community in terms of access and function; or,  
b. If it is not a designated wildlife site or providing important biodiversity value; or, 

Page 59



INIT 

c. If it is not required to meet a shortfall in the provision of that green space type 
or another green space type; or,  
d. The proposed development would be ancillary to use of the green 
infrastructure and the benefits to green infrastructure would outweigh any loss of 
open space.  
 
8.18 Where development proposals are considered to meet the exceptional 
circumstances above, permission will only be granted where alternative 
provision, equivalent to or better than in terms of its quantity and quality, can be 
provided in equally accessible locations that maintain or create new green 
infrastructure connections. Proposals for new green infrastructure, or 
improvements to existing, should seek net gains for biodiversity, improve 
accessibility and multi-functionality of the green infrastructure network and not 
cause adverse impacts to biodiversity. 
 
8.19 Policy DM5.3 ‘Green Space Provision and Standards’ states that accessible 
green space will be protected and enhanced to be of the highest quality and 
value. New development should sustain the current standards of provision, 
quality and value as recorded in the most up-to-date Green Space Strategy. 
Opportunities should be sought to improve provision for new and existing 
residents. 
 
8.20 The Council’s Green Space Strategy 2015 (GSS) identifies a range of green 
spaces. Policy DM5.3 states that new development should sustain the current 
standards of provision, quality and value as recorded in the most up-to-date 
Green Space Strategy. It is acknowledged that the GSS has not been updated 
since 2015, and the Local Plan came into force in 2017.   
 
8.21 Chapter 13 of the Green Space Strategy, ‘The Design of Green Spaces’ 
also sets out how green spaces can be functional and can: 
- Deliver biodiversity benefit through integrated habitat areas within the space 
and its borders to support and allow movement of wildlife; and 
- Implement, where appropriate, flood storage or sustainable urban drainage 
systems (SuDS) to negate flood risk issues. 
 
8.22 Objections have been received regarding the loss of open space. The 
content of these is noted.  
 
8.23 Part of the application site, western part, is designated as open space. The 
designated open space is approximately 0.21ha. The remainder of the site is not 
designated for any purpose in the LP. The GSS defines this area of land as being 
of unlimited access and denoted “Amber” in value/quality. To clarify this area of 
land was assessed as an integral part of the green corridor that extends from 
Hailsham Avenue to Victoria Avenue. The site is assessed as poor 
quality/medium value. A review of available imagery suggests that the grassed 
area included in this planning application was an integral area of mowed grass at 
least as recently as 2012. The area to the west, south of Clydedale Avenue was 
excluded from the Open Space Strategy as it was bounded by a fence and not 
formally accessible. The analysis undertaken for the GSS gives regard to the 
function of land and its accessibility rather than its ownership. If the land was 
freely accessible it would have been assessed as such.  

Page 60



INIT 

 
8.24 The submitted Open Space Assessment enables consideration of impact on 
open space provision as it exists today. This assessment has considered the 
NPPF, LP Policies DM5.2 and DM5.3 and the Green Space Strategy (GSS) 
(2015). This assessment advises the following:  
-The site is private land and there are no formal access arrangements through 
the western portion, the former beer garden.  
-The site will maintain a pedestrian/cycle route through the site.  
-The site is not a designated wildlife site.  
-Several recommendations are set out in the submitted Ecological Appraisal and 
net gain will be achieved.  
-The GSS advises there are 35 greenspaces totalling 65.80 hectares (ha) in area 
in the Benton Ward. The western portion of the site measures approximately 
0.21ha. This would result in a reduction of greenspace in the Ward to 65.59ha. A 
loss of 0.003% of the Ward’s designated greenspace.  
-The GSS finds 98.1% of properties in the Ward are within 300m of accessible 
greenspace. This assessment acknowledges that this could result in a small 
number of properties being further from designated open space a distance of a 
further 50m.  
-Open space provision is not proposed as part of the development. A financial 
contribution is proposed to enhance other open space to mitigate for the loss of 
the open space. The assessment considers that existing lower quality/lower 
value open spaces could be improved.  
 
8.25 The proposed development does not fully accord with Policy DM5.2 which 
sets out that existing green infrastructure and open space should be protected 
from development. The policy goes onto identify four exceptions where specific 
site circumstances may enable development. These are set out in full in 
paragraph 8.17. The policy only requires one of the above exceptions to apply. At 
the time of submission only part of the application site was enclosed, and the site 
could be accessed from Clydedale Avenue and its southeast corner. The site 
does not have a specific community role beyond its landscape character and 
contribution as an area of undeveloped land. The site is not a designated wildlife 
site. It is noted that, as an area of greenfield land, it would have some biodiversity 
value that must be appropriately addressed. In the context of DM5.2 the site is 
not understood to be of “important biodiversity value” but adequate mitigation and 
provision of net gain, clearly would be required in accordance with DM5.5. Based 
on the figures provided by the applicant the proposal has a minimum impact upon 
the overall supply of open space within the area. When considered against 
current Green Space mapping its loss would mean a small number of properties 
would be placed more than 300m from an area of accessible green space – the 
inclusion of currently undesignated green space to the west is likely to mean 
there is no impact on accessibility for existing homes. DM5.2 (d) does not apply, 
the development is for new homes and is not ancillary to the use of green 
infrastructure. Considering the above this proposed development could be 
considered an exception on the basis of points b and c.  
 
8.26 Policy DM5.2 further sets out that where an exception does apply, planning 
permission would be granted “where alternative provision, equivalent to or better 
than in terms of its quantity and quality, can be provided”. Paragraph 99 of the 
NPPF also requires alternative provision to be, “equivalent to or better than in 

Page 61



INIT 

terms of its quantity and quality”. It is noted that this proposal cannot provide 
alternative provision to be equivalent or better in terms of quantity. It is proposed 
to improve the quality of an existing area of open space creating a better 
environment for its users. A parcel of land within Council ownership has been 
identified. A financial contribution is proposed to secure the delivery of planting 
enhancements which will improve the quality of this open space. Building on a 
site that is part brownfield and securing enhancements to an existing open space 
to improve its quality is considered to be satisfactory mitigation. The proposed 
development does not encroach onto the Benton Village Green.  
 
8.27 The Council’s Biodiversity Officer and Landscape Architect have provided 
detailed comments which include concerns regarding the loss of designated open 
space. These concerns are noted. The biodiversity impacts are considered 
further in Section 13 of this report.  
 
8.28 The application site is not an allocated housing site, and it does not fully 
comply with LP policies, as set out above, and thus policy DM4.5(g) in that it 
cannot be demonstrated that the proposals accord with the policies in the LP. 
Housing developments in locations with a housing shortfall should benefit from 
the presumption in favour unless there are significant and demonstrable adverse 
impacts (NPPF paragraph 11 (d)). Members are advised that the Council is 
unable to demonstrate a five-year housing land supply and therefore, in 
accordance with paragraph 11 of the NPPF, the ‘tilted balance’ applies meaning 
that planning permission should be granted unless there are adverse impacts 
which would significantly and demonstrably outweigh its benefits. 
 
8.29 Members need to determine whether the principle of development is 
acceptable. Currently the Council do not have sufficient planning permissions for 
housing development to meet the housing requirements derived from the LP 
2017 for the next five years. This development would involve the provision of 20 
dwellings that are confirmed to be affordable homes, delivered by a registered 
provider. The delivery of such housing consequently has the potential to make an 
important contribution to meeting the evidence-based housing needs of residents 
of North Tyneside. Taking account, the current role of the site, its development 
would not be a fundamental departure from LP policy if appropriate off-site 
mitigation can be secured that delivers additional benefits for landscape quality, 
biodiversity and recreation.  
 
8.30 It is officer advice, subject to all other matters set out below being 
addressed, that the adverse impacts which would result from the proposed 
development will not significantly and demonstrably outweigh its benefits.  As 
such, planning permission should be granted. 
 
9.0 North Tyneside Council Housing Land Supply 
9.1 Paragraph 74 of National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) requires local 
planning authorities to identify and maintain a rolling five-year supply of 
deliverable housing land.  This includes an additional buffer of at least 5%, in 
order to ensure choice and competition in the market for housing land. 
 
9.2 The most up to date assessment of housing land supply informed by the five-
year housing land summary included within the Housing Land Availability 

Page 62



INIT 

Assessment, November 2022. It identifies the total potential 5-year housing land 
supply in the borough at 4,008 additional dwellings, a total which includes 
delivery from sites yet to gain planning permission. This represents a shortfall 
against the Local Plan requirement or approximately a three-year supply of 
housing land. It is important to note that this assessment of five-year land supply 
includes over 1,000 homes at proposed housing allocations within the Local Plan 
(2017). The proposed dwellings would make a contribution towards the borough 
achieving a five-year housing land supply. 
 
9.3 The proposed development would assist in supporting the council’s objective 
of meeting the objectively assessed housing need and ensure a mix of housing 
for both existing and new residents in the borough. This is therefore in 
accordance with LP policies S4.1 and S4.2(a) ‘Housing Figures’.  
 
10.0 Impact on the character and appearance of the area 
10.1 Paragraph 126 of the NPPF recognises that the creation of high-quality 
buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and development 
process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable 
development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make 
development acceptable to communities.  
 
10.2 Paragraph 130 of the NPFF states “Decisions should ensure that 
developments: will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just 
for the short term but over the lifetime of the development; are visually attractive 
as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and effective 
landscaping; are sympathetic to local character and history, including the 
surrounding built environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or 
discouraging appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities); 
establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, 
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and 
distinctive places to live, work and visit; optimise the potential of the to 
accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount and mix of development 
(including green and other public space) and support local facilities and transport 
networks; and create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which 
promote health and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and 
future users; and where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not 
undermine the quality of life or community cohesion and resilience.” 
 
10.3 Paragraph 92 of the NPPF, amongst other matters, seeks to promote health 
and safe communities.  
 
10.4 Paragraph 131 of the NPPF states “Trees make an important contribution to 
the character and quality of urban environments and can also help to mitigate 
climate change.” It goes onto state that decisions should ensure that new streets 
are tree-lined (unless, in specific cases, there are clear, justifiable and compelling 
reasons why this would be inappropriate). Opportunities should be taken to 
incorporate trees elsewhere into developments, secure measures to ensure the 
long-term maintenance of newly planted trees and that existing trees are retained 
wherever possible.  
 

Page 63



INIT 

10.5 Paragraph 134 of the NPPF makes it clear that development that is not well-
designed, especially where it fails to reflect local design policies and government 
guidance on design should be refused. Significant weight should be given to 
development which reflects local design policies etc. and development which 
promote high levels of sustainability or help raise the standard of design more 
generally in an area, so long as they fit in with the overall form and layout of the 
surroundings.  
 
10.6 LP Policy DM6.1 ‘Design of Development’ states: “Applications will only be 
permitted where they demonstrate high and consistent design standards. 
Designs should be specific to the place, based on a clear analysis of the 
characteristics of the site, its wider context and the surrounding area. Proposals 
are expected to demonstrate: 
a. A design responsive to landscape features, topography, wildlife habitats, site 
orientation and existing buildings, incorporating where appropriate the provision 
of public art; 
b. A positive relationship to neighbouring buildings and spaces; 
c. A safe environment that reduces opportunities for crime and antisocial 
behaviour; 
d. A coherent, legible and appropriately managed public realm that encourages 
accessibility by walking, cycling and public transport; 
e. Sufficient car parking that is well integrated into the layout; and, 
f. A good standard of amenity for existing and future residents and users of 
buildings and spaces.” 
 
10.7 LP Policy DM7.9 ‘New Development and Waste’ states “All developments 
are expected to: 
a. Provide sustainable waste management during construction and use. 
b. Ensure a suitable location for the storage and collection of waste. 
c. Consider the use of innovative communal waste facilities where practicable.” 
 
10.8 LP DM5.9 ‘Trees, Woodland and Hedgerows’ supports the protection and 
management of existing woodland trees, hedgerow and landscape features. It 
seeks to secure new tree planting and landscaping scheme for new 
development, and where appropriate, promote and encourage new woodland, 
tree and hedgerow planting schemes and encouraging native species of local 
provenance. 
 
10.9 The Council has produced an SPD on design quality. It states that the 
Council will encourage innovation in design and layout, provided that the existing 
quality and character of the immediate and wider environment are respected and 
enhanced, and local distinctiveness is generated. It also states that all new 
buildings should be proportioned to have a well-balanced and attractive external 
appearance.  
 
10.10 Objections have been received regarding the development being out of 
keeping with the immediate surrounding area and overdevelopment of a small 
site. The content of these is noted.  
 
10.11 The proposed housing fronts onto an existing open space, the Benton 
Village Green, creating an attractive development edge. The frontage of the 

Page 64



INIT 

scheme is well designed with a varied building line roofscape. The initial design 
comments raised concerns regarding the rear elevations of units 1-12. The 
applicant has amended the rear elevations of these units. The design comments 
advise that the rear elevations of these units have been improved with further 
detailing and a variation of window sizes and materials which contribute towards 
a well-designed development.  
 
10.12 The proposed apartment blocks are sited in the northeast and northwest 
corners of the site. Units 13-16 will be located to the south of No. 3 Allandale 
Avenue. Units 17-20 will be located to the south of No. 2 Clydedale Avenue. 
Entrances to these units are proposed on their east and west elevations creating 
an outward facing development that overlooks gardens and parking.  
 
10.13 The immediate surrounding area is characterised by a variety of property 
types including bungalows and two storey properties. Therefore, the proposed 
two storey units are considered to be in keeping with the character and 
appearance of the immediate surrounding area.  
 
10.14 Soft landscaping is proposed throughout the site and the drainage feature 
will also be planted.  
 
10.15 Boundary treatments have been revised and there are now no longer large 
sections of timber fencing to the rear of units 1-12. The existing timber fence to 
the eastern boundary is to be retained and repaired. The existing southern 
boundary treatments serving Nos. 1 and 2 Clydedale Avenue and No. 3 Allandale 
Avenue will be retained. It is proposed to install a 1.8m high timber fence with 
0.3m high trellis fencing above adjacent to the existing boundary treatment 
between the rear of No. 1 Clydedale Avenue and No. 3 Allandale and from the 
rear of No. 2 Clydedale Avenue extending around the northeast corner of the site 
to the rear of No. 11 Albany Avenue. The boundary treatment to the southern and 
west boundary will be a 1.0m high post and wire fence.  
 
10.16 Conditions to secure materials of construction, hard surfacing and design 
of cycle storage are suggested to ensure that appropriate final details are 
secured.  
 
10.17 Members need to consider whether the proposed development is 
acceptable in terms of its design and layout, and whether it is in keeping with the 
character and appearance of the immediate surrounding area. It is officer advice 
that the proposed number of units can be comfortably accommodated within the 
site without causing significant harm to the character and appearance of the 
immediate surrounding area. As such, subject to the imposition of the suggested 
conditions, the development is in accordance with the advice in the NPPF, LP 
Policies DM6.1, DM5.9 and DM5.7 and the Design Quality SPD.  
 
11.0 Impact upon the amenity future residents 
11.1 Paragraph 185 of the NPPF states that planning decisions should ensure 
that new development is appropriate for its location taking into account the likely 
effects (including cumulative effects) of pollution on health, living conditions and 
the natural environment, as well as the potential sensitivity of the site or the wider 
area to impacts that could arise from the development. In doing so, they should 

Page 65



INIT 

amongst other matters; mitigate and reduce to a minimum potential adverse 
impact resulting from new development – and avoid noise giving rise to 
significant adverse impacts on health and quality of life.  
 
11.2 The NPPF states that planning should always seek to ensure that 
developments create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which 
promote health and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and 
future users.  
 
11.3 LP Policy S1.4 ‘General Development Principles’ states that development 
proposals should be acceptable in terms of their impact upon local amenity for 
new or existing residents and businesses, adjoining premises and land uses. 
 
11.4 LP Policy DM5.19 ‘Pollution’ states, amongst other matters, development 
that may cause pollution will be required to incorporate measures to prevent or 
reduce pollution so as not to cause unacceptable impacts to the environment, to 
people and to biodiversity. Potentially polluting development will not be sited near 
to sensitive areas unless satisfactory mitigation measures can be demonstrated.  
 
11.5 LP Policy DM6.1 ‘Design of Development’ states that proposals are 
expected to demonstrate a positive relationship to neighbouring buildings and 
spaces; a safe environment that reduces opportunities for crime and antisocial 
behaviour; and a good standard of amenity for existing and future residents and 
users of buildings and spaces.   
 
11.6 The Design Quality SPD states that the quality of accommodation provided 
in residential development contributes significantly to the quality of life of 
residents.  Residential schemes should provide accommodation of a good size, a 
good outlook, acceptable shape and layout of rooms and with main habitable 
rooms receiving daylight and adequate privacy. 
 
11.7 LP Policy DM4.6 ‘Range of Housing Types and Sizes’ seeks to ensure that 
new residential development provides a mix of homes to meet current and future 
demand, and to create sustainable communities.  
 
11.8 Policy DM4.9 ‘Housing Standards’ states that to ensure that new homes 
provide quality living environments for residents both now and in the future and to 
help deliver sustainable communities they must meet the standards set out in this 
policy subject to viability.  
 
11.9 Objections have been received regarding the impacts on residential 
amenity. The content of these is noted.  
 
11.10 The Manager for Environmental Health has been consulted. She has noted 
that the site is located near to Longbenton High School approximately 100 
metres to the west of the site. This has raised concerns about potential noise 
from any external plant in use at the school, from associated noise from the car 
park and noise from use of any external play areas at the school. She has 
advised that a noise scheme will be required to ensure suitable sound 
attenuation measures are taken to mitigate any external noise. The required 
noise scheme can be secured by condition.  

Page 66



INIT 

 
11.11 Additional conditions in relation to the submission of a Construction 
Method Statement and to control working hours will further assist in alleviating 
the impact on the amenity of local residents during construction works.  
 
11.12 Units 1-7 will be located over 35m to the north of Nos. 1-4 Colston Place. 
Due to the separation distance that will exist, it is not considered that these units 
will significantly affect the residential amenity of these neighbouring properties in 
terms of loss of light, outlook or privacy.  
 
11.13 Unit 1 will be located approximately 15m from the western boundary 
serving No. 14 Connaught Gardens. Based on the plans provided, it will not 
project beyond the front or rear building line of this neighbouring property. It is 
noted that there are three windows sited in the west gable of this neighbouring 
property: one at ground floor and two at first floor. The amenity of this existing 
ground floor window is already impacted by the existing boundary treatment. Due 
to the separation distance that will exist, it is not considered that this unit will 
significantly affect the residential amenity of this neighbouring property in terms 
of loss of light, outlook or privacy. 
 
11.14 Units 13-16 will be located to the south of No. 3 Allandale Avenue. Based 
on the plans provided, these units will project approximately 1.5m beyond the 
front of this neighbouring property and approximately 2m beyond its rear. They 
will be sited approximately 1.5m from this shared boundary. There are no 
windows sited in the north elevation of these units. Obscure views over the rear 
garden serving this neighbouring property will be afforded from the windows sited 
in the east elevation of the first-floor units. The hipped roof will pull away from this 
shared boundary. It is noted that the garage serving this neighbouring property is 
sited adjacent to this shared boundary. There are no habitable windows sited in 
its gable elevation. Due to the orientation of these units a degree of 
overshadowing to part of the garden serving this neighbouring property will occur 
in the morning and afternoon. It is the view of the case officer that this impact is 
minimal and will not be so significant as to warrant a recommendation of refusal. 
It is not considered that these units will significantly affect the residential amenity 
of this neighbouring property in terms of loss of light, outlook or privacy.  
 
11.15 Units 17-20 will be located to the south of No. 2 Clydedale Avenue. Based 
on the plans provided, these units will project marginally beyond the front of this 
neighbouring property and approximately 4m beyond its rear. They will be sited 
approximately 1.8m from this shared boundary. There are no windows sited in 
the north elevation of these units. Obscure views over the rear garden serving 
this neighbouring property will be afforded from the windows sited in the east 
elevation of the first-floor units. The hipped roof will pull away from this shared 
boundary. It is noted that this property has a single storey extension to the side 
sited adjacent to this shared boundary. This extension serves a habitable room. 
There are no windows sited in the flank elevation of this extension. It is also 
noted that this neighbouring property has two first floor windows sited in its gable. 
Due to the orientation of these units a degree of overshadowing to part of the 
garden serving this neighbouring property will occur in the afternoon. It is the 
view of the case officer that this impact is minimal and will not be so significant as 
to warrant a recommendation of refusal. It is not considered that these units will 

Page 67



INIT 

significantly affect the residential amenity of this neighbouring property in terms 
of loss of light, outlook or privacy.  
 
11.16 Units 19 and 20 will be located to the west of No. 11 Albany Avenue. They 
will be sited approximately 11m from this shared boundary and approximately 
13m from this neighbour’s gable. It is noted that there are two windows in this 
neighbour’s gable at first floor. Due to the orientation of these units, the 
separation distances that will exist and the positioning of the windows, it is not 
considered that the residential amenity of this neighbouring property will be 
significantly affected in terms of loss of light, outlook or privacy will be sufficient to 
sustain a recommendation of refusal.  
 
11.17 The layout of the development is considered to be acceptable in terms of 
separation distances and the standard of living accommodation for future 
occupiers. Each house will have their own private garden and the apartments will 
have access to outside space. All units will have adequate windows to provide 
good levels of light, outlook and privacy. Each unit will have its own parking bay, 
cycle storage and refuse storage. All units will be in accordance with the 
Government’s Nationally Described Space Standards (NDDS).  
 
11.18 The parking proposed to the eastern side of the vehicular access will be 
sited away from the shared boundary with No. 14 Connaught Gardens. An area 
of landscaping is proposed between the parking and the existing timber fence. It 
is not considered that the location of this parking will significantly affect the 
residential amenity of this neighbouring property.  
 
11.19 The proposed drainage feature and two visitor parking bays are proposed 
to the south of No. 1 Clydedale Avenue. It is not considered that the proposed 
drainage or parking will significantly affect the residential amenity of this 
neighbouring property.  
 
11.20 It is not considered that the first-floor windows sited in units 15 or 16 will 
significantly affect the privacy of No. 1 Clydedale Avenue.  
 
11.21 Members need to determine whether the proposed development is 
acceptable in terms of its impact on residential amenity for both existing and 
future occupants. As such, it is officer advice, subject to imposing the suggested 
conditions, that the proposed development does accord with the advice in 
paragraph 185 of the NPPF and LP policies DM5.19 and DM6.1.  
 
12.0 Impacts on highway matters 
12.1 The NPPF paragraph 111 makes it clear that development should only be 
prevented or refused on highway grounds if there would be an unacceptable 
impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network 
would be severe.  
 
12.2 The NPPF paragraph 112 states, amongst other matters, that applications 
for development should give priority first to pedestrian and cycle movements both 
within the scheme and with neighbouring areas and address the needs of people 
with disabilities and reduced mobility in relation to all modes of transport.  
 

Page 68



INIT 

12.3 The NPPF paragraph 113 sets out guidance on sustainability and 
connectivity.  
 
12.4 LP Policy S7.3 states that the Council, will support its partners, who seek to 
provide a comprehensive, integrated, safe, accessible and efficient public 
transport network, capable of supporting development proposals and future 
levels of growth.   
 
12.5 LP Policy DM7.4 ‘New Development and Transport’ makes it clear that the 
Council will ensure that the transport requirements of new development, 
commensurate to the scale and type of development, are taken into account and 
seek to promote sustainable travel to minimise environmental impacts and 
support resident’s health and well-being.  
 
12.6 The Transport and Highways SPD sets out the parking standards for new 
development.  
 
12.7 Significant objection on highway grounds has been submitted, including the 
impact on the highway network, inadequate vehicular access particularly during 
construction and for delivery vehicles post construction and pedestrian safety. 
The detailed content of these is noted.  
 
12.8 Members are advised that the application was originally submitted with the 
vehicular access proposed from Clydedale Avenue to the north of the site. During 
the application the applicant has amended the vehicular access from the south 
via Victoria Avenue. It is clear from the objections that residents oppose the 
vehicular access from the north and south. Members are advised that the Local 
Highway Authority (LHA) did not request the applicant to amend the location of 
the vehicular access. The LHA has assessed this application as submitted with 
the vehicular access from the south.  
 
12.9 A Transport Statement (TS) has been submitted as part of the planning 
application.  
 
12.10 The Highways Network Manager has reviewed the TS and the submitted 
plans. As already discussed, vehicles will access the site from Victoria Avenue to 
the south. Pedestrian access through the site is provided. Parking will be 
provided in accordance with current standards and an area suitable for the 
turning of a refuse vehicle will be laid out. Cycle parking is being provided and 
the site has reasonable links with public transport.  
 
12.11 The Highways Network Manager has not concluded that this development 
would result in an unacceptable impact on highway safety or the residual impacts 
on the road network would be severe. He has suggested planning conditions, 
which in his opinion, would mitigate the impacts of this development.  
 
12.12 The Sustainable Transport comments have confirmed that a Travel Plan 
(TP) is not required due to the size of the site. The comments have put forward 
recommendations regarding dropped kerbs to allow smooth transitions between 
the carriageway and footway, cycle signage, and providing a new footway 
between the PRoW and existing footway of Clydedale Avenue. These 

Page 69



INIT 

recommendations are noted, and some can be attached as informatives. It is the 
view of officers that sufficient connections for pedestrians and cyclists are 
provided through the site from Victoria Avenue to Clydedale Avenue.  
 
12.13 Members need to consider whether the proposal is acceptable in terms of 
its impact on highway safety and the wider highway network. It is officer advice 
that subject to conditions the proposal is acceptable. As such, the proposed 
development accords with the NPPF and the LP.  
 
13.0 Impact on biodiversity, including the wildlife corridor 
13.1 An environmental role is one of the three dimensions of sustainable 
development according to NPPF, which seeks to protect and enhance our natural 
environment.  
 
13.2 Paragraph 174 of the NPPF states that the planning policies and decisions 
should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment. Amongst 
other matters, this includes minimising the impacts of biodiversity and providing 
net gains for biodiversity, including by establishing coherent ecological networks 
that are more resilient to current and future pressures.  
 
13.3 Paragraph 179 of the NPPF states that when determining planning 
applications LPA’s should aim to protect and enhance biodiversity and 
geodiversity by following the principles set out in paragraph 180 which includes, 
amongst other matters, if significant harm cannot be avoided, adequately 
mitigated, or as a last resort, compensated from the planning permission should 
be refused.  
 
13.4 LP Policy S5.4 ‘Biodiversity and Geodiversity’ seeks to protect, create, 
enhance and manage sites within the borough relative to their significance.  
 
13.5 Policy DM5.5 ‘Managing Effects on Biodiversity and Geodiversity’ of the 
Local Plan states that all development proposals should amongst other matters 
protect biodiversity and minimise the fragmentation of habitats and wildlife links. 
 
13.6 LP Policy DM5.6 ‘Management of International Sites’ states that proposals 
that are likely to have significant effects on features of internationally designated 
sites, either alone or in-combination with other plans or projects, will require an 
appropriate assessment. Proposals that adversely affect a site’s integrity can 
only proceed where there are no alternatives, imperative reasons of overriding 
interest are proven and the effects are compensated.  
 
13.7 LP Policy DM5.7 ‘Wildlife Corridors’ states that development proposals 
within a wildlife corridor must protect and enhance the quality and connectivity of 
the wildlife corridor. All new developments are required to take account of and 
incorporate existing wildlife links into their plans at the design stage. 
Developments should seek to create new links and habitats to reconnect isolated 
sites and facilitate species movement. 
 
13.8 LP Policy DM5.9 ‘Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows’ supports the 
protection and management of existing woodland trees, hedgerow and landscape 
features.  It seeks to secure new tree planting and landscaping scheme for new 

Page 70



INIT 

development, and where appropriate, promote and encourage new woodland, 
tree and hedgerow planting schemes and encouraging native species of local 
provenance. 
 
13.9 The application site falls beyond the 6km ‘zone of influence’ for coastal sites 
designated at a national and international level as Sites of Special Scientific 
Interest (SSSI) and Special Protection Areas (SPA’s)/Special Areas of 
Conservation (SAC)/Ramsar sites. Since this application will result in an increase 
in residential accommodation, impacts to the designated sites may result from 
increased recreational disturbance. Therefore, this development will need to 
comply with Policy DM5.5 and the Coastal Mitigation SPD which provides 
guidance and information on the mitigation required from development within 
North Tyneside to prevent adverse impacts on the internationally protected 
coastline.  
 
13.10 Objections have been received in respect of the impact on the wildlife 
corridor. The content of these is noted.  
 
13.11 The Northumberland Wildlife Trust has reviewed the information and they 
have not raised any objections to the proposed development, subject to 
conditions.  
 
13.12 Natural England have been consulted. They are satisfied that, subject to 
the coastal mitigation contribution being secured, there will be no damage or 
disturbance to the coastal areas.  
 
13.13 The applicant has agreed to pay the coastal mitigation contribution. This 
financial contribution will be secured via a S106 Agreement.  
 
13.14 Members are advised that site clearance works, including vegetation 
removal, have commenced on-site. These works do not require planning 
permission. Prior to these works the site contained few landscape elements. 
These are described in greater detail in the Landscape Architect and Biodiversity 
Officer’s comments set out in the Appendix to this report.  
 
13.15 The Landscape Architect and Biodiversity Officer have considered the 
additional information submitted.  
 
13.16 The submitted Ecological Appraisal advises that the site is of local value to 
urban breeding bird species that may nest in hedgerow and shrub habitats in low 
numbers and to hedgehog which may forage over the site on occasion. No other 
protected or priority species are likely to be affected by the proposals. The 
proposed development is not predicted to have any impacts on statutory or non-
statutory designated sites.  
 
13.17 The Ecological Appraisal sets out the impacts of the proposed 
development which are set out in greater detail in the Appendix to this report. It 
proposes several mitigation measures to address the impacts of this 
development including bird and bat boxes, landscaping, lighting that minimises 
light spill and measures to ensure protected/priority species will not be impacted 

Page 71



INIT 

as a result of the works. These measures can be conditioned as part of the 
application. 
 
13.18 The Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) Assessment/Metric Calculation confirms 
that existing habitat within the site and all native hedgerows around the site 
boundaries will be lost to accommodate this development. Post-development, the 
on-site landscaping will consist mainly of vegetated gardens with very small 
areas of modified grassland and mixed native scrub habitat. A bioswale is 
proposed which will be sown with wildflower meadow mix and 30no. medium 
sized urban trees are provided outside of private gardens. This will result in a 
BNG which is largely being achieved through the planting of urban trees within 
the site. Hedgerow creation proposed as part of the scheme will result in further 
BNG. The submitted landscape plan sets out the areas where habitats identified 
as part of the BNG Assessment will be delivered. The consultees have 
suggested conditions to secure a fully detailed Landscape Plan and ‘Landscape 
and Ecology Management & Monitoring Plan’ (LEMMP) to ensure the habitats set 
out on the landscape plan, deliver the required BNG.  
 
13.19 The Aboricultural Impact Assessment (AIA) advises that all vegetation on-
site is low quality, and it will be necessary to remove all trees and hedgerows to 
facilitate this development. The proposed plans indicate a comprehensive 
planting scheme which will complement the proposed development and include 
the replacement of hedgerows and trees which will enhance the development site 
and improve visual amenity.  
 
13.20 Members need to consider whether the proposal is acceptable in terms of 
its impact on biodiversity, the wildlife corridor, and landscaping.  It is officer 
advice that the proposal will not cause unacceptable harm to biodiversity 
interests. Officers do not consider that the proposal will conflict with Policies 
S5.4, DM5.5 and DM5.7 of the LP which seek to protect biodiversity resources, 
including non-statutory sites; conserving, enhancing and managing local sites 
and wildlife corridors; and the effects on protected species and locally designated 
sites. In the absence of harm, neither will there be conflict with paragraph 180 of 
the NPPF which seeks to avoid, adequately mitigated, or as a last resort, 
compensate for significant harm to biodiversity.  
 
14.0 Other issues 
14.1 Flood Risk   
14.2 Paragraph 167 of the NPPF states “When determining any planning 
applications, local planning authorities should ensure that flood risk is not 
increased elsewhere. Where appropriate, applications should be supported by a 
site-specific flood-risk assessment….” 
 
14.3 LP Policy DM5.12 ‘Development and Flood Risk’ states that all major 
developments will be required to demonstrate that flood risk does not increase as 
a result of the development proposed, and that options have been taken to 
reduce overall flood risk from all sources, taking into account the impact of 
climate change over its lifetime. 
 
14.4 LP Policy DM5.14 ‘Surface Water Run Off’ states that applicants will be 
required to show, with evidence, they comply with the Defra technical standards 

Page 72



INIT 

for sustainable drainage systems (unless otherwise updated and/or superseded). 
A reduction in surface water run off rates will be sought for all new development. 
On brownfield sites, surface water run off rates post development should be 
limited to a maximum of 50% of the flows discharged immediately prior to 
development where appropriate and achievable. For greenfield sites, surface 
water run off post development must meet or exceed the infiltration capacity of 
the greenfield prior to development incorporating an allowance for climate 
change. 
 
14.5 LP Policy DM5.15 ‘Sustainable Drainage’ states that applicants will be 
required to show, with evidence, they comply with the Defra technical standards 
for sustainable drainage systems (unless otherwise updated and/or superseded). 
 
14.6 Objections have been received in respect of inadequate drainage. The 
content of these is noted.  
 
14.7 A Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) and Drainage Strategy has been submitted 
as part of the application.  
 
14.8 The Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) has reviewed the application 
documents. It is proposed to provide surface water attenuation within the site for 
up to a 1 in 100 year rainfall event plus 40% allocation for climate change. The 
rate of surface water leaving the site will be restricted to the equivalent greenfield 
run-off rates. The attenuation will be achieved via the use of permeable paved 
driveways and an attenuation basin with a flow control device fitted on the outlet 
and 75mm orifice plate to restrict the surface water discharge rate to 2.7 
litres/second before it enters Northumbrian Waters surface water sewer network 
which in turn connects to a culverted watercourse. The applicant has advised that 
the maintenance of the suds features, and associated drainage will be their 
responsibility or an appointed contractor. Subject to imposing the suggested 
conditions, it is considered that surface water can be appropriately mitigated for.  
 
14.9 Northumbrian Water have raised no objections subject to imposing a 
condition to ensure the development is carried out in strict accordance with the 
submitted FRA. They have advised that the submitted FRA reflects their pre-
planning enquiry advice identifying that foul flows and surface water flows will 
discharge to the existing public surface water sewer.   
 
14.10 Members need to consider whether the proposal is acceptable in terms of 
its impact on flooding. It is officer advice that subject to conditions it is 
acceptable. 
 
14.11 Ground conditions 
14.12 Paragraph 183 of the NPPF states planning policies and decisions should 
ensure that a site is suitable for its proposed use taking account of ground 
conditions and any risks arising from land instability and contamination i.e. mining 
or land remediation.  
 
14.13 Paragraph 184 of the NPPF goes onto say that where a site is affected by 
contamination or land instability issues, responsibility for securing a safe 
development, rests with the developer and/or landowner. 

Page 73



INIT 

 
14.14 LP Policy DM5.18 “Contaminated and Unstable Land” seeks to ensure that 
the future users or occupiers of a development would not be affected by 
contamination or stability issues.  
 
14.15 The NPPF sets out that LPAs should define Mineral Safeguarding Areas 
(MSAs), with further detail included in National Planning Practice Guidance 
(2014). The whole of the local plan area has been identified as a MSA. Policy 
DM5.17 Minerals is considered to be relevant. 
 
14.16 The application site is located within a Contaminated Land buffer zone.  
 
14.17 A Phase 1 Desk Study and Coal Mining Risk Assessment and a Phase 2 
Site Investigation Report have been submitted as part of the application.  
 
14.18 The Contaminated Land Officer has reviewed the submitted reports and 
has raised no objections to the proposed development, subject to conditions.  
 
14.19 Members need to consider whether the site is appropriate for its proposed 
use. It is officer advice, subject to conditions that the site would be appropriate for 
housing and mixed uses in accordance with the advice in NPPF and Policy 
DM5.18 of the LP.  
 
14.20 Sustainability 
14.21 Section 14 of the NPPF sets out the Government’s objectives for the 
planning system in terms of meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding 
and coastal change.  Paragraph 152 of the NPPF states that the planning system 
should support the transition to a low carbon future in a changing climate, taking 
full account of flood risk and coastal change. It should help to: shape places in 
ways that contribute to radical reductions in greenhouse gas emissions, minimise 
vulnerability and improve resilience; encourage the reuse of existing resources, 
including the conversion of existing buildings; and support renewable and low 
carbon energy and associated infrastructure.  Paragraphs 153 through to 158 set 
out measures for the planning system to address the climate change challenge, 
including the planning of green infrastructure, reduction of greenhouse gas 
emissions and increasing the use and supply of renewable and low carbon 
energy and heat.  A planning application should be approved if its impact is, or 
can be made, acceptable. 
 
14.22 LP Policy DM7.6 ‘Renewable Energy and Low Carbon Technologies’ 
states that proposals for development involving the provision of renewable and/or 
low carbon technologies, including micro-generation technologies, will be 
supported and encouraged except where the proposal would have unacceptable 
adverse effects that are not outweighed by the local and wider environmental, 
economic, social and other considerations of the development.  
 
14.23 Within the submitted Design and Access Statement the applicant has 
advised that the proposed development has been designed with a ‘fabric first’ 
approach. The properties will also be installed with solar panels to encourage use 
of renewable energy.  
 

Page 74



INIT 

14.24 Members need to determine whether the proposed development is 
acceptable in terms of its provision of renewable and/or low carbon technologies, 
incorporation of green infrastructure and measures to reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions in accordance with Policy DM7.6 and the NPPF. 
 
14.25 Aviation Safety 
14.26 Newcastle International Airport Limited (NIAL) has been consulted. They 
have considered the submitted Bird Strike Risk Assessment which advised that 
due to the scale of the proposed landscaping, the location of the site, and the 
percentage cover of native hedging, the species mix is considered appropriate 
and would not detriment the safe operation of the airport. The Airport has advised 
that they are satisfied that this proposal would not lead to an inappropriate rise in 
bird activity which would potentially harm the safe operation of the airport.  
 
15.0 S106 Contributions 
15.1 Paragraph 55 of NPPF states that local planning authorities should consider 
whether otherwise unacceptable development could be made acceptable through 
the use of conditions or planning obligations.  Planning obligations should only be 
used where it is not possible to address unacceptable impacts through a planning 
condition. 
 
15.2 Paragraph 57 of NPPF states that planning obligations must only be sought 
where they meet all of the following tests: 
a) Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 
b) Directly related to the development; and 
c) Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 
 
15.3 LP Policy S7.1 ‘General Infrastructure and Funding Statement’ states that 
the Council will ensure appropriate infrastructure is delivered so it can support 
new development and continue to meet existing needs. Where appropriate and 
through a range of means, the Council will seek to improve any deficiencies in 
the current level of provision. 
 
15.4 LP Policy DM7.2 ‘Development Viability’ states that the Council is committed 
to enabling a viable and deliverable sustainable development. If the economic 
viability of a new development is such that it is not reasonably possible to make 
payments to fund all or part of the infrastructure required to support it, applicants 
will need to provide robust evidence of the viability of the proposal to 
demonstrate this. When determining the contributions required, consideration will 
be given to the application’s overall conformity with the presumption in favour of 
sustainable development. 
 
15.5 LP Policy DM7.5 ‘Employment and Skills’ states that the Council will seek 
applicants of major development proposals to contribute towards the creation of 
local employment opportunities and support growth in skills through an increase 
in the overall proportion of local residents in education or training.  
 
15.6 LP Policy DM4.7 ‘Affordable Housing’ sets out that to meet the Borough 
wide housing target, the Council will seek provision of 25% affordable homes on 
new housing developments.  
 

Page 75



INIT 

15.7 The Council’s adopted SPD on Planning Obligations (2018) states that the 
Council takes a robust stance in relation to ensuring new development 
appropriately mitigates its impact on the physical, social and economic 
infrastructure of North Tyneside. Notwithstanding that, planning obligations 
should not place unreasonable demands upon developers, particularly in relation 
to the impact upon the economic viability of development. The Council will 
consider and engage with the applicants to identify appropriate solutions where 
matters of viability arise and require negotiation. 
 
15.8 The applicant has confirmed that they are agreeable to the following 
financial contributions and off-site mitigation requested by service areas:  
-Benton Village Green/Local Wildlife Site 3, 900.00 pounds. 
-Children’s equipped play 7, 000.00 pounds.   
-Parks and greenspaces 10, 647.00 pounds. 
-Primary education 50, 000.00 pounds. 
-Employment and training 1 apprenticeship or 10,000.00 pounds. 
-Coastal Mitigation 3, 020.00 pounds.  
-Open space improvements 18, 138.00 pounds.  
 
15.9 These contributions are considered necessary, directly related to the 
development and fairly and reasonable relate in scale and kind to the 
development and therefore comply with the CIL Regulations. 
 
15.10 Members are advised that this proposal will deliver 100% affordable 
housing provision.  
  
16.0 Local Financial Considerations  
16.1 Paragraph 11 of National Planning Practice Guidance states that Section 
70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) provides that a 
local planning authority must have regard to a local financial consideration as far 
as it is material.  Section 70(4) of the 1990 Act (as amended) defines a local 
financial consideration as a grant or other financial assistance that has been, will 
or that could be provided to a relevant authority by a Minister of the Crown (such 
as New Homes Bonus payments) or sums that a relevant authority has received, 
or will or could receive, in payment of Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). 
 
16.2 Whether or not ‘a local financial consideration’ is material to a particular 
decision will depend on whether it could help make the development acceptable 
in planning terms.  It is not considered that New Homes Bonus or CIL 
contributions are material in terms of making this development acceptable in 
planning terms. 
 
17.0 Conclusions 
17.1 Members should carefully consider the balance of issues before them and 
the need to take in account national policy within NPPF and the weight to be 
accorded to this as well as current local planning policy.  
 
17.2 Specifically, NPPF states that LPA’s should look for solutions rather than 
problems, and decision-takers at every level should seek to approve applications 
for sustainable development where possible. A core planning principle within 
NPPF requires that every effort should be made objectively to identify and then 

Page 76



INIT 

meet the housing, business and other development needs of an area, and 
respond positively to wider opportunities for growth.  
 
17.3 The site is part brownfield and part designated as open space in the LP. 
Members need to consider whether the loss of open space is acceptable. It is 
officer advice that it is acceptable.  
 
17.4 This proposal would make a valuable contribution towards the requirement 
for the council to have a 5-year supply of deliverable housing sites.  This is a 
significant material consideration which weighs in favour of the proposal. 
 
17.5 Members need to consider whether the amount of development, type of 
development, design and layout of the proposal is acceptable in terms of its 
impact on existing residential dwellings and proposed residential dwellings. It is 
officer advice that it is acceptable.  
 
17.6 Members need to consider whether this development is acceptable in terms 
of its impacts on existing and future occupants having regard to paragraph 185 of 
the NPPF and Local Plan Policies DM6.1 and DM5.19. It is officer that it is 
acceptable subject to imposing the suggested conditions.   
 
17.7 Members need to consider whether this development is acceptable in terms 
of its impacts on highway safety and whether sufficient parking is provided. The 
proposal will provide parking in accordance with the Council adopted standards 
and will not have an unacceptable impact on highway safety or result in a 
residual cumulative impact that will be severe. It is officer advice that it is 
acceptable.  
 
17.8 As there is a potential impact on designated sites at the coast, this 
development requires appropriate assessment however, the impacts relating to 
the Northumbria Coast SPA and Ramsar sites can be mitigated without causing 
significant adverse impacts.  Members need to consider whether this 
development is acceptable in terms of biodiversity. Subject to a legal agreement 
to secure coastal mitigation and conditions to secure on-site mitigation the 
proposal would provide biodiversity net gain, which is encouraged by NPPF, and 
secure appropriate mitigation. The development will not significantly impact on 
biodiversity or significantly impact on the wildlife corridor. It is officer advice that 
is acceptable. 
 
17.9 Issues to do with flooding and contaminated land can be dealt with via 
conditions.  
 
17.11 The applicant has agreed to provide planning obligations in accordance 
with what the Council is seeking, and this proposal will deliver 100% affordable 
housing provision which weighs in favour of this proposal. 
 
17.12 The ‘tilted balance’ principle (NPPF paragraph 11) makes a presumption 
towards planning permission being granted unless there are adverse impacts 
which would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits. The Council 
does not have a 5-year supply of deliverable housing sites. Development in 
locations with a housing shortfall should benefit from the presumption in favour. It 

Page 77



INIT 

therefore follows that planning permission should be granted unless the impacts 
of the development significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits. In the 
opinion of officers, the impacts of the development would not significantly and 
demonstrably outweigh the benefits. It is therefore recommended that planning 
permission should be granted subject to a S106 Legal Agreement and conditions. 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Minded to grant  legal agreement req. 
 
 
It is recommended that:  
a) the Committee indicates that it is minded to grant the application; and 
the Director of Regeneration and Economic Development be authorised to 
issue a notice of grant of planning permission subject to:  
b) the conditions set out in the planning officers report;  
the addition, omission or amendment of any other conditions considered 
necessary by the Director of Regeneration and Economic Development; 
and,   
c) completion of a legal agreement to secure 100% affordable housing 
provision and a financial contribution for the following: 
-Benton Village Green/Local Wildlife Site 3, 900.00 pounds. 
-Children’s equipped play 7, 000.00 pounds.   
-Parks and greenspaces 10, 647.00 pounds. 
-Primary education 50, 000.00 pounds. 
-Employment and training 1 apprenticeship or 10,000.00 pounds. 
-Coastal Mitigation 3, 020.00 pounds.  
-Open space improvements 18, 138.00 pounds.  
 
 
 
Conditions/Reasons 
 
1.    The development to which the permission relates shall be carried out in 
complete accordance with the following approved plans, reports and 
specifications: 
         Location plan Dwg No. 20005 L01 A 
         Existing site Dwg No. 832/E1 
         Dwg No. 20005 P01R Site plan 01  
         Dwg No. 20005 P20C Roof plan  
         Dwg No. 20005 P11C Plots 13-30 proposed elevations  
         Dwg No. 20005 P10B Plots 1-12 proposed elevations  
         Dwg No. 20005 P04A GA plans plots 13-20 
         Dwg No. 20005 P03 GA plans plots 1-12 
         Reason:  To ensure that the development as carried out does not vary from 
the approved plans. 
 
2.    The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 
three years from the date of this permission. 

Page 78



INIT 

         Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
3.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, the existing roadway shown to be improved on 
drawing number 2005 P01R Site plan 01, shall be laid out in accordance with 
drawing number 2005 P01R Site plan 01, prior to any part of the development 
hereby approved being occupied and permanently retained and maintained 
thereafter.  
         Reason: In the interest of securing access to the site from the south and in 
the interests of highway safety and of the development having regard to policy 
DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
          
          
 
4.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, the scheme for parking shall be provided and 
laid out in accordance with the approved plan Ref: Dwg No. 20005 P01R Site 
plan 01. These parking areas shall not be used for any other purpose and shall 
be permanently retained thereafter. 
         Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having 
regard to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
5.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the occupation of any 
dwelling/flat/apartment hereby approved details of undercover cycle storage 
provision shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Thereafter, these agreed details shall be implemented prior to the 
occupation of each dwelling/flat/apartment hereby approved. These storage 
areas shall not be used for any other purpose and retained thereafter. 
         Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having 
regard to policies DM6.1 and DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
6.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the occupation of any 
dwelling/flat/apartment hereby approved details of storage provision and 
enclosure details, for refuse, recycling and garden waste, shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, these agreed 
details shall be implemented prior to the occupation of each 
dwelling/flat/apartment hereby approved. These storage areas shall not be used 
for any other purpose and retained thereafter. 
         Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having 
regard to policies DM6.1 and DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
7.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, no part of the development hereby approved 
shall be occupied until the scheme for traffic calming to 20mph including a 
timescale for its implementation has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. This scheme shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved details and retained thereafter.  
         Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having 
regard to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
          
 
8.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, no part of the development hereby approved 
shall be occupied until details of a parking management scheme to prevent 

Page 79



INIT 

vehicles associated with school drop off and pick up has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This scheme shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details and retained thereafter.  
         Reason: To accord with Central Government and Council Policy concerning 
sustainable transport. 
 
9.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, no development shall commence until a 
Construction Method Statement for the duration of the construction period has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved statement shall: identify the access to the site for all site operatives 
(including those delivering materials) and visitors, provide for the parking of 
vehicles of site operatives and visitors; storage of plant and materials used in 
constructing the development; provide a scheme indicating the route for heavy 
construction vehicles to and from the site; a turning area within the site for 
delivery vehicles; a detailed scheme to prevent the deposit of mud and debris 
onto the highway and a dust suppression scheme (such measures shall include 
mechanical street cleaning, and/or provision of water bowsers, and/or wheel 
washing and/or road cleaning facilities, and any other wheel cleaning solutions 
and dust suppressions measures considered appropriate to the size of the 
development). The scheme must include a site plan illustrating the location of 
facilities and any alternative locations during all stages of development. The 
approved statement shall be implemented and complied with during and for the 
life of the works associated with the development. 
         Reason: This information is required predevelopment to ensure that the site 
set up does not impact on highway safety, pedestrian safety, retained trees 
(where necessary) and residential amenity having regard to policies DM5.19 and 
DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 
10.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the commencement of any part of the 
development hereby approved a detailed drainage plan for the development 
including plans showing the drainage basin design, long sections and cross 
sections through the basin, and details of the appointed drainage management 
company, to manage the drainage and any associated infrastructure is managed 
and maintained in perpetuity, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Lead Local Flood Authority. 
Thereafter, the development hereby approved shall be carried out in full 
accordance with these agreed details. Following the appointment of the SUDS 
management company, if any changes to the appointed SUDS management 
company are required the Local Planning Authority must be informed in writing 
before any changes occur.  
         Reason: To ensure the viability of the surface water attenuation is 
maintained in perpetuity having regard to the NPPF.  
          
 
11.    If any unexpected contamination or hotspots are encountered during the 
investigation and construction phases it will be necessary to inform the Local 
Authority within 24 hours.  Work must be ceased until any risk is assessed 
through chemical testing and analysis of the affected soils or waters.  If required 
remediation of any unexpected contamination or underground storage tanks 
discovered during the development must take place before development 

Page 80



INIT 

recommences.  Thereafter the development shall not be implemented otherwise 
than in accordance with the scheme approved under the planning consent. 
          
         Any additional reports should be written in accordance with the current 
government guidelines including but not exclusive of those including in the 
BS10175 2011+A1 2013, BS 5930 2015 +A12020, Verification Requirements for 
Cover Systems YALPAG Version 3.4 - November 2017, Land Contamination 
Risk Management - Environment Agency. 
          
         Reason:  To ensure that the potential contamination of the site is properly 
investigated and its implication for the development approved fully taken into 
account having regard to policy DM5.18 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) 
and National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
12.    The construction site subject of this approval shall not be operational and 
there shall be no construction, deliveries to, from or vehicle movements within the 
site outside the hours of 0800-1800 Monday - Friday and 0800-1400 Saturdays 
with no working on Sundays or Bank Holidays. 
         Reason:  To safeguard the amenity of nearby residents having regard to 
policy DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning 
Policy Framework. 
 
13.    Development shall be implemented in line with the drainage scheme 
contained within the submitted document entitled "Flood Risk Assessment 
Revision C " dated "August 2022". The drainage scheme shall ensure that foul 
flows discharge to the combined sewer at manhole 6402 and ensure that surface 
water discharges to the surface water sewer at manhole 5503. The surface water 
discharge rate shall not exceed the available capacity of 2.7l/sec that has been 
identified in this sewer.  
         Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding from any sources in 
accordance with the NPPF.  
 
14.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the construction of any part of the 
residential development hereby approved above damp-proof course level a 
schedule and/or samples of all hard surfacing materials and external building 
materials, including doors and windows shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the development shall not be 
carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.  
         Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance having regard to Policy 
DM6.1 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017).  
 
15.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, the proposed dwellings must comply with the 
housing standards set out under Policy DM4.9 of the North Tyneside Local Plan 
(2017).  
         Reason: To ensure appropriate living conditions for future occupiers are 
provided in accordance with Policy DM4.9 of the North Tyneside Local Plan 
(2017).  
 
16.    Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that 
Order), no development falling within Class A, B, C, D, E and F of Part 1 of 

Page 81



INIT 

Schedule 2 or within Class A of Part 2 of Schedule 2 shall be carried out without 
the prior, express planning permission of the Local Planning Authority. 
         Reason:  In order that the Local Planning Authority can properly consider 
the effect of any future proposals on the character and amenity of the locality 
having regard to policy DM6.1 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
17.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the commencement of any part of the 
development hereby approved above damp proof course level a noise scheme to 
address noise from Benton Dene Primary School and Longbenton High School 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
This scheme shall provide details of the window glazing and sound attenuation 
measures to be provided to habitable rooms to ensure bedrooms meet the good 
internal equivalent standard of 30 dB(A) at night and prevent the exceedance of 
Lmax of 45 dB(A) and living rooms meet an internal equivalent noise level of 
35dB(A) as described in BS8233:2014 and the World Health Organisation 
community noise guidelines. 
         Reason:  To safeguard the amenity of nearby residents having regard to 
policy DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning 
Policy Framework. 
 
18.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the commencement of any part of the 
development hereby approved above damp proof course level details of a 
ventilation scheme to ensure an appropriate standard of ventilation, with windows 
closed, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  Where the internal noise levels specified in BS8233 are not 
achievable, with window open, due to the external noise environment, an 
alternative mechanical ventilation system must be installed, equivalent to System 
4 of Approved Document F, such as mechanical heat recovery (MVHR) system 
that addresses thermal comfort and purge ventilation requirements to reduce the 
need to open windows. The alternative ventilation system must not compromise 
the facade insulation or the resulting internal noise levels.  
         Reason:  To safeguard the amenity of nearby residents having regard to 
policy DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning 
Policy Framework. 
 
19.    No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing 
and proposed ground levels and levels of thresholds and floor levels of all 
proposed buildings has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Such levels shall be shown in relation to a fixed and known 
datum point. Thereafter, the development shall not be carried out other than in 
accordance with the approved details.   
         Reason: This needs to be pre-commencement condition to ensure that the 
work is carried out at suitable levels in relation to adjoining properties and 
highways, having regard to amenity, access, highway and drainage requirements 
having regard to policy DM6.1 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
20.    Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved (including 
demolition and all preparatory work), a revised Aboricultural Impact Assessment 
(AIA) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The AIA is to be produced in accordance with BS 5837:2012. 

Page 82



INIT 

         Reason: This information is required from the outset to ensure that existing 
landscape features are adequately protected during construction and to ensure 
local wildlife populations are protected in the interests of ecology having regard to 
the NPPF and Policy DM5.5 and DM5.9 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
21.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the commencement of any part of the 
development hereby approved above damp proof course level, a fully detailed 
landscape plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority and shall be in accordance with the details provided within the 
Biodiversity Metric 3.1 and BNG Assessment Report (E3 Ecology R06 Feb/March 
2023). The landscape scheme shall include a detailed specification and proposed 
timing of all new tree, shrub, hedgerow and wildflower planting. All new standard 
trees are to be a minimum 12-14cm girth. The landscaping scheme shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details within the first available 
planting season following the approval of details. All hard and soft landscape 
works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and to a 
standard in accordance with the relevant recommendations of British Standard 
8545:2014. Any trees or plants that, within a period of five years after planting, 
are removed, die or become seriously damaged or defective, shall be replaced 
with others of species, size and number as originally approved, by the end of the 
first available planting season thereafter. Any revisions to the landscape plan are 
to be submitted and approved by the local authority.  
         Reason: To ensure that appropriate mitigation is secured and to enhance 
existing landscape features and wildlife populations having regard to the NPPF 
and Policies DM5.5, DM5.7 and DM5.9 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
22.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the commencement of any part of the 
development hereby approved above damp proof course level, a detailed 30 year 
'Landscape and Ecological Management and Monitoring Plan' (LEMMP) for on-
site landscaping as set out in the Biodiversity Metric 3.1 and BNG Report (E3 
Ecology R06 Feb/March 2023) and an approved Landscape Plan, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This plan 
shall include details of site preparation, long-term design objectives, 
management and monitoring objectives, management responsibilities, timescales 
and maintenance schedules for all newly created and enhanced habitats within 
the site. Thereafter, these areas shall be managed and maintained in full 
accordance with these agreed details unless first agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The plan will include details of the following: 
         -Details on the creation, enhancement and management of all habitats 
identified within the Biodiversity Net Gain Report/Biodiversity Metric (E3 Ecology 
R06 Feb/March 2023) and how the condition criteria will be met through 
management;  
         -Survey and monitoring details for all for all target habitats identified within 
the Net Gain Assessment Report/Biodiversity Metric. Monitoring Reports will be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for review in years 3, 5 and 10 and 5 
yearly thereafter, and will include a Net Gain Assessment update as part of the 
report to ensure the habitats are reaching the specified target condition. Any 
changes to habitat management as part of this review will require approval in 
writing from the Local Planning Authority. The Plan will be reviewed every 5 
years in partnership with the Local Planning Authority; 

Page 83



INIT 

         -Details of any corrective action that will be undertaken if habitat delivery 
fails to achieve the requirements set out in the approved Biodiversity Net Gain 
Report/Biodiversity Metric. 
         Reason: To ensure that appropriate mitigation is secured and to enhance 
existing landscape features and wildlife populations having regard to the NPPF 
and Policies DM5.5, DM5.7 and DM5.9 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
23.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the commencement of any part of the 
development hereby approved above damp proof course level details of 5no. bat 
features (e.g. bat brick, tile, bat box) and 5no. integrated bird features to be 
provided in the buildings hereby approved, including specifications and locations 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Thereafter, the bird and bat boxes shall be installed in accordance with these 
agreed details prior to the completion of the development hereby approved and 
shall be permanently maintained and retained.   
         Reason: To ensure that appropriate mitigation is secured to ensure 
protected species are adequately protected having regard to the NPPF and 
Policies DM5.5 and DM5.7 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
24.    Prior to the installation of any floodlighting or other form of external lighting, 
a lighting scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. High intensity security lights will be avoided as far as practical 
and if required, these will be of minimum practicable brightness, be set on a short 
timer and will be motion sensitive only to larger objects. Lighting must be 
designed to minimise light spill to adjacent boundary features such as woodland, 
scrub, grassland and hedgerow habitats and should be less than 2 lux in these 
areas. This shall include the following information: 
         - a statement of frequency of use, and the hours of illumination; 
         - a site plan showing the area to be lit relative to the surrounding area, 
indicating parking or access arrangements where appropriate, and highlighting 
any significant existing or proposed landscape or boundary features; 
         - details of the number, location and height of the proposed lighting 
columns or other fixtures; 
         - the type, number, mounting height and alignment of the luminaires; 
         - the beam angles and upward waste light ratio for each light; 
         - an isolux diagram showing the predicted illuminance levels at critical 
locations on the boundary of the site and where the site abuts residential 
properties or the public highway to ensure compliance with the institute of lighting 
engineers Guidance Notes for the reduction of light pollution to prevent light glare 
and intrusive light for agreed environmental zone ; and 
         - where necessary, the percentage increase in luminance and the predicted 
illuminance in the vertical plane (in lux) at key points. 
         The lighting shall be installed and maintained in accordance with the 
approved scheme. 
         Reason: To ensure that appropriate mitigation is secured to ensure 
protected species are adequately protected having regard to the NPPF and 
Policies DM5.5 and DM5.7 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
25.    No vegetation removal or building works shall take place during the bird 
nesting season (March- August inclusive) unless a survey by a suitably qualified 

Page 84



INIT 

ecologist has confirmed the absence of nesting birds immediately prior to works 
commencing. 
         Reason: To ensure that local wildlife populations are protected in the 
interests of ecology having regard to the NPPF and Policy DM5.5 of the North 
Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
26.    Any excavations left open overnight will have a means of escape for 
mammals that may become trapped in the form of a ramp at least 300mm in 
width and angled no greater than 45°. 
         Reason: To ensure that local wildlife populations are protected in the 
interests of ecology having regard to the NPPF and Policy DM5.5 of the North 
Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
27.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the commencement of any part of the 
development hereby approved above damp proof course level details of all 
screen and boundary walls, fences and any other means of enclosure have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These 
details shall include hedgehog gaps (13x13cm) shall be provided within any new 
boundary fencing to allow the movement of wildlife through the site. The 
development shall thereafter only be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details and the buildings hereby approved shall not be occupied until the details 
have been fully implemented. 
         Reason: To ensure that the proposed development does not adversely 
affect the privacy and visual amenities at present enjoyed by the occupiers of 
neighbouring properties, and to ensure a satisfactory environment within the 
development, and to ensure protected species are adequately protected having 
regard to policies DM6.1 and DM5.7 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
 
Statement under Article 35 of the Town & Country (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015): 
 
 
The Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively with the applicant 
to identify various solutions during the application process to ensure that the 
proposal comprised sustainable development and would improve the economic, 
social and environmental conditions of the area and would accord with the 
development plan. These were incorporated into the scheme and/or have been 
secured by planning condition. The Local Planning Authority has therefore 
implemented the requirements in Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 
 
Informatives 
 
 
Building Regulations Required  (I03) 
 
 
Consent to Display Advertisement Reqd  (I04) 
 

Page 85



INIT 

 
The applicant is advised that a license must be obtained from the Highways 
Authority before any works are carried out on the footway, carriageway verge or 
other land forming part of the highway.  Contact 
Streetworks@northtyneside.gov.uk for further information 
 
 
The applicant is advised that it is an offence to obstruct the public highway 
(footway or carriageway) by depositing materials without obtaining beforehand, 
and in writing, the permission of the Council as Local Highway Authority.  Such 
obstructions may lead to an accident, certainly cause inconvenience to 
pedestrians and drivers, and are a source of danger to children, elderly people 
and those pushing prams or buggies.  They are a hazard to those who are 
disabled, either by lack of mobility or impaired vision.  Contact 
Highways@northtyneside.gov.uk for further information. 
 
 
The applicant is advised that they should contact Highway Maintenance to 
arrange for an inspection of the highways adjacent to the site. The applicant 
should be aware that failure to do so may result in the Council pursuing them for 
costs of repairing any damage in the surrounding area on completion of 
construction. Contact Highways@northtyneside.gov.uk for further information 
 
 
The applicant is advised that a license must be obtained from the Highways 
Authority for any scaffold placed on the footway, carriageway verge or other land 
forming part of the highway.  Contact Streetworks@northtyneside.gov.uk for 
further information 
 
 
The applicant is advised that requests for Street Naming and Numbering must be 
submitted and approved by the Local Highway Authority. Any complications, 
confusion or subsequent costs that arise due to non-adherence of this criteria will 
be directed to applicant. Until a Street Naming and Numbering & scheme been 
applied for and approved by the Local Highway Authority it will not be officially 
registered with either the council, Royal Mail, emergency services etc.  Contact 
Streetworks@northtyneside.gov.uk for further information. 
 
 
The applicant is advised that no part of the gates or garage doors may project 
over the highway at any time.  Contact 
New.Developments@northtyneside.gov.uk  for further information. 
 
 
The Sustainable Transport Team Leader has made the following 
recommendations:  -The new realigned pedestrian/cylce route between the site 
and Clydedale Avenue must have appropriate dropped kerbs at each end to 
allow a smooth transition between the carriageway and footway. Bollards must 
be positioned appropriately within a minimum spacing of 1.5m to allow users to 
approach in a straight line. -Cycle signage to TSRGD 967 should be erected on a 

Page 86



INIT 

lamp column or individual posts within the development to highlight the presence 
of cyclists within the site. 
 
 
Take Care Proximity to Party Boundary  (I21) 
 
 
Advice All Works Within Applicants Land  (I29) 
 
 
Coal Mining Standing Advice (FUL,OUT)  (I44) 
 
 
 
  

Page 87



INIT 

 

 

 
Application reference: 21/02546/FUL 
Location: Site Of The Fusilier, Clydedale Avenue, Forest Hall  
Proposal: Residential development of 20no. affordable homes and 
associated landscape (amended plans received 21.12.2022) 

Not to scale © Crown Copyright and database right 
2011.  Ordnance Survey Licence Number 
0100016801 

 

Date: 01.06.2023 

 

Page 88



INIT 

Appendix 1 – 21/02546/FUL 
Item 1 
 
Consultations/representations 
 
1.0 Internal Consultees 
1.1 Design  
1.2 Following comments dated 25th March 2022, which raised concerns, further 
information has been submitted. The rear elevations of units 1 – 12 have been 
improved with further detailing and a variation of window sizes and materials 
which now contribute towards a well-designed development. Boundary 
treatments have been revised and there are now no longer large sections of 
timber fencing.  
 
1.3 Overall, the revised plans address the previous concerns, and the design and 
layout of the proposal is acceptable, subject to the recommended conditions 
below.  
 
1.4 Suggested Conditions: 
Materials of construction 
Hard surfacing 
Landscape works implementation 
Design of cycle storage  
 
1.5 Highways Network Manager 
1.6 The site will be accessed from Victoria Avenue to the south with pedestrian 
access through the site to Clydedale Avenue.  Parking will be provided in 
accordance with current standards and an area suitable for the turning of a 
refuse vehicle will be laid out. Cycle parking is being provided and the site has 
reasonable links with public transport. Conditional approval is recommended. 
 
1.7 Recommendation - Conditional Approval 
 
1.8 Conditions: 
Notwithstanding the details submitted, the new means of access shall be laid out 
in accordance with the approved details and retained thereafter. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having regard 
to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
Notwithstanding the details submitted, the scheme for parking shall be laid out in 
accordance with the approved details and retained thereafter. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having regard 
to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
Notwithstanding the details submitted, the scheme for cycle storage shall be laid 
out in accordance with the approved details and retained thereafter.   
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having regard 
to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
Notwithstanding the details submitted, the scheme for refuse storage shall be laid 
out in accordance with the approved details and retained thereafter.   

Page 89



INIT 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having regard 
to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
No part of the development shall be occupied until a scheme for traffic calming to 
20mph has been submitted to and approved by in writing the Local Planning 
Authority.  This scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved 
details and retained thereafter. 
Reason: To accord with Central Government and Council Policy concerning 
sustainable transport. 
 
No part of the development shall be occupied until details of a parking 
management scheme to prevent vehicles associated with school drop off and 
pick up has been submitted to and approved by in writing the Local Planning 
Authority.  This scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved 
details and retained thereafter. 
Reason: To accord with Central Government and Council Policy concerning 
sustainable transport. 
 
Notwithstanding Condition 1, no development shall commence until a 
Construction Method Statement for the duration of the construction period has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved statement shall: identify the access to the site for all site operatives 
(including those delivering materials) and visitors, provide for the parking of 
vehicles of site operatives and visitors; details of the site compound for the 
storage of plant (silos etc) and materials used in constructing the development; 
provide a scheme indicating the route for heavy construction vehicles to and from 
the site; a turning area within the site for delivery vehicles; dust suppression 
scheme (such measures shall include mechanical street cleaning, and/or 
provision of water bowsers, and/or wheel washing and/or road cleaning facilities, 
and any other wheel cleaning solutions and dust suppressions measures 
considered appropriate to the size of the development). The scheme must 
include a site plan illustrating the location of facilities and any alternative 
locations during all stages of development. The approved statement shall be 
implemented and complied with during and for the life of the works associated 
with the development. 
Reason: This information is required pre-development to ensure that the site set 
up does not impact on highway safety, pedestrian safety, retained trees (where 
necessary) and residential amenity having regard to policies DM5.19 and DM7.4 
of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 
Notwithstanding Condition 1, no development shall commence until a scheme to 
show wheel washing facilities and mechanical sweepers to prevent mud and 
debris onto the public highway has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. This scheme shall include details of the location, 
type of operation, maintenance/phasing programme. Construction shall not 
commence on any part of the development other than the construction of a 
temporary site access and site set up until these agreed measures are fully 
operational for the duration of the construction of the development hereby 
approved. If the agreed measures are not operational then no vehicles shall exit 
the development site onto the public highway.  

Page 90



INIT 

Reason: This information is required pre development to ensure that the site set 
up does not impact on highway safety, pedestrian safety, retained trees (where 
necessary) and residential amenity having regard to policies DM5.19 and DM7.4 
of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 
1.9 Informatives: 
The applicant is advised that a license must be obtained from the Highways 
Authority before any works are carried out on the footway, carriageway verge or 
other land forming part of the highway. Contact 
Streetworks@northtyneside.gov.uk for further information. 
 
The applicant is advised that it is an offence to obstruct the public highway 
(footway or carriageway) by depositing materials without obtaining beforehand, 
and in writing, the permission of the Council as Local Highway Authority. Such 
obstructions may lead to an accident, certainly cause inconvenience to 
pedestrians and drivers, and are a source of danger to children, elderly people 
and those pushing prams or buggies.  They are a hazard to those who are 
disabled, either by lack of mobility or impaired vision. Contact 
Highways@northtyneside.gov.uk for further information. 
 
The applicant is advised that they should contact Highway Maintenance to 
arrange for an inspection of the highways adjacent to the site. The applicant 
should be aware that failure to do so may result in the Council pursuing them for 
costs of repairing any damage in the surrounding area on completion of 
construction. Contact Highways@northtyneside.gov.uk for further information.  
 
The applicant is advised that a license must be obtained from the Highways 
Authority for any scaffold placed on the footway, carriageway verge or other land 
forming part of the highway. Contact Streetworks@northtyneside.gov.uk for 
further information 
 
The applicant is advised that requests for Street Naming and Numbering must be 
submitted and approved by the Local Highway Authority. Any complications, 
confusion or subsequent costs that arise due to non-adherence of this criteria will 
be directed to applicant. Until a Street Naming and Numbering and scheme been 
applied for and approved by the Local Highway Authority it will not be officially 
registered with either the council, Royal Mail, emergency services etc. Contact 
Streetworks@northtyneside.gov.uk 
for further information. 
 
The applicant is advised that no part of the gates or garage doors may project 
over the highway at any time.  Contact 
New.Developments@northtyneside.gov.uk  for further information. 
 
1.10 Sustainable Transport  
1.11 This is a resubmission of a full application for a residential development of 
20no affordable homes and associated landscape. As part of the application, a 
Transport Statement (TS) was submitted that covered sustainable modes of 
transport to and from the site. The developer was advised in their initial 
submission that a Travel Plan (TP) was not required due to the size of the site. 

Page 91



INIT 

The new site layout proposes the main access from Victoria Avenue instead of 
Clydedale Avenue and it includes improvements to the footways within the site.  
  
1.12 We do not propose any conditions for the development but recommend the 
following matters are taken into consideration: 
  
Recommendation 1: The new realigned PRoW between the site and Clydedale 
Avenue must have appropriate dropped kerbs at each end to allow a smooth 
transition between the carriageway and footway. Bollards must be positioned 
appropriately within a minimum spacing of 1.5m to allow users to approach in a 
straight line. 
  
Recommendation 2: Cycle signage to TSRGD 967 should be erected on a lamp 
column or individual posts within the development to highlight the presence of 
cyclists within the site. 
  
Recommendation 3: Plots 17 and 18 of the development sever the eastern 
footway of Clydedale Avenue. It is recommended that the bin storage and hedge 
line of plots 17 and 18 is amended to provide a new footway between the PRoW 
and existing footway on the eastern side of Clydedale Avenue. The footway width 
should not be less than the existing width on Clydedale Avenue.  
 
1.13 Manager for Environmental Health (Contaminated Land) 
1.14 The Phase 2 report has shown no contamination on site however the report 
also states that: 
 
There is always the possibility, along with other contamination, that undiscovered 
asbestos exists between sample locations and the possibility of unknown 
asbestos exists on all sites, particularly brownfield sites where previous buildings 
have been demolished, where there were previous features that were infilled (old 
hollows, pits etc) or where significant quantities of materials such as demolition 
and brick rubble exist. It is not uncommon for historical asbestos wastes to be 
deliberately buried on derelict sites, or imported old demolition rubble which could 
contain asbestos to be imported for use as hardstanding/hardcore. 
 
1.15 As there is the potential for unexpected contamination Con 007 must be 
applied. 
 
1.16 Manager for Environmental Health (Pollution) 
1.17 I note the site is located adjacent to Longbenton high School some 100 
metres to the west of the site. I would be concerned about potential noise from 
any external plant in use at the school, from associated noise from the car park 
and noise from use of any external playing areas at the school. A noise scheme 
will be required to ensure suitable sound attenuation measures are taken to 
mitigate any external noise. 
 
1.18 Conditions:  
Prior to development submit and implement on approval of the Local Planning 
Authority a noise scheme to address noise from Longbenton High School 
providing details of the window glazing and sound attenuation measures to be 
provided to habitable rooms to ensure bedrooms meet the good internal 

Page 92



INIT 

equivalent standard of 30 dB(A) at night and prevent the exceedance of Lmax of 
45 dB(A) and living rooms meet an internal equivalent noise level of 35dB(A) as 
described in BS8233:2014 and the World Health Organisation community noise 
guidelines.   
 
Prior to occupation, submit details of the ventilation scheme for approval in 
writing and thereafter implemented to ensure an appropriate standard of 
ventilation, with windows closed, is provided.  Where the internal noise levels 
specified in BS8233 are not achievable, with window open, due to the external 
noise environment, an alternative mechanical ventilation system must be 
installed, equivalent to System 4 of Approved Document F, such as mechanical 
heat recovery (MVHR) system that addresses thermal comfort and purge 
ventilation requirements to reduce the need to open windows. The alternative 
ventilation system must not compromise the facade insulation or the resulting 
internal noise levels.  
 
HOU04 
SIT03 
 
1.19 Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA)  
1.20 I have evaluated the flood risk and carried out a review of the surface water 
drainage proposals put forward as part of planning application 21/02546/FUL, I 
can confirm in principle I have no objections to the proposals as the applicant will 
be providing surface water attenuation within the site for up to a 1in100yr rainfall 
event + a 40% allocation for climate change and will be restricting the rate of 
surface water leaving the site to the equivalent greenfield run-off rates. The 
attenuation will be achieved via the use of permeable paved driveways and an 
attenuation basin with a flow control device fitted on the outlet and 75mm orifice 
plate to restrict the surface water discharge rate to 2.7l/s before it enters 
Northumbrian Water’s surface water sewer network which in turn connects to a 
culverted watercourse. The applicant has also indicated the maintenance of the 
suds features and associated drainage infrastructure will be the responsibility of 
Karbon Homes or an appointed contractor.  
 
1.21 I will require a condition to be placed on the application requiring the 
detailed drainage plans for the development and also plans showing the suds 
basin design including a long-section and cross sections through suds basin. 
These will need to be submitted to LLFA for approval prior to commencement of 
the development. 
 
1.22 Landscape Architect and Biodiversity Officer 
1.23 Existing Site Context  
1.24 The proposed application comprises of land associated with the former 
Fusilier (PH). The site is nominally flat across its associated surface horizon, with 
a slight fall to open land in the west. The site is bordered by established 
residential development to the north and east, and open-aspect grassed 
communal land to the south and west some of which is known as Benton Village 
Green. Both pedestrian and vehicle access is provided into the existing site from 
the south and north respectively via Victoria Avenue and Clydedale Avenue, as 
well as informal pedestrian access from the north, west and south. 
 

Page 93



INIT 

1.25 The topography of the combined site is generally flat and contains few 
landscape elements, with some areas of self-seeded trees and shrubs along the 
northern perimeter of the site, adjacent to the access point from Clydedale 
Avenue. There are scattered, solitary and isolated groupings of hedgerow, shrub 
and associated lower scrub elements bordering the grassed areas along the 
western and southern (proposed) perimeter site areas. A range of mixed-species 
hedgerows and solitary landscape elements, have formed along the collective 
rear garden areas of associated residential properties, bordering the northern 
and eastern perimeters and the western half of the proposed development site 
also contains a large area of poor semi-improved grassland habitat. 
 
1.26 This application is for a residential development for 20no. residential 
dwellings and associated infrastructure. The land to the west of the proposed site 
(approx. 0.2ha) is designated as open space (Policy DM5.3) and located within a 
wildlife corridor as defined by the North Tyneside Local Plan (Policy DM5.7).  
 
1.27 The following additional information has been submitted in response to 
previous comments:  
 
Updated Open Space Assessment (Ward Hadaway March 2023) 
Updated Biodiversity Metric (Rev 6 March 2023) 
Updated BNG Assessment (R06 E3 Ecology Feb 2023) 
Landscape Plan (DWG No: 832/LA3B Rev B 16/01/23) 
 
1.28 Ecological Appraisal 
1.29 An ecological appraisal was undertaken in 2018 and subsequently updated 
in 2021 by which time the pub buildings had been demolished. The Appraisal 
indicates habitats on site that include hard standing, bare ground with scattered 
ephemeral short perennial vegetation, introduced shrub of low habitat value, poor 
semi-improved grassland, species poor gappy young hedgerow, scattered scrub, 
and immature broadleaf trees of local habitat value. Single shrubs of 
rhododendron and Himalayan cotoneaster, listed on Schedule 9 of the Wildlife 
and Countryside Act (1981) as non-native, invasive species, were recorded on 
site in the earlier surveys and now appear to have been removed. 
 
1.30 The site is considered to be of local value to urban breeding bird species 
that may nest in hedgerow and shrub habitats in low numbers and to hedgehog 
which may forage over the site on occasion. No other protected or priority 
species are likely to be affected by the proposals. The proposed development is 
not predicted to have any impacts on statutory or non- statutory designated sites. 
 
1.31 The following impacts are anticipated as a result of the scheme:  
-Loss of coarse mesotrophic grassland (0.2ha), species-poor gappy hedgerow, 
scattered and dense scrub, and immature broadleaf trees of local habitat value 
but forming part of the wildlife corridor. 
-Disturbance to bats that may commute and forage on site through increased 
lighting. 
-Harm/disturbance to breeding birds nesting within the hedgerows at the time of 
works. 
-Harm to small mammals, including hedgehog, which may become trapped in 
excavations during site works. 

Page 94



INIT 

-Disturbance to hedgehog which may forage over the site during site operation. 
 
1.32 A number of mitigation measures have been proposed to address these 
impacts including bird and bat boxes, landscaping, lighting that minimises light 
spill and measures to ensure protected/priority species will not be impacted as a 
result of the works. These measures can be conditioned as part of the 
application. 
 
1.33 BNG Assessment/Metric Calculation 
1.34 Existing habitat within the site such as grassland, shrub and scrub habitat 
will be lost as part of the scheme resulting in a loss of 0.54 habitat units. All the 
native hedgerow around the site boundaries will also be lost to accommodate the 
scheme.  Post-development, the on-site landscaping will consist mainly of 
vegetated gardens with very small areas of modified grassland and mixed native 
scrub habitat. A bioswale (SUDs feature) is also provided which will be sown with 
a wildflower meadow mix and 30no. medium sized urban trees are provided 
outside of private gardens. This will result in a net gain in habitat units of 7.66% 
which is largely being achieved through the planting of urban trees within the site. 
Hedgerow creation proposed as part of the scheme will result in a net gain in 
hedgerow units. 
  
1.35 Landscape Scheme.                                                                                                                                                 
1.36 The Proposed Landscape Plan (DWG No: 832/LA3B Rev B 16/01/23) sets 
out the areas where the habitats identified as part of the net gain assessment 
(above) will be delivered. This shows native hedgerows to the southern and 
western boundaries and parts of the northern and eastern boundaries. A 
bioswale is located along the northern boundary planted with a wildflower 
meadow and there are a number of small communal and public open space 
areas where modified grassland will be provided.  There is also a small area of 
mixed native scrub being provided on the eastern boundary and a number of 
‘urban’ trees (30no.) throughout the development. 
 
1.37 If the application is approved, a fully detailed Landscape Plan and 
‘Landscape and Ecology Management & Monitoring Plan’ (LEMMP) will be 
required for a period of 30 years in order to ensure the habitats set out on the 
landscape plan, delivers the required net gain and meets the required target 
conditions. 
 
1.38 Open Space Assessment 
1.39 The land to the west of the former PH (approx. 0.2ha) is designated in the 
North Tyneside Local Plan as open space (DM5.3) and is also within a 
designated wildlife corridor (DM5.7).  The former garden may appear as 
overgrown fenced-off land but nevertheless it is designated open space and 
within a wildlife corridor and contains semi-improved grassland of biodiversity 
value.   
 
1.40 An updated open space assessment has been submitted (Ward Hadaway 
March 2023).  The report considers all the requirements of the Local Plan policy 
DM5.2 (Protection of Green Infrastructure) which states the following:   
 

Page 95



INIT 

‘The loss of any part of the green infrastructure network will only be considered in 
the following exceptional circumstances:  
a. Where it has been demonstrated that the site no longer has any value to the 
community in terms of access and function; or,  
b. If it is not a designated wildlife site or providing important biodiversity value; or,  
c. If it is not required to meet a shortfall in the provision of that green space type 
or another green space type; or,  
d. The proposed development would be ancillary to use of the green 
infrastructure and the benefits to green infrastructure would outweigh any loss of 
open space.  
 
Where development proposals are considered to meet the exceptional 
circumstances above, permission will only be granted where alternative 
provision, equivalent to or better than in terms of its quantity and quality, can be 
provided in equally accessible locations that maintain or create new green 
infrastructure connections’ 
 
1.41 The Report considers that Policy DM5.2 parts (b) and (c) have been met as 
the site is not a designated wildlife site/providing important biodiversity and the 
land is not required to meet a shortfall in the provision of that green space type. 
However, the assessment acknowledges that parts (a) and (d) of the Policy have 
not been met.  
 
1.42 The Assessment concludes that: 
 
 “Limited harm would be caused by the proposed development acknowledging 
amongst other things the availability of open space in the ward and that the land 
is privately owned and there are no formal access arrangements”. It also states 
that: “exceptional circumstances exist which support the proposed development 
which would enhance the area through the recycling of a site in need of re-use. 
Additionally, a financial contribution is proposed which it is envisaged would be 
used to enhance other open space in the locality”. 
 
1.43 The scheme clearly does not meet all of the criteria set out in Planning 
Policy DM5.2. An on-balance decision should, therefore, be made by the 
Planning Department which takes into consideration additional requirements and 
policies associated with the scheme. If the scheme is considered for approval on 
this basis, it would need to address the permanent loss of amenity open space 
associated with the scheme by providing off-site open space creation or 
enhancement in a suitable location agreed by the Local Planning Authority (LPA) 
to meet Local Plan and NPPF policies. A site has been identified on Council land 
close to the site which has the potential to be enhanced. Details of the financial 
contribution required to deliver this have been submitted to Planning for 
agreement by the applicant prior to the application being determined or 
approved. 
 
1.44 Arboricultural Impact Assessment 
1.45 The Arboricultural Report has been prepared by AllAboutTrees and dated 
July 2022 (revision D). The trees have been evaluated in accordance with BS 
5837:2012 Trees in relation to design, demolition & construction, with regard to 
their quality and value. With regard to any retained trees, the type and size of the 

Page 96



INIT 

root protection area is calculated, and the position of any protective barriers has 
been determined. The existing vegetation is made up of sparse single row 
hedgerows to the western and southern boundaries which are primarily hawthorn 
with three small fruit trees along the western boundary, and three small trees 
along the southern boundary. The eastern boundary hedge, which is not 
continuous, includes hawthorn, privet, cotoneaster and elder. The southern part 
has been removed at the request of the adjacent resident. There are two tree and 
shrub groups, one along the northern boundary covering an area of 
approximately 50 square metres, and includes privet, elder and wild cherry. The 
other is in the southwest corner of the garden and covers an area of 
approximately 40 square metres and is mainly willow.  
 
1.46 The report states that all of the existing vegetation is described as being low 
quality (Category C as defined by BS 5837). It will be necessary to remove the 
existing trees and hedgerows to facilitate the proposed development and include 
Groups 1 (mixed species including privet, elder, wild cherry), Group 2 (Willow); 
hedgerow 1 (hawthorn, privet, cotoneaster and elder), hedgerow 2 (hawthorn, 
apple common pear and plum) and hedgerow 3 (hawthorn, ash, photinia, 
eucalyptus and fir. The proposed plans indicate a comprehensive planting 
scheme will be implemented to complement the proposed development and 
include the replacement of hedgerows with mixed native species hedgerows and 
a mix of native and ornamental trees, which will enhance the development site 
and improve visual amenity.  
 
1.47 Drainage 
A drainage strategy has been submitted (Drawing 2016101 000-00 A) that shows 
all drainage is to be collected into the road and taken off site via the existing 
drainage system to the north. Private car parking bays are to be constructed as 
permeable paving with connection to the main surface water system.  
 
1.48 Coastal Designated Sites  
1.49 The scheme will result in an increase in residential accommodation which 
will contribute to adverse impacts on designated sites at the coast through 
recreational disturbance. The scheme will, therefore, need to comply with the 
Councils Coastal Mitigation SPD. The SPD provides guidance and information on 
the mitigation required from development within North Tyneside to prevent 
adverse impacts on the internationally protected coastline. 
 
1.50 If the application is recommended for approval, the following conditions 
should be attached to the application: 
 
1.51 Conditions: 
Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved (including 
demolition and all preparatory work), a revised AIA is to be submitted based on 
the updated landscape proposals plan The AIA is to be produced in accordance 
with BS 5837:2012. 
 
Within one month from the commencement of development on site, a fully 
detailed landscape plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority and shall be in accordance with the details provided 
within the Biodiversity Metric 3.1 and BNG Assessment Report (E3 Ecology R06 

Page 97



INIT 

Feb/March 2023). The landscape scheme shall include a detailed specification 
and proposed timing of all new tree, shrub, hedgerow and wildflower planting. All 
new standard trees are to be a minimum 12-14cm girth. The landscaping scheme 
shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details within the first 
available planting season following the approval of details. All hard and soft 
landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and 
to a standard in accordance with the relevant recommendations of British 
Standard 8545:2014. Any trees or plants that, within a period of five years after 
planting, are removed, die or become seriously damaged or defective, shall be 
replaced with others of species, size and number as originally approved, by the 
end of the first available planting season thereafter. Any revisions to the 
landscape plan are to be submitted and approved by the local authority.  
 
Within one month from the commencement of any development on site, a 
detailed 30 year ‘Landscape and Ecological Management and Monitoring Plan' 
(LEMMP) for on-site landscaping as set out in the Biodiversity Metric 3.1 and 
BNG Report (E3 Ecology R06 Feb/March 2023) and an approved Landscape 
Plan, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. This plan shall include details of site preparation, long-term design 
objectives, management and monitoring objectives, management responsibilities, 
timescales and maintenance schedules for all newly created and enhanced 
habitats within the site. Thereafter, these areas shall be managed and 
maintained in full accordance with these agreed details unless first agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan will include details of the 
following:- 
 
-Details on the creation, enhancement and management of all habitats identified 
within the Biodiversity Net Gain Report/Biodiversity Metric (E3 Ecology R06 
Feb/March 2023) and how the condition criteria will be met through management. 
-Survey and monitoring details for all for all target habitats identified within the 
Net Gain Assessment Report/Biodiversity Metric. Monitoring Reports will be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for review in years 3, 5 and 10 and 5 
yearly thereafter, and will include a Net Gain Assessment update as part of the 
report to ensure the habitats are reaching the specified target condition. Any 
changes to habitat management as part of this review will require approval in 
writing from the Local Planning Authority. The Plan will be reviewed every 5 
years in partnership with the Local Planning Authority. 
-Details of any corrective action that will be undertaken if habitat delivery fails to 
achieve the requirements set out in the approved Biodiversity Net Gain 
Report/Biodiversity Metric. 
 
5no. integrated bat features (e.g.bat brick, tile, bat box) and 5no. integrated bird 
features will be provided in new buildings within the development. Details of the 
specification and locations of the bird and bat features shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority within 4 weeks of 
development commencing on site and will be installed in accordance with the 
approved plans on completion of works and permanently retained. 
 
Prior to the installation of any floodlighting or other form of external lighting, a 
lighting scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. High intensity security lights will be avoided as far as practical 

Page 98



INIT 

and if required, these will be of minimum practicable brightness, be set on a short 
timer and will be motion sensitive only to larger objects.  Lighting must be 
designed to minimise light spill to adjacent boundary features such as woodland, 
scrub, grassland and hedgerow habitats and should be less than 2 lux in these 
areas. This shall include the following information: 
 
- a statement of frequency of use, and the hours of illumination; 
- a site plan showing the area to be lit relative to the surrounding area, indicating 
parking or access arrangements where appropriate, and highlighting any 
significant existing or proposed landscape or boundary features; 
- details of the number, location and height of the proposed lighting columns or 
other fixtures; 
- the type, number, mounting height and alignment of the luminaires; 
- the beam angles and upward waste light ratio for each light; 
- an isolux diagram showing the predicted illuminance levels at critical locations 
on the boundary of the site and where the site abuts residential properties or the 
public highway to ensure compliance with the institute of lighting engineers 
Guidance Notes for the reduction of light pollution to prevent light glare and 
intrusive light for agreed environmental zone ; and 
- where necessary, the percentage increase in luminance and the predicted 
illuminance in the vertical plane (in lux) at key points. 
The lighting shall be installed and maintained in accordance with the approved 
scheme. 
 
No vegetation removal shall take place during the bird nesting season (March- 
August inclusive) unless a survey by a suitably qualified ecologist has confirmed 
the absence of nesting birds immediately prior to works commencing. 
 
Any excavations left open overnight will have a means of escape for mammals 
that may become trapped in the form of a ramp at least 300mm in width and 
angled no greater than 45°. 
 
Hedgehog gaps (13x13cm) will be provided within any new boundary fencing to 
allow the movement of wildlife through the site. Details of the number, location 
and specification of the hedgehog gaps within the fencing shall be provided on a 
plan and submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing within 4 
weeks of development commencing on site. 
 
2.0 Representations  
2.1 Support  
2.2 Nine representations supporting this application have been received. These 
representations are summarised below: 
-Great scheme that will provide much needed affordable housing in the area.  
-Housing costs are significant at the moment and much needed affordable 
housing will provide relief for those on the housing waiting list.  
-Fully support the entrance from Clydesdale Avenue as this will reduce the 
congestion around Victoria Avenue.  
-The car park is being used to drop children at school which causes a lot of 
problems for Victoria Avenue residents. This is a danger for our children walking 
to and from school.  

Page 99



INIT 

-It is important to build new homes to accommodate a growing population, 
especially at rents and prices that are affordable for people who cannot easily 
compete in the open market.  
-Cheaper rents benefit existing businesses and residents because cash saved on 
rent might be spent on productive local businesses instead. Cheaper rents might 
attract new businesses and new residents, growing the local economy. Cheaper 
rents benefits, the wider economy because lower commercial and residential 
overheads boost productivity, which makes the UK more competitive. 
-This would be a fantastic development in an area which could really do with the 
extra housing. This is also affordable housing too which we are really in need of 
so it will do wonders for the local people. 
-I am in favour of the development but I am anxious to request the preservation 
of the existing hedgerow in the northeast corner of the site to preserve privacy.  
-Support the planting of native trees and hedge plants. This will support the 
efforts of Friends of Benton Village Green and other members of the local 
community to improve the quality of the wildlife corridor through the site. The 
SUDS has potential for helping that aim too. Swift boxes should be built into all 
properties under eaves on north aspects as per official guidance. 
 
2.23 Objections  
2.24 155 objections have been received. These representations are summarised 
below: 
- Adverse effect on wildlife  
- Impact on landscape  
- Inadequate parking provision  
- Nuisance - disturbance  
- Nuisance - dust/dirt  
- Nuisance - fumes  
- Nuisance - noise  
- Out of keeping with surroundings  
- Poor traffic/pedestrian safety  
- Poor/unsuitable vehicular access  
- Traffic congestion  
- Will result in visual intrusion 
- Loss of privacy  
- Loss of visual amenity  
- Inappropriate design  
- Affect character of conservation area  
- Inadequate drainage  
- Inappropriate in special landscape area  
- Loss of/damage to trees  
- Pollution of watercourse  
- Precedent will be set  
- Within greenbelt/no special circumstance 
-This development will add to traffic on Victoria Avenue, which is already 
congested at times. Urge the council to make more effort to promote sustainable 
transport in general so that residents can more easily choose to travel by bus 
rather than car. Until this is a more viable option, I hope the council will consider 
restricting parking by the junction of Victoria Avenue and Station Road. Parked 
vehicles on the latter hide oncoming traffic, which can make it especially difficult 
and dangerous for road users emerging from the former. 

Page 100



INIT 

-Victoria Avenue and Clydedale Avenue are old and not very well-maintained 
streets and they are not designed for the current amount of traffic. 
-Without meaning to pigeonhole every person who rents / lives in this type of 
"Social Housing Program" the sad truth is that the very nature of this type of 
development attracts a certain type of person or family which very often cause 
untold damage to the residents, properties and the feeling of safety and comfort 
that comes with living here in Forest Hall and particularly the aforementioned 
streets. Many of the residents have moved here for the quiet, peaceful and 
neighbourly atmosphere that Forest Hall provides. These people have then went 
on to invest huge amounts of money into their properties to make their quality of 
life better for themselves and for their often young families. This in turn raises the 
value of the surrounding properties and altogether improves the area. A Social 
Housing development such as this would degrade if not destroy that feeling of 
safety that we all share. 
-This application is a mistake, it should not happen where you propose, and for 
once as our council change the habit of a lifetime and listen to the views of the 
people and residents you are supposed to serve in the public interest and know 
that we do not want this to happen. Instead of being motivated by greed look at 
an alternative for the site. 
-Applicant is being greedy requesting to build so many properties on a small 
piece of land.  
-The applicant has not worked with residents and has given no thought to the 
proposed plans.  
-We need social bungalows; we do not have enough bungalows for our elderly 
living longer. There would be less traffic with bungalows so residents may be 
acceptable of this plan. 
-Increase in traffic on Victoria Avenue will present safety issues for children who 
use Victoria Avenue to access the two schools in the area. 
-Site needs to be developed but the proposed development is not in keeping with 
the local area.  
-The suggested flats and the field drainage area are too close to existing 
properties.  
The site, which is currently covered in rubble and weeds, and is a magnet to 
those wanting to create a disturbance could be developed to maintain the best 
qualities of the area. A safe place to walk and a haven for the wildlife. 
-There is no guarantee of rental properties at housing benefit rates on the 
development, nor other clarity that the development will indeed benefit local 
people priced out of other housing. 
-Will all the houses/ flats be for sale or will some be for rent? 
-Could the Council or a Housing Association buy some for rent? 
-Might Karbon Homes consider keeping a house for a refugee family rehoused 
through Community Sponsorship and the Home Office? The local charity 
Tyneside Welcomes (www.tynesidewelcomes.org) would support this: six of its 
members live in Victoria Avenue with others close by. I am Chair of Tyneside 
Welcomes. 
-If the homes are to be affordable, they should have high levels of insulation, built 
in solar panels (Hot water and PV) and shared ground-source heating - easy to 
do when building from scratch. 
-Access is an issue, whether via Victoria Avenue or Clydedale Avenue. 
Clydedale is very narrow. Having access via Victoria Avenue is a logical move as 
it is a more direct route to the main road. However, Victoria Avenue residents 

Page 101



INIT 

mainly have no off-road parking, and many have more than one car, leading to 
significant existing congestion from parked vehicles. This makes both roads 
increasingly dangerous for children, especially at times of drop-off/pick-up for the 
three schools. Additionally, Post Office workers park in Victoria Avenue. There 
are already serious issues that the proposed development, in its present form, 
would make much worse. 
-Avondale/Station Road junction has good lines of sight it is already busy. But 
parked vehicles on Station Road close to the junction with Victoria Avenue hide 
oncoming traffic, which makes it difficult and dangerous for road users to safely 
emerge from Victoria Avenue onto Station Road. This is exacerbated by the 
presence of another road directly opposite, leading to uncertainty over traffic 
priority at peak times, as well as a poor road surface. There are currently often 
long waits and dangerous incidents. 
-Considering local conditions and the imperative to reduce motor traffic to combat 
climate change, air pollution and the eroding of safe space for walking and 
cycling that increased car use produces, we feel limiting the parking spaces to 
one per house would be advisable and desirable. Instead of over 30 potential 
cars having to drive along Victoria Avenue this could be reduced to 20. This 
would also encourage the use of bikes, buses and metros which in turn will 
address the need to reduce car use and air pollution. 
-To enhance cycling and walking a segregated cycle route would be strongly 
supported (Photo 14 NT Cycling Design). The development without so many 
parking places lends itself to being landscaped as a play street. 
-Has anyone considered where all the cars that drop off children for the schools 
will be parked if the car park disappears? What can be done to discourage cars 
being used to drop off children to school?  
-The Village Green is a rare and precious relatively dark area locally. Bats are 
common in the area and will be negatively affected by bright and additional street 
lighting from the development. LED lighting should be "warm white" with less blue 
light. It is important that it should not stray onto the Village Green, which is used 
for stargazing and by bats at night; all lighting should be automatically dimmed 
after say, midnight. Birdlife is also affected by too intense street lighting. 
-The area into Avondale Avenue is already heavily congested for access into 
existing houses, the school children high school and primary school are already 
compromised by the volume of traffic into school site and the cul de sac location 
Clydesdale Avenue is unsuitable. Construction vehicles are a danger in such a 
small cul de sac and the safety of the children and elderly residents is a concern. 
-The number of houses should be reduced to make more space for play.  
-Reduce the number of cars which would encourage the use of bikes, buses and 
metros which in turn will address the need to reduce car use and air pollution.  
-As cyclists we would like to see the detailed cycling infrastructure of the site 
before the final submission to the Local Planning Authority.  
-Height of the proposed fencing to the front of the terraced housing appears to be 
1.8m high which we feel seems inappropriate considering the open aspect which 
exists in the surrounding streets.  
-As a parent I object to this proposal on every level. This is not the type of 
development needed in this area. Especially not at the expense of our children’s 
safety.  
-The road is already too narrow to accommodate most large vehicles (the 
demolition of the Fusilier pub as an example, where wagons and lorries became 
stuck on the corner, or bin wagons who are unable to fit unless they fold all car 

Page 102



INIT 

wing mirrors and have a colleague guide them) our children use the route via the 
Fusilier site to walk to school. This is already known locally as the 'School 
Gauntlet' due to the dangerous manoeuvring and volume of traffic from parents 
using the site as a car park. This is only going to get worse for our children 
throughout buildings works and into the future as the development is occupied.  
-In Victoria Avenue alone we have 25+ school aged children, with the majority 
attending Benton Dene Primary and many just transitioning to Longbenton High 
School. Our children play in our street at all times in all weathers and deserve to 
do so safely. Many of our children also play on Benton Village Green directly 
adjacent, this would no longer be possible due to the dangers they will be 
presented with if this development is completed. The independence and 
responsibility they are able to have by using this area without very close 
supervision will be taken away from them. After spending so much time unable to 
be outside with their peers due to Covid restrictions this will only have a further 
negative impact on them as they grow to understand the adult world.  
-This area would be much better suited to a safe space where our children can 
play freely without having to worry about the dangers of the world around them. 
We do not need additional housing and vehicles but more green space and 
amenities to occupy and engage our children. Benton Village Green has 
blossomed into a place that our children can learn and play, there are fruit trees, 
hundreds of plants and creatures of all shapes and sizes with designated areas 
for play. This site should be considered instead for our children. Be it a skate 
park, pump track, basketball court or simply grass.  
-This kind of social housing will devalue our homes, increase crime rates and 
anti-social behaviour, over populate our existing, oversubscribed schools and 
create an environment that is not safe for our children to walk to school and play 
in.  
-I am aware that residents on Clydesdale Avenue have concerns regarding traffic 
and would prefer to see access through Victoria Avenue, might I suggest you 
open both streets and distribute the traffic and dismay evenly so as to avoid 
resentment building between residents as I'm sure you will go ahead with your 
development regardless of our feelings, concerns and objections. 
-I object to the plans based on vehicle access through Victoria Avenue only. The 
street is narrow with residents’ cars parked on both sides of the road. It is not 
uncommon for cars to have to wait at either end of the street for access, due to 
another vehicle. This alone can cause problems on the main road. The street is a 
main pedestrian access for Benton Dene primary school and increased traffic, 
with the narrow road and parked cars will impact on the safety of the street. As a 
resident of Victoria Avenue, I also find it increasingly difficult to park on the street, 
which will only be made more difficult if it is the only through road for the new 
development. 
-The plan is out of keeping with the existing residential mix, which is largely 
comprised of semi and detached bungalows, Dutch style bungalows with an 
upper storey extension and some detached and semi-detached houses. There is 
no provision on the site of bungalows for older residents. It would be appropriate 
to site 2-4 bungalows where the two blocks of flats are now planned. This would 
have the benefit of complementing the existing houses and continue the 
residential mix. 
-The terrace of double storey housing is out of character with the rest of the 
surrounding area and would overwhelm the rest of the development. Each of the 
plots seems to have two parking places which would be a concern for traffic 

Page 103



INIT 

congestion and safety also the existing traffic which is parked in the morning and 
afternoon for Benton Dene School pupil pick-up and drop off. These will only use 
Clydedale and Allendale Avenue causing even more congestion and aggro for 
residents. 
-Who will be responsible for the maintenance and upkeep of the landscaping? 
-The traffic on Victoria Avenue will increase in an area that is quiet and currently 
safe for our children. The street is a family street, and our children need safety. 
The area in question should be used as green space for the children. The noise 
and disturbance will affect the lives of people in Victoria Avenue negatively. 
-The only reason these plans have changed is because of school traffic, so rather 
than rerouting the traffic, these plans should be completely reconsidered. Having 
social housing in this area will mean more noise, footfall, and is not in keeping 
with the area. I feel as though the residents of Forest Hall have not been 
considered here, and the council have not thought about the needs of the 
residents in the area. We don't need social housing, we need green space, 
parks, recreation, and safety for our families. 
-Parents park on this site for drop off and pick up and regardless of this 
Clydedale Avenue is still full of cars one can only imagine how bad the 
surrounding streets would be if they no longer had access to park in there. This is 
already major safety issues for young children and high school children an 
accident waiting to happen. Thrown into this are many of the teachers parking in 
Avondale and users of the GP practice and surrounding shops.  
-Changing the access from Clydedale Avenue to Victoria Avenue is a 
tremendous oversight and I strongly object to this.  
-Victoria Avenue already gets highly congested, particularly during school drop 
off and pick up times. Unlike Clydedale Avenue, none of the terraced houses (1-
14) have off-street parking or any space to create it, and the majority of the 
houses in the cul-de-sac (13-56) also lack adequate parking spaces. Houses on 
the north side of Victoria Avenue cannot use the back lane for access to our 
properties, as it is one cars width and used by the residents of Connaught 
Gardens who do not have any other option to access their homes as their street 
is pedestrianised to the front. There are always cars parked on either side of the 
road, reducing the access to one lane. This already causes issues in peak times, 
as there is nowhere for cars to go when they pull in from Station Road if the 
traffic is backed up along Victoria Avenue or a car / cyclist is coming in the 
opposite direction. Adding a substantial number of extra vehicles accessing the 
new development, particularly during peak times, will cause traffic to back up 
onto Station Road and cause significant congestion throughout Forest Hall and 
the environmental and safety issues should not be overlooked. The access onto 
Station Road has poor visibility due to parked cars on both sides of the junction 
which further delays cars exiting Victoria Avenue. It also causes cars to speed 
along the section between Station Road where it is reduced to one lane by the 
parked cars. 
-You only have to look at the screenshots from Google maps (attached) to see 
the difference in width and accessibility to the site from both Victoria Avenue and 
Clydedale Avenue, including annotations to draw your attention to specific issues 
with the access. As a QHSE professional working in the construction industry, we 
look to mitigate the risks to all stakeholders and the environment whilst planning, 
both during the construction phases and for the lifecycle of the built site but the 
change in access looks to increase the risk to all stakeholders and I would like to 

Page 104



INIT 

understand how this decision has been reached and ask you to provide this 
information to residents. 
-Forest Hall and its residents, like so many other areas in North Tyneside are 
being "squeezed" with the cost of living crisis. The general infrastructure, the 
businesses, the transport links, the schools, everything is poorly maintained and 
supported, and we are all feeling the effects. To bring in another 50 or more 
people into this immediate area will put undue stress on every aspect of the 
area.  
-These plans are not what we want, and personally I will be writing to our local 
MP to let him know of my feelings about this. We as residents do not want this 
development, my family does not want this development to happen, and I 
sincerely hope that you break a habit of lifetime as our council and start listening 
to the views of your residents in this matter and think of another way to use the 
aforementioned site. 
-Clydesdale Avenue access would be better as residents can park on their 
drives.  
There is a build-up of cars at the terraced section particularly at peak times. A 
potential increase to the current volume of traffic will cause further delays and 
potentially more congestion for vehicles entering and exiting Station Road.  
-Congestion on the terraced section of Victoria Avenue will also cause serious 
delays or prevention of access for emergency vehicles. 
-I live in Redesdale Close and have to drive down Avondale and through 
Weardale Avenue to get to my house. In term time Benton Dene parents and 
even some of the teachers park for up to 30 mins on Avondale and Weardale 
Avenue the traffic is dangerous and they double park so if an ambulance or fire 
engine needed to get through they wouldn’t be able to. I have complained to the 
school on several times.  
-There are quite a few parents of Benton Dene children who park on the site so 
where are they going to park? You need to sort Benton Dene parking first.  
-Closeness of the gable end of the proposed houses too close to my house. 
-Closeness of eastern block of flats to 11 Albany.  
-On the plans a new fence is shown that blocks my side gate exit this gate has 
been in place for my family to use and the two families before us.  
-My home has subsidence this has happened since the removal of the Fusilier 
pub, shrubs that belonged to Karbon Homes have been removed as this is 
thought to have been the problem but I am obviously very concerned for any 
future building work as I find it difficult to believe it was the shrubs alone that 
have caused the subsidence. 
I would like my home to be independently monitored if/when Karbon homes 
commence their building work for any movement I hope you understand my 
concerns. 
-This application has not addressed the main problem of vehicular access via 
Clydedale Avenue. The Benton Dene and High School traffic on the mornings 
afternoons from both ends is terrible with people ignoring the road restrictions, 
this will cause issue with site traffic and potential residents at pickup/drop off 
times endangering school children. While I have no problem with opening up the 
end of Clydedale Avenue to enable a secondary access to this area, I believe 
that the current access to the site via Victoria Avenue is more sustainable in the 
long run as a main entrance especially for large vehicle access. Current waste 
management services struggle navigating the narrow (Clydedale Avenue) and as 
a result current stone bollards have previously been destroyed in the attempt. 

Page 105



INIT 

Furthermore the entrance into the estate via Station Road is the only entrance 
and exit, in the long run I believe that traffic lights will be needed due to the 
congestion this will inevitably cause, making Victoria Avenue access the better 
choice. 
-The flats numbered 13 - 16 appear very close to the side of our house and are 
not in keeping with the bungalows and housing in this area. 
-This amended application has not addressed the main problem of vehicular 
access through the estate.  
-At a time when government is advocating 'clean air' around schools, these 
proposals, if agreed, would divert traffic towards a school entrance and 
residential area which is already experiencing high volumes of traffic. 
-This development will block the view from the houses at the end of Albany 
Avenue and surrounding residences. It will also significantly limit the light into 
these houses as these are south facing and ruin views across the wildlife area 
which contributes to the value of the homes. 
-Opposite the site of the old pub where the development is proposed is a wildlife 
area popular with families and local residents to sit and enjoy the green break in 
an otherwise heavily developed area. If this area were developed on the next 
wildlife area to sit and enjoy would be Killingworth Lake, (1.7 miles away) or 
Rising Sun reserve (2.2 miles away) both of which are already very busy. 
-Outdoor spaces have always been important but it is since covid and the 
lockdowns that I personally have understood how important local green spaces 
are to support the maintenance of good mental health and relaxation. I fear 
should this development go ahead it will remove a green space currently used by 
many local residents for walking, dog walking, cycling, enjoying the local wildlife 
etc and push them onto further afield green spaces that are already heavily used.  
-Together with the increased parking that will no doubt spill over from the large 
number of properties with at least two cars per property, more with visitors which 
will end up spilling onto nearby streets which are already dense with properties 
and cars. 
-As an architect myself I would also like to comment on the densely packed 
design of terrace effect of the properties which have obviously been crammed on 
the site with little amenity space, which is not in keeping with the houses adjacent 
and in the area generally. A blatant overdevelopment in my opinion. A looser 
design with less properties, more amenity space and more thought to access 
would be more appropriate in my opinion. I hope as Planners all these points will 
be taking into account together with the previous objections from neighbours who 
are also concerned with the density and close proximity to their own properties. 
-The surrounding streets in this location are already heavily congested not just at 
school pick up there is also teacher access, and wraparound care from 7:30am to 
6pm. At the moment this site is used by the parents for school parking as well as 
parking in the surrounding streets this will only push the cars further into Victoria 
Avenue and make the Clydedale access worse than it already is. It is a huge 
safety risk to the small children accessing this primary school. 
-The communication we had received from Karbon Homes which outlined a 
different plan to that which we had received from North Tyneside Council, I wish 
to put in writing our further concerns around the proposed pedestrian and cycle 
route through Allandale Avenue and onto the proposed site. There has never 
been an access route at this point, and I honestly cannot understand why this is 
needed. All I can see is that it would serve as a short cut from the site. The 
original plans proposed a pedestrian access around the site which I believe 

Page 106



INIT 

would be adequate without adding an extra gate at the end of our driveway.  
-The plans included 2 blocks of 4 flats. One of which is proposed immediately to 
the side of our property. You advised that there is a corridor of 1.5 meters 
between our house and the proposed block of flats. We feel that this is far too 
narrow, and we believe this would be a dark and frankly dangerous strip of land 
running alongside our house.  
-I do not believe that the proposed blocks of flats are appropriate. I would have 
thought houses and some bungalows, which would offer much needed 
accommodation for older tenants, would be more appropriate.  
-It seems very unsatisfactory to have vehicular access to the site through 
Avondale Avenue and Clydedale Avenue. Avondale is the only road in and out of 
the whole 'Dales Estate' and as a result can often already be quite busy and 
congested, especially with vehicles always parked on either side of it. Clydedale 
Avenue is a very narrow residential street which can only be accessed from 
Avondale Avenue by two tight 90-degree corners and which itself has another 
tight 90 degree corner along its length. 
-Clydedale Avenue has for very many years, if not always, been a cul-de-sac, 
blocked off to vehicular traffic at the entrance to the pub car park. It was clearly 
never designed for any quantity of through vehicular traffic and is quite unsuitable 
for this purpose. This is especially so given the nature and size of the completed 
development which it appears will inevitably involve quite heavy and regular 
traffic flows at all times of the day. 
-The development will have 8 flats and 12 houses with a total of 44 bedrooms, so 
a large number of adults will be living there with potentially a large number of 
private cars. Indeed, the proposal includes 32 on-site parking spaces for 
residents plus more for visitors so it is obviously envisaged that the number of 
vehicles at least could be regularly going in and out of the development. In 
addition, of course there will be services, maintenance and delivery vehicles, etc. 
These risks will be exacerbated by the fact that there is, and will be, a pedestrian/ 
cyclist public right of way through the site via Clydedale Avenue which is quite 
well used at all times, but particularly in the morning and afternoon by children 
and their parents going to and from the local schools which have an entrance at 
the other end of Clydedale Avenue. There must be serious safety concerns about 
these pedestrians in future having to share the narrow width of Clydedale 
Avenue, and the same entrance to the development, with the vehicular traffic 
which will be generated by it. 
-Vehicular access to this site has always been via Victoria Avenue. That is not to 
say that vehicular access via Victoria Avenue would be any more satisfactory for 
a development of this size. The Fusilier pub generated relatively light vehicle 
traffic as far I understand it but nevertheless still created some traffic 
management and safety concerns for residents of Victoria Avenue. These would 
likely be exacerbated by the increased traffic volumes arising from a 
development of this size. 
-A new 3 metre wide walk/cycleway is proposed through the eastern end of the 
end of the site. This is welcome, if the development does go ahead. However, I 
would question what is proposed for the 10 metre strip of Victoria Avenue which 
leads onto that cycleway at the southeast corner of the site.  As I understand it, 
one principal reason given by Karbon Homers in the past for not using Victoria 
Avenue for its owner coming forward later and stopping use of that strip by 
vehicles. (This ownership problem does seem to be evidenced by the current 
unmaintained state of the surface of that 10 metre strip). If this ownership 

Page 107



INIT 

uncertainty is a real problem, who in the future will ensure the surface of that strip 
of Victoria is adequately maintained for pedestrians and cyclists. Is the Council 
planning to compulsorily acquire it and adopt it?   
-It would not make sense to have a nice new cycleway through the development 
which can only be accessed by a potholed approach road.  
-It appears the eastern gable ends of the houses and one block of flats will only 
be approximately 12 metres from the existing dwellings at 11 Albany Avenue and 
14 Connaught Gardens. The pub was set rather further back than this. I question 
whether this relatively close proximity could impact adversely upon the right to 
light of those two properties and also the privacy of the residents there, with their 
gardens and windows being overlooked by the new development.  
-Would a development of say half a dozen dwelling houses not be financially 
viable for the developer? 
-These homes are very small, and I believe too many homes have been 
squeezed in to such a small site. These is very little green or landscaped space, 
so this development will look like a car park.  
-Local wildlife, such a deer, use Benton Village Green and the fields down to 
Benton Lane, A188. The wildlife will be disturbed by the building work. 
-The Fusilier was always serviced via Victoria Avenue for both customers and 
deliveries, at present the Fusilier land is used as parking facilities for the school, 
this was agreed with the landlord of the pub at the time, when this land is 
developed all of these vehicles will then head into Avondale, Weardale and 
Clydedale, speak with the school regarding the safety issues of the danger to the 
kids. The headmistress e-mails, send letters out asking parents not to use these 
as drop of points but they ignore her and the permit parking, she even spoke 
about setting a road block up with the help of residents at the junction of 
Avondale and Weardale during the times of the permit. I invite you to visit and 
look at the way they drive in and out of the estate with no thought of the danger 
they are putting their own kids and others at risk. It would also have a further 
impact on the junction of Albany and Station Road, this junction services, Albany, 
Avondale, Weardale, Clydedale, Allendale, Teesdale, Wensleydale, Liden Court, 
Cambridge Avenue, along with the Doctors, Nursing Home, Benton View, Amici, 
three hairdressers, Firstvets, Gearbox, Sweet shop Chemist and beauty salon, 
the school plus the additional cars that are using the Fusilier and now the 
additional proposed 20 homes plus additional parking they have allowed for, the 
junction at Victoria Avenue and Station Road only services Victoria Avenue, if 
this was the access road they would have less traffic than they do now with the 
school using the facility, plus Clydedale Avenue is so narrow, houses 1 and 2 
have permit parking for visitors who park on the road, this would make the 
entrance the development very narrow and again for foot traffic, please come and 
witness especially when the high school comes out and the route they take 
walking through Clydedale Avenue, it’s an accident waiting to happen. 
-Things may have been different if parking control had took a stronger stance but 
we never see them but then they turned up twice during lockdown when we had 
no issue as the school was closed, they had come to ticket residents who were 
not shown a permit.  
-What is the impact this will have on the village green? This has over the last few 
years been redeveloped to include a wildlife conservation area - how would this 
be affected by the building of 20 homes? 
-The houses are too close the village green. They appear to be only 3m from the 
boundary. This should be at 6m. 

Page 108



INIT 

  
3.0 External Consultees  
3.1 Northumbrian Water  
3.2 In making our response to the Local Planning Authority (LPA) Northumbrian 
Water assess the impact of the proposed development on our assets and 
assesses the capacity within our network to accommodate and treat the 
anticipated flows arising from the development. We do not offer comment on 
aspects of planning applications that are outside of our area of control.  
 
3.3 It should also be noted that, following the transfer of private drains and 
sewers in 2011, there may be assets that are the responsibility of Northumbrian 
Water that are not yet included on our records. Care should therefore be taken 
prior and during any construction work with consideration to the presence of 
sewers on site. Should you require further information, please visit 
https://nwl.co.uk/services/developers/  
 
3.4 We have no issues to raise with this application, provided it is approved and 
carried out within strict accordance with the submitted document entitled “Flood 
Risk Assessment”. This document reflects our pre-planning enquiry advice 
identifying that foul flows will discharge to the existing public surface water sewer 
at manhole 6402. Surface water flows will discharge to the existing public surface 
water sewer at manhole 5503, at a restricted rate of 2.7l/sec.  
 
3.5 We request that the following approval condition is attached to the planning 
approval, so that the development is implemented in accordance with the above-
named document:  
 
3.6 Condition: Development shall be implemented in line with the drainage 
scheme contained within the submitted document entitled “Flood Risk 
Assessment” dated “January 2022”. The drainage scheme shall ensure that foul 
flows discharge to the combined sewer at manhole 6402 and ensure that surface 
water discharges to the surface water sewer at manhole 5503. The surface water 
discharge rate shall not exceed the available capacity of 2.7l/sec that has been 
identified in this sewer. The final surface water discharge rate shall be agreed by 
the Lead Local Flood Authority.  
Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding from any sources in 
accordance with the NPPF.  
 
3.7 It should be noted that we are not commenting on the quality of the FRA as a 
whole or the developer’s approach to the hierarchy of preference. The council, as 
the LLFA, needs to be satisfied that the hierarchy has been fully explored and 
that the discharge rate and volume is in accordance with their policy. The 
required discharge rate and volume may be lower than the Northumbrian Water 
figures in response to the National and Local Flood Policy requirements and 
standards. Our comments simply reflect the ability of our network to accept flows 
if sewer connection is the only option. They are not part of any approval process 
for determining whether the proposed drainage layouts/design put forward at the 
planning stage satisfies the adoption criteria as set out in the Code for Sewer 
Adoption (sewer sector guidance). It is important for developers to understand 
that discussions need to take place with Northumbrian Water prior to seeking 
planning permission where it is their intention to offer SUDS for future adoption.  

Page 109



INIT 

 
3.8 Newcastle International Airport Limited (NIAL) 
3.9 The Airport welcomes the production of a Bird Strike Risk Assessment. The 
applicant has argued that due to the scale of the proposed landscaping, the 
location of the site and the percentage cover of native hedging, the species mix is 
considered appropriate and would not detriment the safe operation of the Airport. 
On balance, after considering this argument, the Airport is satisfied that the 
proposal would not lead to an inappropriate rise in bird activity which would 
potentially harm the safe operation of the Airport. The Airport wishes to remove 
its original holding objection. 
  
3.10 Northumbria Police  
3.11 We have noted the new layout and boundary treatments. As with our 
comments dated 14th March 2022, we still have concerns regarding the footpath 
located adjacent to Plot No’s 13, 14.15 and 16. I would ask this footpath is 
reconsidered and removed as there is already pedestrian access from Clydedale 
Avenue and Victoria Avenue. 
  
3.12 As per pervious comments, we would recommend lighting levels conform to 
British Standard for street lighting BS5489-1:2020 which is the industry standard 
for road and public amenity lighting. 
 
3.13 Northumberland Wildlife Trust  
3.14 The Trust has no objection to the application as long as the following details 
are confirmed and agreed under relevant planning conditions or ideally a 
Landscape and Ecology Management Plan (LEMP). 
 
3.15 The following habitats have been listed as being lost under the current plans 
– semi-improved neutral grassland, species-poor defunct hedgerow, scattered 
and dense scrub, and immature broadleaved trees forming part of a local wildlife 
corridor. Further impacts include disturbance to foraging and/or commuting bats, 
potential disturbance to breeding birds using hedgerows and small mammals that 
may be using the site. 
 
3.16 Plans include the creation and or enhancement with native species-rich 
hedges along sections of the boundaries as mitigation for the listed impacts. 
There is mention of hedgerows with standard trees but this does not appear to be 
indicated on the plan or planting list. The final landscape plans should therefore 
indicate species mixes and hedgerow trees at intervals along the hedgerows, 
using locally native species.  
 
3.17 In addition, there are a number of ‘urban trees’ throughout the development. 
The Trust recommends that more locally native tree species are planted within 
the site rather than the ornamental varieties noted in the planting list, which will 
increase the overall value for biodiversity, as 58% of the net gain contribution is 
through the planting of ‘urban trees’. The hedgerows and trees to be retained or 
removed should be clarified in the LEMP, alongside replacement habitat and 
species lists. Timings of vegetation removal or disturbance also need to avoid 
bird-breeding season. 
 

Page 110



INIT 

3.18 The Trust welcomes the proposals for wildflower areas; however, the Soft 
Landscape Specification does not provide details of appropriate soil use for the 
establishment of these areas or the future management to maintain these areas. 
 
3.19 Details of the above points need to be clarified and then agreed by the 
Council Biodiversity Officer, through appropriate conditions, to ensure adequate 
mitigation and future management for nature conservation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank



INIT 

 
 
 
Item No: 2   
Application 
No: 

21/01569/FUL Author: Maxine Ingram 

Date valid: 23 July 2021 : 0191 643 6322 
Target 
decision date: 

17 September 2021 Ward: Weetslade 

 
Application type: full planning application 
 
Location: Land At Former School House, Sandy Lane, North Gosforth, 
NEWCASTLE UPON TYNE 
 
Proposal: Erection of 4no detached dwellings.  (Resubmission) (Additional 
information: landscape plan, tree report, biodiversity net gain assessment, 
received and uploaded 10.01.2022)  
 
Applicant: C/O George F White 
 
 
Agent: George F White 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Minded to grant  legal agreement req. 
 
INFORMATION 
 
1.0  Summary Of Key Issues & Conclusions 
 
1.0 The main issues for Members to consider are:  
-The principle of the development, 
-The impact on character and appearance including the conservation area, the 
setting of the listed building and the Green Belt, 
-The impact upon residential amenity, 
-The impact on the highway, 
-The impact on biodiversity; and  
-Other issues.  
 
1.1 Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be 
determined in accordance with the development plan, unless material planning 
considerations indicate otherwise. Members need to consider whether this 
application accords with the development plan and also take into account any 
material considerations in reaching their decision.  
 
2.0 Description of the Site 
2.1 The site to which this application relates is a vacant parcel of land measuring 
approximately 0.18 hectares (ha). It is located at the junction of B1318 and 
Sandy Lane. To the north the site is bound by Sandy Lane. To the west the site is 
bound by the B1318. Within the site there are several trees, these are protected 

Page 113

Agenda Item 7



INIT 

by the Sandy Lane West Tree Preservation Order (TPO) 2007. Immediately 
beyond the southern and eastern boundaries of the site is an area of designated 
Green Belt. This encompasses a large, wooded area, the trees located within this 
area are also protected by the Sandy Lane West TPO. Further to the south of the 
site are the Church of the Sacred Heart (Grade II Listed Building), Church Hall 
and Presbytery. Beyond the highways to the north and west of the site are 
residential properties.  
 
2.2 The application site is located within the Sacred Heart Conservation Area.  
 
3.0 History of the Site 
3.1 The site has a detailed and complicated history which is set out in greater 
detail in Section 4 of this report. The site was formerly occupied by a Victorian 
building, known as the Old School House. The former buildings on the site were 
damaged by fire, resulting in the demolition of the buildings several years ago. 
Since the demolition of these buildings the site has remained vacant and 
undeveloped. Members are advised that the history of events leading to the 
demolition of the former buildings is not a material planning consideration in the 
determination of this application nor is it a reason to refuse any form of 
development on this site.  
 
3.2 It is noted that there have also been several enforcement cases relating to 
this site. Members are advised that the enforcement cases are not a material 
planning consideration in the determination of this application, which must be 
assessed on its own merits.  
 
3.3 The last appeal decision related to the construction of 8no. managed 
residential letting properties (Planning Ref: 17/01543/FUL). This appeal was 
dismissed. The Planning Inspector found the appeal scheme, in combination of 
scale, mass and form, a dense development in close proximity to the 
undeveloped woodland that would consequently result in a harmful effect on the 
character and appearance of the area and the Conservation Area. The Planning 
Inspector considered that the proposed development would cause less than 
substantial harm to the significance of the Conservation Area as a whole and 
whilst there may be some public benefit that did not overcome the harm they 
identified.  
 
3.4 The Planning Inspector considered that appropriately worded conditions 
could deal with the drainage works without having an unacceptable detrimental 
impact on the protected trees. They also considered that an appropriately worded 
condition could secure a lighting scheme that would not have an unacceptable 
impact on the woodland. They concluded that the development would not have 
an unacceptable impact on biodiversity.  
 
3.5 The Planning Inspector did not find that the additional activity generated by 
the appeal scheme would be sufficient to have a notable detrimental impact on 
the living conditions of the occupiers on the nearby Sandy Lane and the busy 
B1318 road.  
 
4.0 Description of the Proposed Development 

Page 114



INIT 

4.1 Planning permission is sought for the construction of four detached 
residential dwellings.  
 
4.2 The north building line of the proposed dwellings is staggered. The units, 
excluding the recessed part of the proposal, will be sited between 7m and 11m 
from the northern boundary (approximately). The unit closest to the B1318 will be 
sited between 1m and 3m from the western boundary (approximately). Each 
dwelling will accommodate a pitched roof which is split to vary the height. The 
height varies between 9.6m and 7.5m (approximately). The eaves will be 
approximately 5.6m.  
 
4.3 The ground floor will accommodate an integral garage, kitchen/dining room, 
living room, dining room, study and utility. The first floor will accommodate four 
bedrooms two with en-suite and a bathroom. First-floor balconies are proposed to 
the front and rear of the dwellings.  
 
4.3 To the front of the integral garage is a driveway which can accommodate two 
vehicles. Gardens are located to the front and rear of the dwellings.  
 
5.0 Relevant Planning History 
5.1 The planning history confirms that all applications received relating to tree 
works were returned.  
 
21/01774/FUL - Erection of gym with associated parking (Re-submission) - 
(Additional information: landscape plan, tree report, biodiversity net gain 
assessment, received and uploaded 25.02.2022, additional information: AIA, TPP 
received 12.01.2023) – Permitted 15.03.2023 
 
20/01261/FUL - Erection of a Gym / Nursery Building (Additional information 
submitted February (various reports) and April 2021 (sequential assessment)) - 
Withdrawn 10.05.2021 
 
20/01260/FUL - Erection of 4no detached dwellings (Additional information 
submitted) – Withdrawn 15.03.2021 
 
17/01543/FUL - Development of 8no. managed residential letting properties, 
including construction of new site access and parking area and removal of one 
protected tree (Amended plans/documents received 22.05.2018) – Refused 
08.08.2018. Dismissed at appeal 30.04.2019.  
 
09/03313/FUL - Demolition of existing structure and erection of a single detached 
dwelling house incorporating parking, guest house and landscaping/maintenance 
plan. Two options for design of guest accommodation (Amended proposal and 
additional option (2)) – Withdrawn 17.01.2013 
 
09/03314/CON - Demolition of existing structure and erection of a single 
detached dwelling house incorporating parking, guest house and 
landscaping/maintenance plan. Two options for design of guest accommodation 
(Amended proposal and additional option (2)) – Withdrawn 17.01.2013 
 

Page 115



INIT 

09/02158/FUL - Demolition of existing derelict building and construction of 
residential dwelling and detached garage – Refused 16.10.2009. 
Allowed at appeal.  
 
09/02159/CON - Demolition of existing derelict building and construction of 
residential dwelling and detached garage – Refused 16.10.2009. 
Allowed at appeal.  
 
08/03479/FUL - Demolition of existing building and construction of residential 
dwelling and detached garage – Withdrawn 26.01.2009 
 
08/03480/CON – Demolition of existing building - Withdrawn 26.01.2009 
 
07/00902/CON – Demolition of dangerous structure – Refused 11.05.2007 
 
06/03017/OUT – Proposed 2 storey residential care home providing 42 private 
bedrooms and associated accommodation – Refused 13.12.2006 
 
6.0 Development Plan 
6.1 North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) 
 
7.0 Government Policies 
7.1 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (July 2021) 
 
7.2 National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) (As amended) 
 
7.3 Planning applications must be determined in accordance with the 
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The NPPF 
is a material consideration in the determination of all applications. It requires 
Local Planning Authorities (LPAs) to apply a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development in determining development proposals. Due weight should still be 
attached to Development Plan policies according to the degree to which any 
policy is consistent with the NPPF. 
 
 
 
PLANNING OFFICERS REPORT 
 
8.0 Main Issues  
8.1 The main issues in this case are: 
-Principle of the development, 
-The impact on the character and appearance including the conservation area, 
the setting of the listed building and the Green Belt, 
-Impact upon residential amenity,  
-Impact on highway safety, 
-Impact on biodiversity; and, 
-Other issues.  
  
8.2 Consultation responses and representations received as a result of the 
publicity given to this application are set out in the appendix of this report.  
 

Page 116



INIT 

9.0 Principle of the development 
9.1 Paragraph 7 of NPPF states that the purpose of the planning system is to 
contribute to the achievement of sustainable development.  
 
9.2 Paragraph 8 of NPPF states that a social objective is one of the three 
overarching objectives of the planning system and that amongst other matters it 
should seek to support a sufficient number and range of homes to meet present 
and future needs which support communities’ health, social and cultural well-
being. 
 
9.3 Paragraph 11 of NPPF introduces a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development, which amongst other matters states that decision takers should 
approve development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan 
without delay; or where there are no relevant development plan policies or the 
policies which are most important are out-of-date grant planning permission, 
unless any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies in the Framework 
taken as a whole. In this case, development plan policies important to the 
determination of housing applications will be regarded as out of date because the 
Local Planning Authority (LPA) cannot currently demonstrate a five-year supply 
of deliverable housing sites. What is referred to as the ‘tilted balance’ principle 
means there is a presumption towards planning permission being granted unless 
there are adverse impacts which would significantly and demonstrably outweigh 
the benefits.  
 
9.4 Paragraph 60 of NPPF states that to support the Government’s objective to 
significantly boost the supply of homes, it is important that sufficient amount and 
variety of land can come forwards where it is needed, that the needs of groups 
with specific housing requirements are addressed and that land with permission 
is developed without unnecessary delay. 
 
9.5 The purpose of the planning system is to contribute to the achievement of 
sustainable development. This purpose is key to the role of the planning system 
in the development process. The aims of how the Local Plan contributes towards 
achieving sustainable development for North Tyneside are set out under Policy 
S1.1 ‘Spatial Strategy for Sustainable Development’. This policy sets out the 
broad spatial strategy for the delivery of the objectives of the Plan.  
 
9.6 Strategic Policy S1.4 ‘General Development Principles’ states that proposals 
for development will be considered favourably where it can be demonstrated that 
they would accord with strategic, development management and other area 
specific policies in the Plan. Amongst other matters, this includes considering 
flood risk, impact on amenity, impact on existing infrastructure and making the 
most effective and efficient use of land.  
 
9.7 The overarching spatial strategy for housing is to protect and promote 
cohesive, mixed and thriving communities, offering the right kind of homes in the 
right locations. The scale of housing provision and its distribution is designed to 
meet the needs of the existing community and to support economic growth of 
North Tyneside. Strategic Policy S4.1 ‘Strategic Housing’ sets out the broad 
strategy for delivering housing.  

Page 117



INIT 

 
9.8 LP Policy S4.3 ‘Distribution of Housing Development Sites’ states: “The sites 
allocated for housing development are identified on the Policies Map of the North 
Tyneside Local Plan 2017, including those identified for both housing and mixed-
use schemes. The Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment 2016 outlines 
that these sites have an overall capacity of approximately 8, 838 homes, 
assessed as being deliverable and developable over the plan period to 2032.” 
 
9.9 LP Policy DM1.3 ‘Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development’ states: 
“The Council will work pro-actively with applicants to jointly find solutions that 
mean proposals can be approved wherever possible that improve the economic, 
social and environmental conditions in the area….” 
 
9.10 LP Policy DM4.5 ‘Criteria for New Housing Development’ states that 
proposals for residential development on sites not identified on the Policies Map 
will be considered positively where they can: 
a. Make a positive contribution to the identified housing needs of the Borough; 
and, 
b. Create a, or contribute to an existing, sustainable residential community; and 
c. Be accessible to a range of sustainable transport modes; and 
d. Make the best and most efficient use of available land, whilst incorporating 
appropriate green infrastructure provision within development; and 
e. Be accommodated by, and make best use of, existing infrastructure, and 
where further infrastructure requirements arise, make appropriate contribution to 
its provision; and 
f. Make a positive contribution towards creating healthy, safe, attractive and 
diverse communities; and, 
g. Demonstrate that they accord with the policies within this Local Plan. 
 
9.11 Several objections have been received regarding the development of this 
land. These objections are noted.  
 
9.12 The site is not designated for housing; however, the surrounding area is 
predominantly residential. Furthermore, the former use of the site was residential. 
The proposed development would be on previously developed land within a built-
up area. It is the view of the case officer that the principle of residential 
development on this site is acceptable. 
 
9.13 Members need to determine whether the principle of the proposed 
development, in terms of bringing a vacant, brownfield site forward for residential 
use and whether it meets the requirements of the NPPF and LP Policies S1.4 
and DM4.5. It is the view of officers that the principle of bringing a vacant, 
brownfield site forward for a residential development is acceptable, subject to all 
other material considerations set out below being addressed.  
 
10.0 North Tyneside Council Housing Land Supply 
10.1 Paragraph 74 of National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) requires local 
planning authorities to identify and maintain a rolling five-year supply of 
deliverable housing land.  This includes an additional buffer of at least 5%, in 
order to ensure choice and competition in the market for housing land. 
 

Page 118



INIT 

10.2 The most up to date assessment of housing land supply informed by the 
five-year housing land summary included within the Housing Land Availability 
Assessment, November 2022. It identifies the total potential 5-year housing land 
supply in the borough at 4,008 additional dwellings, a total which includes 
delivery from sites yet to gain planning permission. This represents a shortfall 
against the Local Plan requirement or approximately a three-year supply of 
housing land. It is important to note that this assessment of five-year land supply 
includes over 1,000 homes at proposed housing allocations within the Local Plan 
(2017). The proposed dwellings would make a contribution towards the borough 
achieving a five-year housing land supply. 
 
10.3 The proposed development would assist in supporting the council’s 
objective of meeting the objectively assessed housing need and ensure a mix of 
housing for both existing and new residents in the borough. This is therefore in 
accordance with LP policies S4.1 and S4.2(a) ‘Housing Figures’.  
 
11.0 Impact on character and appearance, including the conservation area, the 
setting of the listed building and the Green Belt 
11.1 Under Sections 66(1)) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation 
Areas) Act 1990 states that when considering granting planning permission which 
affects a listed building, or its setting, the LPA shall have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving the building or its setting, or any feature of special 
architectural or historic interest which it possesses. Section 72(1) of the same Act 
contains similar requirements with respect to buildings or land in a conservation 
area. 
 
11.2 Paragraph 195 of the NPPF requires LPA’s to identify and assess the 
particular significance of any heritage asset that may be affected by a proposal 
(including by development affecting the setting of a heritage asset) taking 
account of the available evidence and any necessary expertise. LPA’s should 
take this into account when considering the impact of a proposal on a heritage 
asset, to avoid or minimise any conflict between the heritage asset’s 
conservation and any aspect of the proposal.  
 
11.3 Paragraph 196 of the NPPF states “Where there is evidence of deliberate 
neglect of, or damage to, a heritage asset, the deteriorated state of the heritage 
asset should not be taken into account in any decision.” 
 
11.4 Paragraph 197 of the NPPF requires LPA’s to determine applications taking 
account of the following:  
-the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets 
and putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation;  
-the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to 
sustainable communities including their economic vitality; and 
-the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local 
character and distinctiveness.  
 
11.5 In respect of designated heritage assets, the NPPF states that when 
determining the impact on the significance of a heritage asset, great weight 
should be given to the asset’s conservation.  The more important the asset, the 
greater the weight should be.  This is irrespective of whether any potential harm 

Page 119



INIT 

amounts to substantial harm total loss, or less than substantial harm to its 
significance (para 199). Potential impacts on heritage assets are further 
considered in paragraphs 200-202 of the NPPF.  
 
11.6 Paragraph 206 of the NPPF encourages LPA’s to look for opportunities for 
new development within conservation areas or the setting of heritage assets to 
enhance or better reveal their significance. Proposals that preserve those 
elements of the setting that make a positive contribution to or better reveal the 
significance of the asset should be treated favourably.  
 
11.7 Members are advised that the application site is not located within 
designated Green Belt; it borders the designated Green Belt to the east and 
south. The main purpose of the Green Belt is to check the spread of the built-up 
area by keeping land permanently open, preventing urban sprawl and merging 
settlements. In conformity with the NPPF, Policy DM1.6 ‘Positive uses within the 
Green Belt’ the Council will regard the construction of new buildings in the Green 
Belt as inappropriate.  
 
11.8 LP Policy S6.5 ‘Heritage Assets’ seeks to pro-actively preserve, promote 
and enhance its heritage assets.  
 
11.9 LP Policy DM6.6 ‘Protection, Preservation and Enhancement of Heritage 
Assets’ states: 
“Proposals that affect heritage assets or their settings will be permitted where 
they sustain, conserve and, where appropriate, enhance the significance, 
appearance, character and setting of heritage assets in an appropriate manner. 
As appropriate, development will: 
a. Conserve built fabric and architectural detailing that contributes to the heritage 
asset’s significance and character; 
b. Repair damaged features or reinstate missing features and architectural 
detailing that contribute to the heritage asset’s significance; 
c. Conserve and enhance the spaces between and around buildings including 
gardens, boundaries, driveways and footpaths; 
d. Remove additions or modifications that are considered harmful to the 
significance of the heritage asset; 
e. Ensure that additions to heritage assets and within its setting do not harm the 
significance of the heritage asset; 
f. Demonstrate how heritage assets at risk (national or local) will be brought into 
repair and, where vacant, re-use, and include phasing information to ensure that 
works are commenced in a timely manner to ensure there is a halt to the decline; 
g. Be prepared in line with the information set out in the relevant piece(s) of 
evidence and guidance prepared by North Tyneside Council; 
h. Be accompanied by a heritage statement that informs proposals through 
understanding the asset, fully assessing the proposed affects of the development 
and influencing proposals accordingly. 
 
Any development proposal that would detrimentally impact upon a heritage asset 
will be refused permission, unless it is necessary for it to achieve wider public 
benefits that outweigh the harm or loss to the historic environment, and cannot 
be met in any other way. 
 

Page 120



INIT 

Heritage assets that are to be affected by development will require recording 
(including archaeological recording where relevant) before development 
commences. 
 
Any heritage reports prepared as part of a development scheme will be submitted 
for inclusion on the Tyne and Wear Historic Environment Record (HER) and 
published where considered appropriate.” 
 
11.10 Paragraph 126 of the NPPF recognises that the creation of high-quality 
buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and development 
process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable 
development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make 
development acceptable to communities.  
 
11.11 Paragraph 130 of the NPFF states “Decisions should ensure that 
developments: will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just 
for the short term but over the lifetime of the development; are visually attractive 
as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and effective 
landscaping; are sympathetic to local character and history, including the 
surrounding built environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or 
discouraging appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities); 
establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, 
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and 
distinctive places to live, work and visit; optimise the potential of the to 
accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount and mix of development 
(including green and other public space) and support local facilities and transport 
networks; and create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which 
promote health and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and 
future users; and where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not 
undermine the quality of life or community cohesion and resilience.” 
 
11.12 Paragraph 92 of the NPPF, amongst other matters, seeks to promote 
health and safe communities.  
 
11.13 Paragraph 134 of the NPPF makes it clear that development that is not 
well-designed, especially where it fails to reflect local design policies and 
government guidance on design should be refused. Significant weight should be 
given to development which reflects local design policies etc. and development 
which promote high levels of sustainability or help raise the standard of design 
more generally in an area, so long as they fit in with the overall form and layout of 
the surroundings.  
 
11.14 LP Policy DM6.1 ‘Design of Development’ states: “Applications will only be 
permitted where they demonstrate high and consistent design standards. 
Designs should be specific to the place, based on a clear analysis of the 
characteristics of the site, its wider context and the surrounding area. Proposals 
are expected to demonstrate: 
a. A design responsive to landscape features, topography, wildlife habitats, site 
orientation and existing buildings, incorporating where appropriate the provision 
of public art; 
b. A positive relationship to neighbouring buildings and spaces; 

Page 121



INIT 

c. A safe environment that reduces opportunities for crime and antisocial 
behaviour; 
d. A coherent, legible and appropriately managed public realm that encourages 
accessibility by walking, cycling and public transport; 
e. Sufficient car parking that is well integrated into the layout; and, 
f. A good standard of amenity for existing and future residents and users of 
buildings and spaces.” 
 
11.15 LP Policy DM7.9 ‘New Development and Waste’ states “All developments 
are expected to: 
a. Provide sustainable waste management during construction and use. 
b. Ensure a suitable location for the storage and collection of waste. 
c. Consider the use of innovative communal waste facilities where practicable.” 
 
11.16 LP DM5.9 ‘Trees, Woodland and Hedgerows’ supports the protection and 
management of existing woodland trees, hedgerow and landscape features. It 
seeks to secure new tree planting and landscaping scheme for new 
development, and where appropriate, promote and encourage new woodland, 
tree and hedgerow planting schemes and encouraging native species of local 
provenance. 
 
11.17 The Council has produced an SPD on design quality. It states that the 
Council will encourage innovation in design and layout, provided that the existing 
quality and character of the immediate and wider environment are respected and 
enhanced, and local distinctiveness is generated. It also states that all new 
buildings should be proportioned to have a well-balanced and attractive external 
appearance.  
 
11.18 The Sacred Heart Church Conservation Area Character Appraisal was 
adopted in January 2009. It acknowledges that most of the conservation area 
forms part of the Green Belt and therefore consideration must be given to how it 
looks when viewed from its environs, including the adjoining areas of Green Belt. 
Specific reference is made about the application site in this document stating, 
“Whilst it is acknowledged that the derelict site cannot remain in its current state, 
any proposed development will be subject to intense scrutiny and extremely 
careful consideration to ensure that it is deemed suitable for this sensitive site 
and be able to preserve or enhance the character and appearance of the 
conservation area”.  
 
11.19 The objections received regarding the impact on the conservation area, 
affecting the setting of a listed building, inappropriate design, inappropriate 
materials, out of keeping with surroundings and amount of development 
proposed are noted. This site is not designated as a Site of Special Scientific 
Interest (SSSI), and it is not located in the Green Belt; it borders the Green Belt 
to the east and south.  
 
11.20 The Northumberland and Newcastle Society considers the design of the 
application to be modern incorporating steep pitched roofs. They do not consider 
that the chosen design approach and layout addresses the challenges of this site 
set out in Council documents. They consider that it ignores the importance of the 
corner site and the elevation to the B1318 road. They consider the design of the 

Page 122



INIT 

houses to be repetitive and perhaps too many to achieve an appropriate 
treatment of the site. They consider an individual house at the corner would be 
more likely to address the issue of this corner site.  
 
11.21 The objector’s comments regarding the footprint of the development being 
greater than the buildings that previously occupied the site is noted. Members are 
advised that this application must be assessed on its own merits and consider 
whether, in their opinion, the site can accommodate the development proposed 
and consider whether the design of the proposed housing is appropriate in this 
part of the Conservation Area.  
 
11.22 The application site is located within the Sacred Heart Church 
Conservation Area occupying a corner position. The conservation area has an 
undeveloped character, its only buildings being the Grade II listed Sacred Heart 
RC Church, Parish Hall and Presbytery. The wider Conservation Area is largely 
covered in mature woodland and is also designated as Green Belt. It is bound to 
the north by Sandy Lane and to the west by the B1318. The residential properties 
located to the north of the site vary in terms of design.  
 
11.23 Members are advised that this application is a re-submission of a similar 
proposal for four detached dwellings (Ref: 20/01260/FUL). The applicant was 
advised that the design failed to recognise its surrounding built context and the 
proposed materials were also considered to be unsuitable. This application was 
withdrawn.  
 
11.24 This application is for the construction of four detached dwellings, designed 
with a contemporary architectural approach.  
 
11.25 Heritage and Design comments have been sought. These comments are 
clear that the officer considers this revised application overcomes the reasons for 
their previous objections. They consider the contemporary architectural design 
maintains a relationship to its surroundings through the scale, form and use of 
materials. As already discussed, there is a mixture of building forms and styles 
around the site, and they are all unified by pitch roofs which create a visual link 
between buildings. The proposed application continues the visual link.  
 
11.26 The dwellings would accommodate pitched roofs of varying scales. By 
varying the roofscape and providing breaks between the footprints of the plots, 
views of the woodland to the rear would be afforded.  
 
11.27 The Heritage and Design comments are clear that the success of the 
proposal will rely on the quality of materials used and architectural details 
employed. A range of materials are proposed including red multi-brickwork, 
render and timber alongside clay roof tiles. This reflects the materials on the 
surrounding buildings or where contemporary materials are used, they reflect the 
colours and tones of existing materials in the local area. Conditions are 
recommended to ensure sample details of materials are secured.  
 
11.28 The dwellings will be sited away from the boundaries of the site. The 
proposed dwellings would front onto Sandy Lane creating an outward facing 
development and improving natural surveillance. The property sited closest to the 

Page 123



INIT 

B1318 would be the most visually prominent. The lightwell serving this property is 
sited on its west elevation which assists in reducing the mass and breaking up 
the front print of this property. The windows proposed at ground floor and first 
floor further break up this elevation. It is considered that the design approach for 
this property responds positively to its corner location.  
 
11.29 Each dwelling will have its own driveway to the front of an integral garage 
and front and rear gardens with sufficient space to accommodate refuse storage. 
Alterations to the existing stone wall along the northern boundary will be required 
to provide vehicular and pedestrian access to the dwellings. A condition is 
recommended to secure details of boundary treatments.  
 
11.30 Due to the separation distance that will exist between the proposed 
development and the listed building, including the intervening woodland, it is not 
considered that the setting of the listed building would be significantly affected. 
No alterations are proposed to the existing stone wall on the western boundary.  
 
11.31 As already discussed, the site lies adjacent to the Green Belt. Given that 
the site is well screened to the east and south by the existing woodland, it is the 
view of the case officer that the proposed development would not impact on the 
openness of the Green Belt.  
 
11.32 Members need to determine whether the impact of the development is 
acceptable in terms of its impact on the character and appearance of the 
conservation area, it is acceptable in terms of its design, scale and mass and its 
impact on the Green Belt. It is officer advice that it is acceptable.  
 
12.0 Impact upon residential amenity  
12.1 Paragraph 185 of the NPPF states that planning decisions should ensure 
that new development is appropriate for its location considering the likely effects 
(including cumulative effects) of pollution on health, living conditions and the 
natural environment, as well as the potential sensitivity of the site or the wider 
area to impacts that could arise from the development. In doing so, they should 
amongst other matters; mitigate and reduce to a minimum potential adverse 
impact resulting from new development – and avoid noise giving rise to 
significant adverse impacts on health and quality of life.  
 
12.2 LP Policy S1.4 ‘General Development Principles’ of the Local Plan states 
that development proposals should be acceptable in terms of their impact upon 
local amenity for new or existing residents and businesses, adjoining premises 
and land uses. 
 
12.3 LP Policy DM5.19 ‘Pollution’ states, amongst other matters, development 
that may cause pollution will be required to incorporate measures to prevent or 
reduce pollution so as not to cause unacceptable impacts to the environment, to 
people and to biodiversity. Potentially polluting development will not be sited near 
to sensitive areas unless satisfactory mitigation measures can be demonstrated.  
 
12.4 LP Policy DM6.1 ‘Design of Development’ of the Local Plan states that 
proposals are expected to demonstrate a positive relationship to neighbouring 
buildings and spaces; a safe environment that reduces opportunities for crime 

Page 124



INIT 

and antisocial behaviour; and a good standard of amenity for existing and future 
residents and users of buildings and spaces.  
 
12.5 LP Policy DM4.6 ‘Range of Housing Types and Sizes’ seeks to ensure that 
new residential development provides a mix of homes to meet current and future 
demand, and to create sustainable communities.  
 
12.6 LP Policy DM4.9 ‘Housing Standards’ states that the Council will require that 
new homes provide quality living environments for residents both now and in the 
future. All new homes, both market and affordable, are to meet the Government’s 
Nationally Described Space Standards (NDSS).  
  
12.7 The objections received regarding the impact on residential amenity are 
noted.  
 
12.8 The proposed development would be constructed on previously developed 
land. It is sited on a corner plot close to the junction of Sandy Lane and the 
B1318. The site is enclosed by a stonewall to its north and west boundaries with 
an access/egress from Sandy Lane. Immediately to the north of the site are two 
existing residential dwellings, No. 1 The Villas and Roscobie, which directly 
overlook the site. The remaining properties on Sandy Lane do not afford direct 
views of the application site. Immediately to the west of the, beyond the B1318, 
are existing residential dwellings Avonside, Stella Maris, Cherholme, Singapura 
that afford direct view of the application site.  
 
12.9 The proposed development would be set back from the north and west 
boundaries of the application site. A separation distance of over 20m would exist 
between the proposed dwellings and the existing residential dwellings located to 
the north and west of the site. The properties located to the west of the site would 
mainly afford views of the property proposed closest to the B1318. The pitched 
roof over this part of the proposed development would pull away from the 
western boundary which would assist in reducing its scale and mass when 
viewed from the west. It is the view of officers that the proposed dwellings, by 
virtue of their siting, would not significantly affect the outlook from the residential 
dwellings located to the north and west of the site or the amount of light entering 
them.  
 
12.10 Windows are proposed to the west elevation of the property sited closest to 
the B1318. Due to the separation distance that would exist between this dwelling 
and the existing dwellings to the west of the site, it is not considered that it would 
significantly affect their privacy.  
 
12.11 The proposed dwellings would afford views to the existing dwellings 
located to the north of the site. Views from the ground floor window towards the 
existing dwellings would be partially screened by the boundary treatment. The 
first-floor windows would serve bedrooms and a gallery/landing area. It is noted 
that a balcony is proposed to the front of one of the bedrooms. Due to the 
separation distance that would exist it is not considered that the first floor 
windows and balcony would significantly affect the privacy of the existing 
dwellings to such an extent that would sustain a recommendation of refusal.  
 

Page 125



INIT 

12.12 A first-floor balcony is proposed to the rear of the dwellings. Due to the 
positioning of these balconies, it is not considered that the privacy of future 
occupants would be significantly affected to such an extent that would sustain a 
recommendation of refusal.  
 
12.13 It is clear from the site layout that each dwelling will have its own private 
amenity space, parking and sufficient space to accommodate refuse storage. It is 
considered that the proposed layout would provide future occupants with an 
appropriate level of residential amenity. A compliance condition is recommended 
to ensure the properties comply with Policy DM4.9.  
 
12.14 The Manager for Environmental Health has been consulted. She has 
raised concerns regarding road traffic noise from the B1318 affecting the 
proposed development.  
 
12.15 No noise assessment has been provided to outline the impact of road 
traffic noise affecting the site to determine the sound attenuation measures 
necessary to protect the proposed dwellings. She has also raised concerns 
regarding the limited screening being provided by the existing wall. Her 
comments regarding the increase in height of the existing wall is not acceptable 
and alternative provision within the site will need to be considered. She has 
recommended a condition requiring a noise assessment to be submitted to 
determining necessary sound mitigation measures to ensure good standards of 
internal noise and external gardens meet noise levels for outside spaces.  
 
12.16 The Manager for Environmental Health has recommended further 
conditions to control the hours of construction and dust suppression measures 
during construction.  
 
12.17 The NPPF, paragraph 55 states “Local Planning Authorities should 
consider whether otherwise unacceptable development could be made 
acceptable through the use of conditions or planning obligations.” Paragraph 56 
states “Planning conditions should be kept to a minimum and only imposed 
where they are necessary, relevant to planning and to the development to be 
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects.” The NPPF 
paragraph 185 aims to "avoid noise from giving rise to significant adverse 
impacts on health and quality of life". The Manager of Environmental Health has 
clearly set out in her comments that she considers conditions can be imposed to 
secure appropriate mitigation for future occupants.  
 
12.18 Members need to consider whether the proposed development, including 
having regard to the advice from the Manager of Environmental Health, would 
result in an acceptable impact on the residential amenity of existing residents 
living conditions and future occupants living conditions in accordance with NPPF 
and LP Policies DM6.1 and DM5.19 and weight this in their decision. Officer 
advice is that subject to imposing the suggested conditions, the impact on the 
amenity of existing and future occupants is acceptable.   
 
13.0 Highways 
13.1 The NPPF paragraph 111 makes it clear that development should only be 
prevented or refused on highway grounds if there would be an unacceptable 

Page 126



INIT 

impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network 
would be severe.  
 
13.2 The NPPF paragraph 112 states, amongst other matters, that applications 
for development should give priority first to pedestrian and cycle movements both 
within the scheme and with neighbouring areas and address the needs of people 
with disabilities and reduced mobility in relation to all modes of transport.  
 
13.3 The NPPF paragraph 113 sets out guidance on sustainability and 
connectivity.  
 
13.4 LP Policy S7.3 states that the Council, will support its partners, who seek to 
provide a comprehensive, integrated, safe, accessible and efficient public 
transport network, capable of supporting development proposals and future 
levels of growth.   
 
13.5 LP Policy DM7.4 ‘New Development and Transport’ makes it clear that the 
Council will ensure that the transport requirements of new development, 
commensurate to the scale and type of development, are considered and seek to 
promote sustainable travel to minimise environmental impacts and support 
resident’s health and well-being.  
 
13.6 The Council’s maximum parking standards are set out in the Transport and 
Highways SPD (2022).  
 
13.7 The objections received regarding the impact on the highway network, lack 
of parking provision, poor traffic and pedestrian safety and poor and unsuitable 
vehicular are noted.  
 
13.8 Individual vehicular access to each dwelling would be provided from Sandy 
Lane. The existing stone wall along the northern boundary would need to be 
altered to accommodate the access/egress points. Each dwelling would have an 
integral garage with a driveway to front. A total of three parking bays, including 
the garage, would be accommodated within each plot.  
 
13.9 The Highways Network Manager has been consulted. He has confirmed that 
parking would be provided in accordance with current standards for each 
dwelling. No visitor parking is proposed but he considers there is ample capacity 
on Sandy Lane which is not a through route and is wide enough to accommodate 
the small number of parked vehicles likely associated with visitors to the 
proposed dwellings. The site is also within walking distance of local bus services. 
On this basis, he has recommended conditional approval.  
 
13.19 A further condition is recommended to secure appropriate refuse storage.  
 
13.20 Members need to consider whether the proposed development is 
acceptable in terms of its impact on highway safety and parking provision. It is 
officer advice that it is.  
 
14.0 Biodiversity 

Page 127



INIT 

14.1 An environmental role is one of the three dimensions of sustainable 
development according to NPPF, which seeks to protect and enhance our natural 
environment.  
 
14.2 Paragraph 174 of the NPPF states that the planning policies and decisions 
should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment. Amongst 
other matters, this includes minimising the impacts of biodiversity and providing 
net gains for biodiversity, including by establishing coherent ecological networks 
that are more resilient to current and future pressures.  
 
14.3 Paragraph 179 of the NPPF states that when determining planning 
applications Local Planning Authority’s should aim to protect and enhance 
biodiversity and geodiversity by following the principles set out in paragraph 180 
which includes, amongst other matters, if significant harm cannot be avoided, 
adequately mitigated, or as a last resort, compensated from the planning 
permission should be refused.  
 
14.4 LP Policy S5.4 ‘Biodiversity and Geodiversity’ seeks to protect, create, 
enhance and manage sites within the borough relative to their significance.  
 
14.5 LP DM5.5 ‘Managing effects on Biodiversity and Geodiversity’, amongst 
other matters, seeks to protect the biodiversity and geodiversity value of land, 
protected and priority species and buildings and minimise fragmentation of 
habitats and wildlife links.  
 
14.6 The objections received regarding impacts on wildlife and trees are noted.  
 
14.7 The Landscape Architect and Biodiversity Officer have been consulted. 
They have considered the submitted information including a Biodiversity Net Gain 
Assessment and Metric, Woodland Enhancement Area and Tree Reports.  
 
14.8 The site consists of semi-improved grassland and scrub with several large 
mature trees and shrubs close to the east and south boundary. The collective 
trees and tree groups skirting the proposed development form part of a larger 
woodland area that affords protection by a Tree Preservation Order (TPO) and 
Conservation Area.  
 
14.9 The consultees have advised that the land surrounding the application site 
is valuable habitat for wildlife and biodiversity with the trees being the most 
important feature providing some amenity and screening.  
 
14.10 BNG will be delivered as part of the development through on and off-site 
habitat creation/enhancements. Habitat creation within the site includes 
vegetated garden and off-site compensation will be delivered through the 
enhancement of the existing woodland (0.16 hectares (ha)) adjacent to the site to 
reach a target of ‘fairly good’. The off-site enhancements include removal and 
management of invasive species, control of public access into the enhancement 
area by introducing designated paths to reduce trampling, planting of native 
species-rich mixtures of scrub to increase structure and diversity, introduce a 
woodland ground flora mix to increase species diversity, creating standing 
deadwood and log piles.  

Page 128



INIT 

 
14.11 The proposed landscaping plan indicates areas of landscaping within the 
scheme that include privacy hedging between plots, a mixed native hedge to the 
western boundary, trees and bulb planting to the northern boundary of each 
garden plot and woodland wildflower seeding to the southern boundaries of each 
plot.  
 
14.12 There are 18 significant individual trees and one tree group within influence 
of the site. The proposed development will not require the removal of any trees, 
but the consultees have advised some ground works are scheduled near the 
trees and within Root Protection Area’s (RPA’s). Works within the RPA must 
employ special construction techniques to minimise disturbance to tree roots. 
Such measures are detailed in the AMS regarding the installation of drainage and 
parking provision.  
 
14.13 The application site is beyond the 6km ‘zone of influence’ for coastal sites 
designated at a national and international level as Sites of Special Scientific 
Interest (SSSI) and Special Protection Areas (SPA’s)/Special Areas of 
Conservation (SAC)/Ramsar sites. However, this application will result in an 
increase in recreational accommodation, impacts to the designated sites may 
result from increased recreational disturbance.  
 
14.14 This development will need to comply with the Coastal Mitigation SPD 
which provides guidance and information on the mitigation required from 
development within North Tyneside to prevent adverse impacts on the 
internationally protected coastline. Natural England have not raised any objection 
to this application subject to the coastal mitigation contribution being secured, 
there will be no significant damage or disturbance to the coastal areas. The 
Council’s Biodiversity Officer has not raised any objection to this development in 
terms of its impact on the Northumbria Coast SPA subject to securing the coastal 
mitigation contribution.  
 
14.15 The consultees have suggested conditions to appropriately mitigate the 
impacts of this development regarding its impact on trees and protected species, 
including lighting conditions.  
 
14.16 Members need to determine whether the development results in significant 
harm to ecology trees and adjacent woodland. It is officer advice that the 
development would not result in significant harm. 
 
15.0 Other issues 
15.1 Flooding 
15.2 Paragraph 167 of the NPPF states “When determining any planning 
applications, local planning authorities should ensure that flood risk is not 
increased elsewhere. Where appropriate, applications should be supported by a 
site-specific flood-risk assessment….” 
 
15.3 The objections received regarding inadequate drainage and watercourse 
are noted.  
 

Page 129



INIT 

15.4 The Local Lead Flood Authority (LLFA) has been consulted. They have 
carried out a review of the surface water drainage proposals. The development 
would provide surface water attenuation within the site for a 1 in 100 year rainfall 
event plus 40% increase for climate change via the use of permeable paving and 
underground storage crates. The proposed surface water discharge rate would 
be restricted to 2.5 litres/second (l/s) and would discharge into the highway 
drainage system location on Sandy Lane. Surface water will not discharge into 
the watercourse located to the south of the site.  
 
15.5 Members need to determine whether the proposed development is 
acceptable in terms of flood risk and drainage. It is officer advice that it is.  
 
15.6 Ground conditions 
15.7 Paragraph 183 of the NPPF states planning policies and decisions should 
ensure that a site is suitable for its proposed use taking account of ground 
conditions and any risks arising from land instability and contamination i.e. mining 
or land remediation.  
 
15.8 Paragraph 184 of the NPPF goes onto say that where a site is affected by 
contamination or land instability issues, responsibility for securing a safe 
development, rests with the developer and/or landowner. 
 
15.9 LP Policy DM5.18 “Contaminated and Unstable Land” seeks to ensure that 
the future users or occupiers of a development would not be affected by 
contamination or stability issues.  
 
15.10 The NPPF sets out that LPAs should define Mineral Safeguarding Areas 
(MSAs), with further detail included in National Planning Practice Guidance 
(2014). The whole of the local plan area has been identified as a MSA. Policy 
DM5.17 Minerals is considered to be relevant. 
 
15.11 The Contaminated Land Officer has been consulted. She has advised that 
the site is located within close proximity to unknown filled ground and mine 
workings. It is clear from her comments that conditions can be imposed to deal 
with ground conditions.  
 
15.12 Archaeology 
15.13 Paragraph 205 of the NPPF states “Local planning authorities should 
require developers to record and advance understanding of the significance of 
any heritage assets to be lost (wholly or in part) in a manner proportionate to their 
importance and the impact and to make this evidence (and any archive 
generated) publicly accessible. However, the ability to record evidence of our 
past should not be a factor in deciding whether such loss should be permitted.”  
 
15.14 LP Policy DM6.7 ‘Archaeological Heritage’ seeks to protect, enhance and 
promote the borough’s archaeological heritage and where appropriate, 
encourage its interpretation and presentation to the public.  
 
15.15 Previous planning applications have confirmed that there are no 
archaeological constraints affecting this site.  
 

Page 130



INIT 

15.16 Aviation  
15.17 Newcastle International Airport has raised no objections to the proposed 
development. An informative is recommended to advise future occupants of the 
proximity of the site to the airport.  
 
15.18 North West Villages Sub Area 
15.19 The application site is located in an area identified as being within the 
North West Sub Area. The proposed development would not prevent the aims of 
Policy AS8.24 being met.  
  
16.0 Local Financial Considerations  
16.1 Paragraph 11 of National Planning Practice Guidance states that Section 
70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) provides that a 
local planning authority must have regard to a local financial consideration as far 
as it is material.  Section 70(4) of the 1990 Act (as amended) defines a local 
financial consideration as a grant or other financial assistance that has been, will 
or that could be provided to a relevant authority by a Minister of the Crown (such 
as New Homes Bonus payments) or sums that a relevant authority has received, 
or will or could receive, in payment of Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). 
 
16.2 Whether or not ‘a local financial consideration’ is material to a particular 
decision will depend on whether it could help make the development acceptable 
in planning terms.  It is not considered that New Homes Bonus or CIL 
contributions are material in terms of making this development acceptable in 
planning terms. 
 
17.0 Conclusions 
17.1 Members should carefully consider the balance of issues before them and 
the need to take in account national policy within NPPF and the weight to be 
accorded to this as well as current local planning policy.  
 
17.2 Specifically, NPPF states that Local Planning Authority’s should look for 
solutions rather than problems, and decision-takers at every level should seek to 
approve applications for sustainable development where possible. A core 
planning principle within NPPF requires that every effort should be made 
objectively to identify and then meet the housing, business and other 
development needs of an area, and respond positively to wider opportunities for 
growth.  
 
17.3 The site is not designated for a specific use in the LP. Members need to 
consider whether the principle of the proposal is acceptable. The council does 
not have a 5-year supply of deliverable housing sites. This proposal would make 
a valuable contribution towards the requirement for the council to have a 5-year 
supply of deliverable housing sites. This is a significant material consideration 
which weighs in favour of the proposal. 
 
17.4 Members need to consider whether the design and layout of the proposal is 
acceptable in terms of its impact on existing residential dwellings, its impact on 
the character and appearance of the Sacred Heart Church Conservation Area 
and the adjacent Green Belt. It is officer advice that it is acceptable.  
 

Page 131



INIT 

17.5 Members need to consider whether this development will result in an 
unacceptable impact on the residential amenity of existing residential dwellings or 
future occupants having regard to the NPPF and Local Plan Policies DM6.1 and 
DM5.19. It is officer that it is acceptable subject to imposing the suggested 
conditions.   
 
17.6 Members need to consider whether this development is acceptable in terms 
of its impacts on highway safety and whether sufficient parking is provided.  It is 
officer advice that this proposal will provide sufficient parking and will not have an 
unacceptable impact on highway safety.  
 
17.7 Members need to consider whether this development is acceptable in terms 
of biodiversity and trees. The development will not significantly impact on the 
trees or biodiversity. It is officer advice that is acceptable. 
 
17.8 Issues to do with flooding and contaminated land can be dealt with via 
conditions. 
 
17.9 It is therefore recommended that planning permission should be granted 
subject to a Legal Agreement to secure a coastal mitigation contribution and 
conditions. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Minded to grant  legal agreement req. 
 
 
It is recommended that: 
the Committee indicates that it is minded to grant the application; and 
the Director of Regeneration and Economic Development be authorised to 
issue a notice of grant of planning permission subject to:  
the conditions set out in the planning officers report;  
the addition, omission or amendment of any other conditions considered 
necessary by the Director of Regeneration and Economic Development; 
and,   
iii)       completion of a legal agreement to secure a financial contribution 
for the following: 
-604.00 pounds towards coastal mitigation.  
 
It is recommended that:  
the Committee authorises the Director of Law and Governance and the 
Director of Regeneration and Economic Development to undertake all 
necessary procedures (relevant legal agreement) to secure:  
-Altered access 
-Upgrade of existing footpaths abutting the site 
-Associated drainage 
-Associated street lighting 
-Associated road markings 
-Associated signage 
-Associated Traffic Regulation Orders 
 

Page 132



INIT 

 
 
 
 
 
Conditions/Reasons 
 
1.    The development to which the permission relates shall be carried out in 
complete accordance with the following approved plans and specifications: 
         -Location plan 1:1250 
         -Proposed site layout SA 1 Si1 A  
         -HT1 ELevations SA 1 HT1.2 A 
         -HT1 Plans SA 1 HT 1.1 A 
         -HT2 ELevations SA 1 HT2.2 
         -HT2 Plans SA 1 HT 2.1   
         Reason:  To ensure that the development as carried out does not vary from 
the approved plans. 
 
2.    The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 
three years from the date of this permission. 
         Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
3.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the occupation of any dwelling hereby 
approved the applicant shall enter into an appropriate Legal Agreement with the 
Council for the following works and a agree a timetable for their implementation: 
         Altered access 
         Upgrade of existing footpaths abutting the site 
         Associated drainage 
         Associated street lighting 
         Associated road markings 
         Associated signage 
         Associated Traffic Regulation Orders 
         Thereafter, these agreed works shall be carried out in accordance with the 
agreed timescales and retained thereafter.  
         Reason: In order to minimise danger, obstruction and inconvenience to 
users of the highway and of the development having regard to policy DM7.4 of 
the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
4.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, no part of the development hereby approved 
shall be occupied until all new means of access have been sited and laid out in 
accordance with the approved drawing, Proposed site layout Dwg No. SA1 Si1, 
and permanently retained and maintained thereafter. 
         Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having 
regard to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
          
 
5.    Notwithstanding the Condition 1, the scheme for driveways, private parking 
spaces, and garages associated with each dwelling hereby approved shall be 
laid out in accordance with the approved plan, Proposed Site Layout SA1 Si1, 
prior to the occupation of each dwelling. These parking areas, driveways and 

Page 133



INIT 

garages, shall not be used for any other purpose and shall be permanently 
retained thereafter. 
         Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having 
regard to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
6.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the occupation of each dwelling a 
scheme for the provision of and storage of refuse, recycling and garden waste 
bins shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. These agreed storage areas and refuse provision shall be provided 
prior to the occupation of each dwelling and retained thereafter. 
         Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having 
regard to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
7.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, no development shall commence until a 
Construction Method Statement for the duration of the construction period has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved statement shall: identify the access to the site for all site operatives 
(including those delivering materials) and visitors, provide for the parking of 
vehicles of site operatives and visitors; storage of plant and materials used in 
constructing the development; provide a scheme indicating the route for heavy 
construction vehicles to and from the site; a turning area within the site for 
delivery vehicles; a detailed scheme to prevent the deposit of mud and debris 
onto the highway and a dust suppression scheme (such measures shall include 
mechanical street cleaning, and/or provision of water bowsers, and/or wheel 
washing and/or road cleaning facilities, and any other wheel cleaning solutions 
and dust suppressions measures considered appropriate to the size of the 
development). The scheme must include a site plan illustrating the location of 
facilities and any alternative locations during all stages of development. Tree 
protection is to be installed in accordance with the AIA, AMS and TPP. The tree 
protection fence is to be of a type and height as described in the revised AMS. 
The area surrounding each tree group within the approved protective fencing 
shall be protected for the full duration of the development and shall not be 
removed or repositioned without the prior written approval of the Local Planning 
Authority. Photographic evidence is to be submitted on completion of the 
installation of the fence.  The approved statement shall be implemented and 
complied with during and for the life of the works associated with the 
development. 
         Reason: This information is required pre development to ensure that the 
site set up does not impact on highway safety, pedestrian safety, retained trees 
(where necessary), to ensure the satisfactory retention of existing trees, shrubs 
and hedges and in the interests of visual amenity and residential amenity having 
regard to policies DM5.9, DM5.19 and DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan 
(2017) and National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
8.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, no development shall commence until a 
condition survey has been carried out on the highway drain from point of 
connection through to point of discharge and submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Lead Local Flood 
Authority. Any issues identified shall be resolved by the applicant and/or 
appointed developer prior to connection from the development.  

Page 134



INIT 

         Reason: This information is required from the outset to ensure that an 
appropriate drainage connection can be achieved and the development would 
not increase flood risk having regard to the National Planning Policy Framework 
(July 2021). 
 
9.    The development hereby permitted shall not be constructed above damp 
proof course level until the details of a scheme of site investigation and 
assessment to test for the presence and likelihood of gas emissions from 
underground workings, historic landfill, unknown filled ground or made ground 
has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
          
         Upon approval of the method statement: 
          
         a) A detailed site investigation should be carried out to establish the degree 
and nature of the gas regime, and whether there is a risk likely to arise to the 
occupants of the development. The results and conclusions of the detailed site 
investigations should be submitted to and the conclusions approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority.  The Ground Gas Assessment Report should be 
written using the current government guidelines. 
          
         b) In the event that remediation is required following the assessment of the 
ground gas regime using current guidelines, then a method statement must be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
          
         The detailed design and construction of the development shall take account 
of the results of the site investigation and the assessment should give regard to 
results showing depleted oxygen levels or flooded monitoring wells. The method 
of construction shall also incorporate all the measures shown in the approved 
assessment. 
          
         This should provide details of exactly what remediation is required and how 
the remediation will be implemented on site; details including drawings of gas 
protection scheme should be included. 
          
         c) Where remediation is carried out on the site then a validation report will 
be required. This report should confirm exactly what remediation has been 
carried out and that the objectives of the remediation statement have been met.  
          
         The validation report should include cross sectional diagrams of the 
foundations and how any gas protection measures proposed in the remediation 
method statement are incorporated.  In the event that integrity testing of 
membranes is required then any test certificates produced should also be 
included. 
          
         A verification report shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority before the development is occupied/brought into use. 
          
         d) In the event that there is a significant change to the ground conditions 
due to the development, for example grouting or significant areas of hard 
standing; then additional gas monitoring should be carried out to assess whether 
the gas regime has been affected by the works carried out. In the event that the 

Page 135



INIT 

gas regime has been altered then a reassessment of remediation options shall 
be submitted to the Local Planning authority to be agreed in writing before the 
development is occupied/brought into use. 
          
         Thereafter the development shall not be implemented otherwise than in 
accordance with the scheme referred to in c) above. 
          
         Reason: In order to safeguard the development and/or the occupants 
thereof from possible future gas emissions from underground and or adverse 
effects of landfill gas which may migrate from a former landfill site having regard 
to policy DM5.18 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning 
Policy Framework. 
 
10.    No development shall be commenced until a Desk Study (Phase 1) has 
been completed and a written sampling strategy (scope of works) for the 
contamination site investigation is submitted to, and agreed in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority before the commencement of site investigation works. 
         The Desk Study Report should be written in accordance with the current 
government guidelines including but not exclusive of those including the 
BS10175 2011 +A1 2013, BS 5930 2015 +A12020, Development on Land 
Affected by Contamination YALPAG Version 11.2 - June 2020, Land 
Contamination Risk Management - Environment Agency. 
         Reason:  To ensure that the potential contamination of the site is properly 
investigated and its implication for the development approved fully taken into 
account having regard to policy DM5.18 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) 
and National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
11.    Prior to commencement of development a detailed Site Investigation 
(Phase 2) must be carried out including an interpretative report on potential 
contamination of the site.  This must be prepared by an appropriately qualified 
person and submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA to establish: 
          
         i) If the site is contaminated; 
         ii) To assess the degree and nature of the contamination present, and an 
assessment whether significant risk is likely to arise to the end users and public 
use of land, building (existing or proposed) or the environment, including 
adjoining land; 
         iii) To determine the potential for the pollution of the water environment by 
contaminants and; 
         iv) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s). 
          
         The Site Investigation report must include the following information: 
          
         - A site plan with sampling points and log; 
         - Results of sampling and monitoring carried out in accordance with 
sampling strategy, and; 
         - An interpretative report on potential contamination of the site, conclusions 
must be prepared by a competent person (a person with a recognised relevant 
qualification, sufficient experience in dealing with the type(s) of pollution or land 
instability, and membership of a relevant professional organisation). 
          

Page 136



INIT 

         The Site Investigation report should be written in accordance with the 
current government guidelines including but not exclusive of those including in 
the BS10175 2011+A1 2013, BS 5930 2015 +A12020, Development on Land 
Affected by Contamination YALPAG Version 11.2 - June 2020, Land 
Contamination Risk Management - Environment Agency. 
         Reason:  This information is required from the outset to ensure that the 
potential contamination of the site is properly investigated and its implication for 
the development approved fully taken into account having regard to policy 
DM5.18 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 
12.    Should the site investigation reports pursuant to conditions 10 and 11 
require remediation works, a detailed Remediation Method Statement shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of any part of the development hereby approved above damp 
proof course level.  The remediation method must include phase 1 and 2 reports 
in accordance with BS10175 risk assessment pre and post remediation scheme.  
The method statement must specify remediation for each identified contaminants 
giving installation or construction methods required to break pathway, or 
specifying disposal; or in situ treatment as deemed appropriate, the handling and 
disposal of contaminants to prevent spread of contaminants and the critical 
control checks required to ensure remediation areas, handling and deposition 
areas and installation drawings of gas protection scheme must be included. 
          
         The design of the remediation strategy should consider the results from the 
previous two phases of investigation and consider the proposed use/layout of the 
development. 
          
         The scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed 
remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site 
management procedures.  The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify 
as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protections Act 1990 in 
relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.  An options appraisal 
will only be acceptable upon the inclusion of the recommended preferred option. 
          
         The Remediation Method Statement should be written in accordance with 
the current government guidelines including but not exclusive of those including 
in the BS10175 2011+A1 2013, BS 5930 2015 +A12020, Development on Land 
Affected by Contamination YALPAG Version 11.2 - June 2020, Land 
Contamination Risk Management. 
         Reason:  This information is required to ensure that the potential 
contamination of the site is properly investigated and its implication for the 
development approved fully taken into account having regard to policy DM5.18 of 
the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
13.    Prior to the occupation of each dwelling on the development hereby 
permitted, a Remediation Validation report for the site, if required, must be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  A 
Validation report (sometimes referred to as a Verification report) is used to 
demonstrate remediation completed in accordance with submitted and approved 
remediation report. 

Page 137



INIT 

          
         This report must contain the following: 
          
         - A summary of site investigation and remediation works undertaken with 
accompanying site layout identifying source / treatment areas; 
         - Confirmation of Required Concentration of Reduction Targets, and/or 
Cover and Break Screens; 
         - Post Remediation Interpretative report of Sampling to demonstrate 
compliance with quantative goals. 
         - An explanation / discussion of any anomalous results, or failure to meet 
agreed target values, alongside additional work proposed and actioned; 
         - Demonstrate via photographic and documentation evidence of remedial 
measures; 
         - Post-remediation contaminated land risk assessment profile; 
         - Cross sectional diagrams for the site and detailed plans of the site. 
          
         The Remediation Validation report should be written in accordance with the 
current government guidelines including but not exclusive of those including in 
the BS10175 2011+A1 2013, BS 5930 2015 +A12020, Verification Requirements 
for Cover Systems YALPAG Version 3.4 - November 2017, Land Contamination 
Risk Management - Environment Agency. 
         Reason:  To ensure that the potential contamination of the site is properly 
investigated and its implication for the development approved fully taken into 
account having regard to policy DM5.18 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) 
and National Planning Policy Framework. 
          
          
 
14.    If any unexpected contamination or hotspots are encountered during the 
investigation and construction phases it will be necessary to inform the Local 
Authority within 24 hours.  Work must be ceased until any risk is assessed 
through chemical testing and analysis of the affected soils or waters.  If required 
remediation of any unexpected contamination or underground storage tanks 
discovered during the development must take place before development 
recommences.  Thereafter the development shall not be implemented otherwise 
than in accordance with the scheme approved under the planning consent. 
          
         Any additional reports should be written in accordance with the current 
government guidelines including but not exclusive of those including in the 
BS10175 2011+A1 2013, BS 5930 2015 +A12020, Verification Requirements for 
Cover Systems YALPAG Version 3.4 - November 2017, Land Contamination 
Risk Management - Environment Agency. 
          
         Reason:  To ensure that the potential contamination of the site is properly 
investigated and its implication for the development approved fully taken into 
account having regard to policy DM5.18 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) 
and National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
15.    The construction site subject of this approval shall not be operational and 
there shall be no construction, deliveries to, from or vehicle movements within the 

Page 138



INIT 

site outside the hours of 0800-1800 Monday - Friday and 0800-1400 Saturdays 
with no working on Sundays or Bank Holidays. 
         Reason:  To safeguard the amenity of nearby residents having regard to 
policy DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning 
Policy Framework. 
 
16.    Prior to the occupation of any dwelling hereby approved a noise scheme 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
This noise scheme shall provide details of the window glazing to be provided to 
habitable rooms to ensure bedrooms meet the good internal equivalent standard 
of 30 dB(A) at night and prevent the exceedance of Lmax of 45 dB(A) and living 
rooms meet an internal equivalent noise level of 35dB(A) as described in 
BS8233. These agreed details shall be implemented prior to the occupation of 
each dwelling and shall be permanently retained and maintained.  
         Reason:  To ensure appropriate mitigation is provided to safeguard the 
amenity of future occupants having regard to policy DM5.19 of the North 
Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
17.    Prior to the occupation of any dwelling hereby approved details of the 
ventilation scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority and thereafter implanted in accordance with these agreed 
details which shall be implemented prior to the occupation of each dwelling and 
shall be permanently maintained and retained. This scheme must ensure an 
appropriate standard of comfort to prevent overheating and ensure internal noise 
levels with windows closed comply with BS8233 and the WHO community noise 
standards at night namely a minimum of night time equivalent noise level of 30 
dB ( 23:00 hours to 07:00 hours and maximum noise level of 45dB and daytime 
equivalent noise level of 35dB (07:00 hours to 23:00 hours) in bedrooms and 
daytime equivalent noise level (23:00 hours to 07:00  hours) of 35 dB in living 
rooms. Where the internal noise levels are not achievable, with window open, 
due to the external noise environment, an alternative mechanical ventilation 
system must be installed, equivalent to System 4 of Approved Document F, such 
as mechanical heat recovery (MVHR) system that addresses thermal comfort to 
reduce the need to open windows, unless an overheating assessment is provided 
to verify that there are no overheating risks. The alternative ventilation system 
must not compromise the facade insulation or the resulting internal noise levels. 
Where an overheating assessment is provided this must be carried in 
accordance to the current CIBSE guidance.  Where the property is subject to a 
risk of overheating an alternative ventilation or cooling system must be provided 
that is designed to achieve the levels in the current CIBSE guidance. 
         Reason: To ensure appropriate mitigation is provided to safeguard the 
amenity of future occupants having regard to policy DM5.19 of the North 
Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
18.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the commencement of any 
construction works on the site details showing the existing and proposed ground 
levels and levels of thresholds and floor levels of the proposed dwelling shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Such 
levels shall be shown in relation to a fixed and known datum point. Thereafter, 
the development shall not be carried out other than in accordance with the 
approved details. 

Page 139



INIT 

         Reason: This information is required to ensure that the work is carried out 
at suitable levels in relation to adjoining properties and highways, having regard 
to amenity, access, highway and drainage requirements and protecting existing 
landscape features having regard to the NPPF and policy DM6.1 of the North 
Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
19.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, the proposed dwellings must comply with the 
housing standards set out under Policy DM4.9 of the North Tyneside Local Plan 
(2017).  
         Reason: To ensure appropriate living conditions for future occupiers are 
provided in accordance with Policy DM4.9 of the North Tyneside Local Plan 
(2017).  
 
20.    All trees on the site and adjacent to the site are to be retained. No trees, 
shrubs or hedges within the site which are shown as being retained on the 
submitted plans shall be felled, uprooted, wilfully damaged or destroyed, cut back 
in any way or removed during the development phase other than in accordance 
with the approved plans or without the prior written consent of the Local Planning 
Authority. Any shrubs or hedges removed without such consent, or which die or 
become severely damaged or seriously diseased within five years from the 
completion of the development hereby permitted shall be replaced with shrubs or 
hedge plants of similar size and species. Any retained trees within the application 
site that die within five years from the completion of the development hereby 
permitted shall be replaced with a semi mature standard (18-20cm girth) unless 
the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation. 
         Reason: To ensure the satisfactory retention of existing trees, shrubs and 
hedges and in the interests of visual amenity having regard to policy DM5.9 of 
the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
21.    The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out in accordance 
with the Pre-Development BS5837 Arboricultural Implications Assessment (V5 
May 2023) incorporating a Tree Protection plan and Method Statement (May 
2023), BS5837:2012 'Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction - 
Recommendations' and the National Joint Utilities Group (NJUG) 'Guidelines for 
the Planning, Installation and Maintenance of Utility Apparatus in Proximity To 
Trees'). 
         Reason: To ensure the satisfactory retention of existing trees, shrubs and 
hedges and in the interests of visual amenity having regard to policy DM5.9 of 
the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
22.    Prior to any works commencing within the Root Protection Area (RPA) of 
any retained tree a working method statement shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The works hereby approved 
shall be carried out in full accordance with this agreed working method 
statement. All works within the RPA of retained trees involving excavation of soil, 
including the installation of all services, drainage, construction for vehicular 
drives, parking areas, installation of drop kerbs, foundations, lighting and other 
hard surfacing (for example) are to be installed in accordance with the AMS with 
all works being undertaken using an air spade or dug by hand with a 
photographic record of works undertaken (Areas of 'Special No Dig Construction' 
as defined on the revised TPP). 

Page 140



INIT 

         Reason: To ensure the satisfactory retention of existing trees, shrubs and 
hedges and in the interests of visual amenity having regard to policy DM5.9 of 
the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
23.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, all groundworks shall follow the Reptile and 
Amphibian Method Statement set out in Appendix 2 of the E3 Ecology Report 
(January 2021).  
         Reason: To ensure that local wildlife populations are protected in the 
interests of ecology having regard to the NPPF and Policy DM5.5 of the North 
Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
24.    No pruning works to any trees shall take place until details have been 
submitted to and approved in writing. Thereafter these agreed works shall be 
carried out in full accordance with the approved specification and the 
requirements of British Standard 3998: 2010 - Recommendations for Tree Works.  
         Reason: To ensure the satisfactory retention of existing trees, shrubs and 
hedges and in the interests of visual amenity having regard to policy DM5.9 of 
the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
25.    Prior to any works commencing on site,  
         a) details demonstrating that the Developer has engaged the services of an 
arboricultural consultant shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. This will discharge the pre-commencement part of this 
condition.   
          
         b) Then, within 1 month of the first occupation of the first house to be 
completed, sufficient written evidence of regular monitoring and compliance by 
the pre-appointed tree specialist during construction shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This will discharge the 
second part of this condition. 
          
         The role of the consultant shall be to advise on the tree management for 
the site and to undertake regular supervision visits to oversee the agreed tree 
protection and visit as required to oversee any unexpected works that could 
affect the trees. The supervision is to be undertaken in accordance with the 
approved Arboricultural Method Statement relating to the development hereby 
approved. If the appointed consultant changes, then the developer shall provide 
updated contact details to the Local Planning Authority via the general planning 
contact email address.  
          
         Reason: This information is required from the outset in the interests of 
biodiversity having regard to policy DM5.5 of the North Tyneside Local Plan 
2017.  
 
26.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the commencement of any part of the 
development hereby approved above damp proof course level a fully detailed 
landscape plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The landscape scheme shall include a fully detailed planting 
specification including ground preparation and maintenance. The landscaping 
scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details within the 
first available planting season following the approval of details.  All new trees 

Page 141



INIT 

shall be a minimum of 14-16cm girth.  All hard and soft landscape works shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details and to a standard in 
accordance with the relevant recommendations of British Standard 8545:2014. 
Any trees or plants that, within a period of five years after planting, are removed, 
die or become seriously damaged or defective, shall be replaced with others of 
species, size and number as originally approved, by the end of the first available 
planting season thereafter. No development shall take place until a schedule of 
landscape maintenance for a minimum period of ten years including details of the 
arrangements for its implementation has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved schedule. 
         Reason: In the interests of amenity and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
landscaping having regard to Policies DM6.1 and DM5.9 of the North Tyneside 
Local Plan (2017). 
 
27.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the commencement of any part of the 
development hereby approved above damp proof course level, a detailed 30 year 
'Landscape and Ecological Management and Monitoring Plan' (LEMMP) for the 
off-site woodland compensation area shown on the 'Woodland Enhancement 
Area' Plan (DWG No: NCL-400-172-02-REV A) and set out in the BNG Report 
and Biodiversity Metric (Rev 03 Feb 2022), shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. This plan shall include details of site 
preparation, long-term design objectives, management and monitoring 
objectives, management responsibilities, timescales and maintenance schedules 
for all newly created and enhanced habitats within the site. Thereafter, these 
areas shall be managed and maintained in full accordance with these agreed 
details unless first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The plan will 
include details of the following:- 
          
         -Details on the creation, enhancement and management of all off-site 
habitats identified within the Biodiversity Net Gain Report/Biodiversity Metric (E3 
Ecology Rev03) and how the condition criteria will be met through management;  
         -A detailed 'Woodland Enhancement Plan' showing the location and extent 
of areas for habitat creation and enhancement; 
         -Survey and monitoring details for all for all target habitats identified within 
the Net Gain Assessment Report/Biodiversity Metric. Monitoring Reports will be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for review in years 3, 5 and 10 and 5 
yearly thereafter, and will include a Net Gain Assessment update as part of the 
report to ensure the habitats are reaching the specified target condition. Any 
changes to habitat management as part of this review will require approval in 
writing from the Local Planning Authority. The Plan will be reviewed every 5 
years in partnership with the Local Planning Authority; 
         -Details of any corrective action that will be undertaken if habitat delivery 
fails to achieve the requirements set out in the approved Biodiversity Net Gain 
Report/Biodiversity Metric; 
         -The Plan will also include details of the creation of 
hedgehog/reptile/amphibian hibernacula or habitat piles within the adjacent 
woodland as set out in the BNG Report 
         Reason: This information is required within the set timeframe in the 
interests of amenity and to ensure a satisfactory standard of landscaping and in 

Page 142



INIT 

the interests of biodiversity having regard to Policies DM6.1, DM5.5 and DM5.9 
of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
28.    Any excavations left open overnight shall have a means of escape for 
mammals that may become trapped in the form of a ramp at least 300mm in 
width and angled no greater than 45°.  
         Reason: To ensure that local wildlife populations are protected in the 
interests of ecology having regard to the NPPF and Policy DM5.5 of the North 
Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
29.    No vegetation removal or building works shall take place during the bird 
nesting season (March- August inclusive) unless a survey by a suitably qualified 
ecologist has confirmed the absence of nesting birds immediately prior to works 
commencing. 
         Reason: To ensure that local wildlife populations are protected in the 
interests of ecology having regard to the NPPF and Policy DM5.5 of the North 
Tyneside Local Plan (2017).  
 
30.    Hedgehog gaps (13cmx13cm) will be provided within any new or 
permanent fencing or construction phase fencing within the scheme. Locations of 
hedgehog gaps shall be detailed on fencing plans and submitted to the LPA for 
approval prior to installation.  
         Reason: To ensure that local wildlife populations are protected in the 
interests of ecology having regard to the NPPF and Policy DM5.5 of the North 
Tyneside Local Plan (2017).   
 
31.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the commencement of any part of the 
development hereby approved above damp proof course level details of 4no. bird 
boxes to be provided in suitable locations within the development site or in the 
adjacent woodland, to include 2no. sparrow terraces and 2no. boxes suitable for 
a range of other species including tits and finches, including specifications and 
locations, and a timetable for their implementation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the  bird boxes 
shall be installed in accordance with these agreed details and permanently 
maintained and retained.  
         Reason: To ensure that local wildlife populations are protected in the 
interests of ecology having regard to the NPPF and Policy DM5.5 of the North 
Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
32.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the commencement of any part of the 
development hereby approved above damp proof course level details of 3no. bat 
boxes to be provided in suitable locations within the development site or in the 
adjacent woodland, including specifications and locations, and a timetable for 
their implementation shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Thereafter, the bat boxes shall be installed in accordance 
with these agreed details and permanently maintained and retained.  
         Reason: To ensure that local wildlife populations are protected in the 
interests of ecology having regard to the NPPF and Policy DM5.5 of the North 
Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 

Page 143



INIT 

33.    External lighting shall be low level, avoiding use of high intensity security 
lighting and will be designed in accordance with the BCT and Institute of Lighting 
Professionals (ILP) Guidance Note 08/18 "Bats & Artificial Lighting in the UK".  
         Reason: In the interest of protecting residential amenity and protecting 
sensitive habitats within or adjacent to the site having regard to policy DM5.7 and 
DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and the National Planning 
Policy Framework.  
 
34.    Prior to any works commencing on site a Construction Environmental 
Management Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority that includes a bat working method statement for any 
tree felling, a checking survey for any red squirrel dreys or badger setts prior to 
works commencing and appropriate working methods including pollution control 
and measures to prevent disposal of waste into the adjacent woodland. 
Thereafter, the development shall be carried out in accordance with these agreed 
details.  
         Reason: This information is required from the outset to ensure that local 
wildlife populations are protected in the interests of ecology having regard to the 
NPPF and Policy DM5.5 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
35.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the commencement of any part of the 
development hereby approved damp proof course level details of all screen and 
boundary walls, fences and any other means of enclosure shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These details shall 
include 1.8m high acoustic fencing to be provided on the plot closest to the 
B1318 to screen road traffic noise. These agreed details shall be implemented 
prior to the occupation of any residential dwelling and any part of the commercial 
development. Thereafter, these agreed details shall be permanently retained and 
maintained.  
         Reason: To ensure that the proposed development does not adversely 
affect the privacy and visual amenities at present enjoyed by the occupiers of 
neighbouring properties, and to ensure a satisfactory environment within the 
development having regard to policies DM6.1 and DM5.19 of the North Tyneside 
Local Plan (2017). 
          
          
 
36.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the construction of any part of the 
residential development hereby approved above damp-proof course level a 
schedule and/or samples of all surfacing materials (hard surfacing) and external 
building materials, including doors, windows and rainwater goods shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, 
the development shall not be carried out other than in accordance with the 
approved details.  
         Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance having regard to Policy 
DM6.1 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017).  
 
37.    Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that 
Order), no development falling within Part 1 of Schedule 2, within Classes A, B 
and H of Part 14 of Schedule 2  or within Class A of Part 2 of Schedule 2 shall be 

Page 144



INIT 

carried out without the prior, express planning permission of the Local Planning 
Authority. 
         Reason:  In order that the Local Planning Authority can properly consider 
the effect of any future proposals on the character and amenity of the locality, 
including the conservation area, having regard to Policies DM6.1 and DM6.6 of 
the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
 
Statement under Article 35 of the Town & Country (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015): 
 
 
The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the 
economic, social and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises 
sustainable development and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively 
and positively to issue the decision without delay. The Local Planning Authority 
has therefore implemented the requirements in Paragraph 38 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 
 
 
Informatives 
 
 
Building Regulations Required  (I03) 
 
 
Consent to Display Advertisement Reqd  (I04) 
 
 
Contact ERH Works to Footway  (I08) 
 
 
No Doors Gates to Project Over Highways  (I10) 
 
 
Contact ERH Erect Scaffolding on Rd  (I12) 
 
 
Do Not Obstruct Highway Build Materials  (I13) 
 
 
Take Care Proximity to Party Boundary  (I21) 
 
 
Advice All Works Within Applicants Land  (I29) 
 
 
Coal Mining Standing Advice (FUL,OUT)  (I44) 
 
 
CIL information  (I50) 

Page 145



INIT 

 
 
The development hereby approved lies within close proximity to the designated 
and well-established flightpath from Newcastle International Airport. The airport 
operates unrestricted, flying 365 days per year, 24 hours per day. The site is also 
a co-opted military airfield and therefore unrestrictedly accepts military aircraft. 
Properties contained with the development will be exposed to aircraft noise. 
 
 
  

Page 146



INIT 

 
 

 

 
Application reference: 21/01569/FUL 
Location: Land At Former School House, Sandy Lane, North Gosforth  
Proposal: Erection of 4no detached dwellings.  (Resubmission) 

Not to scale © Crown Copyright and database right 
2011.  Ordnance Survey Licence Number 
0100016801 

 

Date: 31.05.2023 

 

Page 147



INIT 

Appendix 1 – 21/01569/FUL 
Item 2 
 
Consultations/representations 
 
1.0 Ward Councillors  
1.1 Councillor Michelle Fox  
Historically, residents were assured when the land was purchased that any build 
would be sympathetic to the design and look of the School House, which was 
much loved locally, and not extend beyond the footprint of this original dwelling 
and its cottages. Following a series of fires, the land was cleared and this 
proposal includes 4 large detached houses, which fill the entire area of the land. 
The design of the houses is modern and not sympathetic to the area. A good 
example of where this has been successful is in the recent terraced housing in 
North Shields along the A193 road, which is aesthetically in keeping with the 
area’s historical buildings and housing. I am not against modern buildings per se, 
however, in this instance they do feel very incongruous to the residential area, 
and I am not clear on why this type of design is preferable? 
 
2.0 Internal Consultees 
2.1 Heritage and Design  
2.2 The application site lies within the Sacred Heart conservation area, near to 
the grade II listed Sacred Heart church. The conservation area is relatively small 
and has an undeveloped character, its only buildings being the Church, Parish 
Hall and Presbytery. The application site is situated in a prominent position at the 
junction of Sandy Lane and the B1318 and faces onto residential properties, to 
the rear of the site is an area of dense woodland.  
 
2.3 The proposed application is for the development of 4 detached dwellings, 
designed with a contemporary architectural approach. An earlier application 
under 20/01260/FUL was for a similar proposal for 4 detached dwellings. This 
was not acceptable as the design failed to recognise its surrounding built context 
and the proposed materials were also considered to be unsuitable. The 
application was subsequently withdrawn.  
 
2.4 The revised application overcomes the reasons for the previous objections. 
The contemporary architectural design maintains a relationship to its 
surroundings through the scale, form and use of materials. There is a mixture of 
building forms and styles around the site, and they are all unified by pitch roofs 
which create a visual link between buildings. The proposed application continues 
this visual link. 
 
2.5 The trees make a significant contribution to the character of the conservation 
area, and the application outlines that the woodland background is a key driver 
for the design. The building footprint allows for slot views of the woodland to the 
rear which is welcomed.   
 
2.6 The success of the proposal will rely on the quality of the materials used and 
architectural details employed. The proposed materials include red multi-
brickwork, render and timber alongside clay roof tiles. This reflects the materials 

Page 148



INIT 

on the surrounding buildings or where contemporary materials are used, they 
reflect the colours and tones of existing materials in the local area.  
 
2.7 Overall, the position of the units has been carefully considered to reflect the 
existing woodland and the design responds to its surrounding built context. The 
proposed materials are also suitable and would complement the character of the 
area. The application is acceptable. The following conditions are recommended: 
Boundary walls and fences 
Materials of construction 
Sample of materials 
Hard surfacing 
Windows and doors 
Rainwater goods 
 
2.8 Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA)  
2.9 I have carried out a review of the surface water drainage proposals for 
planning application 21/01569/FUL, I can confirm in principle that I have no 
objections to the proposals as the development will be providing surface water 
attenuation within the site for a 1in100yr rainfall event + 40% increase for climate 
change via the use of permeable paving and underground storage crates. The 
proposed surface water discharge rate will be restricted to 2.5l/s and will 
discharge into the highway drainage system located on Sandy Lane. 
 
2.10 I would recommend that a condition is placed on this application requiring a 
condition survey is carried out on the highway drain from point of connection 
through to point of discharge. Condition survey to be provided to LLFA and any 
issues identified to be resolved by applicant prior to connection from 
development. 
 
2.11 Landscape Architect and Biodiversity Officer  
2.12 Existing Site Description 
2.13 The proposed application site is located on the junction of Sandy Lane and 
the B1318, between Wideopen and Gosforth and is approximately 0.18 hectares 
in size and is currently vacant. The site is within a central location in North 
Gosforth close to the main road network of the immediate and wider area. The 
site is bounded by residential development, the north and west, with the B1318 
trunk road delineating its western boundary and the original course of Sandy 
Lane to the north. A free-standing boundary stone wall with ornamental 
capstones and pier, contains part of the west site boundary of the proposed 
development area. This wall structure continues to run the length of the western 
boundary of the woodland, south to the B1318 and the junction with Sandy Lane. 
The topography of the site is generally flat and consists of semi-improved 
grassland and scrub with a number of large mature trees and shrubs close to the 
proposed south and eastern boundary. The collective trees and tree groups 
skirting the proposed development form part of a larger woodland area, which is 
associated with the Sacred Heart RC Church, affording protection both by a Tree 
Preservation Order (A1) and by its location within the Sacred Heart Conservation 
Area. The trees within the survey site are a mix of Ash, Sycamore, Lime, Beech 
and Oak, with sycamore being present in the greatest numbers.   
 
2.14 The following Local Plan policies apply to this application: 

Page 149



INIT 

Policy S5.4 Biodiversity and Geodiversity  
Policy DM5.5 Managing Effects on Biodiversity and Geodiversity  
Policy DM 5.9 Trees, woodland and hedgerows  
Policy S5.1 Strategic Green Infrastructure  
DM5.2 Protection of Green Infrastructure 
 
2.15 The land surrounding the application site is valuable habitat for wildlife and 
biodiversity. The trees are the most important feature on this site and provide the 
site with some amenity and screening. Their retention along with the planting of 
new trees will contribute to the setting of the development and should be an 
integral part of any new development. Maintaining the existing trees on site will 
enhance visual and residential amenity, provide biodiversity and environmental 
benefits and strengthen linkages between adjacent greenspaces and wildlife 
areas. The presence of the mature trees in the landscape have significant 
amenity value, and consequently of major importance to the character of the 
conservation area. Any tree removal either as a result of the development or 
long-term tree removal, will be harmful to the character of the area.   
 
2.16 Concerns were raised in a previous response (08/07/22) regarding the 
impacts on trees from the proposed drainage and delivery of biodiversity net 
gain. The following additional information has, therefore, been provided by the 
applicant in response to the issues raised: 
 
-Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) Assessment (Rev 03 Feb 2022) & Biodiversity 
Metric 
-Proposed Landscape Layout (DWG No.SA1 Si2) 
-Woodland Enhancement Area’ Plan DWG No: NCL-400-172-02-REVA 
-Pre-Development BS5837 Arboricultural Implications Assessment (V5 May 
2023) incorporating a Tree Protection plan and Method Statement (May 2023)  
 
2.17 Biodiversity Net Gain Assessment and Biodiversity Metric 
2.18 The updated Biodiversity Metric (Version V02) indicates that a 13.11% net 
gain will be delivered as part of the scheme through on and off-site habitat 
creation/enhancements. 
 
2.19 Habitat creation within the site includes 0.082ha of vegetated garden and 
off-site compensation will be delivered through the enhancement of 0.16ha 
(1600sqm) of the 1.3ha of existing woodland adjacent to the site to reach a target 
condition of ‘fairly good’. The location of this woodland enhancement area is 
shown on the ‘Woodland Enhancement Area’ Plan (DWG No: NCL-400-172-02-
REV A) and the enhancement measures outlined include the following: 
-Removal and management of the invasive species. 
-Control of public access into the enhancement area by introducing designated 
paths to reduce trampling.  
-Planting of native species-rich mixtures of scrub to increase structure and 
diversity within the woodland and reduce the area of open space to less than 
20%. 
-Introducing a woodland ground flora mix to increase species diversity.  
-Creating standing deadwood and log piles 
 
2.20 Proposed Landscape Layout                                                                                                                                                   

Page 150



INIT 

2.21 The ‘Proposed Landscape Layout’ (DWG No: SA-1-Si2) indicates areas of 
landscaping within the scheme that include ‘privacy hedging’ between plots, a 
mixed native hedge to the western boundary (within the garden curtilage of Unit 
4), trees and bulb planting to the northern boundary of each garden plot and 
woodland wildflower seeding to the southern boundaries of each garden plot. 
This planting was originally identified as habitat creation/landscaping to help 
deliver a net gain in accordance with the BNG Assessment but has now been 
removed from the Metric/BNG delivery as this planting is vulnerable to removal 
and management could not be enforced. However, this landscaping still adds 
value to the site and should remain as part of the overall landscape delivery for 
the site. In addition, an area of woodland (0.16ha) adjacent to the site boundary 
(identified on ‘Woodland Enhancement Area’ Plan DWG No: NCL-400-172-02-
REVA) is proposed for ‘enhancement’ to deliver the majority of the 13.11% net 
gain outlined in the Biodiversity Metric. The enhancement of the adjacent 
woodland provides a more suitable and sustainable area for net gain delivery. 
 
2.22 Designated Coastal Sites 
2.23 The scheme will result in an increase in residential accommodation which 
will contribute to adverse impacts on designated sites at the coast through 
recreational disturbance. The scheme will, therefore, need to comply with the 
Councils Coastal Mitigation SPD. The SPD provides guidance and information on 
the mitigation required from development within North Tyneside to prevent 
adverse impacts on the internationally protected coastline.  
 
2.24 Arboricultural Implications Assessment (AIA) 
2.25 This V5 (Version 5) report has been produced to incorporate additional 
access and protective measures along the sites eastern boundary. This is 
referenced in section 4.5 ‘Special Protection Requirements’ with further detail 
contained within section 6 Aboricultural Method Statement (AMS).   
 
2.26 The report now looks to retain T13 with the tree protection plan amended 
accordingly. The AIA also makes reference to the installation of underground 
utilities in relation to the retained trees. 
 
2.27 If the application is recommended for approval, the following conditions 
should be attached to the application: 
 
All trees on the site and adjacent to the site are to be retained. No trees, shrubs 
or hedges within the site which are shown as being retained on the submitted 
plans shall be felled, uprooted, wilfully damaged or destroyed, cut back in any 
way or removed during the development phase other than in accordance with the 
approved plans or without the prior written consent of the Local Planning 
Authority. Any shrubs or hedges removed without such consent, or which die or 
become severely damaged or seriously diseased within five years from the 
completion of the development hereby permitted shall be replaced with shrubs or 
hedge plants of similar size and species. Any retained trees within the application 
site that die within five years from the completion of the development hereby 
permitted shall be replaced with a semi mature standard (18-20cm girth) unless 
the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation. 
 

Page 151



INIT 

The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out in accordance with 
the Pre-Development BS5837 Arboricultural Implications Assessment (V5 May 
2023) incorporating a Tree Protection plan and Method Statement (May 2023), 
BS5837:2012 ‘Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction – 
Recommendations’ and the National Joint Utilities Group (NJUG) ‘Guidelines for 
the Planning, Installation and Maintenance of Utility Apparatus in Proximity To 
Trees’). 
 
Prior to the commencement of any site clearance works (including demolition 
works, tree works, soil moving, hardstandings, temporary access construction 
and / or widening or any operations involving the use of motorised vehicles or 
construction machinery, site security fencing, services), tree protection is to be 
installed in accordance with the AIA, AMS and TPP. The tree protection fence is 
to be of a type and height as described in the revised AMS. The area surrounding 
each tree group within the approved protective fencing shall be protected for the 
full duration of the development and shall not be removed or repositioned without 
the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. Photographic evidence 
is to be submitted on completion of the installation of the fence.   
 
All works within the RPA of retained trees involving excavation of soil, including 
the installation of all services, drainage, construction for vehicular drives, parking 
areas, installation of drop kerbs, foundations, lighting and other hard surfacing 
(for example) are to be installed in accordance with the AMS with all works being 
undertaken using an air spade or dug by hand with a photographic record of 
works undertaken (Areas of ‘Special No Dig Construction’ as defined on the 
revised TPP). Confirmation of the proposed working method is to be submitted 
for approval.  
 
No changes in levels shall be implemented unless wholly in accordance with the 
approved details or otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.   
 
A plan indicating the positions, design, materials and type of any new or altered 
boundary treatments shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority within one month of work starting on site. All works where they impact 
on the RPA’s of retained trees are to be carried out by hand an in accordance 
with BS 5837:2012 and AMS. 
  
Any pruning works go protected trees shall be carried out in full accordance with 
the approved specification and the requirements of British Standard 3998: 2010 - 
Recommendations for Tree Works, detail of which are to be submitted for 
approval.  
 
The contractor’s construction method statement relating to traffic 
management/site compounds/contractor access, temporary parking, on site 
welfare facilities, loading, unloading and storage of equipment, materials, fuels 
and waste as well concrete mixing and use of fires must be submitted in writing 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority and include tree protection 
measures for the trees to be retained. Cabins, storage of plant and materials, 
parking are to be shown on a plan and not to be located within the Root 
Protection Area (RPA) of the retained trees as defined by the Tree Protection 

Page 152



INIT 

Plan and maintained for the duration of the works. Any new kerb edges within the 
RPA of retained trees are to be constructed using materials and construction 
methods that minimize excavation depths or other methods to approval.   
 
An arboricultural consultant is to be appointed by the developer to advise on the 
tree management for the site and to undertake regular supervision visits to 
monitor and oversee the implementation of the works as set out in the AMS.  This 
condition may only be fully discharged on completion of the development subject 
to satisfactory written and photographic evidence of regular monitoring and 
compliance by the pre-appointed tree specialist during construction. 
 
Within one month from the start on site of any operations such as site excavation 
works, site clearance (including site strip) for the development, a fully detailed 
landscape plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The landscape scheme shall include a fully detailed planting 
specification including ground preparation and maintenance. The landscaping 
scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details within the 
first available planting season following the approval of details.  All new trees 
shall be a minimum of 14-16cm girth.  All hard and soft landscape works shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details and to a standard in 
accordance with the relevant recommendations of British Standard 8545:2014. 
Any trees or plants that, within a period of five years after planting, are removed, 
die or become seriously damaged or defective, shall be replaced with others of 
species, size and number as originally approved, by the end of the first available 
planting season thereafter. No development shall take place until a schedule of 
landscape maintenance for a minimum period of ten years including details of the 
arrangements for its implementation has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved schedule. 
 
Prior to the commencement of any development, a detailed 30 year ‘Landscape 
and Ecological Management and Monitoring Plan' (LEMMP) for the off-site 
woodland compensation area shown on the ‘Woodland Enhancement Area’ Plan 
(DWG No: NCL-400-172-02-REV A) and set out in the BNG Report and 
Biodiversity Metric (Rev 03 Feb 2022), shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. This plan shall include details of site 
preparation, long-term design objectives, management and monitoring 
objectives, management responsibilities, timescales and maintenance schedules 
for all newly created and enhanced habitats within the site. Thereafter, these 
areas shall be managed and maintained in full accordance with these agreed 
details unless first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan will 
include details of the following:- 
 
-Details on the creation, enhancement and management of all off-site habitats 
identified within the Biodiversity Net Gain Report/Biodiversity Metric (E3 Ecology 
Rev03) and how the condition criteria will be met through management;  
-A detailed ‘Woodland Enhancement Plan’ showing the location and extent of 
areas for habitat creation and enhancement; 
-Survey and monitoring details for all for all target habitats identified within the 
Net Gain Assessment Report/Biodiversity Metric. Monitoring Reports will be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for review in years 3, 5 and 10 and 5 

Page 153



INIT 

yearly thereafter, and will include a Net Gain Assessment update as part of the 
report to ensure the habitats are reaching the specified target condition. Any 
changes to habitat management as part of this review will require approval in 
writing from the Local Planning Authority. The Plan will be reviewed every 5 
years in partnership with the Local Planning Authority; 
-Details of any corrective action that will be undertaken if habitat delivery fails to 
achieve the requirements set out in the approved Biodiversity Net Gain 
Report/Biodiversity Metric; 
-The Plan will also include details of the creation of hedgehog/reptile/amphibian 
hibernacula or habitat piles within the adjacent woodland as set out in the BNG 
Report. 
 
External lighting will be low level, avoiding use of high intensity security lighting 
and will be designed in accordance with the BCT & Institute of Lighting 
Professionals (ILP) Guidance Note 08/18 “Bats & Artificial Lighting in the UK”. 
 
All works will be undertaken in accordance with an approved Construction 
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) that includes a bat working method 
statement for any tree felling, a checking survey for any red squirrel dreys or 
badger setts prior to works commencing and appropriate working methods 
including pollution control and measures to prevent disposal of waste into the 
adjacent woodland. Details of the CEMP shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority for approval in writing prior to works commencing on site. 
 
No vegetation removal shall take place during the bird nesting season (March- 
August inclusive) unless a survey by a suitably qualified ecologist has confirmed 
the absence of nesting birds immediately prior to works commencing on site. 
 
4no. bird boxes will be provided in suitable locations within the development site 
or in the adjacent woodland, to include 2no. sparrow terraces and 2no. boxes 
suitable for a range of other species including tits and finches. Details of bird box 
specification and locations must be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority within 4 weeks of development commencing on site and 
will be installed in accordance with the approved plans on completion of works 
and permanently retained.  
 
3no. bat boxes will be provided in suitable locations within the development site 
or in the adjacent woodland. Details of bat box specification and locations must 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority within 4 
weeks of development commencing on site and will be installed in accordance 
with the approved plans on completion of works and permanently retained. 
 
Any excavations left open overnight will have a means of escape for mammals 
that may become trapped in the form of a ramp at least 300mm in width and 
angled no greater than 45°.  
 
Hedgehog gaps (13cmx13cm) will be provided within any new fencing within the 
scheme. Details of the locations and specification of the hedgehog gaps shall be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval within 4 weeks of 
development commencing on site. 
 

Page 154



INIT 

All groundworks will follow the Reptile and Amphibian Method Statement set out 
in Appendix 2 of the E3 Ecology Report (January 2021). 
 
2.28 Manager for Environmental Health (Contaminated Land) 
2.29 The site is located within close proximity to unknown filled ground and mine 
workings. 
 
2.30 Due to the proposed sensitive end use and the potential for ground gas I 
recommend that the following conditions be applied: 
 
Con 003 
Con 004 
Con 005 
Con 006 
Con 007 
Gas 006 
 
2.31 Manager for Environmental Health (Pollution) 
2.32 I have concerns with regard to road traffic noise from the B1318 affecting 
the proposed development.  
 
2.33 No noise assessment has been provided to outline the impact of road traffic 
noise affecting the site to determine the sound attenuation measures necessary 
to protect the proposed residential properties. I note that the garden areas are to 
be provided will be afforded limited screening by the provision of the existing high 
wall around the site and this may be required to be increased in height to screen 
road traffic noise. A noise scheme will be required via condition to determine on 
the sound mitigation measures necessary to ensure good standards of internal 
noise levels in accordance with BS8233 to give a resultant noise level of below 
30 decibels and maximum noise level of 45dB for bedrooms and 35 decibels for 
living rooms is achieved and external gardens meet the world health organisation 
community noise level for outside spaces to 50 dB LAeq. 
 
2.34 If planning consent is to be given, I would recommend the following: 
 
Prior to occupation submit and implement on approval of the Local Planning 
Authority a noise scheme providing details of the window glazing to be provided 
to habitable rooms to ensure bedrooms meet the good internal equivalent 
standard of 30 dB(A) at night and prevent the exceedance of Lmax of 45 dB(A) 
and living rooms meet an internal equivalent noise level of 35dB(A) as described 
in BS8233.  
 
Prior to occupation, submit details of the ventilation scheme for approval in 
writing and thereafter implemented to ensure an appropriate standard of comfort 
to prevent overheating and ensure internal noise levels with windows closed 
comply with BS8233 and the WHO community noise standards at night namely a 
minimum of night time equivalent noise level of 30 dB ( 23:00 hours to 07:00 
hours and maximum noise level of 45dB and daytime equivalent noise level of 
35dB (07:00 hours to 23:00 hours) in bedrooms and daytime equivalent noise 
level (23:00 hours to 07:00  hours) of 35 dB in living rooms. Where the internal 
noise levels are not achievable, with window open, due to the external noise 

Page 155



INIT 

environment, an alternative mechanical ventilation system must be installed, 
equivalent to System 4 of Approved Document F, such as mechanical heat 
recovery (MVHR) system that addresses thermal comfort to reduce the need to 
open windows, unless an overheating assessment is provided to verify that there 
are no overheating risks. The alternative ventilation system must not compromise 
the facade insulation or the resulting internal noise levels. Where an overheating 
assessment is provided this must be carried in accordance to the current CIBSE 
guidance. Where the property is subject to a risk of overheating an alternative 
ventilation or cooling system must be provided that is designed to achieve the 
levels in the current CIBSE guidance. 
 
Prior to occupation, submit details to the Local Planning Authority for approval in 
writing of the acoustic screening to be provided to the western boundary of the 
site to attenuate noise from the B1318, to ensure noise levels achieve the World 
Health Organisation community noise level for outside spaces to 50 dB. 
Measures to be implemented and thereafter retained.  
 
HOU04 
SIT03 
 
2.35 Highways Network Manager  
2.36 This is an application for the erection of 4 detached dwellings. It is a 
resubmission of a previous application (20/01260/FUL) which was withdrawn by 
the developer. 
 
2.37 The dwellings will have individual private accesses from Sandy Lane and 
parking will be provided in accordance with current standards for each dwelling. 
No visitor parking will be provided, however there is ample capacity on Sandy 
Lane which is not a through route and is wide enough to accommodate the small 
number of parked vehicles likely associated with visitors to the four dwellings. 
Furthermore, the site also has reasonable links to public transport. On balance, 
conditional approval is recommended.  
 
2.38 Recommendation - Conditional Approval 
 
The applicant will be required to enter into an appropriate Legal Agreement with 
the Local Authority for the following works: 
 
Altered access 
Upgrade of existing footpaths abutting the site 
Associated drainage 
Associated street lighting 
Associated road markings 
Associated signage 
Associated Traffic Regulation Orders 
 
2.39 Conditions: 
ACC11 - New Access: Access prior to Occ 
PAR04 - Veh: Parking, Garaging before Occ 
REF01 - Refuse Storage: Detail, Provide Before Occ 
SIT06 - Construction Method Statement (Minor) 

Page 156



INIT 

 
2.40 Informatives: 
I08 - Contact ERH: Works to footway. 
I10 - No Doors/Gates to Project over Highways 
I12 - Contact ERH Erect Scaffolding on Rd 
I13 - Don't obstruct Highway, Build Materials 
I45 - Street Naming & Numbering 
I46 - Highway Inspection before dvlpt 
 
The site abuts adopted highway, if access to this highway is to be restricted 
during the works the applicant must contact Highway Network Management 
Team: streetworks@northtyneside.gov.uk (0191) 643 6131 to obtain a temporary 
footpath closure. 
 
3.0 Representations  
3.1 38 objections have been received. These objections are set out below:  
- Adverse effect on wildlife  
- Affect character of conservation area  
- Impact on landscape  
- Inadequate parking provision  
- Inappropriate design  
- Loss of/damage to trees  
- Nuisance - disturbance  
- Nuisance - noise  
- Out of keeping with surroundings  
- Poor traffic/pedestrian safety  
- Poor/unsuitable vehicular access  
- Traffic congestion  
- Will result in visual intrusion  
- Within greenbelt/no special circumstance 
- Inadequate drainage  
- Inappropriate in special landscape area  
- Inappropriate materials  
- Loss of visual amenity  
- Affect setting of listed building  
- Affect Site of Spec. Scientific Interest  
- Inappropriate materials  
- Loss of privacy  
- Loss of residential amenity  
- Loss of visual amenity  
- Loss of/damage to trees  
- None compliance with approved policy  
- Not in accordance with development plan   
- Nuisance - dust/dirt  
- Nuisance - fumes  
- Pollution of watercourse  
- Precedent will be set  
- We have enough housing being built around the area, and this seems a waste 
of the land for 4 houses, the plan for a gym facility is much better due to it along 
something to the local area rather than more of what we already have in the area. 

Page 157



INIT 

- I strongly object to this proposal to build 4 detached dwellings to land at the rear 
of former school cottages, Sandy Lane, North Gosforth. This will be on land 
where the trees with TPO's on them once stood and surrounded the school 
cottages. The owner has made several applications on this site after the loss of 
the old school house and cottages through arson and unlawful demolition. 
- The last proposal was to build 8 residential letting properties in 2017. 
Surprisingly the planning officers at North Tyneside Council recommended that 
the development should go ahead. However, when the application went to 
Planning Committee, they unanimously voted to refuse permission to build. The 
owner then appealed, and the Planning Inspectorate visited the site and area and 
reached the decision to dismiss the appeal. I find the action of planning officers at 
NTC extremely worrying because of this. 
It appears that they have ignored NTC's own Local Plan and the Conservation 
Area Appraisal for the Sacred Heart Church, the Council's Design Quality 
Supplementary Planning Document and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
- The statutory definition of a Conservation Area is 'an area of special 
architectural or historic interest, the character of which it is desirable to preserve 
or enhance.' The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 
- The site lies within the Sacred Heart Conservation Area designated by the 
Council. The document for this clearly states 'Whilst it is acknowledged that the 
derelict site cannot remain in its current state, any proposed development will be 
subject to intense scrutiny and extremely careful consideration to ensure that it is 
deemed suitable for this sensitive site and be able to preserve or enhance the 
character of the Conservation Area.' 
- Clearly the proposal of 4 detached houses whose design is outrageous, very 
modern and is an affront to the Conservation Area and the Grade 2 Listed 
Sacred Heart Church. 
The proposed development is clearly an overdevelopment. There is parking for 
one car to each of these very large 4/5 bedroomed houses. The Council's own 
Design Quality Supplementary Planning Document seeks to ensure that the 
design of new buildings are in keeping with the local character and integrates into 
a setting. The owner is attempting to cram as many houses as possible into this 
very small space to make a greater profit to the detriment to the area. Clearly this 
is the wrong development for this setting. I urge the Council to reject this 
proposal. 
- I strongly object to the application to build 4 detached houses each with 5 
bedrooms (20 bedrooms in total) and a parking space for only a single vehicle. 
This proposal is within the Sacred Heart Church Conservation area and is 
adjacent to the Sacred Heart Church built in 1835 and is a Grade II listed 
building.  
- The Sacred Heart Church Conservation Area Character Appraisal produced by 
North Tyneside Council (https://my.northtyneside.gov.uk/sites/default/files/web-
page-related-files/sacred%20heart%20CA%20CA.pdf) states "any proposed 
development will be subject to intense scrutiny and extremely careful 
consideration to ensure that it is deemed suitable for this sensitive site and be 
able to preserve or enhance the character and appearance of the conservation 
area." 
- The design of these new houses are clearly not in keeping with, nor suitable for, 
the Conservation Area and do not fit in with the other well-kept residential 
properties in the vicinity. This current planning application far exceeds the original 
footprint of the former Old School House that was on the site for over 140 years 

Page 158



INIT 

until it was burnt down under the management of the current owner. North 
Tyneside Council insisted any development would not exceed the original 
footprint of the Old School House and to preserve the character and appearance 
of this conservation area.  
- I also note the perpetual scattergun approach to (re)submissions of plans for 
unsuitable and overdeveloped buildings by the owner (including gyms, nurseries 
and oversized housing) over the years, as well as the cynical timing, during the 
summer holidays, when many residents are away and unable to comment within 
the short timeframe allowed. 
- I appeal to the planners to refuse both this planning application and the second 
one running concurrently for a commercial property (a gym; 21/01774/FUL).  
- Inappropriate plan to develop in a friendly, quiet and neighbourly area. 
- I strongly object to this planning proposal, it is an over development for what is 
a relatively small plot of land. The site is only suitable for 2, maximum 3 detached 
properties. The application states in the section Biodiversity and Geological that 
there are no protected or priority species affected by the development, this is not 
true, the woodland area is a habitat for bats, owls, woodpeckers and the 
occasional roe deer. Furthermore, in the section Assessment of Flood Risks is 
the proposal within 20m of a watercourse, the applicant answered no, this is 
another untruth, as there is a beck within the woodland area. 
- The proposed design and materials are not in keeping with residential buildings 
on Sandy Lane and The Villas. The addition of 4, 4/5 bedroom properties will 
have a significant impact on vehicles parking on Sandy Lane, as there is 
inadequate vehicle parking in the design of the properties, resulting in permanent 
overflow of vehicles parking on Sandy Lane 
- Yet again the owner has submitted a plan that is an overdevelopment of this 
site. With a design that is not in keeping with the surrounding area. Taking into 
account the history of unsuitable previous applications made by the owner why 
can't he just do what was agreed by council planning officers after the original 
building were destroyed by arson. That any development should be on the 
footprint of the original buildings. This massively oversteps that footprint and is 
designed to make as much money as possible to the detriment of the site and the 
surrounding environment. Please just reduce the number of properties planned 
and build on the footprint. 
- The building of 4 large properties within the Sacred Hearts conservation site is 
wholly inappropriate, completely out of keeping with the surrounding properties 
which have retained their original looks. They will completely alter the current tree 
line and once again impact the wildlife in the area. 
- The parking provision for such houses is inadequate to say the least and will 
result in more on street parking in Sandy Lane. I am also against any further 
impact on trees under a TPO. 
- I would also question whether there is actually a need for further dwellings given 
the massive building programs within the near vicinity. 
- I would call on the planning officers and the council to adhere to the directive 
that any building should be in keeping with the original school house so as to 
remain in keeping with the Sacred Hearts Church. 
- Considering the number of houses proposed for this small area (well beyond 
the perimeter of the old school house) this should be considered as an over 
development. The number of houses proposed should be reduced. 
- The proposal is likely to increase the number of vehicles. Parking is not 
adequate and likely to cause parking spillage on to Sandy Lane. 

Page 159



INIT 

- The character and materials of the proposed buildings are not in keeping with 
surroundings/ context.  
- The ecology report is outdated/ recycled and does not include a lot of flora and 
fauna in the area. 
- There is a small watercourse flowing through the area. This development is 
likely either to cause flooding or pollute the watercourse.  
- New development is the area - North Gosforth Park and Five Mile Park (East 
Wideopen) have caused ground water to be pumped out for the building work 
which has resulted in water finding its way across the B1318 and forming a lake 
which elevated across the old Sandy Lane at certain times. 
- Protected trees are more than likely to be removed. 
- The elevation will be a visual intrusion for surrounding properties 
- The planning officer should take consideration of all comments not just base 
decisions on building materials. 
- The site for these dwellings lies within the Sacred Heart Conservation Area. The 
proposed houses with their mix of brick, wood cladding and render are in total 
contrast to the stone gothic styled School House and the Grade Two listed 
church. These houses will replace the architecturally and historically much-loved 
building of the Old School House which was lost to arson and unlawful 
demolition. There appears to be no appreciation of the architectural style and 
design characteristics of the building that was lost to fire. The Council's own 
Design Quality Supplementary Planning Document seeks to ensure that the 
design of new buildings are in keeping with the local character and integrates into 
a setting. The applicant has failed to respond to the residential characteristics of 
the surrounding residential developments. After the fire planning officers at NTC 
made it clear that any proposals for this site should be within the footprint of the 
old School House and should be no greater in terms of scale, height and 
massing. The proposal of the 4 detached houses have a combined footprint of 
523 square metres. The footprint of the school house was 256 square metres. 
The proposed 4 dwellings represent a huge 104% increase in footprint size. Then 
add on parking spaces and gardens to the front and rear of these houses, this is 
clearly an overdevelopment of the site. The owner is attempting to squeeze as 
many houses as possible into this very small space to make a greater profit and 
should not be allowed. There is clear conflict with the requirements of National 
Planning Policy Framework and NTC's Local Plan and the application should be 
refused. 
- The first application was quite inappropriate for this site and the new revised 
plans are again inappropriate not only for the site but for the surrounding area.  
- I do think any development should be more in keeping with the Old School 
House – details of which are recorded in the History of the Old School House and 
Cottage in the Tyne and Wear Historic Environment Records. The core text 
states:  Rare survival in this area of Victorian Gothic Revival dates to circa 1865. 
‘Revival” in this area is not blessed with many historic buildings which puts extra 
value on the few that remain. The loss of the Old School House was therefore a 
very serious local loss to North Gosforth, Wideopen and the surrounding area.  
- Some appropriate dwelling for this historic site should be considered and not 
four unattractive, modernistic, out of character buildings which would be too big 
for the footprint of the old school house. Also, only one parking space per 
property would mean more parking in the now busy lane with cars, pedestrians, 
children, dogs, horses and people walking to schools and employment.  

Page 160



INIT 

- I would also strongly object to any trees being felled for this application as the 
wood has a conservation order and is an important part of the wildlife corridor 
especially now the Government and Councils are asking for and to be planted to 
help with global warming. It is and has been home for a century or more to nature 
and many varieties of wildlife and deer and should be maintained and preserved 
for future generations.  
- This is also an oasis for the local residents to filter the noise and pollution from 
the ever increasing traffic on Sandy Lane and the main road into Wideopen. The 
traffic on the road at the top of Sandy Lane cul de sac is now threefold since the 
Five Mile Park was built and will only get worse when the homes on the new sites 
in Hazelrigg are completed. Also, access to and from the Sandy Lane cul de sac 
should be considered in the light of the many new developments in the area and, 
of course, the additional cars associated with the proposed development.  
- Why is this land only being used for 4 houses, at least build something that will 
add to the community in the area, we only have a pub and a Co-Op along this 
road so rather turning this into more housing (which there's enough being built at 
the moment) turn it into something people can actually use (gym, shops, 
entertainment venue etc) 
If the land must be used for building purposes it shouldn't be for housing, there's 
an abundance already. 
- My understanding is that any development of the site had to use the existing 
sandstone blocks from The Old Schoolhouse building, which was destroyed in 
the fire(s). Unfortunately, the landowner has been allowed to remove the 
sandstone blocks from the site over a period of time. 
 
4.0 External Consultees 
4.1 Newcastle International Airport (NIA) 
4.2 The location is outside the airport noise contours, but given that it is an area 
that experiences noise I would recommend a noise informative is attached to any 
permission. 
 
4.3 The Northumberland and Newcastle Society (N&N) 
4.4 We understand this site has become vacant due to the destruction and 
demolition of the former school buildings which were a key element in the 
designation of the Sacred Heart Conservation Area. 
 
4.5 The Sacred Heart Conservation Area Character Appraisal states at para.6.1, 
page 19:- “the potential redevelopment of this site is a challenge for this 
conservation area”; and at para 5.5, p18:-“Any proposed redevelopment will be 
subject to intense scrutiny and extremely careful consideration to ensure it is 
deemed suitable for this sensitive site and be able to preserve or enhance the 
character and appearance of the conservation area.” 
 
4.6 The Design and Heritage Statement prepared by CEAD Architects to 
accompany application 20/01260/FUL refers on page 10 to an application 
17/01543/FUL which was refused on appeal. This was for eight holiday lets in an 
L shaped block. The negative points of the plans were highlighted in the refusal 
as being the location of the hardstanding built into the trees, the visual 
relationship to the trees and the failure to use the corner to its full potential. Photo 
1 on page 8 of the document shows how visually important what happens on the 
corner will be. These points were stated to have been adopted on page 11 of the 

Page 161



INIT 

Statement (Concept). The submitted scheme however was for four detached 
houses, which overcame the objection to the positioning of the area of 
hardstanding while ignoring in particular the last point concerning the corner 
treatment. After a negative response to the designs and materials but not to the 
concept of four detached houses this application was withdrawn, resulting in the 
current re-submission 21/01569/FUL. This redesigns the house types but does 
not address the previous requirement concerning the potential for the corner 
treatment. If it was considered to be of importance then, what has changed so 
that it is no longer considered a valid design element in the conservation area. 
 
4.7 The N&N considers the designs of both applications are fair examples of 
modern design with similarities in the use of steep pitched roofs, the breaking 
down of the massing and the angled orientation towards Sandy Lane. Neither is 
considered to address the challenges of this sensitive site, which were 
acknowledged in the Council’s documentation. The designs of the houses are 
repetitive and perhaps too many to achieve an appropriate treatment of the site. 
Both applications ignore the previously acknowledged importance of the corner 
site and the elevation to the B1318 road. The N&N considers it preferable for 
houses to be built on the site and would seek an amendment for an individual 
house at the corner would be more likely to address the issue satisfactorily. We 
do not support construction of a gymnasium but if this option were to be 
approved further consideration should be given to the orientation of the building 
and the location of the car parking. 
 
4.8 Newcastle City Council  
4.9 The application has been reviewed and is not considered to prejudice the 
interests of the City. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

Page 162



INIT 

 
 
 
Item No: 3   
Application 
No: 

22/02231/FUL Author: Maxine Ingram 

Date valid: 24 April 2023 : 0191 643 6322 
Target 
decision date: 

19 June 2023 Ward: Camperdown 

 
Application type: full planning application 
 
Location: Unit 8-10, Graphic House, Mylord Crescent, Camperdown 
Industrial Estate, Camperdown 
 
Proposal: Change of use from light industrial to operate as a base for 
emergency vehicles (sui generis)  
 
Applicant: FSNE Medical 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Application Permitted 
 
INFORMATION 
 
1.0  Summary Of Key Issues & Conclusions 
 
1.0 The main issues for Members to consider in this case are: 
-The principle of the development,  
-The impact on amenity (noise, residential amenity, and visual impacts), 
-The impact on highway safety, and, 
-Other issues.  
 
1.1 Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be 
determined in accordance with the development plan, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. Members need to consider whether this 
application accords with the development plan and also take into account any 
other material considerations in reaching their decision. 
 
2.0 Description of the Site 
2.1 The application site relates to Units 8-10 Graphic House within Camperdown 
Industrial Estate, which is an allocated site (Site E006) for employment uses in 
the Local Plan (LP) (2017). The site is located on the northern side of the 
industrial estate, with access from Mylord Crescent.  
 
2.2 The units are set back from the road. Parking is provided to the north and 
south of the units.  
 
2.3 Existing commercial uses are located to the east, south and west of the site. 
To the north the site is bound by a Public Right of Way (PRoW) beyond which 
lies agricultural land.  

Page 163

Agenda Item 8



INIT 

 
2.4 There are no parking restrictions to the front of the application site.  
 
2.5 Camperdown Industrial Estate has one access/egress from Station Road. To 
the southwest of this access/egress point and to the south side of Mylord 
Crescent are the residential properties of Silverbirch Drive.  
 
3.0 Description of the Proposed Development 
3.1 Planning permission is sought for a change of use from light industrial to 
operate as a base for emergency vehicles (sui generis). Members are advised 
that the site is already operational.  
 
3.2 No external alterations are proposed.  
 
3.3 Since the submission of the application the applicant has provided a further 
statement in response to the Environmental Health comments dated 19.05.2023:  
 
The industrial estate is already operating 24/7 with large HGVs coming from the 
industrial site at all times of the day and night.  
 
FSNE Medical have implemented a "no sirens use" direction to our staff when 
leaving the site. Staff do not activate their blue lights or sirens until they are on 
the roundabout Killingworth Way/Station Road. The exception of this, is when our 
crews are responding to a patient who is not breathing.  
 
FSNE Medical operate multiple contracts around the ambulance service network. 
This includes providing medical cover to events such as festivals and athletic 
events. Therefore out of the 27 vehicles, the only vehicles that would leave under 
emergency conditions, would be those on the NHS 999 contract. Therefore, this 
contract works on the following shifts: 
Vehicle 1 - 0600-1800  1800-0600 
Vehicle 2 - 0700-1900  1900-0700 
Vehicle 3 - 0600-1600  1600-0200 
 
Crews will return to station for their meal-breaks once a shift.  
 
The use of sirens is to respond to those who are in need of medical assistance. 
The team have implemented a no siren policy as above within the industrial 
estate and the entrance with the exception of those responding to patients who 
are no longer breathing and CPR is in progress. The North East Ambulance 
Service has several ambulance stations within the North Tyneside Council 
catchment all within a closer footprint to residential homes.  
 
Our recent CQC report gave praise to the location of the station as it allowed 
rapid access to main routes i.e. A1, A19 etc. Our team have recently responded 
to a C2 emergency which is deemed as a Time Critical Life Threatening 
Emergency within Silverbirch Drive. Our team came off their break and were on-
scene within 90 seconds of the 999 call.  
 
Other than the team returning for their meal break, it is very uncommon given the 
demand on the service for the vehicle to return during the day. Once the vehicle 

Page 164



INIT 

has left on its first emergency, they do not return until their break. It is also worth 
noting that sirens can be heard all day long in the area which is also contributed 
by Northumbria Police, Tyne and Wear Fire and Rescues Service and the North 
East Ambulance Service as they also respond in the area.  
 
The following selected sites are all located next to residential properties, some 
significantly closer than we are to Silverbirch Drive. Some of these sites also 
have a much greater frequency of siren use.  
 
Northumbria Specialist Hospital  
Backworth Ambulance Station  
Hawkeys Lane Ambulance Station  
Tynemouth Community Fire Station 
Wideopen Ambulance Station 
Wallsend Ambulance Station 
Debdon Gardens Ambulance Station 
Middle Engine Lane Police Station 
 
All of the above are based within the same distance and all have 24 hour 
responding emergency vehicles.  
 
I am struggling to understand where the Council would prefer a base for an 
Emergency Ambulance other than near residents. If the resources were based in 
the countryside, we would not get to patients in time to save their lives.  
 
3.4 The applicant has provided further information regarding staffing:   
 
During an operational day we have the following clinical staff who are out on 
emergency ambulances responding to 999 calls:  
 
Emergency Crews 
6's (24 hour rota) - 1 x Paramedic 1 x Emergency care assistant 
7's (24 hour rota) - 1 x Paramedic 1 x Emergency care assistant 
6's (20 hour rota) - 1 x Paramedic 1 x Emergency care assistant 
 
Patient Transport 
1100-2100 - 2 x Ambulance Care Assistants 
1300-2200 - 2 x Ambulance Care Assistants 
 
Management Team/Operations Team (9-5 Monday - Friday) 
2 x Divisional Commanders - Both have company rapid response vehicles which 
are parked within the grounds due to having drugs on board.  
1 x Operational Co-ordinator - Company response vehicle parked within the 
grounds 
1 x Rota co-ordinator - Public transport to work 
1 x Finance assistant - public transport 
1 x logistics technician - cycles to work - odd occasion drives 
 
I think it's a point to stress that we actually have the lease for all units on the site 
which when you take into account as a "light commercial" building is occupied by 
different companies, this would bring considerably more traffic to the site. We 

Page 165



INIT 

have been here for 1 year now and never had a complaint in relation to parking. 
We are not causing any obstruction and all the other units park on the road round 
the site. There are no yellow lines and there is more than enough space for 
HGVs to pass. 
 
4.0 Relevant Planning History 
4.1 The most recent planning history is set out below:  
 
4.2 Unit 10, Mylord Crescent  
20/01017/FUL - Proposed factory extension – Permitted 05.11.2020 
 
5.0 Development Plan 
5.1 North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) 
 
6.0 Government Policies 
6.1 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (July 2021) 
 
6.2 National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) (As amended) 
 
6.3 Planning applications must be determined in accordance with the 
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The NPPF 
is a material consideration in the determination of all applications. It requires 
Local Planning Authorities (LPAs) to apply a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development in determining development proposals. Due weight should still be 
attached to Development Plan policies according to the degree to which any 
policy is consistent with the NPPF. 
 
 
PLANNING OFFICERS REPORT 
 
7.1 The main issues for Members to consider in this case are: 
-The principle of the development,  
-The impact on amenity (noise, residential amenity, and visual impacts) 
-The impact on highway safety, and, 
-Other issues.  
 
7.2 Consultations responses and representations received as a result of the 
publicity given to this application are set out in the appendix to this report. 
 
8.0 Principle of the development 
8.1 The Local Plan (LP) was adopted in July 2017 to guide development in the 
period up to 2032. The council acknowledges that the policies contained within 
the LP predate the publication of the revised NPPF however, it is clear from 
paragraph 219 of the NPPF that: “However, existing policies should not be 
considered out-of-date simply because they were adopted or made prior to the 
publication of this Framework. Due weight should be given to them, according to 
their degree of consistency with this Framework (the closer the policies in the 
plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may be given).” 
The council considers that the LP policies set out in this report are consistent with 
the NPPF and can be afforded significant weight.  
 

Page 166



INIT 

8.2 The NPPF makes it clear that the purpose of the planning system is to 
contribute to the achievement of sustainable development. Achieving sustainable 
development means that the planning system has three overarching objectives: 
an economic objective; a social objective; and an environmental objective. 
Planning policies and decisions should play an active role in guiding development 
towards sustainable solutions, but in doing so should take local circumstances 
into account, to reflect the character, needs and opportunities of each area.  
 
8.3 The NPPF paragraph 11 makes it clear that plans and decisions should apply 
a presumption in favour of sustainable development. However, the presumption 
in favour of sustainable development does not change the statutory status of the 
development plan as the starting point for decision making. The NPPF paragraph 
12 states “Where a planning application conflicts with an up-to-date development 
plan permission should not normally be granted. Local Planning Authorities 
(LPA’s) may take decisions that depart from an up-to-date development plan, but 
only if material considerations in a particular case indicate that the plan should 
not be followed”.  
 
8.4 Paragraphs 81-83 of the NPPF set out the Government’s strategy for building 
a strong, competitive economy. Paragraph 81 states that planning policies and 
decisions should help create the conditions in which businesses can invest, 
expand and adapt, and that significant weight should be placed on the need to 
support economic growth and productivity, taking into account both local 
business needs and wider opportunities for development.  
 
8.5 LP Policy S2.2 ‘Provision of Land for Employment Development’ seeks to 
ensure an attractive and flexible supply of employment land is available to deliver 
the Council’s strategy for economic prosperity, job growth and investment over 
the plan period.  
 
8.6 LP Policy DM2.3 ‘Development Affecting Employment Land and Buildings’ 
states “The Council will support proposals on employment land, as shown on the 
Policies Map, for new or additional development for uses within use classes B1, 
B2 or B8 or that which is deemed ancillary. 
 
Proposals on identified employment land or other buildings in use-class B1, B2 or 
B8, for uses that could conflict with the development and regeneration of sites for 
economic development, will be permitted where these proposals would not: 
a. Result in the unacceptable loss of operating businesses and jobs; and, 
b. Result in an excessive reduction in the supply of land for development for 
employment uses, taking into account the overall amount, range, and choice 
available for the remainder of the plan period; and, 
c. Have an adverse impact upon the amenity and operation of neighbouring 
properties and businesses.” 
 
8.7 Camperdown Industrial Estate is an allocated site for employment uses in 
Policy S2.2 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). The Local Plan Polices Map 
also identifies reserved employment land.  
 
8.8 Policy S2.2 of the Local Plan defines employment uses as those in the former 
use class of B1 (now part of the wider definition of the E Class) and the extant 

Page 167



INIT 

use class B2 and B8. Policy DM 2.3 of the Local Plan aims to support proposals 
for B8 uses on employment sites. Members are advised that the proposed use 
does not fall within the preferred use classes set out in Policies S2.2 and DM2.3 
as it is a sui-generis use.  
 
8.9 The supporting information advises that the site is to be used as base for 
emergency vehicles, ambulances. The applicant has advised that 27 vehicles will 
operate from this site. The contract requires medical cover to be provided at 
events i.e.  festivals and athletic events and to respond to calls for those in need 
of medical assistance.  
 
8.10 Members need to consider whether the proposed sui-generis use is 
acceptable on an allocated site for employment uses. It is officer advice that 
whilst the proposed use does not fall within the preferred use classes set out in 
Policies S2.2 and DM2.3, it is not considered that it would result in a significant 
reduction in the supply of employment land when considering the overall amount, 
range, and choice available for the remainder of the plan period. The impacts of 
the proposed use upon the amenity and operation of neighbouring properties and 
businesses will be considered in a latter part of this report. Members need to 
determine whether the principle of the proposed development is acceptable. It is 
the view of officers that the principle of the proposed development is considered 
to be acceptable, subject to all other material considerations set out below being 
addressed.  
 
9.0 Impact on amenity (noise, residential amenity, and visual impacts) 
9.1 Paragraph 185 of the NPPF states that planning decisions should ensure that 
new development is appropriate for its location considering the likely effects 
(including cumulative effects) of pollution on health, living conditions and the 
natural environment, as well as the potential sensitivity of the site or the wider 
area to impacts that could arise from the development. In doing so, they should 
amongst other matters; mitigate and reduce to a minimum potential adverse 
impact resulting from new development – and avoid noise giving rise to 
significant adverse impacts on health and quality of life.  
 
9.2 LP Policy S1.4 ‘General Development Principles’ of the Local Plan states that 
development proposals should be acceptable in terms of their impact upon local 
amenity for new or existing residents and businesses, adjoining premises and 
land uses. 
 
9.3 LP Policy DM5.19 ‘Pollution’ states, amongst other matters, development that 
may cause pollution will be required to incorporate measures to prevent or 
reduce pollution so as not to cause unacceptable impacts to the environment, to 
people and to biodiversity. Potentially polluting development will not be sited near 
to sensitive areas unless satisfactory mitigation measures can be demonstrated.  
 
9.4 One objection from a resident of Silverbirch Drive has been received. Specific 
objections relating to noise, nuisance and disturbance are noted. The objection 
raised regarding the site operating without planning permission is not a material 
planning consideration. The objection raised regarding consultation for residents 
to comment on the qualitative change in the nature of the environment is noted. 
Members are advised that the LPA is required to comply with statutory 

Page 168



INIT 

consultation requirements. In this case, the LPA notified in writing properties 
immediately adjacent to the site which complies with the statutory consultation 
requirements. However, as Camperdown Industrial Estate only has one point of 
access/egress, site notices were displayed either side of the junction leading to 
the residential properties of Silverbirch Drive. These are the only residential 
properties sited on this industrial estate.  
 
9.5 Members are advised that the Manager for Environmental Health initially 
recommended refusal of this application. In response to those comments the 
applicant provided further information for consideration. This additional 
information has been considered by the Manager for Environmental Health.  
 
9.6 The residential properties of Silverbirch Drive are located to the southwest of 
the only point of access/egress serving Camperdown Industrial Estate and to the 
south side of Mylord Crescent. The rear gardens serving Nos. 1 and 19-28 
Silverbirch Drive back onto Mylord Crescent. The residential properties of Station 
Road lie to the east of the access/egress serving this industrial estate. To the 
north of this access/egress and to the east of the industrial estate are the 
residential properties of Atkin Street.  
 
9.7 Members are advised that noise from vehicles operating within the industrial 
estate on the adopted highway is outside the remit of statutory nuisance 
legislation. The use of emergency sirens is also outside the remit of statutory 
nuisance legislation, as it forms part of the operation of the vehicle on the 
highway.  
 
9.8 The Manager for Environmental Health has raised concerns regarding the 
proposed change of use as the site will operate on a 24/7 basis. Noise from the 
use of the blue lights for the emergency vehicles will cause disturbance to 
neighbouring residents. The applicant has advised that they operate a “no sirens 
use” policy at this site and drivers are instructed not to sound their sirens until the 
main highway at Killingworth Way/Station Road. Vehicles are operated on three 
shifts at the site and will only return to the site for breaks during the shift. The 
Manager for Environmental Health has advised that this will minimise the 
frequency of vehicles operating to and from the site during the night period.  
 
9.9 All vehicles operating from this site will need to pass the residential properties 
of Silverbirch Drive to enter and exit this industrial estate. The Manager for 
Environmental Health has advised that as the site operates a no siren use policy 
the use of emergency vehicles will be no different to any other industrial vehicle 
operating within the industrial estate. The no siren use policy will minimise 
potential nuisance for neighbouring properties and residents.  
 
9.10 The Manager for Environmental Health has advised if sirens sound 
frequently during the night period they are likely to above the World Health 
Organisation community noise guidelines. This guidance advises that the 
probability of being awakened increases with the frequency of noise events 
during the night period. The use of the siren once the vehicle is on the main 
highway of Killingworth Way/Station Road will be no different to any other 
emergency vehicle operating within that area.  
 

Page 169



INIT 

9.11 The NPPF, paragraph 55 states “Local Planning Authorities should consider 
whether otherwise unacceptable development could be made acceptable through 
the use of conditions or planning obligations.” Paragraph 56 states “Planning 
conditions should be kept to a minimum and only imposed where they are 
necessary, relevant to planning and to the development to be permitted, 
enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects.”  Although concerns 
have been raised by the Manager of Environmental Health, she has advised 
should planning permission be granted a condition is imposed restricting the use 
of the emergency vehicle sirens being sounded at the premises, when exiting the 
site, except for emergencies deemed time critical life threatening. Subject to the 
suggested conditions it is considered that the impacts on residential amenity can 
be appropriately mitigated for.  
 
9.12 Paragraph 134 of the NPPF states that development that is not well 
designed should be refused. 
 
9.13 LP Policy DM6.1 ‘Design of Development’ makes it clear that applications 
will only be permitted where they demonstrate high and consistent design 
standards. Amongst other matters proposed developments are responsive to 
their location, including topography, wildlife habitats, site orientation and existing 
buildings; ensuring a positive relationship to neighbouring buildings and spaces; 
ensuring sufficient parking is well integrated into the layout; and a good standard 
of amenity for existing and future residents.  
 
9.14 The ‘Design Quality’ SPD applies to all planning applications that involve 
building works.  
 
9.15 No external alterations are proposed. Parking provision is proposed to the 
north and south of the buildings. It is officer advice that the proposed use will not 
result in any harm to the visual amenity of the immediate surrounding area.  
 
9.16 Members need to determine whether the proposed development is 
acceptable in terms of its impact on the amenity of neighbouring and nearby 
properties and the character and appearance of the immediate surrounding area. 
It is officer advice that the proposed development is, subject to the imposition of 
the suggested conditions.  As such, it is officer advice that the proposed 
development accords with the advice in paragraph 185 of the NPPF and LP 
policies DM5.19 and DM2.3(c).  
 
10.0 Impact on highway safety  
10.1 The NPPF paragraph 111 makes it clear that development should only be 
prevented or refused on highway grounds if there would be an unacceptable 
impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network 
would be severe.  
 
10.2 The NPPF paragraph 112 states, amongst other matters, that applications 
for development should give priority first to pedestrian and cycle movements both 
within the scheme and with neighbouring areas and address the needs of people 
with disabilities and reduced mobility in relation to all modes of transport.  
 

Page 170



INIT 

10.3 LP Policy DM7.4 ‘New Development and Transport’ makes it clear that the 
Council will ensure that the transport requirements of new development, 
commensurate to the scale and type of development, are taken into account and 
seek to promote sustainable travel to minimise environmental impacts and 
support resident’s health and well-being.  
 
10.4 The Council’s maximum parking standards are set out in the Transport and 
Highways SPD.  
 
10.5 The objections received regarding the impact on inadequate parking 
provision and parking on the adjacent highway are noted.  
 
10.6 The applicant has proposed further information regarding staffing and 
parking. This information is set out in Section 3 of this report.  
 
10.7 Within the site there are 35 parking spaces. Vehicles will utilise the existing 
access/egress from Mydlord Crescent. To the front of the site there are no 
parking restrictions i.e. double yellow lines.  
 
10.8 The Highways Network Manager has been consulted. He considers that an 
appropriate level of parking provision is being proposed. He is recommending 
conditional approval.  
 
10.9 Members need to determine whether the proposed development is 
acceptable in terms of its impact on the highway network and existing parking 
provision. It is officer advice that it is. The proposed development accords with 
both national and local planning policies.  
 
11.0 Other Issues  
11.1 Strategic Policy Area  
11.2 Policy AS8.24 ‘The North West Villages Sub Area’ seeks to encourage and 
support the availability of good public transport and active travel options, improve 
the public realm and work positively with owners of vacant sites to bring them 
back into use.  
 
11.3 It is the view of officers that this development will not impact the aims of 
Policy AS8.24. 
 
12.0 Local Financial Considerations 
12.1 Paragraph 11 of National Planning Practice Guidance states that Section 
70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) provides that a 
local planning authority must have regard to a local financial consideration as far 
as it is material.  Section 70(4) of the 1990 Act (as amended) defines a local 
financial consideration as a grant or other financial assistance that has been, will 
or that could be provided to a relevant authority by a Minister of the Crown (such 
as New Homes Bonus payments) or sums that a relevant authority has received, 
or will or could receive, in payment of Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). 
 
12.2 Whether or not ‘a local financial consideration’ is material to a particular 
decision will depend on whether it could help make the development acceptable 
in planning terms.  It is not considered that New Homes Bonus or CIL 

Page 171



INIT 

contributions are material in terms of making this development acceptable in 
planning terms. 
 
13.0 Conclusion 
13.1 Members need to determine whether the proposed development is 
acceptable in terms of the principle of the development, its impact on amenity 
and its impact on highways. It is the view of officers that the proposed 
development is acceptable. As such, officers consider that the proposed 
development does accord with national and local planning policies. Approval is 
recommended. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Application Permitted 
 
 
Conditions/Reasons 
 
1.    The development to which the permission relates shall be carried out in 
complete accordance with the following approved plans and specifications: 
         -Location plan Dwg No. 1719-1 
         -Existing site plan Dwg No. 1719-2 
         -Proposed site plan Dwg No. 1719-3 
         -Existing ground floor plan Dwg No. 1719-4 
         -Proposed ground floor plan Dwg No. 1719-5 
         Reason:  To ensure that the development as carried out does not vary from 
the approved plans. 
 
2.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, the scheme for parking and turning of vehicles 
shall be laid out in accordance with the approved plan Dwg No. 1719-5. These 
parking areas shall not be used for any other purpose and retained thereafter. 
         Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having 
regard to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
3.    Emergency vehicle sirens shall not be sounded at the premises when exiting 
the site, except for emergencies deemed time critical life threatening.  
         Reason:  In order to safeguard the amenities of adjoining properties and 
nearby properties and protect them from undue noise and disturbance having 
regard to policy DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
          
          
 
 
Statement under Article 35 of the Town & Country (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015): 
 
 
The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the 
economic, social and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises 
sustainable development and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively 
and positively to issue the decision without delay. The Local Planning Authority 

Page 172



INIT 

has therefore implemented the requirements in Paragraph 38 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 
 
 
Informatives 
 
 
Building Regulations Required  (I03) 
 
 
Consent to Display Advertisement Reqd  (I04) 
 
 
The applicant is advised that it is an offence to obstruct the public highway 
(footway or carriageway) by depositing materials without obtaining beforehand, 
and in writing, the permission of the Council as Local Highway Authority. Such 
obstructions may lead to an accident, certainly cause inconvenience to 
pedestrians and drivers, and are a source of danger to children, elderly people 
and those pushing prams or buggies. They are a hazard to those who are 
disabled, either by lack of mobility or impaired vision. Contact 
Highways@northtyneside.gov.uk for further information.  
 
 
The applicant is advised that a license must be obtained from the Local Highway 
Authority for any scaffold placed on the footway, carriageway verge or other land 
forming part of the highway. Contact Streetworks@northtyneside.gov.uk for 
further information. 
 
 
The applicant is advised that, the site abuts adopted highway, if access to this 
highway is to be restricted during the works the applicant must contact the Local 
Highway Authority to obtain a temporary footpath closure. Contact 
Streetworks@northtyneside.gov.uk for further information. 
 
 
The applicant is advised that they should contact the Local Highway Authority to 
arrange for an inspection of the highways adjacent to the site. The applicant 
should be aware that failure to do so may result in the Council pursuing them for 
costs of repairing any damage in the surrounding area on completion of 
construction. Contact Highways@northtyneside.gov.uk for further information. 
 
 
No Doors Gates to Project Over Highways  (I10) 
 
 
Take Care Proximity to Party Boundary  (I21) 
 
 
Advice All Works Within Applicants Land  (I29) 
 
 

Page 173



INIT 

Coal Mining Standing Advice (FUL,OUT)  (I44) 
 
 
  

Page 174



INIT 

 
 

 

 
Application reference: 22/02231/FUL 
Location: Unit 8-10, Graphic House, Mylord Crescent, Camperdown 
Industrial Estate  
Proposal: Change of use from light industrial to operate as a base for 
emergency vehicles (sui generis) 

Not to scale © Crown Copyright and database right 
2011.  Ordnance Survey Licence Number 
0100016801 

 

Date: 31.05.2023 

 

Page 175



INIT 

Appendix 1 – 22/02231/FUL 
Item 3 
 
Consultations/representations 
 
1.0 Internal Consultees 
1.1 Manager for Environmental Health (Pollution) 
1.2 The premises are located within a dedicated industrial estate, however, 
residential properties are located to the south of the site in Silverbirch Drive and 
to the east on Atkin Street and Station Road. I have concerns with regard to the 
change of use as the site will operate on a 24/7 basis. Noise from the use of the 
blue lights for the emergency vehicles will result in causing disturbance to 
neighbouring residents. 
 
1.3 I have reviewed the additional information provided by the applicant regarding 
the management of the emergency vehicles at the site. Noise from vehicles 
operating within the industrial estate on the adopted highway is outside the remit 
of statutory nuisance legislation. Road traffic noise is considered anonymous 
noise unlike noise from the use of sirens, which would result in causing 
disturbance to neighbouring residents if used within the vicinity of the residential 
properties. The use of emergency sirens is also outside the remit of statutory 
nuisance legislation, as it forms part of the operation of the vehicle on the 
highway. However, associated noise from the use of sirens will result in 
disturbance and affect amenity. The applicant has confirmed that they operate a 
"no sirens use" policy at the base and drivers are instructed not to sound their 
sirens until the main highway at Killingworth Way/Station Road. Vehicles are 
operated on 3 shifts at the site and will only return to the base for meal breaks 
during the shift, which will minimise the frequency of the vehicles operating to 
and from the base during the night period. 
 
1.4 Residential properties at Silverbirch Drive are located to the south of the 
industrial estate and the vehicles will need to pass these properties to exit the 
estate but given the 'no siren' policy at the base, their use will be no different to 
any other industrial vehicle operating within the industrial estate. As the site 
operates a no siren use policy at the base then this will minimise potential 
nuisance for neighbouring residents. Sirens if sounded frequently during the night 
period are likely to be above the WHO community noise guidelines of 45 dB 
LAMAX. The WHO community noise guidance advises that the probability of 
being awakened increases with the frequency of noise events during the night 
period. The use of the siren once the vehicle is on the main highway of 
Killingworth Way/Station Road will be no different to any other emergency vehicle 
operating within that area. If planning consent is to be given, then I would 
recommend a condition is attached to restrict the use of the emergency vehicle 
sirens being sounded at the premises, when exiting the site, except for 
emergencies deemed time critical life threatening. 
 
1.5 Highways Network Manager  
1.6 This application is for a change of use from light industrial to operate as a 
base for emergency vehicles. The site is long-established, access remain 
unchanged, and an appropriate level of parking is being proposed. Whilst it is 
noted that there is some level of on-street parking that takes place throughout the 

Page 176



INIT 

wider industrial estate, the impact of this proposal on the adjacent highway is not 
considered to be severe under guidance in the NPPF. Conditional approval is 
recommended. 
  
1.7 Recommendation - Approval 
 
1.8 Condition: 
Notwithstanding the details submitted, the scheme for parking and turning of 
vehicles shall be laid out in accordance with the approved plans. These parking 
areas shall not be used for any other purpose and retained thereafter. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having regard 
to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
1.9 Informatives: 
The applicant is advised that it is an offence to obstruct the public highway 
(footway or carriageway) by depositing materials without obtaining beforehand, 
and in writing, the permission of the Council as Local Highway Authority. Such 
obstructions may lead to an accident, certainly cause inconvenience to 
pedestrians and drivers, and are a source of danger to children, elderly people 
and those pushing prams or buggies.  They are a hazard to those who are 
disabled, either by lack of mobility or impaired vision. Contact 
Highways@northtyneside.gov.uk for further information. 
 
The applicant is advised that a license must be obtained from the Local Highway 
Authority for any scaffold placed on the footway, carriageway verge or other land 
forming part of the highway. Contact Streetworks@northtyneside.gov.uk for 
further information. 
 
The applicant is advised that, the site abuts adopted highway, if access to this 
highway is to be restricted during the works the applicant must contact the Local 
Highway Authority to obtain a temporary footpath closure. Contact 
Streetworks@northtyneside.gov.uk for further information. 
 
The applicant is advised that they should contact the Local Highway Authority to 
arrange for an inspection of the highways adjacent to the site. The applicant 
should be aware that failure to do so may result in the Council pursuing them for 
costs of repairing any damage in the surrounding area on completion of 
construction. Contact Highways@northtyneside.gov.uk for further information. 
 
The applicant is advised that no part of the gates or doors may project over the 
highway at any time. Contact New.Developments@northtyneside.gov.uk  for 
further information. 
 
2.0 Representations  
2.1 One objection has been received. This objection is set out below:  
- Inadequate parking provision  
- Loss of residential amenity  
- Nuisance - disturbance  
- Poor/unsuitable vehicular access  
- Precedent will be set  
 

Page 177



INIT 

Residents who purchased houses in Silverbirch Drive have done so aware that 
we are adjacent to a light industrial estate. Commercial / HGV / employee cars 
traffic was 'part of the deal' from the outset. 
 
We did not anticipate a noise-making use. At the very least there should be full 
consultation with residents regarding this qualitative change in the nature of the 
environment. 
 
This is a matter of planning principle. This activity has started without permission 
and without any consultation at all. This needs to be properly tested and every 
opportunity given for residents to register concerns. 
 
Re parking: at present almost all staff vehicles are parked on the roadside and 
grass verges, doing damage. The application states that there will be a small 
number of onsite parking spaces but that staff will continue to park in surrounding 
streets. Is this consistent with planning regulations? 
 
External Consultees 
None  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

Page 178



INIT 

 
 
 
Item No: 4   
Application 
No: 

21/02496/FUL Author: Rebecca Andison 

Date valid: 16 December 2021 : 0191 643 6321 
Target 
decision date: 

10 February 2022 Ward: Riverside 

 
Application type: full planning application 
 
Location: Land Adjacent To Hatfield House, Borough Road, North Shields, 
Tyne And Wear 
 
Proposal: Erection of 5no. three storey townhouse style terraced dwellings, 
with communal parking and rear amenity space (REVISED PLANS AND 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION)  
 
Applicant: Low Town Developments 
 
 
Agent: Building Design (Northern) Ltd 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Application Permitted 
 
INFORMATION 
 
1.0  Summary Of Key Issues & Conclusions 
 
1.0 Main Issues 
1.1 The main issues for Members to consider are: 
- Principle; 
- Impact on the living conditions of surrounding occupiers, and whether the 
proposal would provide a sufficient residential living environment for future 
occupiers;  
- Design and impact on the character of the conservation area; 
- Impact on trees and biodiversity; and  
- Whether there is sufficient car parking and access provided. 
 
2.0 Description of the Site 
2.1 The application site is located on the south side of Borough Road, which lies 
to the south of North Shields Town Centre. It comprises a steep, vegetated 
embankment and is bisected by a column which supports Borough Road Bridge.  
The northern part of the site contains an advertising hoarding. 
 
2.2 The site is located between Borough Road and Tennyson Terrace, a 
residential street at the top of the embankment.  To the northwest is Hatfield 
House, a 4-storey apartment building, and to the southeast is Old Customs 
House, a grade II listed building also containing apartments.  

Page 179

Agenda Item 9



INIT 

 
2.3 The application site falls within the New Quay Conservation Area. 
 
3.0 Description of the Proposed Development 
3.1 Planning permission is sought for a development of 5no. three-storey town 
houses in a stepped terrace with amenity space and a communal car-parking 
area.  
 
3.2 The dwellings would be located to the west of the bridge column while the car 
park would be located to the east. Each property contains 4no. bedrooms and 
would be provided with amenity space at the rear.  It is proposed to retain a 
landscaped area between the easternmost dwelling and the bridge. 
 
4.0 Relevant Planning History 
19/01216/FUL - Erection of 6no. three storey townhouse style terraced dwellings, 
with communal parking and rear amenity space – Refused 02.09.2020 for the 
following reasons: 
 
1) The proposal would result in the loss of habitat and trees that would have an 
adverse impact upon biodiversity contrary to the advice in National Planning 
Policy Framework (2019) and policies DM5.5, DM5.7 and DM5.9 of the North 
Tyneside Local Plan 2017. 
 
2) Insufficient information on land stability has been submitted to demonstrate 
that the site could be developed safely and not affect adjacent land such as 
Tennyson Terrace.  The proposal is therefore contrary to the advice in National 
Planning Policy Framework (2019)and policy DM5.18 of the North Tyneside 
Local Plan 2017. 
 
3) The proposed design would have an adverse impact upon the character and 
appearance of the New Quay Conservation Area contrary to the advice in 
National Planning Policy Framework (2019) and policies DM6.1 and DM6.6 of the 
North Tyneside Local Plan 2017, and The Design Quality Supplementary 
Planning Document (2018). 
 
An appeal in respect of the above decision (20/00015/S78TPA) was dismissed 
on 09.04.2021.  The Inspector upheld refusal reasons 1 and 3 but dismissed 
reason 2. 
 
18/01497/FUL - Demolition of Borough Road Footbridge including works to the 
abutments and masonry walls at both bridge approaches, and stopping-up the 
existing public right of way including closing the footway off Tennyson Terrace. 
Permitted 04.02.2020 
 
5.0 Development Plan 
5.1 North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) 
 
6.0 Government Policy 
6.1 National Planning Policy Framework (July 2021) 
 
6.2 National Planning Practice Guidance (As Amended) 

Page 180



INIT 

 
6.3 Planning applications must be determined in accordance with the 
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The NPPF 
is a material consideration in the determination of all applications. It requires 
LPAs to apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development in determining 
development proposals. Due weight should still be attached to Development Plan 
policies according to the degree to which any policy is consistent with the NPPF. 
 
 
 
PLANNING OFFICERS REPORT 
 
7.0 Main Issues 
7.1 The main issues for Members to consider are: 
- Principle; 
- Impact on the living conditions of surrounding occupiers, and whether the 
proposal would provide a sufficient residential living environment for future 
occupiers;  
- Design and impact of the proposal on the character of the conservation area; 
- Impact on trees and biodiversity; and  
- Whether there is sufficient car parking and access provided. 
 
7.2 Consultation responses and representations received as a result of the 
publicity given to this application are set out in the appendix to this report. 
 
8.0 Principle 
8.1 Paragraph 7 of NPPF states that the purposed of the planning system is to 
contribute to the achievement of sustainable development.  
 
8.2 Paragraph 11 of NPPF introduces a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development, which amongst other matters states that decision takers should 
approve development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan 
without delay. 
 
8.3 Paragraph 60 of NPPF states that to support the Government’s objective of 
significantly boosting the supply of homes, it is important that a sufficient amount 
and variety of land can come forward where it is needed, that the needs of 
groups with specific housing requirements are addressed and that land with 
permission is developed without unnecessary delay. 
 
8.4 Paragraph 74 of NPPF requires local planning authorities to identify and 
maintain a rolling five-year supply of deliverable housing land.  This includes an 
additional buffer of at least 5%, in order to ensure choice and competition in the 
market for housing land. 
 
8.5 Paragraph 86 of NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should 
support the role that town centres play at the heart of local communities, by 
taking a positive approach to their growth, management and adaptation. 
 

Page 181



INIT 

8.6 Policy DM1.3 states that the Council will work pro-actively with applicants to 
jointly find solutions that mean proposals can be approved wherever possible that 
improve the economic, social and environmental conditions in the area. 
 
8.6 Policy S1.4 states that proposals for development will be considered 
favourably where it can be demonstrated that they would accord with the 
strategic, development or areas specific policies of the Local Plan. 
 
8.7 Policy S4.1 states that the full objectively assessed housing needs of North 
Tyneside will be met through the provision of sufficient specific deliverable 
housing sites, including the positive identification of brownfield land and 
sustainable Greenfield sites that do not fall within the Borough's Green Belt, 
whilst also making best use of the existing housing stock. 
 
8.8 Policy S4.3 specifically allocates sites to meet the overall housing needs.  
The application site is not allocated for housing in the Local Plan. 
 
8.9 Policy DM4.5 states that proposals for residential development on sites not 
identified on the Policies Map will be considered positively where they can:  
a. Make a positive contribution to the identified housing needs of the Borough; 
and, 
b. Create a, or contribute to an existing, sustainable residential community; and 
c. Be accessible to a range of sustainable transport modes; and 
d. Make the best and most efficient use of available land, whilst incorporating 
appropriate green infrastructure provision within development; and 
 e. Be accommodated by, and make best use of, existing infrastructure, and 
where further infrastructure requirements arise, make appropriate contribution to 
its provision; and 
f. Make a positive contribution towards creating healthy, safe, attractive and 
diverse communities; and, g. Demonstrate that they accord with the policies 
within this Local Plan. 
 
8.10 The development would provide 5no. new homes, which would contribute to 
meeting the housing needs of the borough in accordance with the NPPF and part 
(a) of Policy DM4.5. It is located in a sustainable location close to shops and 
services within North Shields town centre and bus stops on Saville Street 
West/Prudhoe Street. 
 
8.11 Having regard to the above; the principle of the proposed development is 
considered acceptable subject to consideration of the following matters: 
 
8.12 North Tyneside Council Housing Land Supply 
8.13 Paragraph 74 of National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) requires local 
planning authorities to identify and maintain a rolling five-year supply of 
deliverable housing land.  This includes an additional buffer of at least 5%, in 
order to ensure choice and competition in the market for housing land. 
 
8.14 The most up to date assessment of housing land supply informed by the 
five-year housing land summary included within the Housing Land Availability 
Assessment, November 2022. It identifies the total potential 5-year housing land 
supply in the borough at 4,008 additional dwellings, a total which includes 

Page 182



INIT 

delivery from sites yet to gain planning permission. This represents a shortfall 
against the Local Plan requirement or approximately a 3-year supply of housing 
land. It is important to note that this assessment of five-year land supply includes 
over 1,000 homes at proposed housing allocations within the Local Plan (2017). 
The potential housing land supply from this proposal is not included in this 
assessment. The proposed 5no. dwellings will make a small, but valuable 
contribution towards the borough achieving a five year housing land supply. 
 
9.0 Impact on the amenity of existing and future occupiers 
9.1 Paragraph 185 of NPPF states that planning decisions should ensure that 
new development is appropriate for its location taking into account the likely 
effects (including cumulative effects) of pollution.  In doing so they should 
mitigate and reduce to a minimum potential adverse impacts resulting from noise 
from new development, and avoid noise giving rise to significant adverse impacts 
on health and quality of life. 
 
9.2 The NPPF states that planning should always seek to ensure that 
developments 
create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health 
and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users. 
 
9.3 Policy S1.2 of the Local Plan states that the wellbeing and health of 
communities will be maintained and improved by amongst other matters requiring 
development to create an age friendly, healthy and equitable living environment. 
 
9.4 Policy S1.4 of the Local Plan states that development proposals should be 
acceptable in terms of their impact upon local amenity for new or existing 
residents and businesses, adjoining premises and land uses. 
 
9.5 DM5.19 states that development proposals that may cause pollution either 
individually or cumulatively of water, air or soil through noise, smell, smoke, 
fumes, gases, steam, dust, vibration, light, and other pollutants will be required to 
incorporate measures to prevent or reduce their pollution so as not to cause 
nuisance or unacceptable impacts on the environment, to people and to 
biodiversity. Development that may be sensitive (such as housing, schools and 
hospitals) to existing or potentially polluting sources will not be sited in proximity 
to such sources. Potentially polluting development will not be sited near to 
sensitive areas unless satisfactory mitigation measures can be demonstrated. 
 
9.6 Policy DM6.1 of the Local Plan states that proposals are expected to 
demonstrate a positive relationship to neighbouring buildings and spaces; a safe 
environment that reduces opportunities for crime and antisocial behaviour; and a 
good standard of amenity for existing and future residents and users of buildings 
and spaces. 
 
9.7 Policy DM4.9 states that to ensure that new homes provide quality living 
environments for residents both now and in the future and to help deliver 
sustainable communities, from the 1 October 2018 the following standards will 
apply, subject to site viability: 
 
Accessibility of homes: 

Page 183



INIT 

Market Housing  
a.For new housing developments, excluding low-rise non-lift serviced flats, 50% 
of homes are to meet building regulation M4(2) – ‘Category 2 -accessible and 
adaptable dwellings’.  
 
Affordable Housing 
b. For all new housing developments, excluding low-rise non-lift serviced flats, 
90% of homes should meet building regulation M4(2) – ‘accessible and adaptable 
dwellings’. 
c. 10% of new homes where the local authority is responsible for allocating or 
nominating a person to live in that dwelling should meet building regulation M4 
(3) (2) (b). When providing for wheelchair user housing, early discussion with the 
Council is required to obtain the most up-to-date information on specific need in 
the local area. Where there is no specific need identified, then M4 (3) (2) (a) will 
apply, to allow simple adaptation of the dwelling to meet the future needs of 
wheelchair users. 
 
Internal Space in a Home: 
d. All new homes, both market and affordable, will meet the Government’s 
Nationally Described Space Standard (NDSS). 
 
9.8 The Design Quality Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) states: “The 
quality of accommodation provided in residential development contributes 
significantly to the quality of life of residents and reduces energy use. Residential 
schemes should provide accommodation of a good size, a good outlook, 
acceptable shape and layout of rooms and with main habitable rooms receiving 
daylight and adequate privacy.” 
 
9.9 The proposed development is located to the northeast of residential dwellings 
on Tennyson Terrace.  The difference in land levels means that the apex of the 
roof would project approximately 4m (max) above the ground level of Tennyson 
Terrace with the eaves projecting approximately 2m above ground level.  There 
would be a separation distance of approximately 15.6m between the rear 
elevations of Tennyson Terrace and the roof apex of the development.  A 
distance of 12.6m would exist between the eaves of the development and the 
rear of Tennyson Terrace. 
 
9.10 When taking into account the location of the development to the northeast of 
Tennyson Terrace, the difference in land levels and the fact that the pitched roof 
slopes away from the shared boundary it is officer opinion that the impact on light 
and outlook is acceptable. 
 
9.11 It is noted that the rear elevations of Tennyson Terrace overlook the rear of 
the proposed dwellings. However, each of the dwellings on Tennyson Terrace 
and the proposed dwellings would have a rear fence of at least 1.8m in height.  
These fences combined with the steep angle of the embankment would limit the 
overlooking between the properties.  In addition, the main windows are located 
within the front elevation of the development with only office, bathroom windows 
and glazed doors facing Tennyson Terrace.  It is therefore officer opinion that the 
impact on privacy is acceptable. 
 

Page 184



INIT 

9.12 There are no windows in the flank elevation of Hatfield House overlooking 
the proposed dwellings and the bridge piers of the Borough Road bridge would 
screen the proposed dwellings from Old Customs House to the southeast. 
 
9.13 The proposed 4-bedroom dwellings have a floor area of approximately 120 
sqm which complies with the Government’s Nationally Described Space 
Standard (NDSS).   
 
9.14 The main living accommodation is towards the front of the dwellings and all 
the living area and bedrooms are provided with windows facing Borough Road 
which would give acceptable levels of light and outlook.  Each property would be 
provided with a steeply sloping rear garden and an external courtyard.  A small 
planted area would also be created at the front of the development to provide 
separation from the highway.  The level of outdoor space is considered to be 
acceptable when taking into account the urban character of the area and the 
constraints of the site. 
 
9.15 The Manager of Environmental Health (Pollution) has been consulted and 
provided comments.  She notes the potential for residents to be affected by noise 
from traffic and activity on the quayside.  To protect residents from noise 
conditions in respect of noise and ventilation schemes are recommended. 
 
9.16 Members need to determine whether the proposed development is 
acceptable in terms of its impact on existing residents and whether acceptable 
living conditions would be provided for future occupiers. It is officer advice that 
the impact on existing and future residents, in terms of noise, light, outlook and 
privacy is acceptable, and that the proposed development accords with the NPPF 
and LP Policies DM5.19, DM4.9 and DM6.1.  
 
10.0 Impact on Character and Appearance 
10.1 The Local Planning Authority must have regard to its statutory duty to 
ensure the preservation and enhancement of the character and appearance of 
conservation areas, as outlined in section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings 
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. It must also have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving the listed building or its setting or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest which it possesses under section 66 of the same 
Act. 
 
10.2 NPPF states that the creation of high-quality buildings and places is 
fundamental to what the planning and development process should achieve.  
Development should be visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout 
and appropriate and effective landscaping; be sympathetic to the local character 
and history, including the surrounding built environment and landscape setting; 
and establish or maintain a strong sense of place. 
 
10.3 Development that is not well designed should be refused, especially where it 
fails to reflect local design policies and government guidance on design, taking 
into account any local design guidance and supplementary planning documents 
such as design guides and codes (NPPF para. 134). 
 

Page 185



INIT 

10.4 Par.199 of NPPF states that when considering the impact of a proposed 
development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight 
should be given to the asset’s conservation (and the more important the asset, 
the greater the weight should be). This is irrespective of whether any potential 
harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less than substantial harm to its 
significance. 
 
10.5 Para.200 states that any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated 
heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development within its 
setting), should require clear and convincing justification.   
 
10.6 NPPF para.201 states that where a proposed development will lead to 
substantial harm to (or total loss of significance) of a designated heritage asset, 
local planning authorities should refuse consent, unless it can be demonstrated 
that the substantial harm or loss is necessary to achieve substantial public 
benefits that outweigh that harm or loss. 
 
10.7 Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the 
significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against 
the 
public benefits of the proposal, including securing its optimum viable use 
(para.202). 
 
10.8 NPPF para.206 states that local planning authorities should look for 
opportunities for new development within Conservation Areas and World 
Heritage Sites, and within the setting of heritage assets, to enhance or better 
reveal their significance. Proposals that preserve those elements of the setting 
that make a positive contribution to the asset (or which better reveal its 
significance) should be treated favourably. 
 
10.9 Policy DM6.1 of the Local Plan states that applications will only be permitted 
where they demonstrate high and consistent design standards. Designs should 
be specific to the place, based on a clear analysis the characteristics of the site, 
its wider context and the surrounding area. 
 
10.10 Policy S6.5 states that the Council aims to pro-actively preserve, promote 
and enhance its heritage assets. 
 
10.11 Policy DM6.6 states that proposals that affect heritage assets or their 
settings, will be permitted where they sustain, conserve and, where appropriate, 
enhance the significance, appearance, character and setting of heritage assets in 
an appropriate manner. As appropriate, development will: 
 
a. Conserve built fabric and architectural detailing that contributes to the heritage 
asset’s significance and character; 
b. Repair damaged features or reinstate missing features and architectural 
detailing that contribute to the heritage asset’s significance; 
c. Conserve and enhance the spaces between and around buildings including 
gardens, boundaries, driveways and footpaths; 
d. Remove additions or modifications that are considered harmful to the 
significance of the heritage asset; 

Page 186



INIT 

e. Ensure that additions to heritage assets and within its setting do not harm the 
significance of the heritage asset; 
f. Demonstrate how heritage assets at risk (national or local) will be brought into 
repair and, where vacant, re-use, and include phasing information to ensure that 
works are commenced in a timely manner to ensure there is a halt to the decline; 
g. Be prepared in line with the information set out in the relevant piece(s) of 
evidence and guidance prepared by North Tyneside Council; 
h. Be accompanied by a heritage statement that informs proposals through 
understanding the asset, fully assessing the proposed affects of the development 
and influencing proposals accordingly. 
 
Any development proposal that would detrimentally impact upon a heritage asset 
will be refused permission, unless it is necessary for it to achieve wider public 
benefits that outweigh the harm or loss to the historic environment and cannot be 
met in any other way. 
 
10.12 Relevant sections of the Design Quality SPD include: 
 
4.2 “The appearance and materials chosen for a scheme should create a place 
with a locally inspired or otherwise distinctive character. Identifying whether there 
are any architectural features or specific materials that give a place a distinctive 
sense of character should be a starting point for design.” 
 
4.3 “The scale, mass and form of new buildings are some of the most important 
factors in producing good design and ensuring development integrates into its 
setting.” 
 
5.3 “North Tyneside's historic environment creates a sense of place, well-being 
and cultural identity for the borough…..New buildings clearly need to meet 
current needs and reflect the availability of modern materials and techniques 
while also respecting established forms and materials that contribute towards the 
character of an area. As with all development, understanding significance of the 
place is crucial.” 
 
5.3 “Development within the curtilage of heritage assets must have full regard to 
the following:  
a) The heritage asset should be retained as the visually prominent building. 
b) The special architectural and visual qualities of the area or asset and their 
setting.  
c) The pattern of existing development and routes through and around it.  
d) Important views.  
e) The scale, design, detail and character of neighbouring buildings.  
f) Any potential impacts of the proposed development on heritage assets and 
their setting.” 
 
10.13 The Fish Quay Neighbourhood Plan SPD was adopted in 2013.  Relevant 
points from Section 4 Design Principles include: 
 
4.2.1 Respect what has gone before, ensuring new design makes a positive 
contribution to the neighbourhood, and is created within the context.  

Page 187



INIT 

4.2.2 Pastiche old design, that is, design that imitates being old, will generally not 
be supported. Good quality modern design is more appropriate.  
4.2.3 New development should make a positive contribution through sensitive 
design that is developed specifically in relation to the site in question. 
4.3.2 New development should preserve or enhance the wildlife corridor. 
4.5.2 Should be generally between three and five storeys, and could be as low as 
one or two storeys nearer the water’s edge. 
4.9.1 Should use materials that are sympathetic to the surroundings but which 
also add to the diversity of the area.  
4.9.2 Should generally be traditional and natural (particularly in development 
which is designed in traditional styles), but also with minimal sensitive use of 
modern man-made materials. 
 
10.14 The application site is located within the New Quay Conservation Area 
adjacent to a grade II listed building.  It occupies a prominent embankment 
position, overlooking the adjacent Borough Road and is clearly visible on the 
approach to the town centre from the riverside.  The site sits between the grade II 
listed Old Custom House and a more modern building at Hatfield House. The 
predominant roof form of both these buildings and the surrounding residential 
properties is pitched.  Hatfield House is constructed mainly from red brick with 
cream bricks around the base of the building, while Old Customs House is a 
stone building.  On the opposite side of Borough Road is a vegetated 
embankment. 
 
10.15 5no. 3-storey town houses are proposed in a staggered terrace which 
would be set back slightly from the edge of Borough Road.  The height of the 
proposed development is significantly lower than Hatfield House and steps down 
to reflect the slope in ground level from north to south along Borough Road.  As 
such it is officer opinion that the height and scale of the development are 
appropriate for the site. 
 
10.16 The proposed dwellings have pitched roofs and would be constructed from 
dark grey/brown brickwork with brick detailing and white mortar at ground floor 
level and light grey brick with white mortar at first and second floor levels with 
small sections of timber cladding and aluminium framed windows.  The rear 
amenity spaces would be enclosed by a 1.8m timber fence and the front amenity 
space would be enclosed by a low brick wall and railings. 
 
10.17 A Design and Access Statement has been submitted.  This explains that 
the ground floor has been designed to be taller and visually stronger, and the first 
and second floors shorter and simpler in detail.   This design is also reflected in 
the size of the windows on the front elevation - taller windows on the ground 
floor, followed by shorter windows on the first and second floors. 
 
10.18 A previous application for a development of 6no. flat roofed dwellings has 
been refused planning permission and one of the refusal reasons refers to the 
adverse impact of the design on the character and appearance of the New Quay 
Conservation Area.  The decision was upheld by the Planning Inspector when he 
determined the subsequent appeal.  The appeal decision states: 
 

Page 188



INIT 

 “the contemporary flat roofed form of the appeal scheme would not sufficiently 
reflect the historic roof forms that characterise this particular Conservation Area. 
Given the positioning of the appeal site, this would be evident from street level, 
particularly on approach to the quayside and more so from elevated points along 
the neighbouring bridge and surrounding higher ground.” 
 
10.19 The Inspector notes the flat roofed component of the neighbouring building 
and the more recent contemporary designed developments in the area. However, 
they did not consider that the proposal sufficiently referenced the prevailing 
important architectural roof form of the existing townscape to assimilate 
successfully with this important historic context and adequately articulate its 
significance.  The decision goes on to states that “Consequently, by virtue of its 
roof design, the appeal proposal would not adequately reflect the existing local 
distinctiveness of this particular Conservation Area.” 
 
10.20 The design of the development has been amended to address the 
Inspector’s comments regarding the roof design.  The proposed dwellings now 
have pitched roofs which is in keeping with the predominant roof form in the area.  
The Inspector did not raise any other concerns regarding the design of the 
development and stated that the construction materials could be agreed via a 
planning condition.  It is therefore officer opinion that the design of the proposal is 
acceptable. 
 
10.21 The appeal decision refers to the undeveloped nature of the site and states 
that this makes a positive contribution to the character and appearance of the 
conservation area.  The Inspector has regard to the cumulative visual impact of 
the proposed roof form and the loss of the important green space. 
 
10.22 The proposal would still result in the loss of greenspace and the relief that 
this currently provides within what is a predominantly built-up area.  However, the 
number of units has been reduced from six to five to allow a landscaped area to 
be retained within the site.  It is officer opinion that when taking into account the 
revisions that have been made to the design of the development the loss of 
greenspace would not represent sufficient grounds on which to refuse the 
application.  In the terms of the NPPF it is considered that the harm to the 
conservation area is at a level which can be described as being at the lower end 
of ‘less than substantial’.  
 
10.23 NPPF states that where a development results in less than substantial 
harm this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, 
including securing its optimum viable use.  LP Policy DM6.6 states that any 
development proposal that would detrimentally impact upon a heritage asset will 
be refused permission, unless it is necessary for it to achieve wider public 
benefits that outweigh the harm or loss to the historic environment and cannot be 
met in any other way. 
 
10.24 When the previous appeal was determined the Local Authority had a five 
year supply of housing land and therefore the Inspector attached only moderate 
weight to the delivery of additional homes.  This is no longer the case and there 
is now a shortfall against the requirement to maintain a 5-year supply.  The 
proposal would make a small but valuable contribution towards achieving a 5-

Page 189



INIT 

year housing land supply.  It is officer opinion that this is a benefit which should 
be afforded substantial weight. 
 
10.25 It would not be possible to deliver this benefit without losing the existing 
greenspace and the public benefits could not therefore be achieved in a less 
harmful way. 
 
10.26 The previous appeal decision states that the harm to the conservation area 
was derived from a combination of the loss of greenspace and the roof design.  
The roof design has been amended and it is officer opinion that the design and 
scale of the development is acceptable.  The loss of green space would result in 
less than substantial harm to the conservation area, and it is officer opinion that 
the benefits of providing additional homes in a sustainable location outweigh this 
harm.   
 
10.27 It is not considered that the development would harm the setting of the 
adjacent listed building.  This is view was also reached by the Planning Inspector. 
 
10.28 It is officer opinion that the development complies with the NPPF, Policies 
DM6.1 and DM6.6 of the North Tyneside Local Plan, the Fish Quay 
Neighbourhood Plan SPD and the Design Quality SPD.   
 
11.0 Landscaping and ecology 
11.1 An environmental role is one of the three dimensions of sustainable 
development according to NPPF, which seeks to protect and enhance our 
natural, built and historic environment by amongst other matters improving 
biodiversity. 
 
11.2 Paragraph 174 of NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should 
contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by minimising 
impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity, including by establishing 
coherent ecological networks that are more resilient to current and future 
pressures. 
 
11.3 Paragraph 180 of NPPF states that when determining planning application 
that if significant harm to biodiversity cannot be avoided, or as a last resort 
compensated for, then planning permission should be refused. 
 
11.4 Policy DM5.2 sets out that the loss of any part of the green infrastructure 
network will only be considered in the following exceptional circumstances:  
a. Where it has been demonstrated that the Site no longer has any value to the 
community in terms of access and function;  
b. If it is not a designated wildlife Site or providing important biodiversity value;  
c. If it is not required to meet a shortfall in the provision of that green space type 
or another green space type;  
d. The proposed development would be ancillary to use of the green 
infrastructure and the benefits to green infrastructure would outweigh any loss of 
open space. 
 

Page 190



INIT 

11.5 Policy S5.4 states that the Borough’s biodiversity and geodiversity 
resources will be protected, created, enhanced and managed having regard to 
their relative significance. 
 
11.6 Policy DM5.5 of the Local Plan states that all development proposals 
should: 
 
a. Protect the biodiversity and geodiversity value of land, protected and priority 
species and buildings and minimise fragmentation of habitats and wildlife links; 
and, 
b. Maximise opportunities for creation, restoration, enhancement, management 
and connection of natural habitats; and, 
c. Incorporate beneficial biodiversity and geodiversity conservation features 
providing net gains to biodiversity, unless otherwise shown to be inappropriate. 
 
Proposals which are likely to significantly affect nationally or locally designated 
sites, protected species, or priority species and habitats (as identified in the 
Biodiversity Action Plan), identified within the most up to date Green 
Infrastructure Strategy, would only be permitted where: 
d. The benefits of the development in that location clearly demonstrably outweigh 
any direct or indirect adverse impacts on the features of the site and the wider 
wildlife links; and, 
e. Applications are accompanied by the appropriate ecological surveys that are 
carried out to industry guidelines, where there is evidence to support the 
presence of protected and priority species or habitats planning to assess their 
presence and, if present, the proposal must be sensitive to, and make provision 
for, their needs, in accordance with the relevant protecting legislation; and, 
f. For all adverse impacts of the development appropriate on site mitigation 
measures, reinstatement of features, or, as a last resort, off site compensation to 
enhance or create habitats must form part of the proposals. This must be 
accompanied by a management plan and monitoring schedule, as agreed by the 
Council. 
 
11.7 Local Plan Policy DM5.6 states that proposals that are likely to have 
significant effects on features of internationally designated sites, either alone or 
in-combination with other plans or projects, will require an appropriate 
assessment. Proposals that adversely affect a site’s integrity can only proceed 
where there are no alternatives, imperative reasons of overriding interest are 
proven and the effects are compensated.  
 
11.8 Policy DM5.7 states that development proposals within a wildlife corridor 
must protect and enhance the quality and connectivity of the wildlife corridor. All 
new developments are required to take account of and incorporate existing 
wildlife links into their plans at the design stage. Developments should seek to 
create new links and habitats to reconnect isolated sites and facilitate species 
movement. 
 
11.9 Policy DM5.9 supports the protection and management of existing woodland 
trees, hedgerow and landscape features.  It seeks to secure new tree planting 
and landscaping scheme for new development, and where appropriate, promote 

Page 191



INIT 

and encourage new woodland, tree and hedgerow planting schemes and 
encouraging native species of local provenance. 
 
11.10 The Coastal Mitigation SPD contains additional guidance and information 
on the mitigation expected from development within North Tyneside to prevent 
adverse impacts on the internationally protected coastline. Development can 
adversely affect the Northumbria Coast Special Protection Area (SPA) /Ramsar 
through additional pressure from local residents and visitors.   It is proposed to 
introduce a coastal wardening service as part of a wider Coastal Mitigation 
Service that will implement a range of targeted and coordinated physical projects 
to mitigate the impacts at the coast. The SPD sets out a recommended developer 
contribution towards this service that would contribute to the avoidance or 
mitigation of adverse impacts on internationally protected species and habitats.   
 
11.11 The site is located within a designated Wildlife Corridor as shown on the 
Local Plan Policies Map (2017) and contains existing scrub and grassland habitat 
and semi-mature trees.  The application is supported by a Biodiversity Metric and 
a landscape scheme.  A Bat Survey, Arboricultural Impact Assessment (AIA) and 
tree condition report have also been submitted. 
 
11.12 The appeal decision made in respect of application 19/01216/FUL states 
that the submitted evidence did not provide sufficient certainty that the proposed 
development would not reduce habitat to an unacceptable level and disturb and 
fragment the wildlife corridor. The Inspector also stated that the proposal did not 
demonstrate that mitigation would be inappropriate.  The Inspector states 
“Moreover, given the constrained nature of the site, the absence of detailed 
mitigation proposals does not provide sufficient certainty that these impacts could 
be satisfactorily addressed on-site or compensated for elsewhere or that 
appropriate biodiversity net-gains would be attained.”   
 
11.13 There are 9no. existing trees within the site and 8no. of these would be 
removed to facilitate the development.  Other habitats that would be lost to 
facilitate the scheme include bramble scrub and modified grassland.  It is 
proposed to provide a small area of modified grassland, ground level planters, a 
green wall and vegetated gardens within the site along with the enhancement of 
small areas of bramble scrub to mixed native 
scrub and modified grassland to other neutral grassland. 5no. replacement trees 
are also proposed.  Overall, the scheme results in a biodiversity net loss of -
16.22%.   
 
11.14 In order to address the biodiversity loss the applicant has agreed to pay a 
financial contribution of £2,566 towards the delivery of additional planting on 
Council owned land to deliver an overall biodiversity net gain of 5%.  The 
Biodiversity Officer and Landscape Architect have provided comments and state 
that this acceptable. 
 
11.15 The development lies within 6km of the coast and therefore has the 
potential to impact on the Northumbria Coast SPA/Ramsar site through additional 
visitor disturbance. To mitigate this impact, in accordance with the Coastal 
Mitigation SPD, the developer has agreed to make a contribution of £337 per unit 
towards coastal mitigation. 

Page 192



INIT 

 
11.26 Members need to consider whether the impact on trees and ecology would 
be acceptable and weight this in their decision. It is officer advice that the impact 
is acceptable subject to the conditions recommended by the Landscape Architect 
and Biodiversity Officer and contributions towards the Coastal Mitigation Service 
and habitat creation.  It is considered that the proposal accords with the NPPF 
and LP policies S5.4, DM5.5, DM5.6, DM5.7 and DM5.9 and the Coastal 
Mitigation SPD. 
 
12.0 Whether there is sufficient car parking and access provided 
12.1 NPPF recognises that transport policies have an important role to play in 
facilitating sustainable development, but also contributing to wider sustainability 
and health objectives. 
 
12.2 All development that will generate significant amounts of movement should 
be required to provide a Travel Plan (TP), and the application should be 
supported by a Transport Statement (TS) or Transport Assessment (TA) so the 
likely impacts of the proposal can be fully assessed. 
 
12.3 Paragraph 111 of NPPF states that development should only be prevented 
or refused on highway grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on 
highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be 
severe. 
 
12.4 Policy DM7.4 seeks to ensure that the transport requirements of new 
development, commensurate to the scale and type of development, are take into 
account and seek to promote sustainable travel to minimise environmental 
impacts and support residents and health and well-being. 
 
12.5 The Transport and Highways SPD sets out the Council’s adopted parking 
standards. 
 
12.6 The site would be accessed via Borough Road and the development 
includes a car park containing 6no. parking bays. 
 
12.7 Whilst only 1no. parking space has been provided for each dwelling with 
1no. visitor bay, the site is located close to North Shields town centre with 
reasonable links to public transport and local services.  On this basis, the 
Highways Network Manager has no objection.  
 
12.8 NPPF is clear that that development should only be prevented or refused on 
highway grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or 
the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe. 
 
12.9 Having regard to the above, and subject to the conditions requested by the 
Highway Network Manager, it is officer advice that the proposal would not have 
an unacceptable impact on highway safety and complies with the advice in NPPF 
and policy DM7.4.  
 
13.0 Other issues 
13.1 Contaminated Land and Ground Stability 

Page 193



INIT 

13.2 Paragraph 184 of NPPF states that where are site is affected by 
contamination of land stability issues, responsibility for securing safe 
development rests with the developer and/or landowner. 
 
13.3 Policy DM5.18 ‘Contaminated and Unstable Land; states that where the 
future users or occupiers of a development would be affected by contamination 
or stability issues, or where contamination may present a risk to the water 
environment, proposals must be accompanied by a report.  
 
13.4 Refusal reason 2 of application 19/01216/ FUL refers to the failure to submit 
sufficient information on land stability to demonstrate that the site could be 
developed safely and not affect adjacent land such as Tennyson Terrace. 
 
13.5 In their assessment of the impact on land stability the Inspector noted that 
the site is on an embankment and that the proposal would require excavation and 
the removal of some substantial retaining walls.  They had regard to the fact that 
the applicant provided confirmation from a suitably qualified person that an 
effective scheme could be devised and implemented.  The Inspector considered 
that the proposal could mitigate against adversely impacting on land stability and 
this this could be dealt with via a suitably worded planning condition. 
 
13.6 The Contaminated Land Officer has provided comments. She states that the 
site is located within 100m of known landfill and recommends conditions to 
address potential contamination and in respect of gas protection measures. 
 
13.7 Taking into account the previous appeal decision it is officer advice that the 
impact on land stability and contamination can be adequately addressed via 
planning conditions.  
 
13.8 Subject to these conditions, it is officer advice that the proposal complies 
with policy DM5.18 of the Local Plan 2017.  
 
13.9 Flooding 
13.10 The National Planning Policy Framework states that when determining any 
planning applications, local planning authorities should ensure that flood risk is 
not increased elsewhere.  Where appropriate, applications should be supported 
by a site-specific flood-risk assessment. 
 
13.11 Policy DM5.12 of the Local Plan states that all major developments will be 
required to demonstrate that flood risk does not increase as a result of the 
development proposed, and that options have been undertaken to reduce overall 
flood risk from all sources, taking into account the impact of climate change over 
its lifetime. 
 
13.12 Policy DM5.14 states that applicants will be required to show, with 
evidence, they comply with the Defra technical standards for sustainable 
drainage systems (unless otherwise updated and/or superseded.  On brownfiled 
sites, surface water run off rates post development should be limited to a 
maximum of 50% of the flows discharged immediately prior to the development 
where appropriate and achievable.  For greenfield sites, surface water run off 

Page 194



INIT 

post development must meet or exceed the infiltration capacity or the greenfield 
prior to development incorporating an allowance for climate change. 
 
13.13 The site is located within Flood Zone 1 and is not within a Critical Drainage 
Area.  Hard surfacing is proposed within the car park, but the majority of the site 
taken up by the proposed dwellings. 
 
13.14 Subject to a condition to control the surface water drainage, it is officer 
advice that the proposal would not have an adverse impact in terms of flooding 
and would accord with the advice in NPPF and policies DM5.12 and DM5.14.  
 
13.15 Local Financial Considerations 
13.16 Paragraph 11 of National Planning Practice Guidance states that Section 
70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) provides that a 
local planning authority must have regard to a local financial consideration as far 
as it is material.  Section 70(4) of the 1990 Act (as amended) defines a local 
financial consideration as a grant or other financial assistance that has been, will 
or that could be provided to a relevant authority by a Minister of the Crown (such 
as New Homes Bonus payments) or sums that a relevant authority has received, 
or will or could receive, in payment of Community Infrastructure Levy. 
 
13.17 Whether or not ‘a local financial consideration’ is material to a particular 
decision will depend on whether it could help make the development acceptable 
in planning terms.  It is not considered that New Homes Bonus or CIL 
contributions are material in terms of making this development acceptable in 
planning terms. 
 
14.0 Conclusion 
14.1 Members should consider carefully the balance of issues before them and 
the need to take into account national policy within NPPF and the weight to be 
accorded to this as well as current local planning policy.  
 
14.2 Specifically, NPPF states that LPA’s should look for solutions rather than 
problems, and decision-takers at every level should seek to approve applications 
for sustainable development where possible. A core planning principle within 
NPPF requires that every effort should be made objectively to identify and then 
meet the housing, business and other development needs of an area, and 
respond positively to wider opportunities for growth.  
 
14.3 The Council does not have a 5-year housing land supply. The proposed 
development of 5no. homes would make a small but valuable contribution to the 
current shortfall. This is a significant benefit that weighs in favour of the proposal. 
 
14.4 It is officer advice that the proposal would ensure sufficient separation 
distances to neighbouring properties and would not have an adverse impact on 
the amenity of existing residents.  The standard of accommodation provided for 
future occupiers is also considered to be acceptable. 
 
14.5 It is officer opinion that the proposal would result in less than substantial 
harm to the character of the conservation area due to the loss of greenspace.  
When taking into account the revisions that have been made to the roof design 

Page 195



INIT 

and the inclusion of landscaping within the development, it is officer opinion that 
the public benefits of the development outweigh this less than substantial harm.  
The design and layout of the development are considered to be acceptable. 
 
14.6 It is considered that the level of parking proposed is acceptable when taking 
into account the sustainable location of the site.  The development would not 
have an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or result in a residual 
cumulative impact that would be severe. 
 
14.7 The development would subject to a S106 legal agreement achieve a net 
gain in biodiversity and would not impact on any protected habitats or species. 
 
14.8 The Council does not have a 5-year supply of deliverable housing sites.  It 
therefore follows that planning permission should be granted unless the impacts 
of the development significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits.  In the 
opinion of officer’s, the impacts of the development would not significantly and 
demonstrably outweigh the benefits.  It is therefore recommended that planning 
permission should be granted. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Application Permitted 
 
 
 
 
Conditions/Reasons 
 
1.    The development to which the permission relates shall be carried out in 
complete accordance with the approved plans and specifications. 
         - Application form 
         - Site location plan S1524-BDN-XX-XX-DR-A-0001 Rev.P1 
         - Proposed block plan S1524-BDN-XX-XX-DR-A-0004 Rev.P5 
         - Proposed elevation and section S1524-BDN-XX-XX-DR-A-0008 Rev.P4 
         - Proposed ground floor plan S1524-BDN-XX-GF-DR-A-0005 
         - Proposed first floor plan S1524-BDN-XX-01-DR-A-0006 Rev.P1 
         - Proposed second floor plan S1524-BDN-XX-02-DR-A-0007 Rev.P1 
         - Landscape plan S1524-BDN-XX-XX-DR-A-0009 Rev.P2 
         Reason: To ensure that the development as carried out does not vary from 
the approved plans. 
 
2. Standard Time Limit 3 Years FUL MAN02 * 

 
 
3.    No part of the development shall be occupied until a scheme for the following 
off-site highway works has been submitted to and approved by in writing the 
Local Planning Authority: 
         New access 
         Upgrade of footpath abutting the site 
         Associated highway drainage 
         Associated street lighting 

Page 196



INIT 

         Associated road markings 
         Associated signage 
         Associated Traffic Regulation Orders 
         The approved scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the details 
agreed and retained thereafter. 
         Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having 
regard to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
          
 
4.    No part of the development shall be occupied until the new means of access 
has been sited and laid out in accordance with the approved drawings. 
         Reason: In order to minimise danger, obstruction and inconvenience to 
users of the highway and of the access having regard to policy DM7.4 of the 
North Tyneside Local Plan 2017. 
 
5.    Vehicular visibility splays of 2.4m by 43m by 0.6m shall be provided in 
accordance with the approved details prior to occupation of the development and 
retained thereafter. 
         Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having 
regard to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
6.    The scheme for parking shall be laid out in accordance with the approved 
details prior to occupation of the development and retained thereafter. 
         Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having 
regard to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
7.    The scheme for the provision of and storage of refuse shall be laid out in 
accordance with the approved details prior to occupation of the development and 
retained thereafter. 
         Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having 
regard to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
8.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, no development shall commence until a 
Construction Method Statement for the duration of the construction period has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved statement shall: identify the access to the site for all site operatives 
(including those delivering materials) and visitors, provide for the parking of 
vehicles of site operatives and visitors; details of the site compound for the 
storage of plant (silos etc) and materials used in constructing the development; 
provide a scheme indicating the route for heavy construction vehicles to and from 
the site; a turning area within the site for delivery vehicles; dust suppression 
scheme (such measures shall include mechanical street cleaning, and/or 
provision of water bowsers, and/or wheel washing and/or road cleaning facilities, 
and any other wheel cleaning solutions and dust suppressions measures 
considered appropriate to the size of the development). The scheme must 
include a site plan illustrating the location of facilities and any alternative 
locations during all stages of development. The approved statement shall be 
implemented and complied with during and for the life of the works associated 
with the development. 
         Reason: This information is required pre development to ensure that the 
site set up does not impact on highway safety, pedestrian safety, retained trees 

Page 197



INIT 

(where necessary) and residential amenity having regard to policies DM5.19 and 
DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 
9.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, no development shall commence until a 
scheme to show wheel washing facilities and mechanical sweepers to prevent 
mud and debris onto the public highway has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. This scheme shall include details of the 
location, type of operation, maintenance/phasing programme. Construction shall 
not commence on any part of the development other than the construction of a 
temporary site access and site set up until these agreed measures are fully 
operational for the duration of the construction of the development hereby 
approved. If the agreed measures are not operational then no vehicles shall exit 
the development site onto the public highway.  
         Reason: This information is required pre development to ensure that the 
site set up does not impact on highway safety, pedestrian safety, retained trees 
(where necessary) and residential amenity having regard to policies DM5.19 and 
DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 
10. Gas Investigate no Development GAS00

6 
* 
 

 
11. Desk Study and Method Statement CON00

3 
* 
 

 
12. Site Investigation CON00

4 
* 
 

 
13. Remediation Method Statement CON00

5 
* 
 

 
14. Validation Report CON00

6 
* 
 

 
15. Unexpected Hotspots CON00

7 
* 
 

 
16.    Within one month from the start on site of any operations such as site 
excavation works, site clearance (including site strip) for the development, a fully 
detailed landscape plan and specification for on-site landscaping shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be 
in accordance with the approved Biodiversity Net Gain Assessment Report and 
Biodiversity Metric V15 (All About Trees March 2023). The landscape scheme 
shall include the planting of 5no trees on the site. Any trees, shrubs, grasslands 
or other habitats that die or are removed within five years of planting shall be 
replaced in the next available planting season with others of similar size and 
species. The landscaping scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details within the first available planting season following the approval 
of details. 

Page 198



INIT 

         Reason: To ensure a satisfactory standard of landscaping having regard to 
policies DM5.5 and DM5.9 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
17.    Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved (including 
demolition and all preparatory work), a scheme for the protection of the 1no. 
retained oak tree, in accordance with BS 5837:2012, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Details shall nclude a Tree 
Protection Plan showing the location and type of protective fencing. The fencing 
shall be erected in accordance with the approved details before any equipment, 
machinery or materials are brought onto the site for the purposes of the 
development and shall remain in place until the works are complete or unless 
otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. The protective 
fence is not to be repositioned without the approval of the Local Authority. 
Nothing shall be stored or placed within any fenced area, and the ground levels 
within those areas shall not be altered, nor shall any excavation be made, without 
the prior written consent of the local planning authority. 
         Reason: This information is required prior to development commencing in 
order to safeguard existing trees, the amenity of the site and locality, and in the 
interests of good tree management having regard to Policy DM5.9 of the North 
Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
18.    Within 4 weeks of development commencing a detailed 30 year 'Landscape 
and Ecological Management and Monitoring Plan' (LEMMP) for all 
landscaping/habitat creation within the application site, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This plan shall include details 
of site preparation, long-term design objectives, management and monitoring 
objectives, management responsibilities, timescales and maintenance schedules 
for all newly created and enhanced habitats within the site. Thereafter, these 
areas shall be managed and maintained in full accordance with these agreed 
details unless first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan will 
include details of the following:- 
         - Details on the creation, enhancement and management of all habitats 
identified within the Biodiversity Net Gain Report/Biodiversity Metric V15 (E3 
Ecology All About Trees February/March 2023) and approved Landscape Plan. 
         - Survey and monitoring details for all target habitats identified within the 
approved Net Gain Assessment Report/Biodiversity Metric. Monitoring Reports 
will be submitted to the LPA for review in years 3, 5 and 10 and 5 yearly 
thereafter, and will include a Net Gain Assessment update as part of the report to 
ensure the habitats are reaching the specified target condition. Any changes to 
habitat management as part of this review will require approval in writing from the 
LPA. The Plan will be reviewed every 5 years in partnership with the LPA. 
         - Details of any corrective action that will be undertaken if habitat delivery 
fails to achieve the requirements set out in the approved Biodiversity Net Gain 
Report/Biodiversity Metric. 
         Reason: To ensure a satisfactory standard of landscaping and in the 
interests of biodiversity; having regard to policies DM5.5 and DM5.9 of the North 
Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
19.    Prior to the installation of any floodlighting or other form of external lighting, 
a lighting scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. High intensity security lights will be avoided as far as practical 

Page 199



INIT 

and if required, these will be of minimum practicable brightness, be set on a short 
timer and will be motion sensitive only to larger objects.  Lighting must be 
designed to minimise light spill to adjacent boundary features such as woodland, 
scrub, grassland and hedgerow habitats and should be less than 2 lux in these 
areas. The Scheme shall include the following information: 
         - a statement of frequency of use, and the hours of illumination; 
         - a site plan showing the area to be lit relative to the surrounding area, 
indicating parking or access arrangements where appropriate, and highlighting 
any significant existing or proposed landscape or boundary features; 
         - details of the number, location and height of the proposed lighting 
columns or other fixtures; 
         - the type, number, mounting height and alignment of the luminaires; 
         - the beam angles and upward waste light ratio for each light; 
         - an isolux diagram showing the predicted illuminance levels at critical 
locations on the boundary of the site and where the site abuts residential 
properties or the public highway to ensure compliance with the institute of lighting 
engineers Guidance Notes for the reduction of light pollution to prevent light glare 
and intrusive light for agreed environmental zone ; and 
         - where necessary, the percentage increase in luminance and the predicted 
illuminance in the vertical plane (in lux) at key points. 
         The lighting shall be installed and maintained in accordance with the 
approved scheme. 
         Reason: To ensure that local wildlife populations are protected in the 
interests of ecology, having regard to the NPPF and Policy DM5.5 of the North 
Tyneside Local Plan. 
          
 
20.    Prior to development commencing a 'Precautionary Mammal/Hedgehog 
Working Method Statement' shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  The method statement shall thereafter be implemented 
in accordance with the approved details. 
         Reason: This information is required prior to development commencing in 
order to ensure that local wildlife populations are protected; in the interests of 
biodiversity; having regard to the NPPF and Local Plan Policy DM5.5. 
 
21.    No vegetation removal or building works shall take place during the bird 
nesting season (March-August inclusive) unless a survey by a suitably qualified 
ecologist has confirmed the absence of nesting birds immediately prior to works 
commencing. 
         Reason: To ensure that local wildlife populations are protected; in the 
interests of biodiversity; having regard to the NPPF and Local Plan Policy DM5.5. 
 
22.    Any excavations left open overnight shall be provide with a means of 
escape for mammals that may become trapped in the form of a ramp at least 
300mm in width and angled no greater than 45°. 
         Reason: To ensure that local wildlife populations are protected; in the 
interests of biodiversity; having regard to the NPPF and Local Plan Policy DM5.5. 
 
23.    3no. integrated bird boxes and 2no. integrated bat boxes shall be provided 
on buildings within the development site. Details of bird box specification and 
locations must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Page 200



INIT 

Authority within 4 weeks of development commencing.  The approved boxes 
shall be installed in accordance with the approved plans and permanently 
retained 
         Reason: To ensure that local wildlife populations are protected; in the 
interests of biodiversity; having regard to the NPPF and Local Plan Policy DM5.5. 
 
24.    Prior to construction above ground floor level, a detailed scheme for the 
disposal of foul and surface water from the development hereby approved must 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in 
consultation with Northumbrian Water and the Lead Local Flood Authority. 
Thereafter the development shall take place in accordance with the approved 
details. 
         Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding from any sources in 
accordance with the NPPF. 
 
25.    Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development shall commence 
until full details of the engineering and ground stability works have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
submitted scheme shall demonstrate how the proposed engineering works will 
ensure that stability of the hereby approved dwellings, the Borough Road Bridge 
and the dwellings at the top of the embankment along Tennyson Terrace. 
         Reason: This condition is required prior to development to ensure that the 
proposal would not result in unstable land or damage to the hereby approved 
dwellings, Borough Road Bridge piers or the dwellings of Tennyson Terrace 
having regard to policy DM5.18 of the North Tyneside Local Plan 2017. 
 
26.    Notwithstanding any indication of materials which may have been given in 
the application, no development shall take place above damp proof course level 
until a schedule and/or samples of the building and surfacing materials and 
finishes for the development has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the development shall not be carried out 
other than in 
         accordance with the approved details. 
         Reason: To secure a satisfactory external appearance having regard to 
policies DM6.1 and DM6.6 of the North Tyneside Unitary Development Plan 
2002. 
 
27.    Within 4 weeks of development commencing details of all screen and 
boundary  walls, fences and any other means of enclosure have been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  All new fencing must 
include hedgehog gaps (13cmx13cm) and details of the number, location and 
specification of gaps shall be provided on a plan.  The fencing shall be installed 
in accordance with the approved plans prior to occupation of the development 
and thereafter retained. 
         Reason: To ensure a satisfactory environment within the development and 
to ensure that local wildlife populations are protected having regard to policies 
DM6.1, DM6.6 and DM5.5 of the North Tyneside Unitary Development Plan 
2002. 
 
28.    Notwithstanding any indication of materials which may have been given in 
the application, no development shall take place above damp proof course level 

Page 201



INIT 

until details of the materials for the hard surface areas have been submitted to 
and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Thereafter the 
development must be carried out in accordance with the agreed details.  
         Reason: To secure a satisfactory external appearance and to ensure the 
character and appearance of the conservation area is conserved and enhanced; 
having regard to policy DM6.1 and DM6.6 of the North Tyneside Council Local 
Plan 2017. 
 
29.    Prior to construction above damp proof course level the detailed design, 
colour and material specification for the windows and doors must be submitted to 
and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Windows should be set 
back within the window reveal unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  Thereafter the development must be carried out in 
accordance with the agreed details. 
         Reason: To secure a satisfactory external appearance and to ensure the 
character and appearance of the conservation area is conserved and enhanced; 
having regard to policy DM6.1 and DM6.6 of the North Tyneside Council Local 
Plan 2017. 
 
30.    No construction above ground level shall commence until details of 
ventilation extraction, flues, meter boxes, alarm boxes, satellite dishes and any 
other external features including location and type, have been submitted to and 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Thereafter the external 
features shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details. 
         Reason: To secure a satisfactory external appearance and to ensure the 
character and appearance of the conservation area is conserved and enhanced; 
having regard to policy DM6.1 and DM6.6 of the North Tyneside Council Local 
Plan 2017. 
 
31.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, the proposed dwellings must comply with the 
housing standards set out under Policy DM4.9 of the North Tyneside Local Plan 
(2017).  
         Reason: To ensure appropriate living conditions for future occupiers are 
provided in accordance with Policy DM4.9 of the North Tyneside Local Plan 
(2017). 
 
32. Restrict Hours No Construction Sun BH HOU00

4 
* 
 

 
33.    Prior to occupation of the development, a noise scheme to address road 
traffic noise and noise arising from the quayside area must be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The sound attenuation 
scheme must be in accordance with BS8233 and the World Health Organisation 
community noise guidelines and must ensure that all habitable rooms are 
provided with sound attenuation measures to give a resultant noise level of below 
30 dB LAeq and maximum noise level of 45dB for bedrooms and 35 dB LAeq for 
living rooms.  External amenity areas must meet the world health organisation 
community noise level for outside spaces of below 50 dB LAeq.   The scheme 
shall thereafter be implemented before the development is first occupied in 
accordance with the approved details and permanently retained. 

Page 202



INIT 

         Reason: In order to protect the residential amenity of the nearby residents 
having regard to policy DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and 
National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
34.    Prior to occupation of the development, a ventilation scheme must be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
scheme must ensure an appropriate standard of comfort is achieved to prevent 
overheating and ensure internal noise levels with windows closed comply with 
BS8233 and the WHO community noise standards at night, namely a minimum of 
night time equivalent noise level of 30 dB (23:00 hours to 07:00 hours)  and 
Maximum noise level of 45dB and daytime equivalent noise level of 35dB (07:00 
hours to 23:00 hours) in bedrooms and daytime equivalent noise level (23:00 
hours to 07:00  hours) of 35 dB in living rooms. Where the internal noise levels 
are not achievable, with windows open, due to the external noise environment, 
an alternative mechanical ventilation system must be installed, equivalent to 
System 4 of Approved Document F, such as mechanical heat recovery (MVHR) 
system, that addresses thermal comfort to reduce the need to open windows, 
unless an overheating assessment is provided to verify that there are no 
overheating risks. The alternative ventilation system must not compromise the 
facade insulation or the resulting internal noise levels. Where an overheating 
assessment is provided this must be carried in accordance to the current CIBSE 
guidance.  Where the property is subject to a risk of overheating an alternative 
ventilation or cooling system must be provided that is designed to achieve the 
levels in the current CIBSE guidance. The scheme shall thereafter be 
implemented before the development is first occupied in accordance with the 
approved details and permanently retained. 
         Reason: In order to protect the residential amenity of the nearby residents 
having regard to policy DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and 
National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
 
Statement under Article 35 of the Town & Country (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015): 
 
 
The Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively with the applicant 
to identify various solutions during the application process to ensure that the 
proposal comprised sustainable development and would improve the economic, 
social and environmental conditions of the area and would accord with the 
development plan. These were incorporated into the scheme and/or have been 
secured by planning condition. The Local Planning Authority has therefore 
implemented the requirements in Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 
 
Informatives 
 
 
Building Regulations Required  (I03) 
 
 

Page 203



INIT 

Do Not Obstruct Highway Build Materials  (I13) 
 
 
Contact ERH Erect Scaffolding on Rd  (I12) 
 
 
The applicant is advised that a license must be obtained from the Highways 
Authority before any works are carried out on the footway, carriageway verge or 
other land forming part of the highway.  Contact 
Streetworks@northtyneside.gov.uk for further information 
 
 
Highway Inspection before dvlpt  (I46) 
 
 
Street Naming and numbering  (I45) 
 
 
No Doors Gates to Project Over Highways  (I10) 
 
 
The applicant is advised that end users are unlikely to be eligible for any existing 
parking permits in this area nor for any permits on potential parking schemes on 
Borough Bank and the onus will be on the developer to convey this information to 
these users.  Please contact the Parking Control team on e-mail at 
parking.control@northtyneside.gov.uk or telephone number (0191) 643 2121 for 
further information. 
 
 
 
  

Page 204



INIT 

 

 

 
Application reference: 21/02496/FUL 
Location: Land Adjacent To Hatfield House, Borough Road, North Shields  
Proposal: Erection of 5no. three storey townhouse style terraced dwellings, 
with communal parking and rear amenity space  

Not to scale © Crown Copyright and database right 
2011.  Ordnance Survey Licence Number 
0100016801 

 

Date: 31.05.2023 

 

Page 205



INIT 

Appendix 1 – 21/02496/FUL 
Item 4 
 
Consultations/representations 
 
1.0 Internal Consultees 
1.1 Highway Network Manager 
1.2 This application is for the erection of 5 three-storey townhouse style terraced 
dwellings, with communal parking and rear amenity space. 
 
1.3 The site will be accessed via Borough Road and whilst only one parking 
space has been provided for each dwelling, the site is located near to North 
Shields town centre with reasonable links to public transport and local services.  
Nonetheless, the developer should be aware that end users will not be eligible for 
any existing parking permits in this area nor for any permits on potential parking 
schemes on Borough Bank and the onus will be on the developer to convey this 
information to these users.  For these reasons and on balance conditional 
approval is recommended. 
 
1.4 Recommendation - Conditional Approval 
 
The applicant will be required to enter into an appropriate legal agreement with 
the Local Authority for the following works: 
 
New access 
Upgrade of footpath abutting the site 
Associated highway drainage 
Associated street lighting 
Associated road markings 
Associated signage 
Associated Traffic Regulation Orders 
 
1.5 Conditions: 
 
Notwithstanding the details submitted, no part of the development shall be 
occupied until the new means of access has been laid out in accordance with the 
approved details and retained thereafter. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having regard 
to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
Notwithstanding the details submitted, no part of the development shall be 
occupied until the scheme for vehicular visibility splays of 2.4m by 43m by 0.6m 
has been laid out in accordance with the approved details and retained 
thereafter. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having regard 
to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
Notwithstanding the details submitted, no part of the development shall be 
occupied until the scheme for parking has been laid out in accordance with the 
approved details and retained thereafter. 

Page 206



INIT 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having regard 
to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
Notwithstanding the details submitted, no part of the development shall be 
occupied until the scheme for the provision of and storage of refuse has been laid 
out in accordance with the approved plans and retained thereafter. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having regard 
to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
Notwithstanding Condition 1, no development shall commence until a 
Construction Method Statement for the duration of the construction period has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved statement shall: identify the access to the site for all site operatives 
(including those delivering materials) and visitors, provide for the parking of 
vehicles of site operatives and visitors; details of the site compound for the 
storage of plant (silos etc) and materials used in constructing the development; 
provide a scheme indicating the route for heavy construction vehicles to and from 
the site; a turning area within the site for delivery vehicles; dust suppression 
scheme (such measures shall include mechanical street cleaning, and/or 
provision of water bowsers, and/or wheel washing and/or road cleaning facilities, 
and any other wheel cleaning solutions and dust suppressions measures 
considered appropriate to the size of the development). The scheme must 
include a site plan illustrating the location of facilities and any alternative 
locations during all stages of development. The approved statement shall be 
implemented and complied with during and for the life of the works associated 
with the development. 
Reason: This information is required pre development to ensure that the site set 
up does not impact on highway safety, pedestrian safety, retained trees (where 
necessary) and residential amenity having regard to policies DM5.19 and DM7.4 
of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 
Notwithstanding Condition 1, no development shall commence until a scheme to 
show wheel washing facilities and mechanical sweepers to prevent mud and 
debris onto the public highway has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. This scheme shall include details of the location, 
type of operation, maintenance/phasing programme. Construction shall not 
commence on any part of the development other than the construction of a 
temporary site access and site set up until these agreed measures are fully 
operational for the duration of the construction of the development hereby 
approved. If the agreed measures are not operational then no vehicles shall exit 
the development site onto the public highway.  
Reason: This information is required pre development to ensure that the site set 
up does not impact on highway safety, pedestrian safety, retained trees (where 
necessary) and residential amenity having regard to policies DM5.19 and DM7.4 
of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 
1.6 Informatives: 
 

Page 207



INIT 

The applicant is advised that a license must be obtained from the Highways 
Authority before any works are carried out on the footway, carriageway verge or 
other land forming part of the highway.  Contact 
Streetworks@northtyneside.gov.uk for further information 
 
The applicant is advised that it is an offence to obstruct the public highway 
(footway or carriageway) by depositing materials without obtaining beforehand, 
and in writing, the permission of the Council as Local Highway Authority.  Such 
obstructions may lead to an accident, certainly cause inconvenience to 
pedestrians and drivers, and are a source of danger to children, elderly people 
and those pushing prams or buggies.  They are a hazard to those who are 
disabled, either by lack of mobility or impaired vision.  Contact 
Highways@northtyneside.gov.uk for further information. 
 
The applicant is advised that they should contact Highway Maintenance to 
arrange for an inspection of the highways adjacent to the site. The applicant 
should be aware that failure to do so may result in the Council pursuing them for 
costs of repairing any damage in the surrounding area on completion of 
construction. Contact Highways@northtyneside.gov.uk for further information 
 
The applicant is advised that a license must be obtained from the Highways 
Authority for any scaffold placed on the footway, carriageway verge or other land 
forming part of the highway.  Contact Streetworks@northtyneside.gov.uk for 
further information 
 
The applicant is advised that requests for Street Naming & Numbering must be 
submitted and approved by the Local Highway Authority.  Any complications, 
confusion or subsequent costs that arise due to non-adherence of this criteria will 
be directed to applicant. Until a Street Naming and Numbering & scheme been 
applied for and approved by the Local Highway Authority it will not be officially 
registered with either the council, Royal Mail, emergency services etc.  Contact 
Streetworks@northtyneside.gov.uk 
for further information. 
 
The applicant is advised that no part of the gates or garage doors may project 
over the highway at any time.  Contact 
New.Developments@northtyneside.gov.uk  for further information. 
 
The applicant is advised that end users are unlikely to be eligible for any existing 
parking permits in this area nor for any permits on potential parking schemes on 
Borough Bank and the onus will be on the developer to convey this information to 
these users.  Please contact the Parking Control team on e-mail at 
parking.control@northtyneside.gov.uk or telephone number (0191) 643 2121 for 
further information. 
 
1.7 Manager of Environmental Health (Contaminated Land) 
1.8 The lies within 100m of an area of unknown filled ground.  due to this and the 
proposed sensitive end use the following must be attached: 
 
Gas 006 
Con 003 

Page 208



INIT 

Con 004 
Con 005 
Con 006 
Con 007 
 
1.9 Biodiversity Officer and Landscape Architect 
1.10 Following extensive discussions and assessment of the many variations of 
information submitted, a landscape scheme and an updated Biodiversity Metric 
(Small Sites Metric V15 March 2023) has been prepared for the above site. The 
updated BNG now includes all 9no. trees identified within the site as medium 
trees with 8no. being lost to facilitate the scheme and 1no. tree being retained 
(Oak tree). Other habitats shown to be lost to facilitate the scheme within the 
Metric include bramble scrub and modified grassland.  
 
1.11 The Landscape Plan (DWG: S1524-BDN-XX-XX-DR-A-0009 Rev P1) and 
Metric show a small area of modified grassland, ground level planters, a green 
wall and vegetated gardens to be created within the site along with the 
enhancement of small areas of bramble scrub to mixed native scrub and modified 
grassland to other neutral grassland. Overall, the scheme results in a biodiversity 
net loss of -16.22%. In order to address this, the applicant has agreed to pay a 
financial contribution to the Council to deliver additional planting on Council land 
to deliver an overall biodiversity net gain of 
5%. This is considered acceptable. 
 
1.12 Impacts on Coastal Designated Sites 
1.13 The scheme will result in an increase in residential accommodation which 
will contribute to adverse impacts on designated sites at the coast through 
recreational disturbance. The scheme will, therefore, need to comply with the 
Councils Coastal Mitigation SPD. The SPD provides guidance and information on 
the mitigation required from development within North Tyneside to prevent 
adverse impacts on the 
internationally protected coastline. 
 
1.14 If the application is recommended for approval, the following conditions 
should be attached to the application: 
 
- Within one month from the start on site of any operations such as site 
excavation works, site clearance (including site strip) for the development, a fully 
detailed landscape plan and specification for on-site landscaping shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be 
in accordance with the approved Biodiversity Net Gain Assessment Report and 
Biodiversity Metric V15 (All About Trees March 2023). The landscape scheme 
shall include the planting of 5no trees on the site. Any trees, shrubs, grasslands 
or other habitats that die or are removed within five years of planting shall be 
replaced in the next available planting season with others of similar size and 
species. The landscaping scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details within the first available planting season following the approval 
of details. 
 
- Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved (including 
demolition and all preparatory work), a scheme for the protection of the 1no. Oak 

Page 209



INIT 

tree, in accordance with BS 5837:2012, shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Details to include a Tree Protection Plan 
showing the location and type of protective fencing. The fencing shall be erected 
in accordance with the approved details before any equipment, machinery or 
materials are brought onto the site for the purposes of the development and shall 
remain in place until the works are complete or unless otherwise agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority. The protective fence is NOT to be repositioned 
without the approval of the Local Authority. Nothing shall be stored or placed 
within any fenced area, and the ground levels 
within those areas shall not be altered, nor shall any excavation be made, without 
the prior written consent of the local planning authority. 
 
- Within 4 weeks of development commencing on site, a detailed 30 year 
‘Landscape and Ecological Management and Monitoring Plan' (LEMMP) for all 
landscaping/habitat creation within the application site, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This plan shall include details 
of site preparation, long-term design objectives, management and monitoring 
objectives, management responsibilities, timescales and maintenance schedules 
for all newly created and enhanced habitats within the site. Thereafter, these 
areas shall be managed and maintained in full accordance with these agreed 
details unless first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan will 
include details of the following:- 
- Details on the creation, enhancement and management of all habitats identified 
within the Biodiversity Net Gain Report/Biodiversity Metric V15 (E3 Ecology All 
About Trees February/March 2023) and approved Landscape Plan. 
- Survey and monitoring details for all target habitats identified within the 
approved Net Gain Assessment Report/Biodiversity Metric. Monitoring Reports 
will be submitted to the LPA for review in years 3, 5 and 10 and 5 yearly 
thereafter, and will include a Net Gain Assessment update as part of the report to 
ensure the habitats are reaching the specified target condition. Any changes to 
habitat management as part of this review will require approval in writing from the 
LPA. The Plan will be reviewed every 5 years in partnership with the LPA. 
- Details of any corrective action that will be undertaken if habitat delivery fails to 
achieve the requirements set out in the approved Biodiversity Net Gain 
Report/Biodiversity Metric. 
 
- Prior to the installation of any floodlighting or other form of external lighting, a 
lighting scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. High intensity security lights will be avoided as far as practical 
and if required, these will be of minimum practicable brightness, be set on a short 
timer and will be motion sensitive only to larger objects.  Lighting must be 
designed to minimise light spill to adjacent boundary features such as woodland, 
scrub, grassland and hedgerow habitats and should be less than 2 lux in these 
areas. The Scheme shall include the following information: 
- a statement of frequency of use, and the hours of illumination; 
- a site plan showing the area to be lit relative to the surrounding area, indicating 
parking or access arrangements where appropriate, and highlighting any 
significant existing or proposed landscape or boundary features; 
- details of the number, location and height of the proposed lighting columns or 
other fixtures; 
- the type, number, mounting height and alignment of the luminaires; 

Page 210



INIT 

- the beam angles and upward waste light ratio for each light; 
- an isolux diagram showing the predicted illuminance levels at critical locations 
on the boundary of the site and where the site abuts residential properties or the 
public highway to ensure compliance with the institute of lighting engineers 
Guidance Notes for the reduction of light pollution to prevent light glare and 
intrusive light for agreed environmental zone ; and 
- where necessary, the percentage increase in luminance and the predicted 
illuminance in the vertical plane (in lux) at key points. 
The lighting shall be installed and maintained in accordance with the approved 
scheme. 
 
- A ‘Precautionary Mammal/Hedgehog Working Method Statement’ shall be 
submitted to the LPA for approval in writing prior to works commencing on site. 
 
- No vegetation removal or building works shall take place during the bird nesting 
season (March-August inclusive) unless a survey by a suitably qualified ecologist 
has confirmed the absence of nesting birds immediately prior to works 
commencing. 
 
- Any excavations left open overnight will have a means of escape for mammals 
that may become trapped in the form of a ramp at least 300mm in width and 
angled no greater than 45°. 
 
- Hedgehog gaps (13cmx13cm) will be provided within any new fencing within the 
scheme.  Details of the number, location and specification of gaps shall be 
provided on a Plan and submitted to the LPA for approval within 4 weeks of 
development commencing on site and will be installed in accordance with the 
approved plans and permanently retained. 
 
- 3no. integrated bird boxes and 2no. integrated bat boxes will be provided on 
buildings within the development site. Details of bird box specification and 
locations must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority within 4 weeks of development commencing on site and will be installed 
in accordance with the approved plans on completion of works and permanently 
retained. 
 
1.15 Manager of Environmental Health (Pollution) 
1.16 The site is located within the town centre area of North Shields with the 
quayside close to the southeast of the site.  I am concerned about road traffic 
noise affecting the proposed residential properties, and potential external noise 
from the quayside area.  
 
1.17 A noise scheme is necessary to ensure appropriate sound mitigation 
measures are provided within the build design for the residential accommodation.  
The noise scheme will need to include a traffic noise assessment, which will need 
to be carried out based on the memorandum of  road traffic noise and 
consideration should be given to ensure that gardens and internal rooms located 
to the north of the site are provided with appropriate noise mitigation to ensure 
good standards of internal noise levels in accordance with BS8233 to give a 
resultant noise level of below 30 dB LAeq and maximum noise level of 45dB for 
bedrooms and 35 dB LAeq for living rooms is achieved  All external amenity 

Page 211



INIT 

areas will need to meet  the world health organisation  community noise level for 
outside spaces to achieve noise levels below 50 dB LAeq.  
 
1.18 If planning approval is to be given I would recommend the following 
conditions. 
 
Prior to occupation, submit and implement on approval of the local Planning 
Authority a noise scheme to address the road traffic noise arising from  Borough 
Road and associated external noise from the quayside area.  Details of the 
sound attenuating scheme in accordance with BS8233 and the World Health 
Organisation community noise guidelines must be provided to show that all 
habitable rooms are provided with sound attenuation measures to give a 
resultant noise level of below 30 dB LAeq and maximum noise level of 45dB for 
bedrooms and 35 dB LAeq for living rooms is achieved. External amenity areas 
to  meet  the world health organisation community noise level for outside spaces 
to below 50 dB LAeq.   
 
Prior to occupation, submit details of the  ventilation scheme for approval in 
writing and thereafter implemented to ensure an appropriate standard of comfort 
to prevent overheating and ensure internal noise levels with windows closed 
comply with BS8233 and the WHO community noise standards at night namely a 
minimum of night time equivalent noise level of 30 dB ( 23:00 hours to 07:00 
hours  and Maximum noise level of 45dB and daytime equivalent noise level of 
35dB (07:00 hours to 23:00 hours) in bedrooms and daytime equivalent noise 
level (23:00 hours to 07:00  hours) of 35 dB in living rooms. Where the internal 
noise levels are not achievable, with window open, due to the external noise 
environment, an alternative mechanical ventilation system must be installed, 
equivalent to System 4 of Approved Document F, such as mechanical heat 
recovery (MVHR) system that addresses thermal comfort to reduce the need to 
open windows, unless an overheating assessment is provided to verify that there 
are no overheating risks. The alternative ventilation system must not compromise 
the facade insulation or the resulting internal noise levels. Where an overheating 
assessment is provided this must be carried out in accordance to the current 
CIBSE guidance.  Where the property is subject to a risk of overheating an 
alternative ventilation or cooling system must be provided that is designed to 
achieve the levels in the current CIBSE guidance. 
 
HOU04 
SIT03 
 
2.0 External Consultees 
2.1 Coal Authority 
2.2 The application site does not fall within the defined Development High Risk 
Area and is located instead within the defined Development Low Risk Area. This 
means that there is no requirement under the risk-based approach that has been 
agreed with the LPA for a Coal Mining Risk Assessment to be submitted or for 
The Coal Authority to be consulted. 
 
3.0 Representations 
3.1 8no. objections have been received.  These are summarised below. 
- Adverse effect on wildlife. 

Page 212



INIT 

- Inadequate parking provision. 
- Loss of/damage to trees. 
- Nuisance – disturbance. 
- Nuisance - dust/dirt. 
- Nuisance – noise. 
- Out of keeping with surroundings. 
- Poor traffic/pedestrian safety. 
- Poor/unsuitable vehicular access. 
- Traffic congestion. 
- Will result in visual intrusion. 
- Inadequate drainage. 
- Loss of privacy. 
- Loss of visual amenity. 
- Pollution of watercourse. 
- Affect character of conservation area. 
- Impact on landscape. 
- Inappropriate design. 
- Inappropriate in special landscape area. 
- Loss of residential amenity. 
- Not in accordance with development plan. 
- Precedent will be set. 
- Hatfield House already suffers overcrowding in the car park meaning residents 
have to park on Borough Road. 
- Inadequate parking provision. 
- Residents will park on the bank as they will not want to walk up the hill. 
- Animals will not be able to cross the road if houses are built on the land they 
use to cross currently and the bridge is demolished. 
- The road will be littered with bins and cause obstruction for disabled/pushchair 
users. 
- Borough Road has a speeding problem. 
- Drainage has always been a problem and new dwellings will block the pipes. 
- Noise and vibration from construction work. 
- Noise created within the dwellings. 
- Loss of sunlight and river views. 
- The plot is too small for the development. 
- Other more suitable plots nearby. 
- The application refers to the demolition of Borough Road Bridge but fails to 
mention that there is an appeal awaiting decision by the Secretary of State. 
- Impact on the wildlife corridor. 
- Overspill parking in the surrounding area. 
- The area is becoming saturated with new dwellings. 
- Lack of information regarding the ecological impacts. 
- Loss of habitat and trees. 
- Structural damage to the bank and retaining wall. 
- No evidence of demand for new housing. 
- Taller buildings will block views. 
- The grey roofs will look awful. 
- Impact of the excavation on ground stability. 
- No provision for future bus stop. 
- Loss of river views. 
- Inadequate refuse bin storage. 

Page 213



INIT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

Page 214



INIT 

 
 
 
Item No: 5   
Application 
No: 

23/00217/FUL Author: Maxine Ingram 

Date valid: 17 February 2023 : 0191 643 6322 
Target 
decision date: 

19 May 2023 Ward: Weetslade 

 
Application type: full planning application 
 
Location: Land East Of, Weetslade Depot, Great Lime Road, Dudley, 
Northumberland 
 
Proposal: Erection of foodstore (Class E) with associated car parking; 
vehicular, pedestrian and cycle access; SuDs; and landscaping  
 
Applicant: Aldi Stores Ltd 
 
 
Agent: Klr Planning Ltd 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Minded to grant  legal agreement req. 
 
INFORMATION 
 
1.0  Summary Of Key Issues & Conclusions 
 
1.1 The main issues for Members to consider in this case are: 
-The principle of the development,  
-The impact on amenity,  
-The impact on character and appearance,  
-The impact on highway safety,  
-The impact on biodiversity; and,  
-Other issues.  
 
1.2 Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be 
determined in accordance with the development plan, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.  Members need to consider whether this 
application accords with the development plan and also take into account any 
other material considerations in reaching their decision. 
 
2.0 Description of the Site 
2.1 The application site, measuring approximately 1.2ha, is located at the corner 
of Sandy Lane (A1056) and Great Lime Road (B1319), to the west of the 
Weetslade roundabout. The site is a parcel of agricultural land. Immediately to 
the west of the site is a petrol filling station and convenience store, a Greggs café 
and drive through. Beyond that is a car sales site and servicing facility. Trees are 
sited along this shared boundary which are protected by a Tree Preservation 

Page 215

Agenda Item 10



INIT 

Order (TPO). An established hedgerow with trees is sited along the eastern 
boundary. To the north, is a field and salvage yard beyond which lies Weetslade 
Country Park. The site is currently accessed off Great Lime Road.  
 
2.2 The site is an allocated site (E003) for employment uses in the Local Plan 
(LP) (2017). The site is designated as a wildlife corridor.  
 
3.0 Description of the Proposed Development 
3.1 Planning permission is sought for the erection of foodstore (Class E) with 
associated car parking; vehicular, pedestrian and cycle access; SuDs; and 
landscaping.  
 
3.2 The proposed food store is orientated with the shop frontage to Sandy Lane 
and Great Lime Road with the car parking area to the eastern side of the 
building. A wildlife corridor is proposed between the rear of the food store and the 
tree belt to the western boundary. The width of this corridor varies between 
10.1m and 17.7m. A new vehicular access is proposed from Great Lime Road. 
Several pedestrian routes are proposed: one from Sandy Lane; one from the 
corner of Sandy Lane/Great Lime Road; and one alongside the new vehicular 
access road.  
 
3.3 The food store would measure 1, 859 square metres (sqm) gross external (1, 
783sqm gross internal) and 1,315sqm net sales area. A welfare block for staff for 
staff and plant room measures 121 sqm, with the remaining space made up of a 
bulk store and internal lobby. Car parking is provided for 121 customer vehicles, 
including accessible bays and parent and child bays and electric vehicles. Five 
parking bays are provided for staff parking in the service yard area. Eight 
Sheffield cycle stands are positioned next to the customer entrance.  
 
3.4 A detention basin is proposed in the north-east corner of the site and filter 
trenches to the boundaries of the site.  
 
3.5 The external plant equipment is positioned at ground level to the south of the 
loading pod on the western elevation. The equipment will be secured with a metal 
palisade fence.  
 
4.0 Relevant Planning History 
None  
 
5.0 Development Plan 
5.1 North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) 
 
6.0 Government Policies 
6.1 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (July 2021) 
 
6.2 National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) (As amended) 
 
6.3 Planning applications must be determined in accordance with the 
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The NPPF 
is a material consideration in the determination of all applications. It requires 
Local Planning Authorities (LPAs) to apply a presumption in favour of sustainable 

Page 216



INIT 

development in determining development proposals. Due weight should still be 
attached to Development Plan policies according to the degree to which any 
policy is consistent with the NPPF. 
 
 
 
 
PLANNING OFFICERS REPORT 
 
7.0 Detailed Planning Considerations 
7.1 The main issues for Members to consider in this case are: 
-The principle of the development,   
-The impact on amenity,  
-The impact on character and appearance, 
-The impact on highway safety,  
-The impact on biodiversity; and, 
-Other issues.  
 
7.2 Consultations responses and representations received as a result of the 
publicity given to this application are set out in the appendix to this report. 
 
8.0 Principle of the development 
8.1 The Local Plan (LP) was adopted in July 2017 to guide development in the 
period up to 2032. The council acknowledges that the policies contained within 
the LP predate the publication of the revised NPPF (July 2021) however, it is 
clear from paragraph 219 of the NPPF that: “However, existing policies should 
not be considered out-of-date simply because they were adopted or made prior 
to the publication of this Framework. Due weight should be given to them, 
according to their degree of consistency with this Framework (the closer the 
policies in the plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that 
may be given).” The council considers that the Local Plan policies set out in this 
report are consistent with the NPPF and can be afforded significant weight.  
 
8.2 The NPPF makes it clear that the purpose of the planning system is to 
contribute to the achievement of sustainable development. Achieving sustainable 
development means that the planning system has three overarching objectives: 
an economic objective; a social objective; and an environmental objective. 
Planning policies and decisions should play an active role in guiding development 
towards sustainable solutions, but in doing so should take local circumstances 
into account, to reflect the character, needs and opportunities of each area.  
 
8.3 The NPPF paragraph 11 makes it clear that plans and decisions should apply 
a presumption in favour of sustainable development. However, the presumption 
in favour of sustainable development does not change the statutory status of the 
development plan as the starting point for decision making. The NPPF paragraph 
12 states “Where a planning application conflicts with an up-to-date development 
plan permission should not normally be granted. Local Planning Authorities 
(LPA’s) may take decisions that depart from an up-to-date development plan, but 
only if material considerations in a particular case indicate that the plan should 
not be followed”.  
 

Page 217



INIT 

8.4 LP Policy S2.2 ‘Provision of Land for Employment Development’ seeks to 
ensure an attractive and flexible supply of employment land is available to deliver 
the Council’s strategy for economic prosperity, job growth and investment over 
the plan period.  
 
8.5 LP Policy DM2.3 Development Affecting Employment Land and Buildings 
states “The Council will support proposals on employment land, as shown on the 
Policies Map, for new or additional development for uses within use classes B1, 
B2 or B8 or that which is deemed ancillary. 
 
Proposals on identified employment land or other buildings in use-class B1, B2 or 
B8, for uses that could conflict with the development and regeneration of sites for 
economic development, will be permitted where these proposals would not: 
a. Result in the unacceptable loss of operating businesses and jobs; and, 
b. Result in an excessive reduction in the supply of land for development for 
employment uses, taking into account the overall amount, range, and choice 
available for the remainder of the plan period; and, 
c. Have an adverse impact upon the amenity and operation of neighbouring 
properties and businesses.” 
 
8.6 Paragraph 87 of the NPPF states that ‘LPA’s should apply a sequential test to 
planning applications for main town centre uses which are neither in an existing 
centre nor in accordance with an up-to-date plan. Main town centre uses should 
be located in town centres, then in edge of centre locations; and only if suitable 
sites are not available (or expected to become available within a reasonable 
period) should out of centre sites be considered.’ 
 
8.7 Paragraph 88 of the NPPF states ‘When considering edge of centre and out 
of centre proposals, preference should be given to accessible sites which are 
well connected to the town centre. Applicants and LPA’s should demonstrate 
flexibility on issues such as format and scale, so that opportunities to utilise 
suitable town centre or edge of centre sites are fully explored.’ 
 
8.8 Paragraph 91 of the NPPF states ‘Where an application fails to satisfy the 
sequential test or is likely to have significant adverse impact on one or more of 
the considerations in paragraph 90, it should be refused.’  
 
8.9 Paragraph 122 of the NPPF advises that planning policies and decisions 
need to reflect the changes in the demand for land. Where the LPA considers 
there to be no reasonable prospect of an application coming forward for the use 
allocated in a plan: in the interim, prior to updating the plan, applications for 
alternative uses on the land should be supported, where the proposed use would 
contribute to meeting an unmet need for development in the area.  
 
8.10 The National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) provides advice on how 
the sequential test should be applied to development proposals. The NPPG 
states that it is for the applicant to demonstrate compliance with the sequential 
test and sets out the key considerations that be taken into account in determining 
whether a proposal complies with the sequential test: 
-With due regard to the requirement to demonstrate flexibility, has the suitability 
of more central sites to accommodate the proposal been considered? Where the 

Page 218



INIT 

proposal would be located in an edge of centre or out of centre location, 
preference should be given to accessible sites that are well connected to the 
town centre. Any associated reasoning should be set out clearly.  
-Is there scope for flexibility in the format and/or scale of the proposal? It is not 
necessary to demonstrate that a potential town centre or edge of centre site can 
accommodate precisely the scale and form of a development being proposed, 
but rather to consider what contribution more central sites are able to make 
individually to accommodate the proposal.  
-If there are no sequentially preferable locations, the sequential test is passed.  
 
8.11 LP DM3.4 ‘Assessment of town centre uses’ sets out the criteria proposal 
for main town centre uses on sites not within the town centres and sets out the 
criteria for when a retail impact assessment would need to be submitted. Where 
an application faits to the satisfy the sequential test or is likely to have significant 
adverse impact on one or more of the factors set out in DM3.4, it should be 
refused.  
 
8.12 Section 15 of the NPPF seeks to conserve and enhance the natural 
environment. Paragraph 174 of the NPPF encourages design to contribute to and 
enhance the local environment. Amongst other matters this includes recognising 
the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside, and the wider benefits from 
natural capital and ecosystem services including the economic and other benefits 
of the best and most versatile agricultural land.  
 
8.13 LP Policy DM5.8 ‘Soil and Agricultural Land Quality’ states: “Development of 
“best and most versatile” agricultural land will only be permitted where it can be 
demonstrated that: a) the need for the development clearly outweighs the need to 
protect such land in the long term; or, b) in the case of temporarily/potentially 
reversible development (for example, minerals) that the land would be reinstated 
to its pre-working quality; and, c) there are no suitable alternative sites on 
previously developed land or lower quality land. The council will require all 
applications for development to include realistic proposals to demonstrate that 
soil resources were protected and used sustainably, in line with accepted best 
practice.  
 
8.14 The NPPF glossary identifies that the best and most versatile land, of which 
safeguarding should be prioritised, if possible, is considered to be Grades 1, 2, 
3a when using the Agricultural Land Classification (ALC).  
 
8.15 43 representations supporting this application have been submitted. The 
reasons supporting this application are set out in the Appendix to this report.  
 
8.16 The objection from The Northumberland and Newcastle Society (N&N) 
regarding the loss of green belt is noted. Members are advised that this site is not 
designated as green belt land. It is a designated as employment site and wildlife 
corridor in the Council’s LP. The loss of agricultural land is noted.  
 
8.17 The site is agricultural land that borders A1056 to the south, mix of 
employment uses to the west and Great Lime Road and the A189 to the east. 
The northern section of the site is not part of this application and therefore would 

Page 219



INIT 

still remain as agricultural land. The site is clearly visible from A1056 and Great 
Lime Road.  
 
8.18 The site is an allocated employment site (E003 – Weetslade (31.86ha)) in 
the LP, which supports development in Use Classes former B1 (now Use Class 
E), B2 and B8 (Policy S2.2).  
 
8.19 The use proposed is a town centre use in an out of centre location. In 
accordance with the NPPF (paragraphs. 87 and 90) and LP Policy DM3.4 this 
application requires a sequential and impact assessment to be submitted for 
consideration. The assessment must provide sufficient evidence that the 
development would not have an adverse impact on the centres within the 
catchment of the development and that no suitable, available, or viable sites were 
sequentially preferrable. The Planning Policy comments received are clear that 
each assessment provides sufficient evidence that the development would not 
have a significant adverse impact on the centres within the catchment of the 
development and that no suitable, available or viable sites were sequentially 
preferable.  
 
8.20 The other main consideration for Members to consider is the loss of 
allocated employment land for former B1 (now Use Class E), B2 and B8 uses to 
a supermarket. LP Policy DM2.3 does accept development for uses outside of 
former B1 (now Use Class E), B2 and B8 so long as the development meets 
certain criteria. These include ensuring the development would not result in an 
unacceptable loss of operating businesses and jobs, an excessive reduction in 
the supply of land for development in employment uses or have an adverse 
impact upon the amenity and operation of neighbouring uses.  
 
8.21 The site is not previously developed therefore the proposal would not result 
in the loss of operating businesses and jobs as a result of new development. The 
applicant has confirmed that the proposed food store is an addition to the 
company’s portfolio, rather than a replacement or relocation so no existing food 
stores would be closed. The proposed new food store would create between 30 
and 50 new jobs. The proposal would satisfy the requirements of DM2.3 (a).  
 
8.22 The site area measures 1.2ha which equates to 3.7% of the Weetslade 
employment site. The Planning Policy comments are clear that this proposal 
would not result in an excessive reduction in the supply of land for development 
in employment uses. The proposal would satisfy the requirements of DM2.3 (b). 
 
8.23 The impacts upon the amenity and operation of neighbouring uses will be 
considered in a latter part of this report.  
 
8.24 The applicant has advised that land has an ALC of grade 3 but the land has 
not had a post-1988, ALC, which would then break it down into a 3a and 3b 
classification.  
As already, discussed the site is designated as employment therefore the loss of 
this agricultural land, approximately 1.2ha, has already been accepted as part of 
the allocation within the LP.  
 

Page 220



INIT 

8.25 Members need to consider whether the development meets the 
requirements of national and local policy for retail, employment and agricultural 
land. The supporting information confirms no sequentially preferable sites within 
the catchment area and the impact assessment has proven the development 
would not have a significant adverse impact on the viability or vitality of the 
relevant town centres. It is not considered that the development would result in 
an excessive reduction in the supply of land for development in employment 
uses. It is not considered that the proposed development would result in a 
significant loss of agricultural land. Considering national guidance and the need 
for the Council to support sustainable economic growth, the application would be 
in accordance with LP Policies S2.1, DM2.3 and DM3.4.  The loss of agricultural 
land has been accepted through its allocation as employment land. It is the view 
of officers that the principle of the proposed development is considered to be 
acceptable, subject to all other material considerations set out below being 
addressed.  
 
9.0 Impact on amenity 
9.1 Paragraph 185 of the NPPF states “Planning policies and decisions should 
also ensure that new development is appropriate for its location taking into 
account the likely effects (including cumulative effects) of pollution on health, 
living conditions and the natural environment, as well as the potential sensitivity 
of the site or the wider area to impacts that could arise from the development. In 
doing so they should: a) mitigate and reduce to a minimum potential adverse 
impacts resulting from noise from new development – and avoid noise giving rise 
to significant adverse impacts on health and the quality of life; b) identify and 
protect tranquil areas which have remained relatively undisturbed by noise and 
are prized for their recreational amenity value for this reason; and c) limit the 
impact of light pollution from artificial light on local amenity, intrinsically dark 
landscapes and nature conservation”.  
 
9.2 Paragraph 186 of the NPPF advises that decisions should sustain and 
contribute towards compliance with relevant limit values or national objectives for 
pollutants. Opportunities to improve air quality or mitigate impacts should be 
identified. Such opportunities should be considered at the plan-making stage to 
limit the need for issues to be reconsidered when determining individual 
applications.  
 
9.3 LP Policy S1.4 “General Development Principles” states “Proposals for 
development will be considered favourably where it can be demonstrated that 
they would accord with the strategic, development management or area specific 
policies of this Plan.” Amongst other matters this includes: be acceptable in terms 
of their impact upon local amenity for new or existing residents and businesses, 
adjoining premises and land uses; and be accommodated by, and make best use 
of, existing facilities and infrastructure, particularly in encouraging accessibility 
and walking, cycling and public transport, whilst making appropriate provision for 
new or additional infrastructure requirements”.  
 
9.4 LP Policy DM5.19 Pollution states “Development proposals that may cause 
pollution either individually or cumulatively of water, air or soil through noise, 
smell, smoke, fumes, gases, steam, dust, vibration, light, and other pollutants will 
be required to incorporate measures to prevent or reduce their pollution so as not 

Page 221



INIT 

to cause nuisance or unacceptable impacts on the environment, to people and to 
biodiversity. 
 
Development proposed where pollution levels are unacceptable will not be 
permitted unless it is possible for mitigation measures to be introduced to secure 
a satisfactory living or working environment. 
 
Development that may be sensitive (such as housing, schools and hospitals) to 
existing or potentially polluting sources will not be sited in proximity to such 
sources. Potentially polluting development will not be sited near to sensitive 
areas unless satisfactory mitigation measures can be demonstrated…..” 
 
9.5 LP Policy DM6.1 ‘Design of Development’ makes it clear that applications will 
only be permitted where they demonstrate high and consistent design standards. 
Amongst other matters proposed developments are responsive to their location 
and secure a positive relationship to neighbouring buildings and spaces and 
retain a good standard of amenity for existing and future residents.  
 
9.6 The proposed opening hours of the store are 0800 to 2200 hours Monday to 
Saturday and for six consecutive hours between 1000 and 1800 hours on 
Sundays.  
 
9.7 The Manager for Environmental Health has been consulted. She has raised 
concerns regarding potential noise arising from this proposal affecting 
neighbouring residential properties located on Sandy Lane located some 193m 
west of the site and Holly Court and Meadow Gardens located some 85m east of 
the site.  
 
9.8 The submitted Noise Assessment has been considered by the Manager for 
Environmental Health. The noise assessment has considered noise from new 
plant and equipment to be installed at the site and from delivery noise. 
Associated noise arising from the loading of goods would occur in the car park 
but its use can be controlled by a condition restricting its operating hours. The 
noise assessment for the external plant has determined that the predicted noise 
level will be below the existing background noise levels for both day and night 
period. The consultee has advised this would not give rise to significant adverse 
impacts. A condition is recommended to secure a validation assessment 
following the installation of any external plant. The delivery bay is located to the 
west side of the building away from the nearest sensitive residential properties on 
Holly Court and Meadow Gardens. The delivery bay is separated from the 
properties to the west by existing commercial uses. The noise assessment 
demonstrates the delivery area will not result in significant adverse impacts. A 
condition to restrict deliveries to daytime hours will not be required.  
 
9.9 The submitted Air Quality Assessment has been considered by the Manager 
for Environmental Health. This assessment has determined the impact will be low 
adverse during construction if dust mitigation measures are employed to mitigate 
dust impacts. A condition is recommended to secure dust suppression measures 
during construction.  
 

Page 222



INIT 

9.10 The Manager for Environmental Health has advised that the lighting levels 
would comply with the Institute of Lighting Professionals guidance for the 
reduction of obtrusive light. 
 
9.11 The NPPF, paragraph 55 states “Local Planning Authorities should consider 
whether otherwise unacceptable development could be made acceptable through 
the use of conditions or planning obligations.” Paragraph 56 states “Planning 
conditions should be kept to a minimum and only imposed where they are 
necessary, relevant to planning and to the development to be permitted, 
enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects.”  Although concerns 
have been raised by the Manager of Environmental Health, it is clear from her 
comments that conditions can be imposed to mitigate the impacts arising from 
this proposal. Conditions to control the hours of construction, hours of operation, 
odour abatement (if necessary), and noise from plant and equipment, and lighting 
are recommended.  
 
9.12 The positioning of the proposed building would not significantly affect the 
residential amenity of residential properties located to the east and west of the 
site in terms of loss of light, outlook or privacy.  
 
9.13 Members need to determine whether the proposed development is 
acceptable in terms of its impact on the amenity of neighbouring and nearby 
properties. It is officer advice that the proposed development is acceptable, 
subject to the imposition of the suggested conditions.  As such, it is officer advice 
that the proposed development accords with the advice in paragraph 185 of the 
NPPF and LP policies DM5.19, DM2.3 (c) and DM6.1.  
 
10.0 Impact on character and appearance 
10.1 Paragraph 134 of the NPPF states that development that is not well 
designed should be refused. 
 
10.2 LP Policy DM6.1 ‘Design of Development’ makes it clear that applications 
will only be permitted where they demonstrate high and consistent design 
standards. Amongst other matters proposed developments are responsive to 
their location, including topography, wildlife habitats, site orientation and existing 
buildings; ensuring a positive relationship to neighbouring buildings and spaces; 
ensuring sufficient parking is well integrated into the layout; and a good standard 
of amenity for existing and future residents.  
 
10.3 The ‘Design Quality’ SPD applies to all planning applications that involve 
building works.  
 
10.4 The application site adjoins a linear area of existing commercial 
development along Sandy Lane to the west.  
 
10.5 The submitted Design and Access Statement advises that the key drivers 
for the proposed site layout were: retention of existing hedgerow and trees to the 
eastern boundary; inclusion of a wildlife corridor to provide connectivity between 
Gosforth Park to the south and Weetslade Country Park to the north; and 
vehicular access from Great Lime Road.  
 

Page 223



INIT 

10.6 A wildlife corridor has been created between the rear elevation of the 
building and the existing tree belt to the western boundary. The width of the 
corridor varies between 10.1m and 17.7m. With the rear elevation of the building 
to the west, the food store is positioned in a north-south orientation with the shop 
front and store entrance to Sandy Lane and the customer parking between the 
store and Great Lime Road.  
 
10.7 Customer car parking spaces are provided including accessible bays, parent 
and child bays, and bays for electric cars. Staff parking bays are also provided to 
the north of the store. Cycle stands are proposed to the south elevation where 
there will be natural surveillance.  
 
10.8 Vehicular access is proposed from Great Lime Road. Pedestrian and cycle 
access is provided alongside the vehicular access road, and connections are 
provided from the southeast corner of the site. A pedestrian footway from the 
east through the car parking area to the store entrance is proposed.  
 
10.9 The service area is located to the west side of the building with a dedicated 
goods vehicles route to the loading pod provided along the northern boundary.  
 
10.10 To the eastern boundary, the existing hedgerow and trees have been 
incorporated into the layout with the detention basing alongside. Within this area 
of the site, additional native tree planting will be provided to enhance the 
biodiversity of the site.  
 
10.11 The maximum height of the proposed building is to the front elevation 
approximately 6.25m. The height of the rear elevation is 5m from the ground. It is 
the view of officers that the scale of the proposed building is in keeping with the 
adjacent commercial buildings.  
 
10.12 The overall design of the building is a modern, contemporary style with a 
simple palette of materials combining silver and grey cladding, powder coated 
aluminium windows, steel doors and glazing. There is a canopy to the east 
elevation over the customer entrance area which wraps around the corner of the 
building.  
 
10.13 A timber knee rail is proposed to the northern, eastern, and southern 
boundaries. This low-level boundary treatment is considered to be acceptable as 
the site is prominently located and it would allow for increased natural 
surveillance.  
 
10.14 Northumbria Police have not raised any objection to the proposed 
development. They have put forward a recommendation to enclose the side staff 
entrance or use a specific staff entrance door that is an enhanced standard. 
These options would need to be considered by the applicant.  
 
10.14 Members need to consider whether the impact on the character and 
appearance of the immediate surrounding area is acceptable. It is officer advice 
that, the proposed development would not result in a significant visual impact on 
the character or appearance of the immediate surrounding area, particularly 
having regard to the linear commercial development immediately to the west of 

Page 224



INIT 

the site along Sandy Lane. As such, the proposed development accords with 
national and LP Policy DM6.1. 
 
11.0 Impact on highway safety  
11.1 The NPPF paragraph 111 makes it clear that development should only be 
prevented or refused on highway grounds if there would be an unacceptable 
impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network 
would be severe.  
 
11.2 The NPPF paragraph 112 states, amongst other matters, that applications 
for development should give priority first to pedestrian and cycle movements both 
within the scheme and with neighbouring areas and address the needs of people 
with disabilities and reduced mobility in relation to all modes of transport.  
 
11.3 LP Policy DM7.4 ‘New Development and Transport’ makes it clear that the 
Council will ensure that the transport requirements of new development, 
commensurate to the scale and type of development, are taken into account and 
seek to promote sustainable travel to minimise environmental impacts and 
support resident’s health and well-being.  
 
11.4 The Council’s maximum parking standards are set out in the Transport and 
Highways SPD.  
 
11.5 The objection from the N&N regarding the inaccuracy of the image of the 
Sandy Lane roundabout and increase in traffic are noted.  
 
11.6 As already discussed, customer car parking provision is located to the east 
side of the building and additional staff parking is located to the north of the 
building. Pedestrian and cycle access is provided along the vehicular access 
from Great Lime Road. Further pedestrian and cycle access is accommodated 
from the south side of the site. Cycle storage is proposed to the south side of the 
building.  
 
11.7 The service area is located to the west side of the building with a dedicated 
goods vehicle route to the loading pod provided along the northern boundary. 
Access to the service area has been designed to accommodate the turning 
manoeuvres of 16.5m articulated goods vehicles, these being the largest delivery 
vehicles which will serve the food store.  
 
11.8 The submitted Transport Assessment (TA) has been considered by the 
Highways Network Manager. This assessment has analysed junctions in the 
vicinity of the site as well as the proposed site accesses and the impact of the 
development on the adjacent highway network is not considered to be severe. In 
addition, the impact of traffic was also tested on the council's transport modelling 
for the scheme to signalise Sandy Lane roundabout.  The Sandy Lane scheme 
also provides improved pedestrian and cycle access to the site and the wider 
network. 
 
11.9 The Highways Network Manager considers the proposal to be acceptable 
subject to imposing the suggested conditions.  
 

Page 225



INIT 

11.10 The submitted Travel Plan (TP) has been considered by the Sustainable 
Transport Team Leader. This TP provides ambitious targets for the reduction of 
vehicular use, whilst targeting an increase of walking and cycling trips. The TP 
commits to monitor the site for a 5 year period and produce an annual review 
report to help determine if any additional measures or interventions are required. 
A TP Bond is required to ensure if the TP Targets are not met alternative 
provision can be secured.  
  
11.11 The applicant provided a response to Nexus’ initial comments. The 
applicant advised that bus accessibility had been discussed with the focus being 
on the existing services utilising the stops on Killingworth Way. The current 
Weetslade roundabout improvement scheme includes controlled pedestrian 
crossing from Sandy Lane to Killingworth Way. Signal controlled access to the 
Avant Homes development provides additional controlled crossing facilities to 
access the eastbound bus stop. Members are advised that this highway 
improvement scheme is now complete and these improvements have been 
welcomed by Nexus.  
 
11.12 Regarding Nexus’ request for the provision of bus shelters on Sandy Lane 
the applicant did not consider this request to be reasonable or necessary to make 
their development acceptable in planning terms. The request for bus shelters on 
Sandy Lane should be considered if further development is brought forward on 
the wider employment site. Nexus confirmed that they had no further comments 
to make regarding bus shelters on Sandy Lane.  
 
11.13 As already discussed, the TP has been considered by the Sustainable 
Transport Team Leader and they consider the measures put forward to be 
acceptable.  
 
11.14 Members need to determine whether the proposed development is 
acceptable in terms of its impact on the highway network and existing parking 
provision. It is officer advice that it is. The proposed development accords with 
both national and local planning policies.  
 
12.0 Impacts on Biodiversity  
12.1 An environmental role is one of the three dimensions of sustainable 
development according to NPPF, which seeks to protect and enhance our natural 
environment.  
 
12.2 Paragraph 174 of the NPPF states that the planning policies and decisions 
should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment. Amongst 
other matters, this includes minimising the impacts of biodiversity and providing 
net gains for biodiversity, including by establishing coherent ecological networks 
that are more resilient to current and future pressures.  
 
12.3 Paragraph 179 of the NPPF states that when determining planning 
applications LPA’s should aim to protect and enhance biodiversity and 
geodiversity by following the principles set out in paragraph 180 which includes, 
amongst other matters, if significant harm cannot be avoided, adequately 
mitigated, or as a last resort, compensated from the planning permission should 
be refused.  

Page 226



INIT 

 
12.4 LP Policy S5.4 ‘Biodiversity and Geodiversity’ seeks to protect, create, 
enhance and manage sites within the borough relative to their significance.  
 
12.5 LP Policy DM5.7 ‘Wildlife Corridors’ states: “Development proposals within a 
wildlife corridor, as shown on the Policies Map, must protect and enhance the 
quality and connectivity of the wildlife corridor. All new developments are required 
to take account of and incorporate existing wildlife links into their plans at the 
design stage. Developments should seek to create new links and habitats to 
reconnect isolated sites and facilitate species movement.” 
 
12.6 Newcastle International Airport (NIA) has been consulted. They have 
advised that the amount of landscaping proposed and distance to the flight path it 
would not result in any detriment to the safe operation of the airport.  
 
12.7 Northumberland Wildlife Trust has been consulted. They object to the 
proposed development as no appropriate on-site habitat would be retained for 
farmland and ground nesting birds and no appropriate off-site mitigation has 
been offered. The wildlife corridor to be retained is not sufficient and would be 
subjected to higher levels of human disturbance. Locally native species should 
be used, and no biodiversity net gain has been provided. This objection is noted.  
 
12.8 The N&N Society have objected to the loss of a green corridor. This 
objection is noted.  
 
12.9 The Landscape Architect and Biodiversity Officer have been consulted. 
They have considered the supporting information including Preliminary Ecological 
Assessment (PEA), Breeding Bird Survey, Wintering Bird Survey, Bat Survey, 
Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) Assessment and Metric and landscaping proposal. 
The results/conclusions of these surveys are set out in greater detail in the 
Appendix to this report.  
 
12.10 The PEA recommends that habitats are left in place/enhanced around the 
boundaries of the site to ensure that the wildlife corridor is not severed by the 
proposed development. It also recommends that trees and hedgerows are 
retained to maintain connectivity within the site and additional planting 
incorporated along the length of the site to increase the amount of habitat within 
the corridor.  
 
12.11 As part of the mitigation/enhancement section the Breeding Bird Survey it 
recommends the retention of existing hedgerows so some natural foraging and 
nesting habitat can remain as well as off-site compensation for skylark, lapwing 
and grey partridge.  
 
12.12 The Wintering Bird Survey advises that whilst the site is not considered of 
particular importance to maintain local populations of any of the wintering species 
identified, it does provide good connectivity to higher quality habitat to the north 
and the south, as well as, providing some foraging opportunities. It goes on to 
say that whilst it is expected that the site plans will likely reduce the species 
richness of the site overall, the retention and/or enhancement of existing 
hedgerows on site and the planting of additional hedgerows should be 

Page 227



INIT 

considered to provide foraging habitat and maintain connectivity. The report also 
concludes that it is likely, given the nature of the development, that ground 
foraging species such as grey partridge and lapwing will not be retained as a 
wintering species given the reduction in foraging opportunity and disturbance 
from the change in site use. However, similar habitat is present within the wider 
landscape which can provide foraging opportunities to these species, particularly 
to the north of the site. 
 
12.13 The Bat Survey advises bat activity was low. Commuting was most 
commonly recorded north to south and vice versa across site with some foraging 
towards the north-west of the site. No roosts were observed during the surveys. 
The submitted Landscape Plan shows that the hedgerow along the eastern 
boundary of the site will be retained and enhanced with species rich grassland to 
maintain habitat connectivity and new planting (hedgerows, trees, grassland) will 
also be provided, along the southern boundary which will also connect to the 
eastern boundary habitat. In addition, a corridor of landscaping (11m-17m wide) 
will be provided along the western boundary to provide a landscape buffer and 
enhance the existing woodland habitat along this boundary with additional 
woodland, scrub and species rich grassland. The provision of lighting will need to 
be minimised along this boundary with conditions attached to ensure any lighting 
within the site minimises light spill to valuable habitat along the boundaries of the 
site, particularly the western boundary ‘wildlife corridor’ buffer. 
 
12.14 The BNG Assessment and Metric, indicates that post development and the 
implementation of the proposed landscaping scheme, there will be net loss. A 
BNG is required to meet local and national planning policies. To address this net 
loss the applicant has agreed to pay a financial contribution to address the 
shortfall in habitat units on site to achieve an overall 10% net gain in habitat on 
an appropriate area of land within Council ownership.  
 
12.15 A landscape buffer to the western boundary is proposed. This area will 
accommodate a belt of mixed native scrub with standard trees adjacent to the 
existing established tree planting along the western boundary, with species rich 
grassland between the native scrub and the rear of the proposed foodstore. The 
native scrub extends along the northern boundary (adjacent to car parking) and 
contains several standard trees within the mix. The western buffer planting also 
connects with a new native species rich hedgerow with standard trees along the 
southern boundary. This landscape buffer is approximately 11m at its narrowest 
section increasing to approximately 17m. The north-west section of native scrub 
planting also widens out before narrowing along the northern boundary adjacent 
to car parking.  
 
12.16 The existing hedge and trees along the eastern boundary are being largely 
retained except for a small section of hedge to facilitate the new access road into 
the site. This boundary is being enhanced with a belt of mixed native scrub and 
standard trees adjacent to the hedgerow along with species rich grassland either 
side of the hedge. A SUDs area is also provided to the northwest of the 
hedgerow, adjacent to the internal access road to address drainage requirements 
and this will be sown with an appropriate wetland species rich grassland. 
 

Page 228



INIT 

12.17 The trees to the west of the site on neighbouring land are protected by a 
Tree Preservation Order (TPO). These trees are being retained. It is also 
proposed to retain all trees within the site except for the small section of hedge to 
facilitate the new pedestrian and vehicular access into the site. It is proposed to 
plant 66no. native standard trees of varying species that will improve the setting 
of the proposed building and contribute to the wildlife corridor and biodiversity.  
 
12.18 A condition is recommended to ensure that appropriate boundary 
treatments are secured to ensure wildlife movement within the landscape 
buffer/corridor is maintained.  
 
12.19 Concerns have been raised regarding light spill levels to sensitive areas 
within the site, mainly the landscape buffer/corridor. These habitats are being 
created to ‘protect and enhance’ the wildlife corridor, providing valuable habitat 
for commuting and foraging bats and nesting and roosting habitat for birds. The 
provision of lighting columns will need to be minimised or re-located/re-designed 
along these boundary features (particularly the western and north-west 
boundary) to ensure light spill is reduced in these areas and to meet the 
requirements of LP policies DM5.5 and DM5.7.  
 
12.20 The consultees have advised that subject to some alterations to the 
scheme (lighting) which can be addressed via condition, the landscape scheme 
provides a high level of visual amenity and also provides biodiversity 
enhancements, including a habitat buffer along the western boundary, to 
maintain wildlife connectivity with the wider area. Whilst there is a very minor net 
loss of habitat units on site (0.03 habitat units) resulting in an overall -0.83% net 
loss, this will be addressed via a financial contribution to ensure that an overall 
10% net gain will be delivered off-site on Council owned land. Impacts on 
farmland birds will also be addressed through a financial contribution to ensure 
enhancement of land within the Rising Sun Country Park/Farm or an alternative 
appropriate area.  On this basis, they have recommended conditional approval.  
 
12.21 Members need to consider whether the proposed development is 
acceptable in terms of its impact on biodiversity and landscaping. It is officer 
advice that it is, subject to imposing the suggested conditions and securing 
financial contributions to achieve BNG and mitigate impacts for farmland birds.  
 
13.0 Other Issues 
13.1 Contaminated Land 
13.2 NPPF paragraph 183 seeks to ensure that planning decisions have regard 
to ground conditions and any risks arising from land instability and contamination. 
  
13.3 NPPF paragraph 184 states “Where a site is affected by contamination or 
land stability issues, responsibility for securing a safe development rests with the 
developer and/or landowner”.   
 
13.4 LP Policy DM5.18 “Contaminated and Unstable Land” seeks to ensure that 
the future users or occupiers of a development would not be affected by 
contamination or stability issues.  
 

Page 229



INIT 

13.5 The Contaminated Land Officer has been consulted. She has recommended 
conditional approval.  
 
13.6 The Coal Authority has been consulted. They have confirmed that the site is 
not located within a coal referral area.  
 
13.7 Members need to consider whether the proposed development is 
acceptable in terms of its impact on ground conditions. It is officer advice that it 
is.  
 
13.8 Drainage – foul and surface water  
13.9 The NPPF paragraph 159 makes it clear that development should not 
increase flood risk elsewhere and only consider development in appropriate 
areas.  
 
13.10 LP Policy “DM5.12 Development and Flood Risk” states that all major 
developments will be required to demonstrate that flood risk does not increase as 
a result of the development proposed, and that options have been taken to 
reduce overall flood risk from all sources, taking into account the impact of 
climate change over its lifetime. 
 
13.11 The Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) has been consulted. The LLFA has 
raised no objections to the proposal as the applicant will be providing surface 
water attenuation within the site for up to a 1in100yr rainfall event + a 40% 
allocation for climate change and will be restricting the rate of surface water 
leaving the site to the equivalent greenfield run-off rates. The attenuation will be 
achieved via the use of underground cellular storage crates with a flow control 
device fitted on the outlet prior to the attenuation basin to restrict the surface 
water discharge rate to 3.6l/s before it discharges via a dedicated surface water 
sewer into the watercourse located to the north of the proposed development. 
The improvement in the surface water quality discharging from the development 
will be achieved via the form of filter trenches and swales and an attenuation 
basin. A petrol separator will be provided within the loading bay area to collect 
silts and hydrocarbons from this area of the site. The applicant has indicated the 
maintenance of the suds features and associated drainage infrastructure will be 
the responsibility of the applicant and an appointed building management 
company. A condition is required to secure the details of the appointed 
management company of the proposed drainage features.  
 
13.12 The LLFA has noted that the applicant intends to discharge the site’s foul 
drainage system into the surface water drainage system via an onsite treatment 
plant. They do not consider this to be an ideal solution but accept that this is 
proposed as result of the lack of any foul drainage sewers in the vicinity of the 
proposed development. However, approval will be required from the Environment 
Agency as the surface water from the development will be discharging to a 
watercourse so an environmental permit will be required to allow this connection.  
 
13.13 Northumbrian Water have been consulted. They have raised no objection 
to the proposed development as foul and surface water will not connect to 
existing mains drainage.  
  

Page 230



INIT 

13.14 The Environment Agency has been consulted. They have considered the 
Foul Drainage Assessment Form and Foul Flow Calculations and consider that 
they satisfactorily address their earlier concerns.  
 
13.15 Members need to determine whether the proposed development is 
acceptable in terms of flood risk. It is officer advice that it is, and it would accord 
with both national and local planning policies.  
 
13.16 Strategic Policy Area – North West Villages Sub Area 
13.17 The application site is in an area identified as being in the northwest village 
sub area. The proposed development would not prevent the aims of Policy 
AS8.24 being met.  
 
14.0 Local Financial Considerations 
14.1 Paragraph 11 of National Planning Practice Guidance states that Section 
70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) provides that a 
local planning authority must have regard to a local financial consideration as far 
as it is material. Section 70(4) of the 1990 Act (as amended) defines a local 
financial consideration as a grant or other financial assist that has been, will or 
that could be provided to a relevant authority by a Minister of the Crown (such as 
New Homes Bonus payments) or sums that a relevant authority has received, or 
will or could receive, in payment of Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).   
 
14.2 Whether or not a ‘local financial consideration’ is material to a particular 
decision will depend on whether it could help make the development acceptable 
in planning terms. It is not considered that New Homes Bonus or CIL 
contributions are material in terms of making this development acceptable in 
planning terms.  
 
15.0 Conclusion 
15.1 Members need to determine whether the proposed development is 
acceptable in terms of the principle of the development, including its impact on 
existing town centres, the loss of employment land, the loss of agricultural land, 
its impact on amenity (noise and odour), its impact on the character and 
appearance of the area and all other issues including its impact on highways, 
biodiversity, ground conditions and flood risk. It is the view of officers that the 
proposed development is acceptable. As such, officers consider that the 
proposed development does accord with national and local planning policies.  
 
15.2 It is therefore recommended that planning permission should be granted 
subject to a S106 Agreement and conditions.  
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Minded to grant  legal agreement req. 
 
 
 
It is recommended that: 
the Committee indicates that it is minded to grant the application; and 

Page 231



INIT 

 
the Director of Regeneration and Economic Development be authorised to 
issue a notice of grant of planning permission subject to:  
the conditions set out in the planning officers report and any subsequent 
addendum(s);  
the addition, omission or amendment of any other conditions considered 
necessary by the Director of Regeneration and Economic Development; 
and,   
completion of a legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 to secure financial contributions for the 
following: 
-Farmland bird mitigation 45, 000.00 pounds  
-Biodiversity Net Gain 5, 850.00 pounds  
-Travel Plan Bond 10, 000.00 pounds  
-Travel Plan Monitoring Fee 1, 250.00 pounds (250.00 pounds per annum) 
-Employment and Training 10, 912.00 pounds  
 
It is recommended that:  
the Committee authorises the Director of Law and Governance and the 
Director of Regeneration and Economic Development to undertake all 
necessary procedures (Section 278 Agreement) to secure:  
-New access 
-New pedestrian & cycle links to the site 
-Localised widening 
-Associated street lighting 
-Associated road markings 
-Associated signage 
-Associated Traffic Regulation Orders 
-Reduction in speed limit on Great 
-Detailed highway design 
-Road safety audit 
 
 
 
Conditions/Reasons 
 
1.    The development to which the permission relates shall be carried out in 
complete accordance with the following approved plans, documents and 
specifications: 
         Location plan Dwg No. 0001 P01 
         Existing site plan Dwg No. 0008 P03 
         Proposed site plan Dwg No. 0002 P05 
         Floor plans as proposed Dwg No. 0003 P03 
         Roof plan as proposed Dwg No. 0004 P02 
         Elevations as proposed Dwg No. 0005 P04 
         Proposed drainage layout Dwg No. 1000 P03 
         Proposed drainage layout offsite surface water outfall Dwg No. 1001 P03 
         Framework Travel Plan (January 2023) 
         Reason:  To ensure that the development as carried out does not vary from 
the approved plans. 
 

Page 232



INIT 

2.    The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 
three years from the date of this permission. 
         Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
3.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, the scheme for off-site highway works as set 
out in drawing number PM_00_10_00-0002 - Revision P03 shall be carried out 
prior to the occupation of the development hereby approved and subject to 
Technical Approvals and Road Safety Audits being submitted to and agreed by 
the Local Highway Authority in consultation with the Local Planning Authority and 
include the following measures: 
         New access 
         New pedestrian & cycle links to the site 
         Localised widening 
         Associated street lighting 
         Associated road markings 
         Associated signage 
         Associated Traffic Regulation Orders 
         Reduction in speed limit on Great 
         Detailed highway design 
         Road safety audit 
         Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having 
regard to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
          
 
4.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, the scheme for access shall be laid out in 
accordance with the approved plans prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development hereby approved.  This access shall not be used for any other 
purpose and retained thereafter. 
         Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having 
regard to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
5.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, the scheme for parking shall be laid out in 
accordance with the approved plans prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development hereby approved. These parking areas shall not be used for any 
other purpose and retained thereafter. 
         Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having 
regard to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
6.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, the scheme for Electric Vehicle (EV) charging 
shall be laid out in accordance with the approved plans prior to the occupation of  
the development hereby approved. These EV charging areas shall not be used 
for any other purpose and retained thereafter. 
         Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having 
regard to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
7.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, the scheme for secure cycle  parking shall be 
laid out in accordance with the approved plans prior to the occupation of the 
development hereby approved. This cycle parking shall not be used for any other 
purpose and retained thereafter. 

Page 233



INIT 

         Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having 
regard to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
8.    Notwithstanding the Condition 1, the scheme for servicing shall be laid out in 
accordance with the approved plans prior to the occupation of  the development 
hereby approved. These turning areas shall not be used for any other purpose 
and retained thereafter. 
         Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having 
regard to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
9.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, the scheme for the provision of and storage of 
refuse shall be laid out in accordance with the approved plans and prior to the 
occupation of  the development hereby approved. These storage areas shall not 
be used for any other purpose and retained thereafter. 
         Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having 
regard to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
10.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, no development shall commence until a 
Construction Method Statement for the duration of the construction period has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved statement shall: identify the access to the site for all site operatives 
(including those delivering materials) and visitors, provide for the parking of 
vehicles of site operatives and visitors; details of the site compound for the 
storage of plant (silos etc) and materials used in constructing the development; 
provide a scheme indicating the route for heavy construction vehicles to and from 
the site; a turning area within the site for delivery vehicles; dust suppression 
scheme (such measures shall include mechanical street cleaning, and/or 
provision of water bowsers, and/or wheel washing and/or road cleaning facilities, 
and any other wheel cleaning solutions and dust suppressions measures 
considered appropriate to the size of the development). The scheme must 
include a site plan illustrating the location of facilities and any alternative 
locations during all stages of development. There shall be no cabins, storage of 
plant and materials, parking are not to be located within the Root Protection Area 
(RPA) of the retained trees as defined by the Tree Protection Plan. The approved 
statement shall be implemented and complied with during and for the life of the 
works associated with the development. 
         Reason: This information is required pre development to ensure that the 
site set up does not impact on highway safety, pedestrian safety, retained trees 
(where necessary) and residential amenity having regard to policies DM5.19 and 
DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
          
 
11.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the installation of any air ventilation 
systems details shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Thereafter, the development shall not be carried out other 
than in accordance with the approved details which shall be permanently 
maintained and retained.  
         Reason:  In order to safeguard the amenities of adjoining properties having 
regard to policy DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017).  
          

Page 234



INIT 

 
12.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, all refrigeration plant shall be installed in 
accordance with the submitted Proposed Plant Layout 79-EXXXX-WAVE-XX-00-
DR-R-En_60_60_00-0001_A5-P05 unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the refrigeration plant shall be permanently 
maintained and retained.  
         Reason:  In order to safeguard the amenities of adjoining properties having 
regard to policy DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017).  
 
13.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, the noise rating level from the combined plant 
and equipment installed at the site shall not exceed the background noise level of 
35dB LAeq for the night period and 59 dB LAeq for daytime at the nearest 
sensitive receptor located on Holly Court and Meadow Gardens. It will be 
necessary following installation of the plant and equipment that acoustic testing is 
undertaken to verify compliance with this condition within one month of its 
installation and shall submit this information to the Local Planning Authority for 
written approval prior to the operation of the plant and equipment. Thereafter the 
development shall be carried out in full accordance with these agreed details and 
shall be permanently retained and maintained in working order.  
         Reason:  In order to safeguard the amenities of neighbouring properties 
having regard to policy DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
14.    No sound reproduction equipment which is audible outside the curtilage of 
the premises shall be operated on the site. 
         Reason:  In order to protect the amenities of occupiers of nearby properties 
having regard to policy DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
15.    The premises/building hereby approved shall only be open for business in 
accordance with the following:  
         08:00 to 22:00 hours Monday to Saturday 
         10:00  to 18:00 hours Sundays  
         Reason: To safeguard the occupiers of adjacent properties from undue 
noise of other associated disturbance having regard to policy DM5.19 of the 
North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
16.    The construction site subject of this approval shall not be operational and 
there shall be no construction, deliveries to, from or vehicle movements within the 
site outside the hours of 0800-1800 Monday - Friday and 0800-1400 Saturdays 
with no working on Sundays or Bank Holidays. 
         Reason:  To safeguard the amenity of nearby residents having regard to 
policy DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning 
Policy Framework. 
 
17.    The development hereby permitted shall not be constructed above damp 
proof course level until the details of a scheme of site investigation and 
assessment to test for the presence and likelihood of gas emissions from 
underground workings, historic landfill, unknown filled ground or made ground 
has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
          
         Upon approval of the method statement: 
          

Page 235



INIT 

         a) A detailed site investigation should be carried out to establish the degree 
and nature of the gas regime, and whether there is a risk likely to arise to the 
occupants of the development. The results and conclusions of the detailed site 
investigations should be submitted to and the conclusions approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority.  The Ground Gas Assessment Report should be 
written using the current government guidelines. 
          
         b) In the event that remediation is required following the assessment of the 
ground gas regime using current guidelines, then a method statement must be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
          
         The detailed design and construction of the development shall take account 
of the results of the site investigation and the assessment should give regard to 
results showing depleted oxygen levels or flooded monitoring wells. The method 
of construction shall also incorporate all the measures shown in the approved 
assessment. 
          
         This should provide details of exactly what remediation is required and how 
the remediation will be implemented on site; details including drawings of gas 
protection scheme should be included. 
          
         c) Where remediation is carried out on the site then a validation report will 
be required. This report should confirm exactly what remediation has been 
carried out and that the objectives of the remediation statement have been met.  
          
         The validation report should include cross sectional diagrams of the 
foundations and how any gas protection measures proposed in the remediation 
method statement are incorporated.  In the event that integrity testing of 
membranes is required then any test certificates produced should also be 
included. 
          
         A verification report shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority before the development is occupied/brought into use. 
          
         d) In the event that there is a significant change to the ground conditions 
due to the development, for example grouting or significant areas of hard 
standing; then additional gas monitoring should be carried out to assess whether 
the gas regime has been affected by the works carried out. In the event that the 
gas regime has been altered then a reassessment of remediation options shall 
be submitted to the Local Planning authority to be agreed in writing before the 
development is occupied/brought into use. 
          
         Thereafter the development shall not be implemented otherwise than in 
accordance with the scheme referred to in c) above. 
          
         Reason: In order to safeguard the development and/or the occupants 
thereof from possible future gas emissions from underground and or adverse 
effects of landfill gas which may migrate from a former landfill site having regard 
to policy DM5.18 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning 
Policy Framework. 
 

Page 236



INIT 

18.    No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing 
and proposed ground levels and levels of thresholds and floor levels of all 
proposed buildings has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  Such levels shall be shown in relation to a fixed and known 
datum point.  Thereafter, the development shall not be carried out other than in 
accordance with the approved details.  Reason: This needs to be pre-
commencement condition to ensure that the work is carried out at suitable levels 
in relation to adjoining properties and highways, having regard to amenity, 
access, highway and drainage requirements having regard to policy DM6.1 of the 
North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
19.    Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Use 
Classes) Order 1987 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order), the land 
and/or building(s) shall be used only for the purpose of a food store and for no 
other purpose including any other purpose within the Town and Country Planning 
(Use Classes Order) 1987 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order).   
         Reason:  To enable the Local Planning Authority to retain control over the 
use to ensure an appropriate standard od amenity and parking provision is 
retained having regard to Policy DM6.1 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017).  
          
 
20.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the development hereby approved 
being brought into use/occupied details of the appointed SUDS management 
company/companies responsible for managing all onsite drainage  shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in 
consultation with the Lead Local Flood Authority. Thereafter, the surface water 
drainage shall be managed and maintained in accordance with these agreed 
details and the Local Planning Authority shall be notified in writing of any change 
to the management company/companies.  
         Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding from any sources in 
accordance with the NPPF.  
 
21.    No vegetation removal or building works shall take place during the bird 
nesting season (March- August inclusive) unless a survey by a suitably qualified 
ecologist has confirmed the absence of nesting birds immediately prior to works 
commencing on site. 
         Reason: To ensure that protected/priority species are adequately protected 
having regard to Policy DM5.7 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017).  
 
22.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the construction of any part of the 
development hereby approved above damp proof course level details of 1no. 
integrated feature (e.g. bat brick, tile, bat box) and 2no. integrated bird features 
shall be provided on the new building hereby approved and 2no. bat boxes and 
3no. bird boxes to be provided in suitable locations within the site including 
specifications, locations and a timetable for their implementation, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, 
the bird and bat boxes/features shall be installed in accordance with these 
agreed details and shall be permanently maintained and retained.  
         Reason: To ensure that protected/priority species are appropriately 
mitigated for having regard to Policy DM5.7 of the North Tyneside Local Plan 
(2017).  

Page 237



INIT 

          
 
23.    Any excavations left open overnight will have a means of escape for 
mammals that may become trapped in the form of a ramp at least 300mm in 
width and angled no greater than 45°.  
         Reason: To ensure that protected/priority species are adequately protected 
during construction having regard to Policy DM5.7 of the North Tyneside Local 
Plan (2017).  
 
24.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the installation of any boundary 
treatments or enclosures details, including measurements and materials and a 
timetable for its installation, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. These details shall include the locations and 
specification of hedgehog gaps (13cmx13cm). Thereafter, any boundary 
treatment/enclosures shall be installed in accordance with these agreed details 
and shall be permanently maintained and retained.  
         Reason: To ensure that protected/priority species are appropriately 
mitigated for having regard to Policy DM5.7 of the North Tyneside Local Plan 
(2017).  
 
25.    All works within the root protection area (RPA's) of the retained trees that 
include (but not limited to) kerb installation, fence post installation, lighting and 
drainage, are to be carried out in complete accordance with the Arboricultural 
Method Statement submitted by All About Trees, BS 5837:2012 and the National 
Joint Utilities Group (NJUG) 'Guidelines for the Planning, Installation and 
Maintenance of Utility Apparatus in Proximity To Trees'.  
         Reason: To ensure existing landscape features are adequately protected 
during construction having regard to Policy DM5.9 of the North Tyneside Local 
Plan (2017).  
 
26.    Prior to commencement of works starting on site, the trees within or 
adjacent to and overhang the site that are to be retained are to be protected by 
fencing and in the locations shown and detailed in the Tree Protection Plan 
submitted by All About Trees unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  No operational work, site clearance works or the 
development itself shall commence until the fencing is installed and photographs 
of the installed fencing have been submitted.  The protective fence shall remain 
in place until the works are complete or unless otherwise agreed in writing with 
the Local Planning Authority.  The protective fence is not to be repositioned 
without the approval of the Local Authority. 
         Reason: The tree protection measures are required from the outset to 
ensure existing landscape features are adequately protected during construction 
having regard to Policy DM5.9 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017).  
 
27.    No trees, shrubs or hedges within the site which are shown as being 
retained on the submitted plans shall be felled, uprooted, wilfully damaged or 
destroyed, cut back in any way or removed during the development phase other 
than in accordance with the approved plans or without the prior written consent of 
the Local Planning Authority. Any trees, shrubs or hedges removed without such 
consent, or which die or become severely damaged or seriously diseased within 
three years from the completion of the development hereby permitted shall be 

Page 238



INIT 

replaced with trees, shrubs or hedge plants of similar size and species until the 
Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation. 
         Reason: To ensure existing landscape features are retained having regard 
to Policy DM5.9 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017).  
 
28.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the construction of any part of the 
development hereby approved above damp proof course level details of an 
arboricultural consultant shall be appointed by the developer to advise on the tree 
management for the site and to undertake regular supervision visits to oversee 
the agreed tree protection and visit as required to oversee any unexpected works 
that could affect the trees.  The supervision is to be undertaken in accordance 
with the Arboricultural Method Statement by All About Trees. These details shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall 
include written evidence of regular monitoring and compliance by the pre-
appointed tree specialist during construction. 
         Reason: To ensure existing landscape features are adequately protected 
having regard to Policy DM5.9 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017).  
 
29.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the construction of any part of the 
development hereby approved above damp proof course level, a fully detailed 
landscape plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority and shall be in accordance with the details provided within the 
Biodiversity Metric 3.0 and BNG Assessment Report (Total Ecology Feb 2022). 
The landscape scheme shall include a detailed specification and proposed timing 
of all new tree, shrub, hedgerow and wildflower planting.  All new standard trees 
are to be a minimum 12-14cm girth.  The landscaping scheme shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details within the first available 
planting season following the approval of details.  All hard and soft landscape 
works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and to a 
standard in accordance with the relevant recommendations of British Standard 
8545:2014. Any trees or plants that, within a period of five years after planting, 
are removed, die or become seriously damaged or defective, shall be replaced 
with others of species, size and number as originally approved, by the end of the 
first available planting season thereafter. Any revisions to the landscape plan are 
to be submitted and approved by the local authority.  
         Reason: To ensure the development provides an appropriate level of 
mitigation having regard to Policies DM5.7 and DM5.9 of the North Tyneside 
Local Plan (2017).  
 
30.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the construction of any part of the 
development hereby approved above damp proof course level, a detailed 30 year 
'Landscape and Ecological Management and Monitoring Plan' (LEMMP) for all 
landscaping/habitat creation within the application site, as set out in the 
Biodiversity Metric and BNG Report (Total Ecology Feb 2022) and an approved 
Landscape Plan, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. This plan shall include details of site preparation, long-term 
design objectives, management and monitoring objectives, management 
responsibilities, timescales and maintenance schedules for all newly created and 
enhanced habitats within the site. Thereafter, these areas shall be managed and 
maintained in full accordance with these agreed details unless first agreed in 

Page 239



INIT 

writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The plan will include details of the 
following: 
         -Details on the creation, enhancement and management of all habitats 
identified within the Biodiversity Metric and BNG Assessment Report (Total 
Ecology Feb 2022) and approved Landscape Plan and how the condition criteria 
will be met through management;   
         -Survey and monitoring details for all for all target habitats identified within 
the Net Gain Assessment Report/Biodiversity Metric (Total Ecology 2022). 
Monitoring Reports will be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for review in 
years 3, 5 and 10 and 5 yearly thereafter, and will include a Net Gain 
Assessment update as part of the report to ensure the habitats are reaching the 
specified target condition. Any changes to habitat management as part of this 
review will require approval in writing from the Local Planning Authority. The Plan 
will be reviewed every 5 years in partnership with the LPA. 
         -Details of any corrective action that will be undertaken if habitat delivery 
fails to achieve the requirements set out in the approved Biodiversity Net Gain 
Report/Biodiversity Metric. 
         Reason: To ensure the development provides an appropriate level of 
mitigation and to support and enhance existing biodiversity and landscape 
features having regard to Policies DM5.7 and DM5.9 of the North Tyneside Local 
Plan (2017).  
 
31.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to any works commencing on site a 
Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). The CEMP shall 
include method statements for protected/priority species (breeding birds, bats, 
hedgehog etc), removal of invasive species (Japanese Rose) and appropriate 
working methods including pollution control. Thereafter, the development hereby 
approved shall be carried out in full accordance with these agreed details.  
         Reason: This information is required from the outset to ensure that 
protected/priority species are adequately protected during construction having 
regard to Policy DM5.7 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017).  
 
32.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the installation of any floodlighting or 
other form of external lighting, a lighting scheme shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. High intensity security lights 
will be avoided as far as practical and if required, these will be of minimum 
practicable brightness, be set on a short timer and will be motion sensitive only to 
larger objects.  Lighting must be designed to minimise light spill to adjacent 
boundary features such as woodland, scrub, grassland and hedgerow habitats 
and should be less than 2 lux in these areas. The Scheme shall include the 
following information: 
         - a statement of frequency of use, and the hours of illumination; 
         - a site plan showing the area to be lit relative to the surrounding area, 
indicating parking or access arrangements where appropriate, and highlighting 
any significant existing or proposed landscape or boundary features; 
         - details of the number, location and height of the proposed lighting 
columns or other fixtures; 
         - the type, number, mounting height and alignment of the luminaires; 
         - the beam angles and upward waste light ratio for each light; 

Page 240



INIT 

         - an isolux diagram showing the predicted illuminance levels at critical 
locations on the boundary of the site and where the site abuts residential 
properties or the public highway to ensure compliance with the institute of lighting 
engineers Guidance Notes for the reduction of light pollution to prevent light glare 
and intrusive light for agreed environmental zone ; and 
         - where necessary, the percentage increase in luminance and the predicted 
illuminance in the vertical plane (in lux) at key points. 
         The lighting shall be installed and maintained in accordance with the 
approved scheme.  
         Reason: In order to safeguard the amenities of neighbouring properties 
having regard to policy DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
 
Statement under Article 35 of the Town & Country (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015): 
 
 
The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the 
economic, social and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises 
sustainable development and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively 
and positively to issue the decision without delay. The Local Planning Authority 
has therefore implemented the requirements in Paragraph 38 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 241



INIT 

 
 

 

 
Application reference: 23/00217/FUL 
Location: Land East Of, Weetslade Depot, Great Lime Road, Dudley  
Proposal: Erection of foodstore (Class E) with associated car parking; 
vehicular, pedestrian and cycle access; SuDs; and landscaping 

Not to scale © Crown Copyright and database right 
2011.  Ordnance Survey Licence Number 
0100016801 

 

Date: 31.05.2023 

 

Page 242



INIT 

Appendix 1 – 23/00217/FUL 
Item 5 
 
Consultations/representations 
 
1.0 Internal Consultees 
1.1 Highways Network Manager  
1.2 A Transport Assessment (TA) was submitted as part of the planning 
application that analysed junctions in the vicinity of the site as well as the 
proposed site accesses and the impact of the development on the adjacent 
highway network is not considered to be severe. 
 
1.3 In addition, the impact of traffic was also tested on the council's transport 
modelling for the scheme to signalise Sandy Lane roundabout.  The Sandy Lane 
scheme also provides improved pedestrian and cycle access to the site and the 
wider network. 
 
1.4 The site will be accessed from the Great Lime Road and parking will be 
provided to meet the needs of the site.  Cycle parking will also be provided, along 
with a Travel Plan and servicing will take place via a service yard to the north of 
the site. 
 
1.5 Conditional approval is recommended. 
 
1.6 Recommendation - Conditional Approval 
 
1.7 The applicant will be required to enter into a Section 278 agreement for the 
off-site highway works set out in drawing number PM_00_10_00-0002 - Revision 
P03, which is subject to Technical Approvals and Road Safety Audits and 
includes the following measures: 
 
New access 
New pedestrian & cycle links to the site 
Localised widening 
Associated street lighting 
Associated road markings 
Associated signage 
Associated Traffic Regulation Orders 
Reduction in speed limit on Great 
Detailed highway design 
Road safety audit 
 
1.8 Conditions: 
Notwithstanding the details submitted, the scheme for off-site highway works as 
set out in drawing number PM_00_10_00-0002 - Revision P03 shall be carried 
out prior to the occupation of the development hereby approved and subject to 
Technical Approvals and Road Safety Audits being submitted to and agreed by 
the Local Highway Authority in consultation with the Local Planning Authority and 
include the following measures: 
 
New access 

Page 243



INIT 

New pedestrian & cycle links to the site 
Localised widening 
Associated street lighting 
Associated road markings 
Associated signage 
Associated Traffic Regulation Orders 
Reduction in speed limit on Great 
Detailed highway design 
Road safety audit 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having regard 
to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
Notwithstanding the details submitted, the scheme for access shall be laid out in 
accordance with the approved plans prior to the development hereby approved 
being brought into use.  This access shall not be used for any other purpose and 
shall be retained thereafter. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having regard 
to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
Notwithstanding the details submitted, the scheme for parking shall be laid out in 
accordance with the approved plans prior to the development hereby approved 
being brought into use. These parking areas shall not be used for any other 
purpose and shall be retained thereafter. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having regard 
to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
Notwithstanding the details submitted, the scheme for Electric Vehicle (EV) 
charging shall be laid out in accordance with the approved plans prior to the 
development hereby approved being brought into use. These EV charging areas 
shall not be used for any other purpose and shall be retained thereafter. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having regard 
to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
Notwithstanding the details submitted, the scheme for taxi and private hire 
provision shall be laid out in accordance with the approved plans prior to the 
development hereby approved being brought into use. This taxi and private hire 
provision areas shall not be used for any other purpose and shall be retained 
thereafter. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having regard 
to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
Notwithstanding the details submitted, the scheme for undercover cycle storage 
shall be laid out in accordance with the approved plans prior to the development 
hereby approved being brought into use. This cycle storage shall not be used for 
any other purpose and shall be retained thereafter. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having regard 
to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
Notwithstanding the details submitted, the scheme for servicing shall be laid out 
in accordance with the approved plans prior to the development hereby approved 

Page 244



INIT 

being brought into use.  These turning areas shall not be used for any other 
purpose and shall be retained thereafter. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having regard 
to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
Notwithstanding the details submitted, the scheme for the provision of and 
storage of refuse shall be laid out in accordance with the approved plans and 
prior to the development hereby approved being brought into use.  These storage 
areas shall not be used for any other purpose and shall be retained thereafter. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having regard 
to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
Prior to the commencement of any part of the development hereby approved 
above damp proof course level details of a car park management plan shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.  This plan 
shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details and shall be 
retained thereafter. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having regard 
to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
Prior to the commencement of any part of the development hereby approved 
above damp proof course level details of a service management plan shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.  This plan 
shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details and shall be 
retained thereafter. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and of the development having regard 
to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
Notwithstanding Condition 1, no development shall commence until a 
Construction Method Statement for the duration of the construction period has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved statement shall: identify the access to the site for all site operatives 
(including those delivering materials) and visitors, provide for the parking of 
vehicles of site operatives and visitors; details of the site compound for the 
storage of plant (silos etc) and materials used in constructing the development; 
provide a scheme indicating the route for heavy construction vehicles to and from 
the site; a turning area within the site for delivery vehicles; dust suppression 
scheme (such measures shall include mechanical street cleaning, and/or 
provision of water bowsers, and/or wheel washing and/or road cleaning facilities, 
and any other wheel cleaning solutions and dust suppressions measures 
considered appropriate to the size of the development). The scheme must 
include a site plan illustrating the location of facilities and any alternative 
locations during all stages of development. The approved statement shall be 
implemented and complied with during and for the life of the works associated 
with the development. 
Reason: This information is required pre-development to ensure that the site set 
up does not impact on highway safety, pedestrian safety, shall be retained trees 
(where necessary) and residential amenity having regard to policies DM5.19 and 
DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 

Page 245



INIT 

Notwithstanding Condition 1, no development shall commence until a scheme to 
show wheel washing facilities and mechanical sweepers to prevent mud and 
debris onto the public highway has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. This scheme shall include details of the location, 
type of operation, maintenance/phasing programme. Construction shall not 
commence on any part of the development other than the construction of a 
temporary site access and site set up until these agreed measures are fully 
operational for the duration of the construction of the development hereby 
approved. If the agreed measures are not operational then no vehicles shall exit 
the development site onto the public highway.  
Reason: This information is required pre-development to ensure that the site set 
up does not impact on highway safety, pedestrian safety, shall be retained trees 
(where necessary) and residential amenity having regard to policies DM5 
 
1.9 Informatives: 
The applicant is advised that the vehicular access to the highway must be 
constructed by or to the satisfaction of the Local Highway Authority.  Contact 
Highways@northtyneside.gov.uk for further information. 
 
The applicant is advised that a licence must be obtained from the Local Highway 
Authority before any works are carried out on the footway, carriageway verge or 
other land forming part of the highway.  Contact Highways@northtyneside.gov.uk 
for further information. 
 
The applicant is advised that it is an offence to obstruct the public highway 
(footway or carriageway) by depositing materials without obtaining beforehand, 
and in writing, the permission of the Council as Local Highway Authority.  Such 
obstructions may lead to an accident, certainly cause inconvenience to 
pedestrians and drivers, and are a source of danger to children, elderly people 
and those pushing prams or buggies.  They are a hazard to those who are 
disabled, either by lack of mobility or impaired vision.  Contact 
Highways@northtyneside.gov.uk for further information. 
 
The applicant is advised that a license must be obtained from the Highways 
Authority for any scaffold placed on the footway, carriageway verge or other land 
forming part of the highway.  Contact Streetworks@northtyneside.gov.uk for 
further information 
 
The applicant is advised that no part of the gates or garage doors may project 
over the highway at any time.  Contact 
New.Developments@northtyneside.gov.uk  for further information. 
 
The applicant is advised to contact Highway Maintenance to arrange for an 
inspection of the highways adjacent to the site. The applicant should be aware 
that failure to do so may result in the Council pursuing them for costs of repairing 
any damage in the surrounding area on completion of construction. Contact 
Highways@northtyneside.gov.uk for further information. 
 
The applicant is advised that requests for Street Naming & Numbering must be 
submitted and approved by the Local Highway Authority.  Any complications, 
confusion or subsequent costs that arise due to non-adherence of this criteria will 

Page 246



INIT 

be directed to applicant. Until a Street Naming and Numbering & scheme been 
applied for and approved by the Local Highway Authority it will not be officially 
registered with either the council, Royal Mail, emergency services etc.  Contact 
Streetworks@northtyneside.gov.uk 
for further information. 
 
The applicant is advised that free and full access to the Public Right of Way 
network is always to be maintained.  Should it be necessary for the protection of 
route users to temporarily close or divert an existing route during development, 
this should be agreed with the council's Public Rights of Way Officer.  Contact 
Highways@northtyneside.gov.uk for further information. 
 
The applicant is advised to contact the council's Public Rights of Way Officer 
prior to construction arrange s joint inspection of the Public Right of Way network 
on and adjacent to the site.  If this inspection is not carried out, the Local 
Highway Authority may pursue the developer for any costs to repair damage to 
these routes.  Contact Highways@northtyneside.gov.uk for further information. 
 
1.10 Sustainable Transport Team Leader 
1.11 A comprehensive Travel Plan (TP) for this site was submitted as part of the 
application which provides ambitious targets for the reduction of vehicular use, 
whilst targeting an increase of walking and cycling trips. The TP commits to 
monitor the site for a 5 year period and produce an annual review report to help 
determine if any additional measures or interventions are required.  
 
1.12 Recommendation - Approval 
  
Although the Travel Plan is approved, the developer will still be required to enter 
into a S106 agreement for the Travel Plan bond and monitoring requirements.  
  
1.13 Travel Plan: 
A £10,000 Travel Plan Bond is required, to be included as a Section 106 
Agreement. This will have to be paid if the Travel Plan Targets are not met 5 
years from first occupation. 
  
A £1,250 Travel Plan Monitoring Fee (£500 per annum) is required, to be 
included as a Section 106 Agreement. This is for North Tyneside Council (NTC) 
Officer time spent monitoring the travel plan delivery, evaluating annual travel 
plan progress reports and annual survey results as submitted by the Travel Plan 
Coordinator (TPC). 
 
1.14 Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) 
1.15 I have evaluated the flood risk and carried out a review of the surface water 
drainage proposals put forward as part of planning application 23/00217/FUL, I 
can confirm in principle I have no objections to the proposals as the applicant will 
be providing surface water attenuation within the site for up to a 1in100yr rainfall 
event + a 40% allocation for climate change and will be restricting the rate of 
surface water leaving the site to the equivalent greenfield run-off rates. The 
attenuation will be achieved via the use of underground cellular storage crates 
with a flow control device fitted on the outlet prior to the attenuation basin to 
restrict the surface water discharge rate to 3.6l/s before it discharges via a 

Page 247



INIT 

dedicated surface water sewer into the watercourse located to the North of the 
proposed development. The improvement in the surface water quality 
discharging from the development will be achieved via the form of filter trenches 
and swales and an attenuation basin. A petrol separator will be provided within 
the loading bay area to collect silts and hydrocarbons from this area of the site. 
The applicant has indicated the maintenance of the suds features and associated 
drainage infrastructure will be the responsibility of Aldi and an appointed building 
management company.  
 
1.16 I have noted that the applicant intends to discharge the site’s foul drainage 
system into the surface water drainage system via an onsite treatment plant, this 
though not ideal is acceptable as a result of the lack of any foul drainage sewers 
in the vicinity of the proposed development. However, approval will be required 
from the Environment Agency as the surface water from the development will be 
discharging to a watercourse so an environmental permit will be required to allow 
this connection.  
 
1.17 I will require a condition to be placed on the application requiring details of 
the appointed Management Companies responsible for the management of the 
SuDS features to be provided to the LLFA prior to the store opening for business. 
 
1.18 Manager for Environmental Health (Pollution) 
1.19 I have concerns with regard to potential noise arising from the foodstore 
development affecting neighbouring residential properties located on Sandy Lane 
located some 193 m west of the site and Holly Court and Meadow Gardens 
located some 85m east of the site. 
 
1.20 I have reviewed the air quality assessment which has considered the air 
quality impacts arising from the construction phase for the development. The air 
quality assessment has determined the impacts will be low adverse during 
construction if dust mitigation measures are employed to mitigate dust impacts. A 
condition is recommended to ensure dust mitigation measures are implemented 
during the construction phase. 
 
1.21 I have reviewed the noise assessment which has considered noise from 
new plant and equipment to be installed at the site and from delivery noise. 
Associated noise arising from the loading of goods by customers will occur in the 
car park e.g., clashing of trolleys, slamming of car boots and doors etc, but it is 
noted that the main part of the car park will be located to the northern elevation 
and its use can be controlled via a condition to restrict operating hours to no later 
than 22:00 hours. The noise assessment for the external plant has determined 
that the predicted noise level will be 20 dB LAeq,T  and is below the existing 
background noise levels for both the day and night period and will not give rise to 
significant adverse impacts.  A validation assessment will need to be carried out 
following installation.  It is noted that the delivery bay is located to the western 
area of the site away from the nearest sensitive residential properties on Holly 
Court and Meadow Gardens. The noise rating level was calculated as 33 dB 
during the day and would be below the existing daytime noise level of 35 dB 
LA90 and will not result in significant adverse impacts.  A condition to restrict 
deliveries to daytime hours will not be required.  
 

Page 248



INIT 

1.22 The lighting report has been reviewed which has demonstrated that the 
lighting levels will comply with the Institute of Lighting Professionals guidance for 
the reduction of obtrusive light. 
 
1.23 If planning consent is to be given, I would recommend the following 
conditions: 
 
Odour Abatement Controls: (If the provision of any bakery or cooking facilities is 
to be provided). 
 
EPL01 
EPL02 
EPL03 
EPL04  
The applicant shall maintain the odour suppression system as approved in 
accordance with the details provided by the manufacturer and submitted by the 
applicant  for the purposes of demonstrating compliance with Standard Condition 
EPL04. 
 
Deliveries and collection must not be permitted between 23:00 and 07:00 hours.  
 
HOU03 08:00 to 22:00 hours Monday to Saturday and 10:00 - 18:00 Sundays 
and Bank Holidays. 
 
Noise from External Plant and Equipment 
The noise rating level from the combined plant and equipment installed at the site 
shall not exceed the background noise level of 35 dB LAeq for the night period 
and 59 dB LAeq for daytime at the nearest sensitive receptor located on Holly 
Court and Meadow Gardens.  It will be necessary following installation of the 
plant and equipment that acoustic testing is undertaken to verify compliance with 
this condition within one month of its installation and submitted for written 
approval prior to the operation of the plant and thereafter maintain in working 
order. 
 
NOI02 
HOU04 
SIT03 
REF01 
REF02 
LIG01 In accordance to lighting report reference 68342R1 
 
1.24 Manager for Environmental Health (Contaminated Land) 
1.25 I have read the Phase 2 report and am satisfied that there is no 
contamination on site, therefore no conditions relating to ground contamination 
are required. 
 
1.26 However, there are still 4 round of gas monitoring to be carried out.  
Therefore, the following must be attached: 
 
Gas 006 
 

Page 249



INIT 

1.27 Planning Policy  
1.28 The site is agricultural land that borders A1056 to the south, mix of 
employment uses to the west and Great Lime Road and the A189 to the east. 
The northern section of the site is not part of this application and therefore would 
still remain as agricultural land.  The site is clearly visible from A1056 and Great 
Lime Road.  
 
1.29 The site is an allocated employment site (E003) in the North Tyneside Local 
Plan (2017), which supports development in B2, B8 and the former B1 use class 
(Policy S2.2). 
 
1.30 The application is for E use class for an Aldi supermarket (1,859m2 gross) in 
an out of centre location and therefore paragraph 87 and 90 of National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF) and Policy DM3.4 of the Local Plan (2017) require a 
sequential and impact assessment to be submitted with the application. The 
applicant has submitted both. It is the officer’s opinion that each assessment 
provides sufficient evidence that the development would not have a significant 
adverse impact on the centres within the catchment of the development and that 
no suitable, available, or viable sites were sequentially preferrable.  
 
1.31 Accepting the development meets the requirements of national and local 
retail policy the other main policy consideration is the loss of allocated 
employment land for B1, B2 and B8 uses to a supermarket. Policy DM2.3 of the 
Local Plan does accept development for uses outside of B1, B2 and B8 so long 
as the development meets certain criteria. These include ensuring the 
development would not result in an unacceptable loss of operating businesses 
and jobs, an excessive reduction in the supply of land for development in 
employment uses or have an adverse impact upon the amenity and operation of 
neighbouring uses.  
 
1.32 The supporting evidence confirms that the site would support a growth in 
jobs and would not result in an excessive reduction in the supply of land for 
development in employment uses or have an adverse impact upon the amenity 
and operation of neighbouring uses. The proposed development would be in 
accordance with Policy DM2.3. 
 
1.33 Conclusion: 
1.34 The proposal has not been able to identify any sequentially preferable sites 
within the catchment area and the impact assessment has proven the 
development would not have a significant adverse impact on the viability or 
vitality of the relevant town centres. Considering national guidance and the need 
for the Council to support sustainable economic growth, the application would be 
in accordance with Policy S2.1, DM2.3 and DM3.4 of the Local Plan (2017). 
 
1.35 There are no objections raised. 
 
1.36 Landscape Architect and Biodiversity Officer 
1.37 The site is located on a major junction with the A189 and the A1056 Sandy 
Lane.  The site is part of the Indigo Park and allocated for employment use. To 
the west of the site is commercial use (car retail) and to the north are agricultural 
fields leading with Weetslade Country Park to the northwest. Gosforth Park lies to 

Page 250



INIT 

the south, separated by Sandy Lane (A1056) with allotments and new residential 
housing to the southeast. The site covers approximately 1.3ha of agricultural 
land. The proposed development will include the construction of a retail store 
(Aldi) with associated car parking and landscaping.  A detention basin is to be 
incorporated as part of a SUD’s scheme.  A new vehicular access to the store car 
park will be via a new access on the eastern boundary of the application site 
along with new pedestrian access to the site. 
 
1.38 The site is allocated employment land and is also within a designated 
wildlife corridor as indicated on the North Tyneside Local Plan Policies Map 
(2017). The following policies apply to the scheme: 
 
Policy S5.4 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 
Policy DM5.5 Managing Effects on Biodiversity and Geodiversity 
Policy DM5.7 Wildlife Corridors  
Policy DM 5.9 Trees, woodland and hedgerows 
 
1.39 Ecology 
1.40 A number of ecology surveys have been submitted as set out below. The 
results/conclusions of each survey are summarised below:- 
 
1.41 Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (PEA) 
1.42 Habitats identified within the site included arable, hedgerow with trees, 
species poor hedge, tall ruderal, and poor semi-improved grassland. Hedgerows 
on site are most likely to be utilised by protected species, providing breeding, 
nesting, roosting, and foraging habitat for birds, as well as shelter and foraging 
opportunities for mammals. Trees are also likely to be utilised by birds and tall 
ruderal and poor semi-improved grassland may also provide some foraging 
opportunities to birds and mammals. The arable habitat provides low ecological 
value but can provide habitat for ground nesting and wintering birds. The 
hedgerows and trees are likely to be used by bats as commuting habitat and the 
site forms part of a wildlife corridor as shown in the North Tyneside Local Plan. It 
is also part of an area of green space situated between Gosforth Park (and the 
numerous designated sites within it) and Weetslade Country Park, with the 
Newcastle Green Infrastructure Delivery Framework (2018) identifying Gosforth 
Park to the south, as part of a Wildlife Enhancement Corridor (WEC) with high 
biodiversity value. The Report, therefore, recommends that habitats are left in 
place/ enhanced around the boundaries of the site to ensure that the wildlife 
corridor is not severed by the proposed works which will cause a loss of arable 
land and will be replaced with hardstanding and buildings. It also recommends 
that trees and hedgerows are retained to maintain connectivity within the site and 
additional planting incorporated along the length of the site to increase the 
amount of habitat and enhance the wildlife corridor. 
 
1.43 Breeding Bird Survey  
1.44 Breeding bird surveys were undertaken across the entire arable field 
(approx. 5ha) on 4 occasions between April-June 2021 including one nocturnal 
survey. A total of 34 bird species were recorded over the course of the breeding 
bird surveys with the site assessed of at least Local level of importance. Of the 
confirmed/potential/possible breeding species observed within the survey area, 7 
are considered to be of high conservation concern (red list) and 7 are considered 

Page 251



INIT 

to be of medium conservation concern (amber list). At a low-density threshold 
(e.g., 0.1-0.2/ha), the site has potential to support at least 1 pair of skylark, it is 
unlikely that this species would adapt to breeding on site post development and it 
should be assumed that this species will be displaced and lost as a breeding 
species. The report states that Lapwing may still utilise the wider site upon 
completion of works (the area that will not be subject to the new store) however, 
this would depend on how the remainder of site is to be managed. It concludes 
that it may be necessary to provide suitable mitigation off site for skylark and 
potentially lapwing, with other possible breeding species such as grey partridge 
benefiting from such measures. 
 
1.45 The species identified are a typical assemblage for the habitats present 
across the site, with the vast majority associated with the boundary/field 
boundary habitats (e.g., hedgerows and woodland). Whilst the site valuation, 
based on the number of confirmed/probable/possible breeding species recorded, 
is of at least Local level importance, weight is added due to the fact red and 
amber species make up 38.24% of the confirmed/probable/possible breeding 
species observed. A small number of nationally declining farm bird species were 
recorded using the site. 
. 
1.46 As part of the mitigation/enhancement section, the Report recommends the 
retention and enhancement of existing hedgerows so some natural foraging and 
nesting habitat can remain as well as offsite compensation for skylark, lapwing 
and grey partridge.  
 
1.47 Wintering Bird Survey  
1.48 Surveys were undertaken across the entire arable field (approx. 5ha) each 
month between December 2020 – March 2021 (inclusive). In summary, a total of 
29 species were recorded with 20 species recorded on site and 17 recorded 
within the site buffer. Some species were recorded in more than one of these 
areas across the surveys. A total of 7 BoCC Red listed species (24.14%) were 
recorded and 3 BoCC Amber listed species (10.34%), giving a combined total of 
10 notably listed species (34.48%). Based on the survey findings the site is 
considered to provide a Local level of importance for its winter avian assemblage.  
 
1.49 The Report states that whilst it is not considered that the site is of particular 
importance to maintain local populations of any of the wintering species 
identified, however, it does provide good connectivity to higher quality habitat to 
the north and the south, as well as, providing some foraging opportunities. It goes 
on to say that whilst it is expected that the site plans will likely reduce the species 
richness of the site overall, the retention and/or enhancement of existing 
hedgerows on site and the planting of additional hedgerows should be 
considered to provide foraging habitat and maintain connectivity. The Report also 
concludes that it is likely, given the nature of the development, that ground 
foraging species such as grey partridge and lapwing will not be retained as a 
wintering species given the reduction in foraging opportunity and disturbance 
from the change in site use. However, similar habitat is present within the wider 
landscape which can provide foraging opportunities to these species, particularly 
to the north of the site. 
 
1.50 Bat Survey  

Page 252



INIT 

1.51 Based on an initial preliminary ecological appraisal, trees were deemed to 
have moderate potential to contain roosting bats, therefore, in accordance with 
BCT guidance, 2 nocturnal surveys were undertaken on the trees on 20th August 
and 9th September 2020. In summary, activity was low during both surveys, with 
a total of 16 bats recorded in total. Most bats were common pipistrelle, with some 
soprano pipistrelle, and a single noctule. Commuting was most commonly 
recorded, north to south and vice versa across site with some foraging towards 
the north-west of the site. No roosts were observed during the surveys. The 
Landscape Plan (DWG No:0201-P03) shows that the hedgerow along the 
eastern boundary of the site will be retained and enhanced with species rich 
grassland to maintain habitat connectivity and new planting (hedgerows, trees, 
grassland) will also provided along the southern boundary which will also connect 
to the eastern boundary habitat. In addition, a corridor of landscaping (11m-17m 
wide) will be provided along the western boundary to provide a landscape buffer 
and enhance the existing woodland habitat along this boundary with additional 
woodland, scrub and species rich grassland. The provision of lighting will need to 
be minimised along this boundary with conditions attached to ensure any lighting 
within the site minimises light spill to valuable habitat along the boundaries of the 
site, particularly the western boundary ‘wildlife corridor’ buffer, to less than 2 lux. 
 
1.52 Biodiversity Net Gain 
1.53 The BNG Assessment and Biodiversity Metric indicate that post 
development and the implementation of the proposed landscaping scheme, there 
will be a minor shortfall of 0.03 habitat units which equates to a net loss of -
0.83%. A Biodiversity Net Gain is required to meet Planning Policy and the 
NPPF, with a target of 10%. As a result, the applicant has agreed to pay a 
financial contribution to the LPA to address the shortfall in habitat units on site to 
achieve an overall 10% net gain in habitat on an appropriate area of land within 
Council ownership.  
 
1.54 Planting Plan 
1.55 A preliminary ‘Planting Plan’ (DWG No: N1119-ONE-ZZ-XX-DR-L-0201 Rev 
P05) and ‘Proposed Site Plan’ (DWG: PM_00_10_00-0002 Rev P04) have been 
submitted to support the application. The ‘Planting Plan’ indicates a landscape 
buffer to the western boundary which includes a belt of mixed native scrub with 
standard trees adjacent to the existing established tree planting along the 
western boundary, with species rich grassland between the native scrub and the 
rear of the Aldi store. The native scrub extends along the northern boundary 
(adjacent to car parking) and also contains a number of standard trees within the 
mix. The western buffer planting also connects with a new native species rich 
hedgerow with standard trees along the southern boundary. The ‘Proposed Site 
Plan’ indicates the width of the western buffer planting corridor to be around 11m 
at its narrowest section up to around 17m along the south-west section. The 
north-west section of native scrub planting also widens out before narrowing 
along the northern boundary adjacent to car parking.  
 
1.56 The existing hedge and trees along the eastern boundary are being largely 
retained with the exception of a small section of hedge to facilitate the new 
access road into the site. This boundary is being enhanced with a belt of mixed 
native scrub and standard trees adjacent to the hedgerow along with species rich 
grassland either side of the hedge. A SUDs area is also provided to the north 

Page 253



INIT 

west of the hedgerow, adjacent to the internal access road to address drainage 
requirements and this will be sown with an appropriate wetland species rich 
grassland. 
 
1.57 The ’Proposed Site Plan’ (DWG: PM_00_10_00-0002 Rev P04) previously 
indicated 2m high weldmesh fences along the northern boundary of the 
development and within 2 sections of the western buffer planting areas, which 
were considered to be detrimental to wildlife movement within this corridor and 
the overall aim to ‘protect and enhance’ the wildlife corridor in accordance with 
Planning Policy. Consequently, this plan has been updated (DWG 
No:PM_00_10_00 0002 S4 REV P05) which now shows an absence of any 
fencing within the western buffer planting area and the 2m high weldmesh fence 
along the northern boundary replaced with a timber knee rail fence. These 
amendments are welcomed and considered acceptable. 
 
1.58 Lighting  
1.59 The submitted Lighting Report (Tamlite Lighting) indicates light spill levels 
which are excessive into sensitive areas, in particular the western boundary 
wildlife corridor area and habitats along the eastern, northern and southern 
boundaries. The applicant has revised the lighting information (‘External Services 
Layout’ DWG No: Ss_37_16_90 0001 D2 P03 which has reduced light spill levels 
but still indicates excessive light spill to some boundary planting areas, in 
particular, the western boundary (wildlife corridor buffer planting) and the north-
west boundary, which is unacceptable.  These habitats are being created to 
‘protect and enhance’ the wildlife corridor, providing valuable habitat for 
commuting and foraging bats and nesting and roosting habitat for birds. The 
provision of lighting columns will need to be minimised or re-located/re-designed 
along these boundary features (particularly the western and north-west 
boundary) to ensure light spill is less than 2 lux in these areas and the scheme is 
in accordance with Planning Policies DM5.5 (Managing Effects on Biodiversity) 
and DM5.7 Wildlife Corridors.  
 
1.60 Wildlife Corridor 
1.61 The PEA makes reference to the importance of the wildlife corridor, 
maintaining connectivity and enhancing planting within the corridor. The site 
forms part of the wildlife corridor as shown in the North Tyneside Local Plan 
connecting green space sites between Gosforth Park and Weetslade Country 
Park. The Newcastle Green Infrastructure Delivery Framework (2018) shows 
Gosforth Park as part of a wildlife enhancement corridor with high biodiversity 
value connecting to sites such as Weetslade Country Park. The PEA 
recommends that habitats are retained and enhanced around the boundaries of 
site to ensure that the wildlife corridor is not severed. The PEA and several of the 
other ecological reports (Wintering and Breeding Bird Surveys) also recommend 
the retention and enhancement of existing hedgerows to provide foraging and 
nesting habitat and maintain connectivity and to increase habitat to form a wildlife 
corridor. 
 
1.62 The submitted Planting Plan’ (DWG No: N1119-ONE-ZZ-XX-DR-L-0201 
Rev P05) indicates a landscape buffer to the western boundary which includes a 
belt of mixed native scrub with standard trees adjacent to the existing established 
tree planting along the western boundary, with species rich grassland between 

Page 254



INIT 

the native scrub and the rear of the Aldi store. The native scrub extends along 
the northern boundary (adjacent to car parking) and also contains a number of 
standard trees within the mix. The western buffer planting also connects with a 
new native species rich hedgerow with standard trees along the southern 
boundary. The ‘Proposed Site Plan’ indicates the width of the western buffer 
planting corridor to be around 11m at its narrowest section up to around 17m 
along the south-west section. The north-west section of native scrub planting also 
widens out before narrowing along the northern boundary adjacent to car 
parking.  
 
1.63 The existing hedge and trees along the eastern boundary are being largely 
retained with the exception of a small section of hedge to facilitate the new 
access road into the site. This boundary is being enhanced with a belt of mixed 
native scrub and standard trees adjacent to the hedgerow along with species rich 
grassland either side of the hedge. A SUDs area is also provided to the north 
west of the hedgerow, adjacent to the internal access road to address drainage 
requirements and this will be sown with an appropriate wetland species rich 
grassland. 
 
1.64 There are currently concerns regarding the light spill levels to boundary 
habitats indicated on the submitted lighting plans (see comments above). This 
will need to be addressed by re-designing the lighting scheme (locations of 
lighting columns, their design and lighting levels) to minimise light spill into 
boundary habitat areas, particularly the western buffer area, to less than 2 lux to 
ensure any lighting disturbance impacts are minimised within the wildlife corridor 
and the scheme meets Planning Policies DM5.5 (Managing Effects on 
Biodiversity) and DM5.7 Wildlife Corridors.  A condition will therefore need to be 
attached to the application for a lighting strategy to be submitted that addresses 
this issue.  
 
1.65 Trees 
1.66 The landscape proposals are provided on the Planting Plan N1119-ONE-
ZZ-XX-DR-L-0201-P05. There is a 153m established hedgerow forming the 
eastern site boundary to Great Lime Road is being retained together with a 
number of trees. The trees to the west is on neighbouring land is also to be 
retained and are protected by a Tree Preservation Order (TPO).    
 
1.67 A series of plans has been submitted that confirm the trees to be 
retained/removed, location of the tree protective fencing and any areas of special 
construction required.  Although no supporting documentation or report has been 
submitted, it is proposed to retain all trees on the site with the exception of a 
small section of hedge to facilitate the new pedestrian and vehicular access into 
the site and T8 (C).  The type, height and location of the tree protective fencing is 
shown on plan AMS/TPP rev A.   
 
1.68 It is proposed to plant 66no native standard trees of varying species that will 
improve the setting of the building and contribute to the wildlife corridor and 
biodiversity.  
 
1.69 Conclusion 

Page 255



INIT 

1.70 Subject to some alterations to the scheme (lighting) which can be addressed 
via a condition, the landscape scheme provides a high level of visual amenity and 
also provides biodiversity enhancements, including a habitat buffer along the 
western boundary, to maintain wildlife connectivity with the wider area. Whilst 
there is a very minor net loss of habitat units on site (0.03 habitat units) resulting 
in an overall -0.83% net loss, this will be addressed via a financial contribution to 
the LPA to ensure that an overall 10% net gain will be delivered off-site on 
Council owned land. Impacts on farmland birds will also be addressed through a 
financial contribution to ensure enhancement of land within the Rising Sun 
Country Park/Farm or an alternative appropriate area.  On this basis the proposal 
meets the local plan policies in relation to landscape and biodiversity and should 
the application be approved, the following conditions should be applied: 
 
1.71 Conditions: 
No trees, shrubs or hedges within the site which are shown as being retained on 
the submitted plans shall be felled, uprooted, wilfully damaged or destroyed, cut 
back in any way or removed during the development phase other than in 
accordance with the approved plans or without the prior written consent of the 
Local Planning Authority. Any trees, shrubs or hedges removed without such 
consent, or which die or become severely damaged or seriously diseased within 
three years from the completion of the development hereby permitted shall be 
replaced with trees, shrubs or hedge plants of similar size and species until the 
Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation.  
 
Prior to commencement of works starting on site, the trees within or adjacent to 
and overhang the site that are to be retained are to be protected by fencing and 
in the locations shown and detailed in the Tree Protection Plan submitted by All 
About Trees unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
No operational work, site clearance works or the development itself shall 
commence until the fencing is installed and photographs of the installed fencing 
have been submitted.  The protective fence shall remain in place until the works 
are complete or unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority.  The protective fence is NOT to be repositioned without the approval of 
the Local Authority. 
 
All works within the RPA of the retained trees that include (but not limited to) kerb 
installation, fence post installation, lighting and drainage, are to be carried out in 
complete accordance with Plan AMS/TPP Rev A submitted by All About Trees, 
BS 5837:2012 and the National Joint Utilities Group (NJUG) ‘Guidelines for the 
Planning, Installation and Maintenance of Utility Apparatus in Proximity To Trees’  
 
The contractors construction method statement relating to traffic 
management/site compounds/contractor access, temporary parking, on site 
welfare facilities, loading, unloading and storage of equipment, materials, fuels 
and waste as well concrete mixing and use of fires must be submitted in writing 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority and include tree protection 
measures for the trees to be retained.  Cabins, storage of plant and materials, 
parking are not to be located within the RPA of the retained trees as defined by 
the Tree Protection Plan and maintained for the duration of the works 
 

Page 256



INIT 

An arboricultural consultant is to be appointed by the developer to advise on the 
tree management for the site and to undertake regular supervision visits to 
oversee the agreed tree protection and visit as required to oversee any 
unexpected works that could affect the trees.  This condition may only be fully 
discharged on completion of the development subject to satisfactory written 
evidence of regular monitoring and compliance by the pre-appointed tree 
specialist during construction. 
 
Within one month from the commencement of development on site, a fully 
detailed landscape plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority and shall be in accordance with the details provided 
within the Biodiversity Metric 3.0 and BNG Assessment Report (Total Ecology 
Feb 2022). The landscape scheme shall include a detailed specification and 
proposed timing of all new tree, shrub, hedgerow and wildflower planting.  All 
new standard trees are to be a minimum 12-14cm girth.  The landscaping 
scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details within the 
first available planting season following the approval of details.  All hard and soft 
landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and 
to a standard in accordance with the relevant recommendations of British 
Standard 8545:2014. Any trees or plants that, within a period of five years after 
planting, are removed, die or become seriously damaged or defective, shall be 
replaced with others of species, size and number as originally approved, by the 
end of the first available planting season thereafter. Any revisions to the 
landscape plan are to be submitted and approved by the local authority.  
 
Within one month from the commencement of any development on site, a 
detailed 30 year ‘Landscape and Ecological Management and Monitoring Plan' 
(LEMMP) for all landscaping/habitat creation within the application site, as set out 
in the Biodiversity Metric and BNG Report (Total Ecology Feb 2022) and an 
approved Landscape Plan, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. This plan shall include details of site preparation, long-
term design objectives, management and monitoring objectives, management 
responsibilities, timescales and maintenance schedules for all newly created and 
enhanced habitats within the site. Thereafter, these areas shall be managed and 
maintained in full accordance with these agreed details unless first agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The plan will include details of the 
following:- 
 
Details on the creation, enhancement and management of all habitats identified 
within the Biodiversity Metric and BNG Assessment Report (Total Ecology Feb 
2022) and approved Landscape Plan and how the condition criteria will be met 
through management;   
Survey and monitoring details for all for all target habitats identified within the Net 
Gain Assessment Report/Biodiversity Metric (Total Ecology 2022). Monitoring 
Reports will be submitted to the LPA for review in years 3, 5 and 10 and 5 yearly 
thereafter, and will include a Net Gain Assessment update as part of the report to 
ensure the habitats are reaching the specified target condition. Any changes to 
habitat management as part of this review will require approval in writing from the 
LPA. The Plan will be reviewed every 5 years in partnership with the LPA. 

Page 257



INIT 

Details of any corrective action that will be undertaken if habitat delivery fails to 
achieve the requirements set out in the approved Biodiversity Net Gain 
Report/Biodiversity Metric. 
 
Prior to the installation of any floodlighting or other form of external lighting, a 
lighting scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. High intensity security lights will be avoided as far as practical 
and if required, these will be of minimum practicable brightness, be set on a short 
timer and will be motion sensitive only to larger objects.  Lighting must be 
designed to minimise light spill to adjacent boundary features such as woodland, 
scrub, grassland and hedgerow habitats and should be less than 2 lux in these 
areas. The Scheme shall include the following information: 
- a statement of frequency of use, and the hours of illumination; 
- a site plan showing the area to be lit relative to the surrounding area, indicating 
parking or access arrangements where appropriate, and highlighting any 
significant existing or proposed landscape or boundary features; 
- details of the number, location and height of the proposed lighting columns or 
other fixtures; 
- the type, number, mounting height and alignment of the luminaires; 
- the beam angles and upward waste light ratio for each light; 
- an isolux diagram showing the predicted illuminance levels at critical locations 
on the boundary of the site and where the site abuts residential properties or the 
public highway to ensure compliance with the institute of lighting engineers 
Guidance Notes for the reduction of light pollution to prevent light glare and 
intrusive light for agreed environmental zone ; and 
- where necessary, the percentage increase in luminance and the predicted 
illuminance in the vertical plane (in lux) at key points. 
The lighting shall be installed and maintained in accordance with the approved 
scheme. 
 
All works will be undertaken in accordance with an approved Construction 
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) that includes method statements for 
protected/priority species (breeding birds, bats, small mammals/hedgehog etc), 
removal of invasive species (Japanese Rose)  and appropriate working methods 
including pollution control details. Details shall be submitted for approval by the 
LPA prior to works commencing on site. 
 
No vegetation removal shall take place during the bird nesting season (March- 
August inclusive) unless a survey by a suitably qualified ecologist has confirmed 
the absence of nesting birds immediately prior to works commencing on site. 
 
3no. bird boxes and 2no. bat boxes will be provided in suitable locations within 
the development site. Details of bird and bat box specification and locations must 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority within 4 
weeks of development commencing on site and will be installed in accordance 
with the approved plans on completion of works and permanently retained.  
 
1no. integrated bat feature (e.g.bat brick, tile, bat box) and 2no. integrated bird 
features will be provided on new buildings within the development. Details of the 
specification and locations of the bird and bat features shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority within 4 weeks of 

Page 258



INIT 

development commencing on site and will be installed in accordance with the 
approved plans on completion of works and permanently retained. 
 
Any excavations left open overnight will have a means of escape for mammals 
that may become trapped in the form of a ramp at least 300mm in width and 
angled no greater than 45°.  
 
Hedgehog gaps (13cmx13cm) will be provided within any new fencing within the 
scheme to allow movement and dispersal of wildlife. Details of the locations and 
specification of the hedgehog gaps shall be submitted to the LPA for approval 
within 4 weeks of development commencing on site. 
 
2.0 Representations  
2.1 Support  
2.2 43 representations of support have been received: 41 generic responses and 
two individual representations.  
 
2.3 41 representations of generic support have been received. This response is 
set out below:  
-A new Aldi store at this location will increase choice for local residents, create 
much needed employment for local people and reduce travel times / 
-If permission is granted, the Aldi store will offer high quality, discount goods to 
customers at a time when it is needed most.  
-If the plans go ahead, the new store would be within five minutes walking 
distance of my house, as I live on Moorfields Bellway development.  
-Also, because the council has made such a mess of the roads with all the traffic 
signals I can pop into Aldi and do my shopping whilst waiting for the lights to 
change.  
-With the significant number of new properties being built in North Tyneside, this 
new Aldi store will help reduce traffic around the area as it is in close proximity to 
a number of housing developments.  
 
2.4 Two individual representations supporting this application have been 
received. These are set out below:  
-Fully support application for this Aldi store.  
-I'm supportive of this proposal as it will enhance local choice for where to shop 
and provide employment. Regarding cycling infrastructure, the access road to the 
development is from the Great Lime Road which is a key local cycling route 
connecting National Cycleway number 10, The Reivers, to High Gosforth Park. 
As such can the development ensure that cyclists passing the entrance and exit 
from the car park are taken into consideration, perhaps by including a priority 
cycle lane that makes it obvious to cars entering and exiting the car park that 
cyclists have right of way on the Great Lime Road. 
 
3.0 External Consultees 
3.1 Northumberland Wildlife Trust  
3.2 We have a number of significant concerns regarding the plans.  
 
3.3 Breeding Birds  
3.4 As identified in the Breeding Bird Survey Report provided by Total Ecology, a 
number of farmland and ground-nesting bird species were identified as utilising 

Page 259



INIT 

the site. These include red-listed skylark and lapwing, both of which are 
confirmed to have been breeding on site. The proposed development and 
planting plans will leave no appropriate on-site habitat remaining for these 
species, meaning that they will be lost from site, and no appropriate off-site 
mitigation has been suggested. This is unacceptable.  
 
3.5 Wildlife Corridor  
3.6 The land for development is identified as a wildlife corridor in the North 
Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and provides a corridor of movement for wildlife 
between Gosforth Park Nature Reserve SSSI and Weetslade Country Park LWS. 
The ecological report recommends that habitats are left in place and/or enhanced 
around the boundaries of the development to prevent the corridor being severed. 
However, looking at the current site plan, the proposed areas of habitat are likely 
insufficient. A 10m corridor sandwiched between a supermarket, a petrol station 
and a food outlet is likely to be subjected to high levels of human disturbance and 
will not offer much biodiversity potential. The other remaining areas of habitat are 
mostly adjacent to well-used roads, with plans to sever them further with vehicle 
and pedestrian access.  
 
3.7 Planting Schedule  
3.8 As a site within a wildlife corridor, the planting on site should put an emphasis 
on locally native species. Species like Carpinus betulus and Fagus sylvatica are 
not native and should be replaced with something more appropriate. In addition, 
the hedgerow and scrub mixes would benefit from additional species to increase 
the species-richness.  
 
3.9 Biodiversity Net Gain  
3.10 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)(paragraphs 174d, 179b, 
180d) and the North Tyneside Local Plan (policy DM5.5c.) both state requirement 
for development to deliver net gain for biodiversity. The Biodiversity Metric report 
provided by Total Ecology indicates a -0.82% net loss of biodiversity, which is 
clearly contrary to both national and local planning policy, and therefore 
unacceptable.  
 
3.11 Given the above concerns, Northumberland Wildlife Trust objects to this 
planning application.  
 
3.12 The Coal Authority  
3.13 The application site does not fall within the defined Development High Risk 
Area and is located instead within the defined Development Low Risk Area. This 
means that there is no requirement under the risk-based approach that has been 
agreed with the LPA for a Coal Mining Risk Assessment to be submitted or for 
The Coal Authority to be consulted. 
 
3.14 In accordance with the agreed approach to assessing coal mining risks as 
part of the development management process, if this proposal is granted 
planning permission, it will be necessary to include The Coal Authority’s Standing 
Advice within the Decision Notice as an informative note to the applicant in the 
interests of public health and safety. 
 
3.15 Newcastle International Airport (NIA)  

Page 260



INIT 

3.16 The proposal has been assessed by the Aerodrome Safeguarding Team.  
  
3.17 Landscaping 
3.18 When considering the proposed landscaping of the scheme, a large 
percentage of the species listed on both the native scrub mix and native hedge 
mix are listed on the hazard species list. This means that they have the potential 
to attract additional bird activity to the site due to their berry bearing features. 
While this would normally result in an objection to the scheme, when considering 
the amount of landscaping and distance to the flight path, it is not considered that 
this proposal would result in an unacceptable rise in potential birdstrike. As a 
result of this, given its location it is not considered that the proposal would result 
in any detriment to the safe operations of the Airport. NIA would not therefore 
offer any objection to this application.  
  
3.19 Northumbria Police  
3.20 Northumbria Police have no objection regarding this application, but we 
would make the following observation. 
  
3.21 The Applicant’s approach relies upon a modular and repeatable design, 
which serves them well in terms of development, but the modular design also 
repeats the same vulnerabilities across the applicant’s estate. To address this, 
we would recommend that either the southwest line of 2m weldmesh fence is 
brought forward to enclose the side staff entrance, or the staff entrance door is 
specified to an enhanced standard.  Given the location, likely response times and 
the nature of attacks we would recommend a door specified to LPS 1175 Issue 
8.1 C10 as a minimum. 
  
3.22 Northumbrian Water 
3.23 In making our response to the local planning authority Northumbrian Water 
assesses the impact of the proposed development on our assets and assesses 
the capacity within our network to accommodate and treat the anticipated flows 
arising from the development. We do not offer comment on aspects of planning 
applications that are outside of our area of control.  
 
3.24 It should also be noted that, following the transfer of private drains and 
sewers in 2011, there may be assets that are the responsibility of Northumbrian 
Water that are not yet included on our records. Care should therefore be taken 
prior and during any construction work with consideration to the presence of 
sewers on site. Should you require further information, please visit 
https://www.nwl.co.uk/services/developers/  
 
3.25 I can confirm that at this stage we would have no comments to make, as no 
connections to the public sewerage network are proposed in the application 
documents. Should the drainage proposal change for this application, we request 
re-consultation. 
 
3.26 The Northumberland and Newcastle Society (N&N) 
3.27 The Northumberland and Newcastle Society (N&N) objects to grant of 
planning approval for this scheme. 
 

Page 261



INIT 

3.28 The Society notes that in the final consultation of the draft North Tyneside 
Local Plan in November 2015, the site of this application was designated as 
Green Belt. It currently forms a green corridor from Gosforth Park to Weetslade 
Country Park. The proposed development would remove productive agricultural 
land at a time when it is needed for food production.  
 
3.29 The design and access statement has a very old image of the Sandy Lane 
roundabout which is slightly misleading as it is now completely different and is 
currently being changed to light controlled intersection because of pressure due 
to increased traffic using this route. This is a major approach corridor to the A1 
western Bypass and Newcastle to the south and to the coast and into 
Northumberland to the north. It is often very congested especially by traffic from 
all the new housing nearby.  
 
3.30 A food-store in this location will simply create even more traffic on the 
junction as we would suggest that few people will travel to this outlet by foot or 
cycle, inevitably, most will use cars. Food outlets would be better sited within on 
the edge of local communities to reduce traffic movement and would ask the 
council to consider this site as inappropriate for further retail development and 
allow it to remain as designated green belt.  
 
3.31 Nexus 
3.32 Case officer notes: The applicant provided a response to Nexus’ initial 
comments.  
 
3.33 On the two points raised below, Nexus has no further comments to make 
and welcomes the improvements made to pedestrian routes on the Weetslade 
Roundabout to facilitate pedestrian access between the development site and the 
bus stop. 
  
3.34 Additional to the below comments, Nexus would still recommend the 
provision of a Pop card with £50 of pre-loaded credit for each employee as per 
the Nexus Planning Liaison Policy, to be included in the Travel Plan. 
 
3.35 Nexus initial comments  
3.36 Despite there currently being no bus services on the A1056 Sandy Lane or 
Great Lime Road, the nearest accessible bus stops are located at the Western 
end of Killingworth Way, within the 400m walking distance as recommended 
within the Nexus Planning Liaison Policy. These stops are currently served by 
Arriva services X7 and X8, which operate a combined 15-minute frequency 
Monday – Saturday daytime, every 30 minutes Sunday daytime and hourly 
Sunday evening. These buses link with the surrounding local area (Burradon, 
Annitsford, Quorum Park, South Gosforth, and Newcastle City Centre) and 
Nexus therefore considers these services to be adequate for the development.  
 
3.37 However, the access between the proposed new store and the bus stops 
located on Killingworth Way should be improved by the provision of a path, street 
lighting and controlled crossing points. Nexus accepts that some of these 
features may already be present due to the current upgrade of the roundabout 
and associated infrastructure alongside the new housing developments in the 
area, however the developer should ensure these provisions are in place to 

Page 262



INIT 

encourage employees and customers to travel sustainably using the nearby bus 
links.  
 
3.38 Moreover, as further developments at the adjacent Indigo Park continue, 
Nexus requests the provision of both westbound and eastbound bus shelters 
along Sandy Lane to support current and future developments in the area. This 
would increase the accessibility to the development alongside future additions at 
the site, making travelling via bus more attractive to those using the development 
and wider area. The bus shelter in question would need to meet Nexus standards 
with installation carried out by a specific contractor. Approximate costings for a 
bus shelter and installation can be provided to the developer/applicant.  
 
3.39 Nexus welcomes the supporting Travel Plan for employees and supports the 
desire to promote bus services to staff and reduce the proportion of car journeys 
in the area. Within, Nexus additionally welcomes the promotion of active travel 
and the space to leave bicycles available in the store’s storage area. However, 
the applicant must be mindful that including cycle-specific storage locations for 
staff with provision like Sheffield Stands may encourage an increased uptake of 
active travel within employees.  
 
3.40 Furthermore, Nexus Planning Liaison recommends that if the development 
is the place of work for 50 or more employees, the applicant should meet the cost 
of one Pop Pay as You Go card per employee with £50 of credit preloaded onto 
it. This would encourage employees to build up sustainable travel habits and 
encourage the increased uptake of public transport. Nexus therefore requests 
that this be included within the employee travel plan, should the development be 
the place of work for 50 or more employees. 
 
3.41 Environment Agency  
3.42 We have reviewed the provided Foul Drainage Assessment Form and Foul 
Flow Calculations and consider that they satisfactorily address our earlier 
concerns with this proposal. We therefore withdraw our previous objection, dated 
14 April 2023.  
 
3.43 As this development will be discharging less than 5 cubic metres to surface 
water in any 24 hour period, it must comply with General Binding Rules. Further 
information on treatment plants and General Binding Rules is detailed below.  
 
3.44 Environmental Permit – Advice to Applicant  
3.45 Government guidance contained within the national Planning Practice 
Guidance (Water supply, wastewater and water quality – considerations for 
planning applications, paragraph 020) sets out a hierarchy of drainage options 
that must be considered and discounted in the following order:  
1. Connection to the public sewer  
2. Package sewage treatment plant (adopted in due course by the sewerage 
company or owned and operated under a new appointment or variation)  
3. Septic Tank  
 
3.46 Foul drainage should be connected to the main sewer. Where this is not 
possible, under the Environmental Permitting Regulations 2016 any discharge of 

Page 263



INIT 

sewage or trade effluent made to either surface water or groundwater will need to 
be registered  
as an exempt discharge activity or hold a permit issued by the Environment 
Agency, additional to planning permission. This applies to any discharge to inland 
freshwaters, coastal waters or relevant territorial waters.  
 
3.47 Please note that the granting of planning permission does not guarantee the 
granting of an Environmental Permit. Upon receipt of a correctly filled in 
application form we will carry out an assessment. It can take up to 4 months 
before we are in a position to decide whether to grant a permit or not.  
 
3.48 Domestic effluent discharged from a treatment plant/septic tank at 2 cubic 
metres or less to ground or 5 cubic metres or less to surface water in any 24 hour 
period must comply with General Binding Rules provided that no public foul 
sewer is available to serve the development and that the site is not within an 
inner Groundwater Source Protection Zone.  
 
3.49 A soakaway used to serve a non-mains drainage system must be sited no 
less than 10 metres from the nearest watercourse, not less than 10 metres from 
any other foul soakaway and not less than 50 metres from the nearest potable 
water supply.  
Where the proposed development involves the connection of foul drainage to an 
existing non-mains drainage system, the applicant should ensure that it is in a 
good state of repair, regularly de-sludged and of sufficient capacity to deal with 
any potential increase in flow and loading which may occur as a result of the 
development.  
 
3.50 Where the existing non-mains drainage system is covered by a permit to 
discharge then an application to vary the permit will need to be made to reflect 
the increase in volume being discharged. It can take up to 13 weeks before we 
decide whether to vary a permit.  
 
3.51Further advice is available at:  
Septic tanks and treatment plants: permits and general binding rules 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

Page 264


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Planning Officer Reports
	Planning Committee Presentation Slides
	Slide 1: Planning Committee
	Slide 2:            21/02546/FUL                   
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9:            21/01569/FUL                    
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13
	Slide 14
	Slide 15
	Slide 16
	Slide 17: 22/02231/FUL  
	Slide 18
	Slide 19
	Slide 20
	Slide 21
	Slide 22:          21/02496/FUL                     
	Slide 23
	Slide 24
	Slide 25
	Slide 26
	Slide 27
	Slide 28
	Slide 29
	Slide 30
	Slide 31
	Slide 32:            23/00217/FUL                    
	Slide 33
	Slide 34
	Slide 35
	Slide 36
	Slide 37
	Slide 38


	6 21/02546/FUL, Site of The Fusilier, Clydedale Avenue, Forest Hall
	7 21/01569/FUL, Land at former School House, Sandy Lane, North Gosforth
	8 22/02231/FUL, Unit 8-10, Graphic House, Mylord Crescent, Camperdown Industrial Estate, Camperdown
	9 21/02496/FUL - Land adjacent to Hatfield House, Borough Road, North Shields
	10 23/00217/FUL - Land east of Weetslade Depot, Great Lime Road, Dudley

